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NOTICE TO READER
 VOLUME 4 – SECTION 2

Volume 4 – Section 2 contains the audited financial statements for public school 

divisions.  These financial statements have been condensed to reflect only 

audited financial statements, notes and the schedule of tangible capital assets. 

The complete audited financial statements for public school divisions include a 

number of additional schedules that are required for management purposes, 

which have not been reproduced in this volume. Consequently, they cannot be 

expected to provide as complete an understanding as provided by the full 

financial statements, which can be obtained from the respective school division. 
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Beautiful Plains School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Financial Assets

4 Cash and Bank 279,545 - 
Due from  - Provincial Government 881,632 1,775,561 

 - Federal Government 35,520 51,028 
9  - Municipal Government 3,164,651 2,989,318 

 - Other School Divisions - - 
 - First Nations - 7,146 

Accounts Receivable 23,094 25,590 
Accrued Investment Income - - 
Portfolio Investments - - 

4,384,442 4,848,643

 Liabilities

4 Overdraft - 845,538 
Accounts Payable 122,217 538,969 
Accrued Liabilities 1,811,239 1,627,533 

3 Employee Future Benefits 49,615 34,209 
Accrued Interest Payable 442,639 484,122 
Due to  - Provincial Government - - 

 - Federal Government - - 
 - Municipal Government - - 
 - Other School Divisions - - 
 - First Nations - - 

5 Deferred Revenue 837,429 46,361 
7 Debenture Debt 17,098,443 18,458,268 

Other Borrowings - - 
School Generated Funds Liability 54,069 105,070 

20,415,651 22,140,070

 Net Debt (16,031,209) (17,291,427)

 Non-Financial Assets
2e Net Tangible Capital Assets (TCA Schedule) 20,402,119 21,069,523 

Inventories - - 
Prepaid Expenses 449,877 482,885 

20,851,996 21,552,408

8  Accumulated Surplus 4,820,787 4,260,981

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at June 30



Beautiful Plains School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Revenue

Provincial Government 13,926,174  13,213,010  
Federal Government -  -  

9 Municipal Government - Property Tax 6,101,414  5,787,928  
- Other -  -  

Other School Divisions 31,200  60,000  
First Nations -  23,820  

Private Organizations and Individuals 29,592  33,965  
Other Sources 127,252  103,044  
School Generated Funds 256,133  337,764  
Other Special Purpose Funds -  -  

20,471,765 19,559,531

 Expenses

Regular Instruction 10,922,484  10,296,596  
Student Support Services 2,251,337  2,203,747  
Adult Learning Centres -  -  
Community Education and Services 18,760  22,633  
Divisional Administration 642,821  601,227  
Instructional and Other Support Services 357,670  363,407  
Transportation of Pupils 1,200,348  1,212,890  
Operations and Maintenance 1,851,446  1,759,627  

10 Fiscal - Interest 961,941  1,015,088  
- Other 281,519  271,580  

Amortization 1,146,713  1,153,780  
Other Capital Items -  5,502  

6 School Generated Funds 261,514  330,849  
Other Special Purpose Funds -  -  

19,896,553 19,236,926

Current Year Surplus (Deficit) before Non-vested Sick Leave 575,212 322,605
3 Less: Non-vested Sick Leave Expense (Recovery) 15,406 (7,471)

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 559,806 330,076

 Opening Accumulated Surplus 4,260,981  3,930,905  
 Adjustments: Tangible Cap. Assets and Accum. Amort. -  -  

Other than Tangible Cap. Assets -  -  
Non-vested sick leave - prior years -  -  

 Opening Accumulated Surplus, as adjusted 4,260,981 3,930,905

 Closing Accumulated Surplus 4,820,787 4,260,981

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF REVENUE, EXPENSES

 AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
For the Year Ended June 30



Beautiful Plains School Division

2015 2014

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 559,806 330,076 

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 1,146,713 1,153,780             
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (479,309) (876,529)               
(Gain) / Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (28,583) (818) 
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 28,583 2,000 

667,404 278,433 

Inventories (Increase)/Decrease - - 

Prepaid Expenses (Increase)/Decrease 33,008 49,642 
33,008 49,642 

(Increase)/Decrease in Net Debt 1,260,218 658,151 

Net Debt at Beginning of Year (17,291,427) (17,949,578)          

Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - - 

(17,291,427) (17,949,578)          

Net Debt at End of Year (16,031,209) (17,291,427)          

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015



Beautiful Plains School Division

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014

 Operating Transactions

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 559,806 330,076 
Non-Cash Items Included in Current Year Surplus/(Deficit):

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 1,146,713             1,153,780             
(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (28,583) (818)
Employee Future Benefits Increase/(Decrease) 15,406 (7,471)

Due from Other Organizations (Increase)/Decrease 741,250 (867,740)              
Accounts Receivable & Accrued Income (Increase)/Decrease 2,496 (935)
Inventories and Prepaid Expenses - (Increase)/Decrease 33,008 49,642 
Due to Other Organizations Increase/(Decrease) - -
Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities Increase/(Decrease) (274,529)              433,402 
Deferred Revenue Increase/(Decrease) 791,068 (744,714)              
School Generated Funds Liability  Increase/(Decrease) (51,001) 37,298 
Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Operating Transactions 2,935,634             382,520 

 Capital Transactions

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (479,309)              (876,529)              
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 28,583 2,000 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Capital Transactions (450,726)              (874,529)              

 Investing Transactions

Portfolio Investments (Increase)/Decrease - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Investing Transactions - -

 Financing Transactions
Debenture Debt Increase/(Decrease) (1,359,825)           (145,767)              
Other Borrowings Increase/(Decrease) - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Financing Transactions (1,359,825)           (145,767)              

 Cash and Bank / Overdraft (Increase)/Decrease 1,125,083             (637,776)              
 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at Beginning of Year (845,538)              (207,762)              

 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at End of Year 279,545 (845,538)              



Beautiful Plains School Division
SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

at June 30, 2015

Furniture / Computer Assets 2015 2014
School Other Fixtures & Hardware & Land Under TOTALS TOTALS

School Non-School Buses Vehicles Equipment Software * Land Improvements Construction

 Tangible Capital Asset Cost
 Opening Cost, as previously reported 32,618,170     841,511          2,368,487       79,676            390,246          322,920          221,168          - 42,226            36,884,404     36,127,213     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening Cost adjusted 32,618,170     841,511          2,368,487       79,676            390,246          322,920          221,168          - 42,226            36,884,404     36,127,213     

Add:
Additions during the year

Less:
Disposals and write downs

 Closing Cost 32,905,549     841,511          2,276,451       100,334          407,058          305,895          221,168          - 63,350            37,121,316     36,884,404     

 Accumulated Amortization
 Opening, as previously reported 13,028,218     334,348          1,918,988       76,571            314,185          142,571          - 15,814,881     14,779,257     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening adjusted 13,028,218     334,348          1,918,988       76,571            314,185          142,571          - 15,814,881     14,779,257     

Add:
Current period Amortization

Less:
Accumulated Amortization
on Disposals and Writedowns

 Closing Accumulated Amortization 13,987,761     359,717          1,834,290       55,336            335,783          146,310          - 16,719,197     15,814,881     

 Net Tangible Capital Asset 18,917,788     481,794          442,161          44,998            71,275            159,585          221,168          - 63,350            20,402,119     21,069,523     

 Proceeds from Disposal of Capital Assets - - 500 28,083            - - 28,583            2,000              

* Includes network infrastructure.

25,369            99,496            32,601            

28,862            

479,309          

242,397          

1,146,713       

242,397          

- 21,124            

- - 

- 

Buildings and Leasehold 
Improvements

- 

21,598            

28,862            

- 92,158            49,999            - 

- 184,194          

- 184,194          29,341            - 

287,379          

- 

959,543          

- 

29,341            - 

16,812            11,837            876,529          

119,338          

1,153,780       

118,156          - 

8,106              



BEAUTIFUL PLAINS SCHOOL DIVISION 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2015 

1. Nature of Organization and Economic Dependence

The Beautiful Plains School Division is a public body that provides education services to 
residents within its geographic location.  The division is funded mainly by grants from the 
Province of Manitoba and a special levy on the property assessment included in the Division’s 
boundaries.  The Division is exempt from tax and is a registered charity under the Income Tax 
Act. 

The Division is economically dependent on the Province for the majority of its revenue and 
capital financing requirements.  As well, a significant portion of local property taxation is 
required to maintain educational services.  The Division would not be able to continue operations 
if either of these sources of funding were lost. 

2. Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with 
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles established by PSAB of the Canadian 
Institute of Chartered Accountants (CICA). 

a) Reporting Entity and Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses
of the operating fund, capital fund, and special purpose fund of the Division.  The
Division reporting entity includes school generated and registered charity funds. All
inter-fund accounts and transactions are eliminated upon consolidation.

b) Basis of Accounting

Revenues and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of accounting except when the
accruals cannot be determined with a reasonable degree of certainty or when their
estimation is impracticable.  The accrual basis of accounting recognizes revenues as they
are earned and measurable; expenses are recognized as they are incurred and measurable
as a result of the receipt of goods or services and the creation of a legal obligation to pay.
Expenses also include the amortization of tangible capital assets.



c) Fund Accounting

The fund method of accounting is employed by the Division to record financial
transactions in separate funds as defined by Financial Reporting and Accounting in
Manitoba Education (FRAME) in accordance with the purpose for which the funds have
been created.

The Operating Fund is maintained to record all the day to day operating revenues and
expenses.  The Capital Fund is used to account for the acquisition, amortization, disposal
and financing of capital assets.  The Special Purpose Fund is used to account for school
generated and registered charity funds.

d) School Generated Funds

School generated funds are monies raised by the school, or under the auspices of the
school, through extracurricular activities for the sole use of the school that the principal
of each school, subject to the rules of the school board, may raise, hold, administer and
expend for the purposes of the school.

Only revenue and expenses of school generated funds controlled by the Division are
included in the Consolidated Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Accumulated Surplus.
To be deemed as controlled, a school must have the unilateral authority to make the
decisions as to when, how and on what the funds are to be spent.

Period end cash balances of all school generated funds are included in the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position.  The uncontrolled portion of this amount is reflected in
the School Generated Funds Liability account.  Examples of uncontrolled school
generated funds are parent council funds, other parent group funds, student council funds
and travel club funds.  Revenues and expenses of uncontrolled school generated funds are
not included in the consolidated financial statements.

e) Tangible Capital Assets

Tangible capital assets are non-financial assets that are used by the Division to provide
services to the public and have an economic life beyond one fiscal year.  Tangible capital
assets include land, buildings, buses, other vehicles, furniture and equipment, computers,
capital leases, leasehold improvements, and assets under construction.



To be classified as tangible capital assets, each asset other than land must individually 
meet the capitalization threshold for its class as prescribed by FRAME. 

Capitalization  Estimated 
Asset Description  Threshold ($)  Useful Life (years) 

Land Improvements 25,000 10 
Buildings - bricks, mortar and steel 25,000 40 
Buildings – wood frame 25,000 25 
School Buses 20,000 10 
Vehicles 10,000 5 
Equipment  10,000 5 
Network Infrastructure 25,000 10 
Computer, Hardware, Servers & Peripherals   5,000 4 
Computer Software 10,000 4 
Furniture & Fixtures    5,000 10 
Leasehold Improvements 25,000 Over term of lease 

Grouping of assets is not permitted except for computer work stations. 

With the exception of land, donated capital assets and capital leases, all tangible capital 
assets are recorded at historical cost, which includes purchase price, installation costs and 
other costs incurred to put the asset into service. 

Buildings are recorded at historical cost when known.  For buildings acquired prior to 
June 30, 2005 where the actual cost was not known, the replacement value for insurance 
purposes as at June 30, 2005 was regressed to the date of acquisition using a regression 
index based on Southam and CanaData construction cost indices. 

All land acquired prior to June 30, 2006 has been valued by the Crown Lands and 
Property Agency. 

All tangible capital assets, except for land, capital leases, and assets under construction, 
are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as prescribed by 
FRAME.  Land is not amortized.  One-half of the annual amortization is charged in the 
year of acquisition and in the year of disposal if not fully amortized. 

Assets under construction are not amortized until the date of substantial completion.  
Interest on funds used to finance school buildings under construction is capitalized for the 
periods preceding the date of substantial completion.  



f) Employee Future Benefits

The Province of Manitoba pays the employer portion of the Teachers’ Retirement
Allowances Fund (TRAF), the pension plan for all certified teachers of the Division.  The
Division does not contribute to TRAF, and no costs relating to this plan are included in
the Division’s financial statements.

However, the Division provides a defined contribution pension plan to all eligible non
teachers in the Division.  There is no future liability or benefit to be recorded for this type
of pension plan.  The Division participates in the MSBA (Manitoba School Boards
Association) Pension Plan.  The terms and conditions of this pension plan are
administered by a provincial committee consisting of school trustees, employee and
division management representatives.  The Division participates in the plan by virtue of a
trust agreement. Participating employees in the plan generally contribute from 5.7% to
7.7% (dependant on age) of earnings to the plan.  The Division matches this contribution
and remits both contributions monthly.

For non-vesting accumulating sick days, the benefit costs are recognized, if deemed
material, based on a projection of expected future utilization of sick time, discounted
using net present value techniques.

g) Capital Reserve

Certain amounts, as approved by the Board of Trustees and the Public Schools Finance
Board (PSFB), have been set aside in reserve accounts for future capital purposes.  These
Capital Reserve accounts are internally restricted funds that form part of the Accumulated
Surplus presented in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.  The Division has
a reserve for school bus purchases in the amount of $586,275, other vehicles reserve in
the amount of $23,085 and a Neepawa Collegiate Shop Dust Collector Replacement
reserve in the amount of $155,598 (completed in summer of 2015).

h) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period.



i) Financial Instruments

There are no significant terms and conditions related to financial instruments (cash,
accounts receivable, investments, bank indebtedness, accounts payable and long-term
debt) that may affect the amount, timing and certainty of future cash flows.  The Division
is exposed to credit risk from the potential non-payment of accounts receivable.
However, the majority of the receivables are from local, provincial and federal
governments, and therefore, the credit risk is minimal.  The carrying amounts of the
financial instruments approximate their fair values, unless otherwise noted.

j) Liability for Contaminated Sites

The Division has adopted PS 3260 Liability for Contaminated Sites effective March 31,
2015.  No sites have been identified and no liability has been established in Beautiful
Plains School Division.

3. Employee Future Benefits

Non-vested accumulated sick leave benefits are measured using net present value techniques on 
the expected future utilization of excess of sick benefits used over earned per year, to a 
maximum entitlement.  The liability for employee future benefits for accumulated non vested 
sick leave recorded at June 30, 2015 was increased by $15,406.  The total accrual at June 30, 
2015 is $49,615.   

4. Overdraft

The Division has an operating $3,700,000 line of credit with the Beautiful Plains Credit Union 
by way of overdraft.  (By-Law #268)  The Division does not receive any property taxation until 
November each year thus operates in overdraft for a portion of the year. 

5. Deferred Revenue

The deferral method of accounting is used for revenues received that, pursuant to legislation, 
regulation or agreement, may only be used for specific purposes.  These amounts are recognized 
as revenue in the fiscal year the related expenses are incurred or services performed.  The 
Division has a Scholarship Fund which is included in Other Special Purpose Funds below.  The 
following is a breakdown of the account balance: 



Balance as at 
June 30, 2014

Additions
in the period

Revenue
recognized 

in the period
Balance as at

June 30, 2015

Education Property Tax Credits (Fall) -$  788,946$        -$  788,946$        
Charitable Scholarship Fund 43,821             16,936             15,194             45,563             
Prov. French Revitalization Grant 2,540               2,920               2,540               2,920               

46,361$          808,802$        17,734$          837,429$        

6. School Generated Funds Liability & Revenue/Expense Presentation

School Generated Funds Liability includes the non-controlled portion of school generated funds 
consolidated in the cash and bank balances in the amount of $54,069. 

School generated funds revenue and expenses reported in the Consolidated Statement of 
Revenue, Expenses and Accumulated Surplus as at June 30, 2015 covers a period of twelve 
months from April 1, 2014 to March 31, 2015.     

7. Debenture Debt

The debenture debt of the Division is in the form of twenty-year debentures payable, principal 
and interest, in twenty equal yearly instalments and maturing at various dates from 2016 to 2034.  
Payment of principal and interest is funded entirely by grants from the Province of Manitoba.  
The debentures carry interest rates that range from 3.625% to 8.75%.  Debenture interest expense 
payable as at June 30, 2015, is accrued and recorded in Accrued Interest Payable, and a grant in 
an amount equal to the interest accrued on provincially funded debentures is recorded in Due 
From the Provincial Government. 

The debenture principal and interest repayments in the next five years are: 

Principal Interest Total
2015/16 1,442,142$       907,899$          2,350,041$       
2016/17 1,472,544         820,383             2,292,927         
2017/18 1,284,358         732,179             2,016,537         
2018/19 1,252,642         660,286             1,912,928         
2019/20 1,291,759         590,960             1,882,719         

6,743,445$       3,711,707$       10,455,152$     



8. Accumulated Surplus

The consolidated accumulated surplus is comprised of the following: 

2014/15
Operating Fund
    Designated Surplus 203,027$             
    Undesignated Surplus 284,914               
    Non-vested Sick Leave Benefits 49,615 

537,556$             
Capital Fund
    Reserve Accounts 764,958$             
    Equity in Tangible Capital Assets 3,269,728            

4,034,686$         
Special Purpose Fund
    School Generated Funds 248,545$             
    Other Special Purpose Funds -

248,545               
    Total Accumulated Surplus 4,820,787$         

Unexpended school instructional budgets from the 2014/15 year totalling $35,527 have been 
carried forward to the 2015/16 school year.  As well, $ 167,500 has been designated to purchase 
property adjacent to Neepawa Collegiate.  (See Note 12)   

Reserve Accounts under the Capital Fund represent internally restricted reserves for specific 
purposes approved by the Board of Trustees and Public Schools Finance Board.  A Schedule of 
Capital Reserve Accounts is provided on page 24 of the audited financial statements. 

2014/15
School Bus Reserve 586,275$          
Other Vehicle Reserve 23,085               
Neepawa Collegiate Shop Dust Collector 155,598             
    Total Capital Reserves 764,958$          



9. Municipal Government – Property Tax and Related Due from Municipal Government

Education Property Tax or Special Levy is raised as the Division’s contribution to the cost of 
providing public education for the students resident in the division.  The Municipal Government 
Property Tax shown on the consolidated revenue and expense statement is raised over the two 
calendar (tax) years; 48% from 2014 tax year and 52% from the 2015 tax year.  Below are the 
related revenue and receivable amounts: 

2014/15 2013/14
Revenue-Municipal Government-Property Tax 6,101,414$         5,787,928$         
Receivable-Due from Municipal-Property Tax 3,164,651$         2,989,318$         

10. Interest Received and Paid

The Division received interest during the year of $8,456 (previous year $9,226). 
Interest expense is included in Fiscal and is comprised of the following: 

2014/15
Operating Fund
    Fiscal short term loan, interest and bank charges 13,208$             
Capital Fund
    Debenture debt interest 948,733             
    Other interest -
    Total Interest Expense 961,941$          

The accrual portion of debenture debt interest expense of $442,639 included under the Capital 
Fund-Debenture debt interest is offset by an accrual of the debt servicing grant from the Province 
of Manitoba. 

11. High Speed Connectivity Agreement

The Division has entered into a long term agreement with Westman Communications Group to 
provide high speed internet and wide area network connectivity for all community schools.  The 
initial term of the agreement is ten years and two options to renew for a further five years each.  
Carberry and Neepawa Schools and the Division Office will utilize fiber optic cable technology 
and Brookdale and J. M. Young Schools will have wireless service using towers. A prepaid 
expense in the amount of $566,079 was established in the 2012/13 fiscal year.  This expense will 
be recognized over the initial term of the agreement commencing in the 2012/13 fiscal year.  The 
cost for construction of the infrastructure (wireless towers) owned by the Division is $188,693 
and is being amortized in the capital fund. 



12. Property Purchase

The Division is in the process of purchasing property (known as 189 Mountain Ave.) in the 
Town of Neepawa adjacent to the Neepawa Collegiate School yard.   The property will be used 
for future development of the site.  A deposit of $ 5,000 has been made and $ 167,500 remains to 
be paid.   

13. Expenses by Object

Expenses in the consolidated statement of revenue, expenses and accumulated surplus are 
reported by function as defined by FRAME.  Below is the detail of expenses by object: 

Actual Budget Actual
2014/15 2014/15 2013/14

Salaries 13,321,611$     13,267,160$     12,700,398$     
Employees benefits & allowances 964,279             933,241             913,100             
Services 1,644,383         1,651,845         1,544,410         
Supplies, materials & minor equipment 1,258,256         1,221,108         1,217,291         
Interest 961,941             961,733             1,015,088         
Transfers (Other than Capital) 56,337               71,100               84,928               
Payroll tax 281,519             284,000             271,580             
Amortization 1,146,713         - 1,153,780         
Other capital items - - 5,502 
School generated funds 261,514             - 330,849             
    Total 19,896,553$     18,390,187$     19,236,926$     
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Border Land School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Financial Assets

Cash and Bank 1,170,662 188,768 
Due from  - Provincial Government 2,648,771 3,704,393 

 - Federal Government 231,132 316,016 
 - Municipal Government 5,377,232 5,402,061 
 - Other School Divisions 611,808 491,885 
 - First Nations 54,406 243,427 

Accounts Receivable 163,034 124,552 
Accrued Investment Income - - 
Portfolio Investments - - 

10,257,045 10,471,102

 Liabilities

Overdraft - - 
Accounts Payable 1,934,107 685,594 
Accrued Liabilities 86,213 801,236 
Employee Future Benefits - - 
Accrued Interest Payable 197,767 215,577 
Due to  - Provincial Government 106,862 99,365 

 - Federal Government 53,780 1,087,202 
 - Municipal Government 68,212 68,895 
 - Other School Divisions 271,961 250,355 
 - First Nations - - 

* Deferred Revenue 1,307,492 416,410 
* Debenture Debt 8,522,230 9,122,862 
* Other Borrowings 5,600 11,200 

School Generated Funds Liability - - 

12,554,224 12,758,696

 Net Debt (2,297,179) (2,287,594)

 Non-Financial Assets
* Net Tangible Capital Assets (TCA Schedule) 14,243,030 13,987,480 

Inventories 192,954 165,014 
Prepaid Expenses 2,657 47,616 

14,438,641 14,200,110

*  Accumulated Surplus 12,141,462 11,912,516

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at June 30



Border Land School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Revenue

Provincial Government 22,909,467 22,715,116 
Federal Government 15,623 776,989 
Municipal Government - Property Tax 8,969,967 8,922,421 

- Other 2,000 3,118 
Other School Divisions 631,173 521,317 
First Nations 1,252,605 494,219 

Private Organizations and Individuals 135,110 268,654 
Other Sources 453,693 301,914 
School Generated Funds 556,544 288,551 
Other Special Purpose Funds - -

34,926,182 34,292,299

 Expenses

Regular Instruction 18,440,587 17,420,127 
Student Support Services 4,785,918 4,587,860 
Adult Learning Centres 573,186 492,630 
Community Education and Services 61,984 48,038 
Divisional Administration 1,111,167 898,006 
Instructional and Other Support Services 739,286 690,184 
Transportation of Pupils 2,413,198 2,220,430 
Operations and Maintenance 3,290,061 3,276,294 

* Fiscal - Interest 491,914 522,390 
- Other 640,969 475,443 

Amortization 1,593,660 1,458,693 
Other Capital Items - 18,475 
School Generated Funds 555,306 276,002 
Other Special Purpose Funds - -

34,697,236 32,384,572

Current Year Surplus (Deficit) before Non-vested Sick Leave 228,946 1,907,727
Less: Non-vested Sick Leave Expense (Recovery) 0 0
Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 228,946 1,907,727

 Opening Accumulated Surplus 11,912,516 10,004,789 
 Adjustments: Tangible Cap. Assets and Accum. Amort. - -

Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -
Non-vested sick leave - prior years - -

 Opening Accumulated Surplus, as adjusted 11,912,516 10,004,789

 Closing Accumulated Surplus 12,141,462 11,912,516

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements
* NOTE REQUIRED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF REVENUE, EXPENSES

 AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
For the Year Ended June 30



Border Land School Division

2015 2014

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 228,946 1,907,727             

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 1,593,660 1,458,693             
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (2,276,578) (2,308,349)            
(Gain) / Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 85,013 (6,100) 
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 342,355 21,900 

(255,550) (833,856)               

Inventories (Increase)/Decrease (27,940) (35,526) 

Prepaid Expenses (Increase)/Decrease 44,959 336 
17,019 (35,190) 

(Increase)/Decrease in Net Debt (9,585) 1,038,681             

Net Debt at Beginning of Year (2,287,594) (3,326,275)            

Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - - 

(2,287,594) (3,326,275)            

Net Debt at End of Year (2,297,179) (2,287,594)            

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015



Border Land School Division

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014

 Operating Transactions

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 228,946 1,907,727             
Non-Cash Items Included in Current Year Surplus/(Deficit):

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 1,593,660             1,458,693             
(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 85,013 (6,100)
Employee Future Benefits Increase/(Decrease) - -

Due from Other Organizations (Increase)/Decrease 1,234,433             (1,880,978)           
Accounts Receivable & Accrued Income (Increase)/Decrease (38,482) 16,236 
Inventories and Prepaid Expenses - (Increase)/Decrease 17,019 (35,190)
Due to Other Organizations Increase/(Decrease) (1,005,002)           10,004 
Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities Increase/(Decrease) 515,680 (266,158)              
Deferred Revenue Increase/(Decrease) 891,082 (815,928)              
School Generated Funds Liability  Increase/(Decrease) - -
Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Operating Transactions 3,522,349             388,306 

 Capital Transactions

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (2,276,578)           (2,308,349)           
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 342,355 21,900 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Capital Transactions (1,934,223)           (2,286,449)           

 Investing Transactions

Portfolio Investments (Increase)/Decrease - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Investing Transactions - -

 Financing Transactions
Debenture Debt Increase/(Decrease) (600,632)              (361,212)              
Other Borrowings Increase/(Decrease) (5,600) (5,600)

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Financing Transactions (606,232)              (366,812)              

 Cash and Bank / Overdraft (Increase)/Decrease 981,894 (2,264,955)           
 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at Beginning of Year 188,768 2,453,723             

 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at End of Year 1,170,662             188,768 



Border Land School Division

SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
at June 30, 2015

Furniture / Computer Assets 2015 2014
School Other Fixtures & Hardware & Land Under TOTALS TOTALS

School Non-School Buses Vehicles Equipment Software * Land Improvements Construction

 Tangible Capital Asset Cost
 Opening Cost, as previously reported 23,366,677     651,882          4,266,947       127,308          2,527,832       1,658,881       207,919          326,405          266,776          33,400,627     31,640,772     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening Cost adjusted 23,366,677     651,882          4,266,947       127,308          2,527,832       1,658,881       207,919          326,405          266,776          33,400,627     31,640,772     

Add:
Additions during the year

Less:
Disposals and write downs

 Closing Cost 23,645,062     651,882          4,200,029       127,308          2,932,691       1,877,119       207,919          362,405          649,427          34,653,842     33,400,627     

 Accumulated Amortization
 Opening, as previously reported 14,344,626     371,972          2,348,194       78,595            1,786,809       408,228          74,723            19,413,147     18,487,148     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening adjusted 14,344,626     371,972          2,348,194       78,595            1,786,809       408,228          74,723            19,413,147     18,487,148     

Add:
Current period Amortization

Less:
Accumulated Amortization
on Disposals and Writedowns

 Closing Accumulated Amortization 15,090,426     397,820          2,379,860       100,561          1,757,000       575,981          109,164          20,410,812     19,413,147     

 Net Tangible Capital Asset 8,554,636       254,062          1,820,169       26,747            1,175,691       1,301,138       207,919          253,241          649,427          14,243,030     13,987,480     

 Proceeds from Disposal of Capital Assets 269,589          - 51,900            - 20,866            - 342,355          21,900            

* Includes network infrastructure.

413,249          

134,864          

745,800          

- 

- 272,580          

677,439          231,602          2,308,349       

548,494          

1,458,693       

532,694          - 

21,966            

Buildings and Leasehold 
Improvements

- 

241,033          

12,981            

- 279,902          - - 

- 346,820          

- 312,172          270,842          

36,000            638,386          

- 255,735          

34,441            

2,276,578       

1,023,363       

1,593,660       

595,995          

25,848            343,838          180,734          

13,364            
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Brandon School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Financial Assets

Cash and Bank 2,342,986 - 
Due from  - Provincial Government 2,779,675 2,209,205 

 - Federal Government 115,778 120,117 
 - Municipal Government 18,675,020 18,560,053 
 - Other School Divisions 24,141 72,270 
 - First Nations 53,104 57,113 

Accounts Receivable 20,702 97,031 
Accrued Investment Income - - 
Portfolio Investments - - 

24,011,406 21,115,789

 Liabilities

Overdraft - 4,663,544 
Accounts Payable 11,363,065 12,076,877 
Accrued Liabilities 11,551 10,555 

* Employee Future Benefits 1,767,527 1,608,493 
Accrued Interest Payable 631,017 320,936 
Due to  - Provincial Government - 1,627 

 - Federal Government - - 
 - Municipal Government - - 
 - Other School Divisions - - 
 - First Nations - - 

* Deferred Revenue 3,318,142 3,166,395 
* Debenture Debt 28,854,352 15,060,824 

Other Borrowings - - 
School Generated Funds Liability 274,615 268,182 

46,220,269 37,177,433

 Net Debt (22,208,863) (16,061,644)

 Non-Financial Assets
* Net Tangible Capital Assets (TCA Schedule) 39,301,313 31,112,366 

Inventories 54,920 56,097 
Prepaid Expenses 338,684 243,893 

39,694,917 31,412,356

*  Accumulated Surplus 17,486,054 15,350,712

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at June 30



Brandon School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Revenue

Provincial Government 57,592,869  55,671,171  
Federal Government 20,196  24,918  
Municipal Government - Property Tax 32,902,072  32,108,074  

- Other -  -  
Other School Divisions 300,824  315,072  
First Nations 130,900  173,220  

Private Organizations and Individuals 778,064  751,327  
Other Sources 163,223  68,048  
School Generated Funds 2,392,158  2,533,167  
Other Special Purpose Funds 282,436  317,960  

94,562,742 91,962,957

 Expenses

Regular Instruction 52,479,939  50,237,368  
Student Support Services 17,815,990  18,010,847  
Adult Learning Centres -  -  
Community Education and Services 241,746  245,769  
Divisional Administration 2,619,630  2,431,661  
Instructional and Other Support Services 2,484,418  2,526,743  
Transportation of Pupils 2,213,387  2,041,728  
Operations and Maintenance 7,224,637  7,030,834  

* Fiscal - Interest 1,086,844  820,473  
- Other 1,520,377  1,439,690  

Amortization 2,057,469  1,979,188  
Other Capital Items -  8,260  
School Generated Funds 2,376,761  2,401,010  
Other Special Purpose Funds 248,371  168,640  

92,369,569 89,342,211

Current Year Surplus (Deficit) before Non-vested Sick Leave 2,193,173 2,620,746
Less: Non-vested Sick Leave Expense (Recovery) 57,831 (8,666)
Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 2,135,342 2,629,412

 Opening Accumulated Surplus 15,350,712  12,721,300  
 Adjustments: Tangible Cap. Assets and Accum. Amort. -  -  

Other than Tangible Cap. Assets -  -  
Non-vested sick leave - prior years -  -  

 Opening Accumulated Surplus, as adjusted 15,350,712 12,721,300

 Closing Accumulated Surplus 17,486,054 15,350,712

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements
* NOTE REQUIRED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF REVENUE, EXPENSES

 AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
For the Year Ended June 30



Brandon School Division

2015 2014

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 2,135,342 2,629,412             

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 2,057,469 1,979,188             
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (10,246,416) (6,746,844)            
(Gain) / Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (20,184) - 
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 20,184 - 

(8,188,947) (4,767,656)            

Inventories (Increase)/Decrease 1,177 18,277 

Prepaid Expenses (Increase)/Decrease (94,791) (44,889) 
(93,614) (26,612) 

(Increase)/Decrease in Net Debt (6,147,219) (2,164,856)            

Net Debt at Beginning of Year (16,061,644) (13,896,788)          

Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - - 

(16,061,644) (13,896,788)          

Net Debt at End of Year (22,208,863) (16,061,644)          

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015



Brandon School Division

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014

 Operating Transactions

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 2,135,342             2,629,412             
Non-Cash Items Included in Current Year Surplus/(Deficit):

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 2,057,469             1,979,188             
(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (20,184) - 
Employee Future Benefits Increase/(Decrease) 159,034 56,455 

Due from Other Organizations (Increase)/Decrease (628,960) (2,112,830)           
Accounts Receivable & Accrued Income (Increase)/Decrease 76,329 (68,396) 
Inventories and Prepaid Expenses - (Increase)/Decrease (93,614) (26,612) 
Due to Other Organizations Increase/(Decrease) (1,627) 1,627 
Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities Increase/(Decrease) (402,735) 2,575,621             
Deferred Revenue Increase/(Decrease) 151,747 (255,184) 
School Generated Funds Liability  Increase/(Decrease) 6,433 (27,995) 
Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - - 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Operating Transactions 3,439,234             4,751,286             

 Capital Transactions

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (10,246,416)         (6,746,844)           
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 20,184 - 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Capital Transactions (10,226,232)         (6,746,844)           

 Investing Transactions

Portfolio Investments (Increase)/Decrease - - 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Investing Transactions - - 

 Financing Transactions
Debenture Debt Increase/(Decrease) 13,793,528           296,985 
Other Borrowings Increase/(Decrease) - - 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Financing Transactions 13,793,528           296,985 

 Cash and Bank / Overdraft (Increase)/Decrease 7,006,530             (1,698,573)           
 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at Beginning of Year (4,663,544)           (2,964,971)           

 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at End of Year 2,342,986             (4,663,544)           



Brandon School Division
SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

at June 30, 2015

Furniture / Computer Assets 2015 2014
School Other Fixtures & Hardware & Land Under TOTALS TOTALS

School Non-School Buses Vehicles Equipment Software * Land Improvements Construction

 Tangible Capital Asset Cost
 Opening Cost, as previously reported 60,481,455     1,937,773       4,090,009       305,807          2,472,838       1,332,269       1,079,084       298,062          5,467,685       77,464,982     70,718,138     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening Cost adjusted 60,481,455     1,937,773       4,090,009       305,807          2,472,838       1,332,269       1,079,084       298,062          5,467,685       77,464,982     70,718,138     

Add:
Additions during the year

Less:
Disposals and write downs

 Closing Cost 67,233,654     1,937,773       4,401,087       334,292          2,731,249       1,332,269       1,079,084       298,062          8,173,625       87,521,095     77,464,982     

 Accumulated Amortization
 Opening, as previously reported 39,358,703     1,400,507       2,750,311       230,622          2,302,237       257,358          52,878            46,352,616     44,373,428     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening adjusted 39,358,703     1,400,507       2,750,311       230,622          2,302,237       257,358          52,878            46,352,616     44,373,428     

Add:
Current period Amortization

Less:
Accumulated Amortization
on Disposals and Writedowns

 Closing Accumulated Amortization 40,792,087     1,443,667       2,892,187       214,237          2,365,989       428,931          82,684            48,219,782     46,352,616     

 Net Tangible Capital Asset 26,441,567     494,106          1,508,900       120,055          365,260          903,338          1,079,084       215,378          8,173,625       39,301,313     31,112,366     

 Proceeds from Disposal of Capital Assets - - 2,600              17,584            - - 20,184            - 

* Includes network infrastructure.

43,160            291,267          171,573          

- 

10,246,416     

190,303          

2,057,469       

190,303          

- 2,705,940       

- - 

29,806            

Buildings and Leasehold 
Improvements

- 

63,752            

- 

- 460,469          69,397            - 

- 149,391          

- 149,391          40,912            - 

6,752,199       

- 

1,433,384       

- 

40,912            - 

258,411          - 6,746,844       

- 

1,979,188       

- - 

24,527            



BRANDON SCHOOL DIVISION 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2015 

1. Nature of Organization and Economic Dependence

The Brandon School Division is a public body that provides education services to residents within
its geographic location. The Division is funded mainly by grants from the Province of Manitoba,
and a special levy on the property assessment included in the Division’s boundaries. The Division
is not subject to income tax.

The Division is economically dependent on the Province for the majority of its revenue and capital
financing requirements. Without this funding, the Division would not be able to continue its
operations.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles established by PSAB of the Canadian Institute
of Chartered Accountants (CICA).

a) Reporting Entity and Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of 
the operating fund, capital fund, and special purpose fund of the Division. The Division 
reporting entity includes school generated funds controlled by the Division. 

All inter-fund accounts and transactions are eliminated upon consolidation. 

b) Basis of Accounting

Revenues and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of accounting except when the 
accruals cannot be determined with a reasonable degree of certainty or when their estimation 
is impracticable.  The accrual basis of accounting recognizes revenues as they are earned 
and measurable; expenses are recognized as they are incurred and measurable as a result 
of the receipt of goods or services and the creation of a legal obligation to pay. Expenses also 
include the amortization of tangible capital assets. 

c) Fund Accounting

The fund method of accounting is employed by the Division to record financial transactions in 
separate funds as defined by Financial Reporting and Accounting in Manitoba Education 
(FRAME) in accordance with the purpose for which the funds have been created. 

The Operating Fund is maintained to record all the day to day operating revenues and 
expenses.  The Capital Fund is used to account for the acquisition, amortization, disposal and 
financing of capital assets.  The Special Purpose Fund is used to account for school generated 
funds and charitable foundations controlled by the Division. 

d) School Generated Funds

School generated funds are moneys raised by the school, or under the auspices of the school, 
through extracurricular activities for the sole use of the school that the principal of each school, 
subject to the rules of the school board, may raise, hold, administer and expend for the 
purposes of the school. 

Only revenue and expenses of school generated funds controlled by the Division are included 
in the Consolidated Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Accumulated Surplus.   To be 
deemed as controlled, a school must have the unilateral authority to make the decisions as to 
when, how and on what the funds are to be spent. 

Period end cash balances of all school generated funds are included in the Consolidated 
Statement of Financial Position.  The uncontrolled portion of this amount is reflected in the 
School Generated Funds Liability account.  Examples of uncontrolled school generated funds 
are parent council funds, other parent group funds, student council funds and travel club 
funds.  Revenues and expenses of uncontrolled school generated funds are not included in 
the consolidated financial statements. 



BRANDON SCHOOL DIVISION 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2015 

e) Tangible Capital Assets

Tangible capital assets are non-financial assets that are used by the Division to provide 
services to the public and have an economic life beyond one fiscal year.  Tangible capital 
assets include land, buildings, buses, other vehicles, furniture and equipment, computers, 
capital leases, leasehold improvements, and assets under construction. 

To be classified as tangible capital assets, each asset other than land must individually meet 
the capitalization threshold for its class as prescribed by FRAME. 

Equipment
Network Infrastructure
Computer Hardware, Servers, Peripherals
Computer Software
Furniture & Fixtures
Leasehold Improvements

Capitalization
Threshold

($)

25,000
25,000
25,000
20,000

Asset Description

Land improvements
Buildings - bricks, mortar, steel
Buildings - wood frame
School buses
Vehicles

25,000

25,000

Estimated Useful
Life

(years)

10
40
25
10
5
5

10,000
10,000

Over term of lease

5,000
10,000
5,000

10
4
4
10

Grouping of assets is not permitted except for computer workstations and for systems in which 
use of each component is dependent on each other to operate. 

With the exception of land, all tangible capital assets, are recorded at historical cost, which 
includes purchase price, installation costs and other costs incurred to put the asset into 
service. 

Buildings are recorded at historical cost when known.  Where actual costs are not 
determinable, estimated costs have been determined. 

Capital leases are recorded at the present value of the minimum lease payments excluding 
executory costs (e.g. insurance, maintenance costs, etc.).  The discount rate used to 
determine the present value of the lease payments is the lower of the Division’s rate for 
incremental borrowing or the interest rate implicit in the lease. 

Donated tangible capital assets are recorded at fair market value at the date of donation. 
Deferred revenue is recorded in an equivalent amount, for all donated assets except land. 
The deferred revenue will be recognized as revenue over the useful life of the related asset, 
on the same basis that the asset is amortized. 

All land acquired prior to June 30, 2006 has been valued by the Crown Lands and Property 
Agency. 

All tangible capital assets, except for land, capital leases, and assets under construction, are 
amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as prescribed by FRAME. 
Land is not amortized.  Capital leases with lease terms that have a bargain purchase option 
or allow ownership to pass to the Division are amortized over the useful life of the asset class. 
All other capital leases are amortized over the lesser of the lease term and the useful life of 
the asset class. 

One-half of the annual amortization is charged in the year of acquisition and in the year of 
disposal if not fully amortized. 

Assets under construction are not amortized until the date of substantial completion.  Interest 
on funds used to finance school buildings under construction is capitalized for the periods 
preceding the date of substantial completion. 



BRANDON SCHOOL DIVISION 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2015 

f) Capital Reserve

Certain amounts, as approved by the Board of Trustees and the Public Schools Finance Board 
(PSFB), have been set aside in reserve accounts for future capital purposes.  These Capital 
Reserve accounts are internally restricted funds that form part of the Accumulated Surplus 
presented in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. 

g) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the 
date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during 
the reporting period.   Significant estimates were employed when calculating the future sick 
leave liability, the future severance liability and the useful life of capital assets used to 
determine amortization expense.  Actual results could differ from management’s best 
estimates, as additional information becomes available in the future. 

h) Measurement Uncertainty

Measurement uncertainty exists in the recording of sick leave and severance liabilities 
affecting employee future benefits payable and the regular instruction, student support 
services, community education and services, divisional administration, instructional and other 
support services, transportation of pupils, and operations and maintenance expense 
accounts. 

Sick leave is calculated using an estimate of the future salary rates of employees and the 
number of sick days that employees will use in future years.  These estimates are based on 
past experience; however, measurement uncertainty exists as the actual future salary rates 
and sick days to be claimed are unknown. 

The severance liability is an estimate of future severance costs related to the number of 
employees who will earn vested severance pay.  These estimates are based on the number 
of employees who have earned this benefit in the past; however, measurement uncertainty 
exists as the actual number of employees who will earn this benefit in the future is unknown. 

i) Financial Instruments

There are no significant terms and conditions related to financial instruments (cash, accounts 
receivable, investments, and bank indebtedness, accounts payable and long-term debt) that 
may affect the amount, timing and certainty of future cash flows.  The Division is exposed to 
credit risk from the potential non-payment of accounts receivable.  However, the majority of 
the receivables are from local, provincial, and federal governments, and therefore the credit 
risk is minimal.  The carrying amounts of the financial instruments approximate their carrying 
values, unless otherwise noted. 

3. Liability for Contaminated Sites

Effective July 1, 2014, the division has adopted the new Public Sector Accounting Board
accounting standard - Liability for Contaminated Sites, Section PS3260.  The standard was
applied on a retroactive basis to July 1, 2013 and did not result in any adjustments to financial
liabilities, tangible capital assets or accumulated surplus of the division.

4. Bank Overdraft

The Division has an authorized line of credit with CIBC of $10,500,000 for operating expenditures
by way of overdrafts; the unused portion of the line of credit at June 30, 2015 is $10,500,000.
The Division also has an authorized line of credit with CIBC of $6,500,000 for the George Fitton
School New Gymnasium & New Child Care Facility project by way of overdrafts; the unused
portion of the line of credit at June 30, 2015 is $6,333,884.   Both lines of credit are repayable on
demand at the bank’s prime rate less .600%; interest is paid monthly. Interest earned is the
monthly average Banker’s Acceptance rate less the Banker’s Acceptance cap.



BRANDON SCHOOL DIVISION 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2015 

5. Employee Future Benefits

Non-vested accumulated sick leave benefits are measured using net present value techniques
on the expected future utilization of excess sick benefits used over earned per year, to maximum
entitlement.  The impact of the estimated non-vested sick leave benefit cost for the year ended
June 30, 2015 is an increase of $57,831 (2014 - decrease of $8,666). At June 30, 2015, the
Division has recorded an estimated liability of $416,654 (2014 - $358,823) in respect of these
benefits.

The significant assumptions adopted in measuring the non-vested accumulated sick leave benefit
liability includes a discount rate of 4% (2014 – 5%) and a salary rate increase of 2% (2014 – 2%).

Long Service Recognition benefits are given to employees who resign from their position with the
Division after fifteen (15) or more consecutive years of service in a support staff position, the
employee is entitled to and has the option of a paid leave or a lump sum payment based on two
(2) days for each year of said service.  Long Service Recognition benefits are measured using
three (3) year retirement averages on the expected future utilization of this benefit.  The impact
of the estimated Long Service Recognition Benefit cost for 2014-2015 is an increase of $4,073
(2013-2014 increase of $51,868).

At June 30, 2015, the Division has recorded an estimated liability for employee future benefits of
$1,767,527 (2014 - $1,608,493).

6. Deferred Revenue

The deferral method of accounting is used for revenues received that, pursuant to legislation,
regulation or agreement, may only be used for specific purposes. These amounts are recognized
as revenue in the fiscal year the related expenses are incurred or services performed.  The
following is a breakdown of the account balance:

Balance as at 
June 30, 2014

Additions in 
the period

Revenue 
recognized 
in the period

Balance as at 
June 30, 2015

Education property tax credit 3,091,472$      7,558,832$    7,429,291$ 3,221,013$      
Other special funds 74,924             158,658         136,452      97,129             

3,166,395$      7,717,489$    7,565,743$ 3,318,142$      

7. Debenture Debt

The debenture debt of the Division is in the form of fifteen and twenty-year debentures payable,
principal and interest, in fifteen and twenty equal yearly instalments and maturing at various dates
from 2015 to 2035.  Payment of principal and interest is funded entirely by grants from the
Province of Manitoba, except for the debenture debt on self-funded capital projects.  The
debentures carry interest rates that range from 3.625% to 9.875%.

Debenture interest expense payable as at June 30, 2015, is accrued and recorded in Accrued
Interest Payable, and a grant in an amount equal to the interest accrued on provincially funded
debentures is recorded in Due from the Provincial Government.   The debenture principal and
interest repayments in the next five years are:

Principal Interest Total
2015-16 1,659,752$      1,238,861$    2,898,613$    
2016-17 1,525,238        1,151,141      2,676,380      
2017-18 1,489,327        1,076,113      2,565,440      
2018-19 1,536,276        1,005,980      2,542,256      
2019-20 1,555,784        933,809         2,489,593      
Thereafter 21,087,974      6,240,663      27,328,637    

28,854,352$    11,646,567$  40,500,918$  



BRANDON SCHOOL DIVISION 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2015 

8. School Generated Funds Liability

School Generated Funds Liability includes the non-controlled portion of school generated funds
consolidated in the cash and bank balances in the amount of $274,615.

2015
Parent Council Funds 257,787$       
Other Parent Group Funds 12,091           
Student Council Funds 2,821             
Staff Funds 1,915             

274,615$       

9. Net Tangible Capital Assets

The Schedule of Tangible Capital Assets (TCA), page 23 of the audited financial statements,
provides a breakdown of cost, accumulated amortization and net book value by class.

Gross Amount
Accumulated 
Amortization

2015 Net Book 
Value

Owned-tangible capital assets 86,965,859$           $         48,081,273 38,884,586$          
Capital lease 555,236 138,509 416,727 

87,521,095$          48,219,782$          39,301,313$          

10. Accumulated Surplus

The consolidated accumulated surplus is comprised of the following:

2015

Designated surplus 457,800$        
Undesignated surplus 2,979,953       
Less:  Non-vested sick leave to date (416,654)

3,021,099       

Reserve accounts 3,854,039       
Equity in tangible capital assest 8,857,035       

12,711,074     

School generated funds 691,270          
Other special purpose funds 1,062,611       

1,753,881       
17,486,054$   

Operating fund:

Capital fund:

Special purpose fund:

Total accumulated surplus

Designated Surplus under the Operating Fund represents internally restricted amounts 
appropriated by the board or, in the case of school budget carryovers, by board policy.  See page 
5 of the audited financial statements for a breakdown of the Designated Surplus. 

2015
Insurance Aggregate Retention (Self-Insurance) 45,000$       
School budget carryovers by board policy 412,800       

457,800$     



BRANDON SCHOOL DIVISION 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2015 

Reserve Accounts under the Capital Fund represents internally restricted reserves for specific 
purposes approved by the Board of Trustees and the Public Schools Finance Board (PSFB).  A 
Schedule of Capital Reserve Accounts is provided on page 24 of the audited financial statements. 

2015
Admin. Office Roof Replacement 220,000$    
Administration Building Reserves 175,526      
Bus Garage Addition 450,000      
Bus Reserves 426,956      
Disaster Recovery System 270,000      
Emergency Equipment/System Replacement 100,000      
ERP System 800,000      
New School 1,000,000   
School Building Reserves 411,557      

3,854,039$ 

School Generated Funds and Other Special Purpose Funds are externally restricted moneys for 
school use. 

2015
Scholarship trust 5,486$           
Property trust 890,388         
Charitable donation fund 166,737         
Other special purpose funds 1,062,611$    

11. Municipal Government – Property Tax and Related Due from Municipal Government

Education property tax or Special Levy is raised as the Division’s contribution to the cost of
providing public education for the student resident in the Division. The Municipal Government-
Property Tax shown on the consolidated revenue and expense is raised over the two calendar
(tax) years; 43.5% from 2014 tax year and 56.5% from 2015 tax year.  Below are the related
revenue and receivable amounts:

2015 2014

Revenue - Municipal Government - Property Tax 32,902,072$   32,108,074$   

Receivable - Due from Municipal - Property Tax 18,675,020$   18,560,053$   

12. Interest Received and Paid

The Division received interest during the year of $106,773 (previous year $68,048); interest paid
during the year was $1,086,844 (previous year $820,473).

Interest expense is included in Fiscal and is comprised of the following:
2015

Operating fund
    Fiscal-short term loan, interest and bank charges 15,675$        
Capital fund
    Debenture debt interest 1,071,169     
    Other interest

1,086,844$   

The accrual portion of debenture debt interest expense of $631,017 included under the Capital 
Fund-Debenture debt interest is offset by an accrual of the debt servicing grant from the Province 
of Manitoba and our self-funded debt. 



BRANDON SCHOOL DIVISION 
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13. Special Levy Raised for la Division scolaire franco-manitobaine

In accordance with Section 190.1 of The Public Schools Act the Division is required to collect a
special levy on behalf la Division scolaire franco-manitobaine. As at June 30, 2015, the amount
of this special levy was $448,740 (2014 - $371,511).  These amounts are not included in the
Division’s consolidated financial statements.
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la Division scolaire franco-manitobaine

Notes 2015 2014

 Financial Assets

Cash and Bank - - 
Due from  - Provincial Government 3,282,611 6,783,799 

 - Federal Government 1,905,913 1,071,979 
 - Municipal Government 11,952,737 11,172,868 
 - Other School Divisions 94,883 62,820 
 - First Nations - - 

Accounts Receivable 133,997 209,517 
Accrued Investment Income - - 

* Portfolio Investments 50,003 49,022 

17,420,144 19,350,005

 Liabilities

* Overdraft 6,863,811 8,874,489 
Accounts Payable 8,306,296 3,270,232 
Accrued Liabilities 2,239,538 1,068,192 

* Employee Future Benefits 839,469 853,678 
Accrued Interest Payable 846,373 787,045 
Due to  - Provincial Government 284,903 238,663 

 - Federal Government 137,250 2,551,198 
 - Municipal Government 11,822 5,467 
 - Other School Divisions 111,122 102,901 
 - First Nations - - 

* Deferred Revenue 2,383,378 63,910 
* Debenture Debt 40,521,601 34,026,579 
* Other Borrowings 2,488,755 2,734,064 

School Generated Funds Liability 242,260 226,730 

65,276,578 54,803,148

 Net Debt (47,856,434) (35,453,143)

 Non-Financial Assets
* Net Tangible Capital Assets (TCA Schedule) 80,048,260 63,124,503 

Inventories - - 
Prepaid Expenses 2,241,861 2,601,750 

82,290,121 65,726,253

*  Accumulated Surplus 34,433,687 30,273,110

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at June 30



la Division scolaire franco-manitobaine

Notes 2015 2014

 Revenue

Provincial Government 62,670,265  59,791,762  
Federal Government 2,558,998  565,313  
Municipal Government - Property Tax 19,076,247  17,491,204  

- Other -  -  
Other School Divisions 1,412,761  1,278,108  
First Nations -  -  

Private Organizations and Individuals 169,358  170,735  
Other Sources 283,374  376,400  
School Generated Funds 1,456,389  1,522,327  
Other Special Purpose Funds 109,827  72,112  

87,737,219 81,267,961

 Expenses

Regular Instruction 45,193,319  41,406,809  
Student Support Services 8,931,738  9,032,830  
Adult Learning Centres 241,158  241,512  
Community Education and Services 946,651  875,319  
Divisional Administration 2,905,200  3,097,560  
Instructional and Other Support Services 2,728,755  2,419,352  
Transportation of Pupils 8,013,703  7,749,772  
Operations and Maintenance 7,540,382  7,294,374  

* Fiscal - Interest 2,049,420  1,876,396  
- Other 1,122,041  1,080,533  

Amortization 2,379,797  2,149,484  
Other Capital Items 19,627  9,504  
School Generated Funds 1,489,827  1,519,134  
Other Special Purpose Funds 33,078  43,761  

83,594,696 78,796,340

Current Year Surplus (Deficit) before Non-vested Sick Leave 4,142,523 2,471,621
Less: Non-vested Sick Leave Expense (Recovery) (18,054) 114,275
Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 4,160,577 2,357,346

 Opening Accumulated Surplus 30,273,110  27,915,764  
 Adjustments: Tangible Cap. Assets and Accum. Amort. -  -  

Other than Tangible Cap. Assets -  -  
Non-vested sick leave - prior years -  -  

 Opening Accumulated Surplus, as adjusted 30,273,110 27,915,764

 Closing Accumulated Surplus 34,433,687 30,273,110

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements
* NOTE REQUIRED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF REVENUE, EXPENSES

 AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
For the Year Ended June 30



la Division scolaire franco-manitobaine

2015 2014

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 4,160,577 2,357,346             

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 2,379,797 2,149,484             
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (19,303,554) (6,701,074)            
(Gain) / Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - (8,768) 
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - 12,328 

(16,923,757) (4,548,030)            

Inventories (Increase)/Decrease - - 

Prepaid Expenses (Increase)/Decrease 359,889 (2,447,241)            
359,889 (2,447,241)            

(Increase)/Decrease in Net Debt (12,403,291) (4,637,925)            

Net Debt at Beginning of Year (35,453,143) (30,815,218)          

Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - - 

(35,453,143) (30,815,218)          

Net Debt at End of Year (47,856,434) (35,453,143)          

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015



la Division scolaire franco-manitobaine

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014

 Operating Transactions

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 4,160,577             2,357,346             
Non-Cash Items Included in Current Year Surplus/(Deficit):

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 2,379,797             2,149,484             
(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - (8,768) 
Employee Future Benefits Increase/(Decrease) (14,209) 155,460 

Due from Other Organizations (Increase)/Decrease 1,855,322             (4,989,533)           
Accounts Receivable & Accrued Income (Increase)/Decrease 75,520 (52,411) 
Inventories and Prepaid Expenses - (Increase)/Decrease 359,889 (2,447,241)           
Due to Other Organizations Increase/(Decrease) (2,353,132)           2,368,015             
Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities Increase/(Decrease) 6,266,738             (1,084,124)           
Deferred Revenue Increase/(Decrease) 2,319,468             (2,272,722)           
School Generated Funds Liability  Increase/(Decrease) 15,530 (15,575) 
Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - - 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Operating Transactions 15,065,500           (3,840,069)           

 Capital Transactions

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (19,303,554)         (6,701,074)           
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - 12,328 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Capital Transactions (19,303,554)         (6,688,746)           

 Investing Transactions

Portfolio Investments (Increase)/Decrease (981) (1,015) 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Investing Transactions (981) (1,015) 

 Financing Transactions
Debenture Debt Increase/(Decrease) 6,495,022             4,285,678             
Other Borrowings Increase/(Decrease) (245,309) 1,889,180             

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Financing Transactions 6,249,713             6,174,858             

 Cash and Bank / Overdraft (Increase)/Decrease 2,010,678             (4,354,972)           
 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at Beginning of Year (8,874,489)           (4,519,517)           

 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at End of Year (6,863,811)           (8,874,489)           



la Division scolaire franco-manitobaine
SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

at June 30, 2015

Furniture / Computer Assets 2015 2014
School Other Fixtures & Hardware & Land Under TOTALS TOTALS

School Non-School Buses Vehicles Equipment Software * Land Improvements Construction

 Tangible Capital Asset Cost
 Opening Cost, as previously reported 68,849,315     401,335          - 145,239          1,951,973       500,727          12,957,737     1,202,844       9,353,037       95,362,207     88,892,835     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening Cost adjusted 68,849,315     401,335          - 145,239          1,951,973       500,727          12,957,737     1,202,844       9,353,037       95,362,207     88,892,835     

Add:
Additions during the year

Less:
Disposals and write downs

 Closing Cost 76,500,493     401,335          - 237,737          2,094,731       847,568          12,957,737     1,281,593       20,245,927     114,567,121   95,362,207     

 Accumulated Amortization
 Opening, as previously reported 30,056,444     298,471          - 87,311            1,010,913       346,314          438,251          32,237,704     30,316,362     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening adjusted 30,056,444     298,471          - 87,311            1,010,913       346,314          438,251          32,237,704     30,316,362     

Add:
Current period Amortization

Less:
Accumulated Amortization
on Disposals and Writedowns

 Closing Accumulated Amortization 31,936,491     303,108          - 117,423          1,132,902       466,463          562,474          34,518,861     32,237,704     

 Net Tangible Capital Asset 44,564,002     98,227            - 120,314          961,829          381,105          12,957,737     719,119          20,245,927     80,048,260     63,124,503     

 Proceeds from Disposal of Capital Assets - - - - - - - 12,328            

* Includes network infrastructure.

7,651,178       

- 

1,880,047       

- 

- 98,640            

241,398          346,841          6,701,074       

231,702          

2,149,484       

228,142          - 

30,112            

Buildings and Leasehold 
Improvements

- 

220,629          

- 

- - 92,498            - 

- - 

- - - 98,640            

78,749            10,892,890     

- - 

124,223          

19,303,554     

98,640            

2,379,797       

98,640            

4,637              - 120,149          

- 



[Translation] 
Division scolaire franco-manitobaine 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 

1. Nature of Organization and Economic Dependence

The Division scolaire franco-manitobaine (the "Division") is a public body that provides
education services to the Francophone student population of Manitoba. The Division is funded
mainly by grants from the Province of Manitoba (the "Province"), and special levies. The
Division and each provider school division share the tax levies based on the proportion that their
respective number of students represents in relation to the total of all students living within the
provider school division's boundaries.

The Division is economically dependent on the Province for its operations and capital financing
requirements. Without this funding, the Division would not be able to continue its regular
operations.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with the
public sector accounting principles established by the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) of
Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada (CPA Canada).

Reporting Entity and Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of the
operating fund, capital fund and special purpose fund of the Division. The Division reporting
entity includes school-generated funds controlled by the Division.

All inter-fund balances and transactions were eliminated upon consolidation.

Trust Funds

Trust funds and their related transactions are not included in the consolidated financial statements
as they are not owned or controlled by the Division. A schedule of trust funds is attached as part
of the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Trust funds, under PSAB standards, are assets under the custody of a trustee (the Division)
pursuant to a trust agreement or under the law. The trustee merely administers the terms and
conditions of the trust agreement, and has no unilateral authority to change them.

Basis of Accounting

Revenues and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of accounting, except when the accruals
cannot be determined with a reasonable degree of certainty or when their estimation is
impracticable. The accrual basis of accounting recognizes revenues as they are earned and
measurable; expenses are recognized as they are incurred and measurable as a result of the receipt
of goods or services and the creation of a legal obligation to pay. Expenses also include the
amortization of tangible capital assets.

Fund Accounting

The fund method of accounting is used by the Division to record financial transactions in separate
funds as defined by Financial Reporting and Accounting in Manitoba Education (FRAME) in
accordance with the purpose for which the funds have been created.

The operating fund is maintained to record all the day-to-day operating revenues and expenses.
The capital fund is used to account for the acquisition, amortization, disposal and financing of
capital assets. The special purpose fund is used to account for school-generated funds and the
assets of charitable foundations controlled by the Division.

School-Generated Funds

School-generated funds are monies which are collected by a school or under its auspices through
extra-curricular activities conducted for its sole benefit, and which the principal of the school
may, subject to the rules of the school board, raise, hold, administer and expend for the purposes
of the school.



[Translation] 
Division scolaire franco-manitobaine 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 

School-Generated Funds (cont'd) 

Only revenue and expenses of school-generated funds controlled by the Division are included in 
the consolidated statement of revenue, expenses and accumulated surplus. For funds to be 
deemed as controlled, a school must have the unilateral authority to make the decisions as to 
when, how and for what purpose they are to be spent. 

The balances of cash monies and short-term investments of all school-generated funds are 
included in the consolidated statement of financial position. The uncontrolled portion of this 
amount is reflected in the school-generated funds liability item. Examples of uncontrolled school-
generated funds are parent committee funds, student association funds and travel club funds. 
Revenues and expenses of uncontrolled school-generated funds are not included in the 
consolidated financial statements. 

Tangible Capital Assets 

Tangible capital assets are non-financial assets that are used by the Division to provide services to 
the public and have an economic life beyond one fiscal year. Tangible capital assets include land, 
buildings, land improvements, school buses, other vehicles, furniture, fixtures and equipment, 
computer hardware and software, leasehold improvements, capital leases, and assets under 
construction. 

To be classified as tangible capital assets, each asset other than land must individually meet the 
capitalization threshold for its class as prescribed by FRAME. 

Asset Description Capitalization Threshold ($) Useful Life 
Land improvements 25,000 10 years 
Building – bricks, mortar and steel 25,000 40 years 
Buildings – wood frame 25,000 25 years 
School buses 20,000 10 years 
Vehicles 10,000 5 years 
Equipment 10,000 5 years 
Network infrastructure 25,000 10 years 
Computer hardware 10,000 4 years 
Computer software 10,000 4 years 
Furniture & fixtures 10,000 10 years 
Leasehold improvements 25,000 Over term of lease 

Grouping of assets is not permitted except for computer work stations. 

Land is recorded at historical cost, which includes purchase price, installation costs and other 
costs incurred to put the asset into service. All land acquired prior to June 30, 2006 has been 
valued by the Crown Lands and Property Agency. 

Buildings are recorded at historical cost when known. For buildings acquired prior to June 30, 
2005, where the actual cost was not known, the replacement value for insurance purposes as at 
June 30, 2005, was regressed to the date of acquisition, based on Southam and CanaData 
construction cost indices. 

With the exception of donated capital assets and capital leases, all tangible capital assets are 
recorded at historical cost, which includes purchase price, installation costs and other costs 
incurred to put the asset into service. 

Donated tangible capital assets are recorded at fair market value at the date of donation. Deferred 
revenue is recorded in an equivalent amount for all donated assets except land. The deferred 
revenue will be recognized as revenue over the useful life of the related asset, on the same basis 
as when an asset is amortized. 

Capital leases are recorded at the present value of the minimum lease payments excluding 
executory costs (e.g. insurance, maintenance costs, etc.). The discount rate used to determine the 
present value of the lease payments is the lower of the Division's rate for incremental borrowing 
or the interest rate implicit in the lease. 



[Translation] 
Division scolaire franco-manitobaine 
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Net Tangible Capital Assets (cont'd) 

All tangible capital assets, except for land, capital leases and assets under construction, are 
amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as prescribed by FRAME. 
Land is not amortized. Capital leases with lease terms that have a bargain purchase option or 
allow ownership to pass to the Division are amortized over the useful life of the asset class. All 
other capital leases are amortized over the lesser of the lease term and the useful life of the asset 
class. 

One-half of the annual amortization is charged in the year of acquisition and in the year of 
disposal if not fully amortized. 

Assets under construction are not amortized until the date of substantial completion. Interest on 
funds used to finance school buildings under construction is capitalized for the periods preceding 
the date of substantial completion. 

Employee Future Benefits 

The Province pays the employer portion of the Teachers' Retirement Allowances Fund (TRAF), 
the pension plan for all certified teachers of the Division. The Division does not contribute to 
TRAF, and no costs relating to this plan are included in the Division's consolidated financial 
statements. 

However, the Division provides retirement and other future benefits to its support staff. These 
benefits include a defined contribution pension plan, parental leave and early retirement benefit. 
The Division adopted the following accounting policies with respect to these employee future 
benefits: 

Defined Contribution Pension Plan 

The Division pays the employer portion to the defined contribution pension plan administered by 
the Manitoba School Boards Association (MSBA) for its support staff. Under this plan, specific 
fixed amounts are contributed by the Division each period for services rendered by the employees 
and are equal to the contributions made by the employees. No responsibility is assumed by the 
Division to make any subsequent contribution. 

Defined Benefit/Self-Managed Employee Future Benefit Plans 

For defined benefit/self-managed benefit obligations that are event driven such as non-vesting 
parental leave, the benefit costs are recognized and recorded only in the period when the event 
occurs. For complementary payment obligations related to possible early retirement that are also 
event driven, the cost of benefits is recognized for the period in relation to which the commitment 
to pay benefits is approved by the school board. 

With respect to sick leave that accrues without being vested, the liability is recorded, when 
deemed significant, based on the likelihood that the accrued sick leave will be used by the 
employees. The calculated amount is adjusted using present value methods. 

Reserve Fund 

Certain amounts approved by the Board and the Public Schools Finance Board have been set 
aside in reserve funds for future capital projects. These are internally restricted and part of the 
accumulated surplus reported in the consolidated statement of financial position. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting 
standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities as at the date of the financial statements, and the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may differ from the 
most accurate projections of management as additional information becomes available. 



[Translation] 
Division scolaire franco-manitobaine 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 

3. Overdraft

The Division has an authorized line of credit with the Caisse Financial Group of $13,450,000 to
fund operations and of $16,500,000 to fund capital projects by way of overdrafts, repayable on
demand at prime less 0.75% (2.10% as at June 30, 2015) with interest payable monthly. Included
in the overdraft are costs for capital projects totaling approximately $8,334,026 which will be
submitted to the Public Schools Finance Board (PSFB) for debenture funding. These loans are
secured by way of a security agreement and borrowing by-law.

4. Employee Future Benefits

The Division participates in a defined contribution pension plan administered by the MSBA. The
defined contribution plan is provided to support staff based on their age at the beginning of the
year and on rates of pay. Under the MSBA pension plan, employee contributions are determined
according to a specific percentage based on their age group. The Division's contributions equal
the employee's contributions to the plan. Pension liability is included in the consolidated financial
statements under Accounts Payable.

The employee future benefit expense is a part of the Employee Benefits and Allowances item.
Total contributions to the defined contribution pension plan for the period ended June 30, 2015,
amount to $631,291 ($613,945 in 2014).

Fringe benefits, such as sick leave, which accumulate without vesting, are evaluated in
accordance with the present value method taking into account the extent to which accumulated
sick leave credits are expected to exceed the number of vested days . The evaluation of the cost of
sick leave benefits for the 2014/15 period has resulted in a recovery of $18,054.

5. Deferred Revenue

The deferral method of accounting is used for revenues received that, pursuant to statutes,
regulations or agreements, may only be used for specific purposes. These amounts are recognized
as revenue in the fiscal year the related expenses are incurred or services performed. The
following is a breakdown of the account balance:

Balance as at 
June 30, 

2014 

Amounts 
received in 
the period 

Recognized 
in the period 

Balance as at 
June 30, 

2015 
$ $ $ $ 

Administration – Healthy 
Schools 5,554 15,714 12,589 8,679 
Other (EPTC) - 8,460,156 6,197,346 2,262,810 
Healthy Baby 11,074 66,200 66,456 10,818 
C.T.I. Central and C.T.I. Urban - 81,181 81,181 - 
Coalition petite enfance 7,238 499,153 476,000 30,391 
Growing with Mom - 2,729 1,461 1,268 
Parlons petite enfance 33,270 - - 33,270 
Other deferred revenue 6,774 36,142 6,774 36,316 

63,910 9,161,275 6,841,807 2,383,378 



[Translation] 
Division scolaire franco-manitobaine 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 

6. School-Generated Funds Liability

Liability pertaining to school-generated funds uncontrolled by the school division includes a cash
amount of $241,522 as at June 30, 2015 ($226,730 as at June 30, 2014), which is recorded in the
consolidated statement of financial position as part of the liability item pertaining to school-
generated funds.

7. Debenture Debt

The Division's debenture debt is made up of twenty-year debentures payable, principal and
interest, in twenty equal yearly installments and maturing at various dates from 2016 to 2035.
Payment of principal and interest is funded entirely by grants from the Province. The debentures
carry interest rates that range from 3.500% to 8.125%. Debenture interest expense payable as at
June 30, 2015 is accrued and recorded in Accrued Interest Payable, and a grant in an amount
equal to the interest accrued on provincially funded debentures is recorded in Due from the
Provincial Government. The debenture principal and interest repayments in the next five years
are:

Principal ($) Interest ($) Total ($) 
2016 2,685,903 2,038,076 4,723,979 
2017 2,828,338 1,885,670 4,714,008 
2018 2,907,049 1,725,042 4,632,092 
2019 2,697,605 1,560,990 4,458,595 
2020 3,025,059 1,398,658 4,423,717 

8. Other Loans

Other loans include debts other than overdrafts or debentures. They include loans for child care
facility improvement and capital leases on photocopiers.

Loans for the connectivity project and improvements to child care facilities are at 4.46% and 
3.69% respectively, due on demand, and the monthly payments are $26,600 and $3,452 
respectively, including the principal and interest as at June 30, 2015. These loans are secured by 
way of a security agreement and borrowing by-law. 

Principal and interest repayment of total other loans in the next five years are: 

Principal Interest Total 
$ $ $ 

2016 256,309 104,310 360,619 
2017 267,998 92,621 360,619 
2018 279,912 80,707 360,619 
2019 292,372 68,247 360,619 
2020 305,245 55,374 360,619 

9. Net Tangible Capital Assets

The Schedule of Tangible Capital Assets on page 23 of the audited financial statements provides
a breakdown of cost, accumulated amortization and net book value by class. The amount of
interest capitalized in the period ended June 30, 2015 was $78,929 ($8,409 in 2014).

2015 2014 
$ $ 

Child care improvement 244,744 275,908 
Connectivity project 2,244,011 2,457,914 
Capital leases - 242 

2,488,755 2,734,064 



[Translation] 
Division scolaire franco-manitobaine 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 

10. Accumulated Surplus

The consolidated accumulated surplus as at June 30, 2015 is comprised of the following:

2015 2014 
$ $ 

Operating fund 1,797,369 1,724,726 
Designated surplus  2,113,837 2,376,437 
Undesignated surplus (355,082) (373,136) 
Sick leave 3,556,124 3,728,027 

Capital fund 1,065,000 565,000 
Reserve accounts 29,053,150 25,263,981 
Equity in tangible capital assets 30,118,150 25,828,981 

Special purpose fund 594,662 628,100 
School-generated funds 164,751 88,002 
Other special purpose funds 759,413 716,102 

Consolidated accumulated surplus 34,433,687 30,273,110 

11. Municipal Governments – Property Tax and related Due from Municipal Governments

Education property tax or special levy is raised as the Division's contribution to the cost of
providing public education for the students resident in the division. The Municipal Government –
Property Tax shown on the consolidated statement of revenue, expenses and accumulated surplus
is raised over the two calendar (tax) years; 40% from 2014 tax year and 60% from 2015 tax year.
Below are the revenue and related receivable amounts:

2015 2014 
$ $ 

Revenue – Municipal Government – Property Tax 19,076,247 17,491,204 

Receivable – Due from Municipal – Property Tax 
11,952,737 11,172,867 

12. Interest Received and Paid

The Division received interest in the amount of $34,974 during the year ending June 30, 2015
($29,970 in 2014); interest paid during the year was $2,049,420 ($1,876,396 in 2014).

Interest expense is included in Charges and Taxes for the period ended June 30, 2015 and is
comprised of the following:

2015 2014 
$ $ 

Operating fund 
Charges and Taxes – Short term loan, interest and bank charges 120,781 75,826 

Capital fund 1,918,383 1,766,265 
Debenture debt interest 10,256 34,305 
Other interest 1,928,639 1,800,570 

2,049,420 1,876,396 



[Translation] 
Division scolaire franco-manitobaine 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 

The accrual portion of the debenture debt interest expense of $846,373 as at June 30, 2015 
($787,045 as at June 30, 2014) included under Capital Fund – Debenture debt interest is offset by 
an accrual of the debt servicing grant from the Province. 

13. Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

All receivables presented on the consolidated statement of financial position are net of an
allowance for specific doubtful accounts. Below is the total allowance for doubtful accounts as at
June 30, 2015:

2015 2014 
$ $ 

Allowance for doubtful accounts (recovery) deducted from 
Receivables 507 - 

Bad debts (recovery) (included in Charges and Taxes) 507 - 

14. Expenses by Object

Expenses in the consolidated statement of revenue, expenses and accumulated surplus are
reported by function as defined by FRAME. Below is the detail of expenses by object:

Actual 
2015 

Budget 
2015 

Actual 
2014 

$ $ $ 

Salaries 52,346,764 53,979,236 50,250,864 
Employee benefits and allowances 3,901,737 4,502,852 3,750,157 
Services 14,864,467 16,929,166 14,749,292 
Supplies, materials & minor equipment 5,117,446 3,328,502 3,101,871 
Interest and bank charges 2,049,420 25,000 1,876,396 
Doubtful accounts (recovery) 507 - - 
Payroll tax 1,121,534 1,141,080 1,080,533 
Transfers 270,492 315,889 265,344 
Amortization 2,379,797 - 2,149,484 
Other capital items 19,627 - 9,504 
School-generated funds 1,489,827 - 1,519,134 
Other special purpose funds 33,078 - 43,761 

83,594,696 80,221,725 78,796,340 

15. Contractual Obligations

Agreements respecting student transportation were entered into until June 2019. The annual costs
for these services are approximately $7,300,000.

Lease agreements for school buildings were entered into with various school divisions and
organizations. An estimated amount was recorded as a payable amount and as an expense for the
current fiscal year given that the rental rates have not yet been finalized. All retroactive
adjustments will be recorded in the year when their specific amount is determined.

16. Financial Instruments

The Division's financial instruments include cash on hand, current investments, accounts
receivable and payable (provincial, federal and municipal governments, other school divisions
and First Nations), accounts receivable, receivable investment income, overdrafts, accounts
payable, accrued liabilities, employee future benefits, accrued interest payable, debenture debt
and other loans.

Unless otherwise noted, it is management's opinion that these financial instruments do not expose
the Division to significant interest, exchange or credit risk.



[Translation] 
Division scolaire franco-manitobaine 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 

17. Trust Funds

During the year, the Division made $1,222,131 in hold back payments for construction projects.
These monies are currently being held in a bank account in the Division's name but they are to be
transferred to the contractor once the projects have been completed. The funds held in this bank
account and the accrued liability with respect to the hold back have not been included in the
consolidated financial statements.

18. Controlled Corporation

The Division controls a charitable organization. The assets, liabilities and accumulated surplus of
the charitable organization are recorded in the statement of financial position under the special
purpose fund. The revenue, expenses and restated opening accumulated surplus of the charitable
organization are recorded in the statement of revenues, expenses and accumulated surplus under
the special purpose fund.

19. Contaminated Sites

Starting on July 1, 2014, the Division adopted the new principle for the public sector in Canada,
Liability for Contaminated Sites, Section PS 3260. The standard was applied prospectively and
did not result in any adjustments to the division's financial liabilities, tangible capital assets or
accumulated surplus.



Original Document Signed  Original Document Signed  



Original Document Signed  



Evergreen School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Financial Assets

Cash and Bank 42,320 - 
Due from  - Provincial Government 1,526,688 2,971,474 

 - Federal Government 69,367 67,416 
 - Municipal Government 4,053,420 3,907,838 
 - Other School Divisions 230 - 
 - First Nations 163,020 114,660 

Accounts Receivable 55,684 76,218 
Accrued Investment Income 1,829 1,963 

5 Portfolio Investments 130,822 130,761 

6,043,380 7,270,330

 Liabilities

Overdraft - 2,304,509 
Accounts Payable 718,625 480,969 
Accrued Liabilities 1,902,190 1,703,220 

4 Employee Future Benefits 66,335 52,530 
Accrued Interest Payable 366,630 395,395 
Due to  - Provincial Government - - 

 - Federal Government - - 
 - Municipal Government - - 
 - Other School Divisions - - 
 - First Nations - - 

6 Deferred Revenue 840,133 31,286 
8 Debenture Debt 14,844,618 14,630,734 
9 Other Borrowings 959,232 1,244,785 

School Generated Funds Liability 32,408 15,430 

19,730,171 20,858,858

 Net Debt (13,686,791) (13,588,528)

 Non-Financial Assets
10 Net Tangible Capital Assets (TCA Schedule) 21,181,373 20,755,946 

Inventories - - 
Prepaid Expenses 133,943 127,650 

21,315,316 20,883,596

11  Accumulated Surplus 7,628,525 7,295,068

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at June 30



Evergreen School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Revenue

Provincial Government 14,811,760                 14,652,364                 
Federal Government -                                 -                                 
Municipal Government - Property Tax 7,116,923                   6,915,659                   

- Other -                                 -                                 
Other School Divisions 51,374                        42,906                        
First Nations 142,000                      59,780                        

Private Organizations and Individuals 99,673                        69,742                        
Other Sources 81,356                        761,385                      
School Generated Funds 435,658                      367,336                      
Other Special Purpose Funds 73,861                        25,615                        

22,812,605 22,894,787

 Expenses

Regular Instruction 10,337,474                 10,007,024                 
Student Support Services 3,259,555                   3,434,855                   
Adult Learning Centres -                                 -                                 
Community Education and Services 57,901                        60,586                        
Divisional Administration 917,653                      771,921                      
Instructional and Other Support Services 650,454                      613,595                      
Transportation of Pupils 1,707,197                   1,386,236                   
Operations and Maintenance 2,470,564                   2,441,103                   

13 Fiscal - Interest 847,227                      874,672                      
- Other 296,585                      295,239                      

Amortization 1,427,451                   1,389,759                   
Other Capital Items -                                 -                                 
School Generated Funds 419,746                      367,962                      
Other Special Purpose Funds 73,536                        25,093                        

22,465,343 21,668,045

Current Year Surplus (Deficit) before Non-vested Sick Leave 347,262 1,226,742
Less: Non-vested Sick Leave Expense (Recovery) 13,805 (7,008)
Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 333,457 1,233,750

 Opening Accumulated Surplus 7,295,068                   6,061,318                   
 Adjustments: Tangible Cap. Assets and Accum. Amort. -                                 -                                 

Other than Tangible Cap. Assets -                                 -                                 
Non-vested sick leave - prior years -                                 -                                 

 Opening Accumulated Surplus, as adjusted 7,295,068 6,061,318

 Closing Accumulated Surplus 7,628,525 7,295,068

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF REVENUE, EXPENSES

 AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
For the Year Ended June 30



Evergreen School Division

2015 2014

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 333,457                      1,233,750             

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 1,427,451                   1,389,759             
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (1,852,878)                  (1,571,472)            
(Gain) / Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (5,099)                         -                            
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 5,099                          -                            

(425,427)                     (181,713)               

Inventories (Increase)/Decrease -                                  -                            

Prepaid Expenses (Increase)/Decrease (6,293)                         (40,385)                 
(6,293)                         (40,385)                 

(Increase)/Decrease in Net Debt (98,263)                       1,011,652             

Net Debt at Beginning of Year (13,588,528)                (14,600,180)          

Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets -                                  -                            

(13,588,528)                (14,600,180)          

Net Debt at End of Year (13,686,791)                (13,588,528)          

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015



Evergreen School Division

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014

 Operating Transactions

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 333,457                1,233,750             
Non-Cash Items Included in Current Year Surplus/(Deficit):

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 1,427,451             1,389,759             
(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (5,099)                  -                           
Employee Future Benefits Increase/(Decrease) 13,805                  (7,009)                  

Due from Other Organizations (Increase)/Decrease 1,248,663             (817,310)              
Accounts Receivable & Accrued Income (Increase)/Decrease 20,668                  (870)                     
Inventories and Prepaid Expenses - (Increase)/Decrease (6,293)                  (40,385)                
Due to Other Organizations Increase/(Decrease) -                           -                           
Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities Increase/(Decrease) 407,861                131,247                
Deferred Revenue Increase/(Decrease) 808,847                31,286                  
School Generated Funds Liability  Increase/(Decrease) 16,978                  1,647                    
Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets -                           -                           

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Operating Transactions 4,266,338             1,922,115             

 Capital Transactions

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (1,852,878)           (1,571,472)           
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 5,099                    -                           

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Capital Transactions (1,847,779)           (1,571,472)           

 Investing Transactions

Portfolio Investments (Increase)/Decrease (61)                       (60)                       

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Investing Transactions (61)                       (60)                       

 Financing Transactions
Debenture Debt Increase/(Decrease) 213,884                145,436                
Other Borrowings Increase/(Decrease) (285,553)              (77,198)                

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Financing Transactions (71,669)                68,238                  

 Cash and Bank / Overdraft (Increase)/Decrease 2,346,829             418,821                
 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at Beginning of Year (2,304,509)           (2,723,330)           

 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at End of Year 42,320                  (2,304,509)           



Evergreen School Division

SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
at June 30, 2015

Furniture / Computer Assets 2015 2014
School Other Fixtures & Hardware & Land Under TOTALS TOTALS

School Non-School Buses Vehicles Equipment Software * Land Improvements Construction

 Tangible Capital Asset Cost
 Opening Cost, as previously reported 30,426,399     1,626,928       3,333,428       254,772          865,803          1,676,345       256,678          129,749          208,247          38,778,349     37,206,877     

Adjustments -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
 Opening Cost adjusted 30,426,399     1,626,928       3,333,428       254,772          865,803          1,676,345       256,678          129,749          208,247          38,778,349     37,206,877     

Add:
Additions during the year

Less:
Disposals and write downs

 Closing Cost 30,554,631     1,626,928       3,432,523       254,772          1,029,575       1,676,345       256,678          181,437          1,400,470       40,413,359     38,778,349     

 Accumulated Amortization
 Opening, as previously reported 14,393,090     483,228          2,218,493       190,681          420,799          264,811          51,301            18,022,403     16,632,644     

Adjustments -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
 Opening adjusted 14,393,090     483,228          2,218,493       190,681          420,799          264,811          51,301            18,022,403     16,632,644     

Add:
Current period Amortization

Less:
Accumulated Amortization
on Disposals and Writedowns

 Closing Accumulated Amortization 15,316,936     538,829          2,201,537       208,495          518,520          380,809          66,860            19,231,986     18,022,403     

 Net Tangible Capital Asset 15,237,695     1,088,099       1,230,986       46,277            511,055          1,295,536       256,678          114,577          1,400,470       21,181,373     20,755,946     

 Proceeds from Disposal of Capital Assets -                     -                     5,099              -                     -                     -                     5,099              -                     

* Includes network infrastructure.

55,601            200,912          115,998          

-                     

1,852,878       

217,868          

1,427,451       

217,868          

51,688            1,192,223       

-                     -                     

15,559            

Buildings and Leasehold 
Improvements

-                     

97,721            

-                     

-                     316,963          -                     -                     

-                     217,868          

-                     217,868          -                     -                     

 

128,232          

-                     

923,846          

-                     

-                     -                     

163,772          -                     1,571,472       

-                     

1,389,759       

-                     -                     

17,814            
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Flin Flon School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Financial Assets

Cash and Bank 426,424                     -                                 
Due from  - Provincial Government 1,074,848                  1,005,907                  

 - Federal Government -                                 -                                 
 - Municipal Government 1,554,879                  1,451,638                  
 - Other School Divisions -                                 -                                 
 - First Nations -                                 -                                 

Accounts Receivable 95,939                       177,195                     
Accrued Investment Income -                                 -                                 
Portfolio Investments -                                 -                                 

3,152,090 2,634,740

 Liabilities

Overdraft -                                 290,778                     
Accounts Payable 556,063                     566,745                     
Accrued Liabilities 1,611,827                  1,498,498                  

2 Employee Future Benefits 79,486                       62,056                       
Accrued Interest Payable 48,030                       31,438                       
Due to  - Provincial Government -                                 -                                 

 - Federal Government -                                 -                                 
 - Municipal Government -                                 -                                 
 - Other School Divisions -                                 -                                 
 - First Nations -                                 -                                 

7 Deferred Revenue 38,804                       36,069                       
6 Debenture Debt 2,864,676                  2,456,036                  

Other Borrowings -                                 -                                 
School Generated Funds Liability 140,318                     140,318                     

5,339,204 5,081,938

 Net Debt (2,187,114) (2,447,198)

 Non-Financial Assets
12 Net Tangible Capital Assets (TCA Schedule) 4,369,457                  4,450,926                  

Inventories -                                 -                                 
Prepaid Expenses 27,294                       29,636                       

4,396,751 4,480,562

14  Accumulated Surplus 2,209,637 2,033,364

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at June 30



Flin Flon School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Revenue

Provincial Government 10,583,437                 10,057,934                 
Federal Government -                                  22,320                        
Municipal Government - Property Tax 3,117,074                   2,931,078                   

- Other -                                  -                                  
Other School Divisions 285,509                      231,648                      
First Nations -                                  -                                  

Private Organizations and Individuals 206,513                      181,319                      
Other Sources 30,995                        47,694                        
School Generated Funds 258,518                      246,831                      
Other Special Purpose Funds -                                  -                                  

14,482,046 13,718,824

 Expenses

Regular Instruction 7,359,113                   7,009,629                   
Student Support Services 2,293,938                   2,305,777                   
Adult Learning Centres 92,300                        92,300                        
Community Education and Services 11,767                        16,938                        
Divisional Administration 670,780                      629,838                      
Instructional and Other Support Services 298,631                      334,187                      
Transportation of Pupils 439,407                      436,236                      
Operations and Maintenance 2,231,478                   2,000,329                   

9 Fiscal - Interest 149,368                      119,902                      
- Other 204,707                      200,956                      

Amortization 306,610                      280,735                      
Other Capital Items (2,602)                         (15,942)                       
School Generated Funds 250,276                      231,792                      
Other Special Purpose Funds -                                  -                                  

14,305,773 13,642,677

Current Year Surplus (Deficit) before Non-vested Sick Leave 176,273 76,147
Less: Non-vested Sick Leave Expense (Recovery) 0 0
Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 176,273 76,147

 Opening Accumulated Surplus 2,033,364                   1,957,217                   
 Adjustments: Tangible Cap. Assets and Accum. Amort. -                                  -                                  

Other than Tangible Cap. Assets -                                  -                                  
Non-vested sick leave - prior years -                                  -                                  

 Opening Accumulated Surplus, as adjusted 2,033,364 1,957,217

 Closing Accumulated Surplus 2,209,637 2,033,364

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF REVENUE, EXPENSES

 AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
For the Year Ended June 30



Flin Flon School Division

2015 2014

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 176,273                      76,147                  

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 306,610                      280,735                
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (225,141)                     (1,308,518)            
(Gain) / Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets -                                  -                            
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets -                                  -                            

81,469                        (1,027,783)            

Inventories (Increase)/Decrease -                                  -                            

Prepaid Expenses (Increase)/Decrease 2,342                          20,014                  
2,342                          20,014                  

(Increase)/Decrease in Net Debt 260,084                      (931,622)               

Net Debt at Beginning of Year (2,447,198)                  (1,515,576)            

Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets -                                  -                            

(2,447,198)                  (1,515,576)            

Net Debt at End of Year (2,187,114)                  (2,447,198)            

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015



Flin Flon School Division

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014

 Operating Transactions

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 176,273                76,147                  
Non-Cash Items Included in Current Year Surplus/(Deficit):

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 306,610                280,735                
(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets -                           -                           
Employee Future Benefits Increase/(Decrease) 17,430                  4,509                    

Due from Other Organizations (Increase)/Decrease (172,182)              (60,507)                
Accounts Receivable & Accrued Income (Increase)/Decrease 81,256                  (54,291)                
Inventories and Prepaid Expenses - (Increase)/Decrease 2,342                    20,014                  
Due to Other Organizations Increase/(Decrease) -                           -                           
Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities Increase/(Decrease) 119,239                285,892                
Deferred Revenue Increase/(Decrease) 2,735                    (3,424)                  
School Generated Funds Liability  Increase/(Decrease) -                           -                           
Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets -                           -                           

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Operating Transactions 533,703                549,075                

 Capital Transactions

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (225,141)              (1,308,518)           
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets -                           -                           

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Capital Transactions (225,141)              (1,308,518)           

 Investing Transactions

Portfolio Investments (Increase)/Decrease -                           -                           

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Investing Transactions -                           -                           

 Financing Transactions
Debenture Debt Increase/(Decrease) 408,640                492,717                
Other Borrowings Increase/(Decrease) -                           -                           

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Financing Transactions 408,640                492,717                

 Cash and Bank / Overdraft (Increase)/Decrease 717,202                (266,726)              
 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at Beginning of Year (290,778)              (24,052)                

 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at End of Year 426,424                (290,778)              



Flin Flon School Division
SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

at June 30, 2015

Furniture / Computer Assets 2015 2014
School Other Fixtures & Hardware & Land Under TOTALS TOTALS

School Non-School Buses Vehicles Equipment Software * Land Improvements Construction

 Tangible Capital Asset Cost
 Opening Cost, as previously reported 11,116,122     373,249          -                      229,759          348,736          35,610            476,043          518,856          -                      13,098,375     11,789,857     

Adjustments -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
 Opening Cost adjusted 11,116,122     373,249          -                      229,759          348,736          35,610            476,043          518,856          -                      13,098,375     11,789,857     

Add:
Additions during the year

Less:
Disposals and write downs

 Closing Cost 11,141,330     373,249          -                      229,759          471,267          35,610            476,043          596,258          -                      13,323,516     13,098,375     

 Accumulated Amortization
 Opening, as previously reported 7,888,131       345,749          -                      105,157          268,715          24,927            14,770            8,647,449       8,366,714       

Adjustments -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
 Opening adjusted 7,888,131       345,749          -                      105,157          268,715          24,927            14,770            8,647,449       8,366,714       

Add:
Current period Amortization

Less:
Accumulated Amortization
on Disposals and Writedowns

 Closing Accumulated Amortization 8,123,393       350,749          -                      125,331          303,547          32,049            18,990            8,954,059       8,647,449       

 Net Tangible Capital Asset 3,017,937       22,500            -                      104,428          167,720          3,561              476,043          577,268          -                      4,369,457       4,450,926       

 Proceeds from Disposal of Capital Assets -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

* Includes network infrastructure.

5,000              -                      7,122              

-                      

225,141          

-                      

306,610          

-                      

77,402            -                      

-                      -                      

4,220              

 

Buildings and Leasehold 
Improvements

-                      

34,832            

-                      

-                      -                      -                      -                      

-                      -                      

-                      -                      -                      -                      

25,208            

-                      

235,262          

-                      

-                      -                      

122,531          -                      1,308,518       

-                      

280,735          

-                      -                      

20,174            
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Fort La Bosse School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Financial Assets

Cash and Bank - - 
Due from  - Provincial Government 1,351,822 1,498,163 

 - Federal Government 130,556 80,187 
12  - Municipal Government 3,806,123 3,626,063 

 - Other School Divisions - - 
 - First Nations 535,721 470,128 

Accounts Receivable 191,231 11,104 
Accrued Investment Income - - 

6 Portfolio Investments 73,721 75,213 

6,089,174 5,760,858

 Liabilities

5 Overdraft 3,553,314 3,114,540 
Accounts Payable 607,966 1,281,481 
Accrued Liabilities 349,826 139,699 

3 Employee Future Benefits 91,678 64,475 
Accrued Interest Payable 236,537 216,519 
Due to  - Provincial Government - - 

 - Federal Government - - 
 - Municipal Government - - 
 - Other School Divisions - - 
 - First Nations - - 

7 Deferred Revenue 148,199 50,619 
8 Debenture Debt 9,831,953 8,979,662 
9 Other Borrowings 1,500,000 - 

School Generated Funds Liability 17,632 9,294 

16,337,105 13,856,289

 Net Debt (10,247,931) (8,095,431)

 Non-Financial Assets
10 Net Tangible Capital Assets (TCA Schedule) 16,133,353 13,750,403 

Inventories 18,480 28,549 
Prepaid Expenses 53,209 50,159 

16,205,042 13,829,111

11  Accumulated Surplus 5,957,111 5,733,680

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at June 30



Fort La Bosse School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Revenue

Provincial Government 11,170,031 11,007,666 
Federal Government - -

12 Municipal Government - Property Tax 6,674,710 6,403,968 
- Other - -

Other School Divisions 25,800 7,800 
First Nations 916,970 824,376 

Private Organizations and Individuals - -
Other Sources 498,731 76,915 
School Generated Funds 634,214 581,458 
Other Special Purpose Funds 82,166 107,257 

20,002,622 19,009,440

 Expenses

Regular Instruction 9,796,430 9,623,568 
Student Support Services 2,131,825 1,985,521 
Adult Learning Centres - -
Community Education and Services 345,839 311,299 
Divisional Administration 731,109 698,538 
Instructional and Other Support Services 751,604 410,165 
Transportation of Pupils 1,448,392 1,385,334 
Operations and Maintenance 1,959,228 1,849,853 

13 Fiscal - Interest 574,881 544,760 
- Other 254,266 261,666 

Amortization 1,001,155 935,917 
Other Capital Items - 979 
School Generated Funds 669,815 580,228 
Other Special Purpose Funds 87,444 101,136 

19,751,988 18,688,964

Current Year Surplus (Deficit) before Non-vested Sick Leave 250,634 320,476
Less: Non-vested Sick Leave Expense (Recovery) 27,203 1,790
Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 223,431 318,686

 Opening Accumulated Surplus 5,733,680 5,414,994 
 Adjustments: Tangible Cap. Assets and Accum. Amort. - - 

Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -
Non-vested sick leave - prior years - -

 Opening Accumulated Surplus, as adjusted 5,733,680 5,414,994

 Closing Accumulated Surplus 5,957,111 5,733,680

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF REVENUE, EXPENSES

 AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
For the Year Ended June 30



Fort La Bosse School Division

2015 2014

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 223,431                      318,686                

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 1,001,155                   935,917                
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (3,485,206)                  (1,203,690)            
(Gain) / Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 93,601                        (2,901)                   
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 7,500                          2,902                    

(2,382,950)                  (267,772)               

Inventories (Increase)/Decrease 10,069                        1                           

Prepaid Expenses (Increase)/Decrease (3,050)                         (15,265)                 
7,019                          (15,264)                 

(Increase)/Decrease in Net Debt (2,152,500)                  35,650                  

Net Debt at Beginning of Year (8,095,431)                  (8,131,081)            

Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets -                                  -                            

(8,095,431)                  (8,131,081)            

Net Debt at End of Year (10,247,931)                (8,095,431)            

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015



Fort La Bosse School Division

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014

 Operating Transactions

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 223,431                318,686                
Non-Cash Items Included in Current Year Surplus/(Deficit):

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 1,001,155             935,917                
(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 93,601                  (2,901)                  
Employee Future Benefits Increase/(Decrease) 27,203                  1,790                    

Due from Other Organizations (Increase)/Decrease (149,681)              (830,445)              
Accounts Receivable & Accrued Income (Increase)/Decrease (180,127)              3,514                    
Inventories and Prepaid Expenses - (Increase)/Decrease 7,019                    (15,264)                
Due to Other Organizations Increase/(Decrease) -                           -                           
Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities Increase/(Decrease) (443,370)              504,046                
Deferred Revenue Increase/(Decrease) 97,580                  (15,222)                
School Generated Funds Liability  Increase/(Decrease) 8,338                    (380)                     
Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets -                           -                           

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Operating Transactions 685,149                899,741                

 Capital Transactions

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (3,485,206)           (1,203,690)           
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 7,500                    2,902                    

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Capital Transactions (3,477,706)           (1,200,788)           

 Investing Transactions

Portfolio Investments (Increase)/Decrease 1,492                    1,472                    

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Investing Transactions 1,492                    1,472                    

 Financing Transactions
Debenture Debt Increase/(Decrease) 852,291                1,411,847             
Other Borrowings Increase/(Decrease) 1,500,000             -                           

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Financing Transactions 2,352,291             1,411,847             

 Cash and Bank / Overdraft (Increase)/Decrease (438,774)              1,112,272             
 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at Beginning of Year (3,114,540)           (4,226,812)           

 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at End of Year (3,553,314)           (3,114,540)           



Fort La Bosse School Division

SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
at June 30, 2015

Furniture / Computer Assets 2015 2014
School Other Fixtures & Hardware & Land Under TOTALS TOTALS

School Non-School Buses Vehicles Equipment Software * Land Improvements Construction

 Tangible Capital Asset Cost
 Opening Cost, as previously reported 24,363,431     582,416          3,075,483       155,003          663,828          228,843          240,881          -                     1,063,446       30,373,331     29,449,800     

Adjustments -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
 Opening Cost adjusted 24,363,431     582,416          3,075,483       155,003          663,828          228,843          240,881          -                     1,063,446       30,373,331     29,449,800     

Add:
Additions during the year

Less:
Disposals and write downs

 Closing Cost 24,029,405     3,402,533       3,203,826       172,297          904,282          228,843          271,581          -                     586,783          32,799,550     30,373,331     

 Accumulated Amortization
 Opening, as previously reported 13,317,175     505,929          1,985,683       126,634          527,279          160,228          -                     16,622,928     15,967,169     

Adjustments -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
 Opening adjusted 13,317,175     505,929          1,985,683       126,634          527,279          160,228          -                     16,622,928     15,967,169     

Add:
Current period Amortization

Less:
Accumulated Amortization
on Disposals and Writedowns

 Closing Accumulated Amortization 13,047,980     567,996          2,151,036       122,629          604,152          172,404          -                     16,666,197     16,622,928     

 Net Tangible Capital Asset 10,981,425     2,834,537       1,052,790       49,668            300,130          56,439            271,581          -                     586,783          16,133,353     13,750,403     

 Proceeds from Disposal of Capital Assets 1,000              -                     2,500              4,000              -                     -                     7,500              2,902              

* Includes network infrastructure.

62,067            235,986          12,176            

-                     

3,485,206       

1,058,987       

1,001,155       

957,886          

-                     (476,663)        

-                     -                     

-                     

Buildings and Leasehold 
Improvements

4,300              

76,873            

-                     

2,820,117       198,976          37,172            35,000            

-                     70,633            

-                     70,633            19,878            -                     

 

630,150          

964,176          

598,180          

867,375          

19,878            -                     

240,454          -                     1,203,690       

280,159          

935,917          

280,158          -                     

15,873            























Original Document Signed  Original Document Signed  







Frontier School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Financial Assets

Cash and Bank 14,262,189 8,877,037 
Due from  - Provincial Government 3,270,158 2,296,793 

 - Federal Government 550,519 2,134,007 
 - Municipal Government 2,202,491 2,132,306 
 - Other School Divisions - 2,159 
 - First Nations 30,261,964 29,442,620 

Accounts Receivable 526,089 738,931 
Accrued Investment Income - - 
Portfolio Investments - - 

51,073,410 45,623,853

 Liabilities

Overdraft - - 
Accounts Payable 12,243,936 13,570,125 
Accrued Liabilities 7,579,873 6,320,936 

* Employee Future Benefits 1,296,744 1,520,465 
Accrued Interest Payable 980,469 791,403 
Due to  - Provincial Government - - 

 - Federal Government - - 
 - Municipal Government - - 
 - Other School Divisions 254,916 83,748 
 - First Nations 3,829,438 - 

* Deferred Revenue 23,437,033 18,703,208 
* Debenture Debt 51,824,753 46,512,129 
* Other Borrowings 1,527,322 1,470,221 

School Generated Funds Liability 339,896 424,049 

103,314,380 89,396,284

 Net Debt (52,240,970) (43,772,431)

 Non-Financial Assets
* Net Tangible Capital Assets (TCA Schedule) 78,969,037 66,777,971 

Inventories - - 
Prepaid Expenses 335,604 382,241 

79,304,641 67,160,212

*  Accumulated Surplus 27,063,671 23,387,781

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at June 30



Frontier School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Revenue

Provincial Government 56,226,561  53,550,754  
Federal Government -  31,160,070  
Municipal Government - Property Tax 2,831,986  2,766,664  

- Other 267,991  241,326  
Other School Divisions 13,650  15,600  
First Nations 70,406,923  36,550,312  

Private Organizations and Individuals 4,841,777  4,616,636  
Other Sources 1,675,714  1,435,125  
School Generated Funds 936,891  1,106,422  
Other Special Purpose Funds -  -  

137,201,493 131,442,909

 Expenses

Regular Instruction 55,607,667  54,636,094  
Student Support Services 18,111,839  17,639,162  
Adult Learning Centres 3,247,784  3,024,443  
Community Education and Services 2,372,596  2,533,514  
Divisional Administration 7,160,845  6,351,357  
Instructional and Other Support Services 6,324,894  6,530,126  
Transportation of Pupils 11,389,474  10,628,019  
Operations and Maintenance 21,137,444  20,199,859  

* Fiscal - Interest 2,307,032  1,901,931  
- Other 1,744,706  1,711,031  

Amortization 3,230,699  2,749,712  
Other Capital Items -  -  
School Generated Funds 890,623  1,148,867  
Other Special Purpose Funds -  -  

133,525,603 129,054,115

Current Year Surplus (Deficit) before Non-vested Sick Leave 3,675,890 2,388,794
Less: Non-vested Sick Leave Expense (Recovery) 0 0
Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 3,675,890 2,388,794

 Opening Accumulated Surplus 23,387,781  20,998,987  
 Adjustments: Tangible Cap. Assets and Accum. Amort. -  -  

Other than Tangible Cap. Assets -  -  
Non-vested sick leave - prior years -  -  

 Opening Accumulated Surplus, as adjusted 23,387,781 20,998,987

 Closing Accumulated Surplus 27,063,671 23,387,781

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements
* NOTE REQUIRED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF REVENUE, EXPENSES

 AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
For the Year Ended June 30



Frontier School Division

2015 2014

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 3,675,890 2,388,794             

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 3,230,699 2,749,712             
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (15,421,765) (24,421,139)          
(Gain) / Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (47,553) (5,991) 
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 47,553 5,991 

(12,191,066) (21,671,427)          

Inventories (Increase)/Decrease - - 

Prepaid Expenses (Increase)/Decrease 46,637 (27,298) 
46,637 (27,298) 

(Increase)/Decrease in Net Debt (8,468,539) (19,309,931)          

Net Debt at Beginning of Year (43,772,431) (24,462,500)          

Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - - 

(43,772,431) (24,462,500)          

Net Debt at End of Year (52,240,970) (43,772,431)          

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015



Frontier School Division

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014

 Operating Transactions

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 3,675,890             2,388,794             
Non-Cash Items Included in Current Year Surplus/(Deficit):

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 3,230,699             2,749,712             
(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (47,553) (5,991)
Employee Future Benefits Increase/(Decrease) (223,721)              436,707 

Due from Other Organizations (Increase)/Decrease (277,247)              3,087,118             
Accounts Receivable & Accrued Income (Increase)/Decrease 212,842 49,907 
Inventories and Prepaid Expenses - (Increase)/Decrease 46,637 (27,298)
Due to Other Organizations Increase/(Decrease) 4,000,606             53,985 
Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities Increase/(Decrease) 121,814 3,940,008             
Deferred Revenue Increase/(Decrease) 4,733,825             171,532 
School Generated Funds Liability  Increase/(Decrease) (84,153) 143,621 
Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Operating Transactions 15,389,639           12,988,095           

 Capital Transactions

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (15,421,765)         (24,421,139)         
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 47,553 5,991 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Capital Transactions (15,374,212)         (24,415,148)         

 Investing Transactions

Portfolio Investments (Increase)/Decrease - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Investing Transactions - -

 Financing Transactions
Debenture Debt Increase/(Decrease) 5,312,624             18,375,373           
Other Borrowings Increase/(Decrease) 57,101 78,938 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Financing Transactions 5,369,725             18,454,311           

 Cash and Bank / Overdraft (Increase)/Decrease 5,385,152             7,027,258             
 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at Beginning of Year 8,877,037             1,849,779             

 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at End of Year 14,262,189           8,877,037             



Frontier School Division
SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

at June 30, 2015

Furniture / Computer Assets 2015 2014
School Other Fixtures & Hardware & Land Under TOTALS TOTALS

School Non-School Buses Vehicles Equipment Software * Land Improvements Construction

 Tangible Capital Asset Cost
 Opening Cost, as previously reported 96,330,686     17,746,166     9,688,468       212,327          1,958,784       - 1,462,248       - 22,463,457     149,862,136   125,765,826   

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening Cost adjusted 96,330,686     17,746,166     9,688,468       212,327          1,958,784       - 1,462,248       - 22,463,457     149,862,136   125,765,826   

Add:
Additions during the year

Less:
Disposals and write downs

 Closing Cost 128,105,564   17,752,981     9,907,050       197,755          2,105,042       - 1,462,248       - 4,605,529       164,136,169   149,862,136   

 Accumulated Amortization
 Opening, as previously reported 63,718,197     12,189,529     5,311,362       181,027          1,684,050       - - 83,084,165     80,659,282     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening adjusted 63,718,197     12,189,529     5,311,362       181,027          1,684,050       - - 83,084,165     80,659,282     

Add:
Current period Amortization

Less:
Accumulated Amortization
on Disposals and Writedowns

 Closing Accumulated Amortization 65,273,884     12,470,316     5,460,986       180,255          1,781,691       - - 85,167,132     83,084,165     

 Net Tangible Capital Asset 62,831,680     5,282,665       4,446,064       17,500            323,351          - 1,462,248       - 4,605,529       78,969,037     66,777,971     

 Proceeds from Disposal of Capital Assets - 2,000              44,193            1,360              - - 47,553            5,991              

* Includes network infrastructure.

Buildings and Leasehold 
Improvements

- 

116,144          

- 

88,842            916,632          - - 

362,814          847,674          - 

- 82,027            

32,109,458     

334,580          

1,890,267       

334,580          

14,572            

82,027            698,050          

13,800            

698,050          

3,230,699       

1,147,732       324,829          - 14,572            18,503            

- - (17,857,928)    

- 

- 

18,503            

164,761          24,421,139     

324,829          

2,749,712       

15,421,765     

1,147,732       
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Garden Valley School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Financial Assets

Cash and Bank - - 
Due from  - Provincial Government 2,475,457 3,943,600 

 - Federal Government 97,303 59,639 
 - Municipal Government 6,581,540 6,766,329 
 - Other School Divisions 400,656 386,974 
 - First Nations - - 

Accounts Receivable 260,811 139,370 
Accrued Investment Income - - 

3 Portfolio Investments 18,000 22,500 

9,833,767 11,318,412

 Liabilities

4 Overdraft 290,715 4,121,481 
Accounts Payable 1,999,305 1,188,945 
Accrued Liabilities 1,086,818 873,061 
Employee Future Benefits - - 
Accrued Interest Payable 1,313,723 1,350,842 
Due to  - Provincial Government 7,534 148,494 

 - Federal Government 2,278,901 2,288,357 
 - Municipal Government 220,101 213,214 
 - Other School Divisions 355,975 273,658 
 - First Nations - - 

6 Deferred Revenue 1,634,464 11,400 
7 Debenture Debt 68,223,404 70,184,458 
8 Other Borrowings 2,025,381 2,314,753 

School Generated Funds Liability - - 

79,436,321 82,968,663

 Net Debt (69,602,554) (71,650,251)

 Non-Financial Assets
9 Net Tangible Capital Assets (TCA Schedule) 89,723,804 89,928,475 

Inventories - - 
Prepaid Expenses 192,469 100,661 

89,916,273 90,029,136

10  Accumulated Surplus 20,313,719 18,378,885

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at June 30



Garden Valley School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Revenue

Provincial Government 38,211,491  35,366,366  
Federal Government -  -  
Municipal Government - Property Tax 13,177,394  13,521,606  

- Other -  -  
Other School Divisions 427,957  407,775  
First Nations -  -  

Private Organizations and Individuals 52,480  9,200  
Other Sources 496,389  589,556  
School Generated Funds 143,221  176,285  
Other Special Purpose Funds -  -  

52,508,932 50,070,788

 Expenses

Regular Instruction 25,950,108  26,690,000  
Student Support Services 7,767,024  7,301,751  
Adult Learning Centres -  -  
Community Education and Services 76,786  81,003  
Divisional Administration 1,399,937  1,295,803  
Instructional and Other Support Services 1,059,933  1,257,358  
Transportation of Pupils 2,542,811  2,519,411  
Operations and Maintenance 3,988,226  3,834,434  

12 Fiscal - Interest 3,179,558  3,178,115  
- Other 709,265  697,405  

Amortization 3,765,890  3,196,690  
Other Capital Items -  -  
School Generated Funds 134,560  122,684  
Other Special Purpose Funds -  -  

50,574,098 50,174,654

Current Year Surplus (Deficit) before Non-vested Sick Leave 1,934,834 (103,866)
Less: Non-vested Sick Leave Expense (Recovery) 0 0
Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 1,934,834 (103,866)

 Opening Accumulated Surplus 18,378,885  18,482,751  
 Adjustments: Tangible Cap. Assets and Accum. Amort. -  -  

Other than Tangible Cap. Assets -  -  
Non-vested sick leave - prior years -  -  

 Opening Accumulated Surplus, as adjusted 18,378,885 18,482,751

 Closing Accumulated Surplus 20,313,719 18,378,885

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF REVENUE, EXPENSES

 AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
For the Year Ended June 30



Garden Valley School Division

2015 2014

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 1,934,834 (103,866)               

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 3,765,890 3,196,690             
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (3,561,219) (5,631,329)            
(Gain) / Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - - 
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - - 

204,671 (2,434,639)            

Inventories (Increase)/Decrease - - 

Prepaid Expenses (Increase)/Decrease (91,808) (38,800) 
(91,808) (38,800) 

(Increase)/Decrease in Net Debt 2,047,697 (2,577,305)            

Net Debt at Beginning of Year (71,650,251) (69,072,946)          

Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - - 

(71,650,251) (69,072,946)          

Net Debt at End of Year (69,602,554) (71,650,251)          

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015



Garden Valley School Division

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014

 Operating Transactions

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 1,934,834             (103,866)              
Non-Cash Items Included in Current Year Surplus/(Deficit):

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 3,765,890             3,196,690             
(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - -
Employee Future Benefits Increase/(Decrease) - -

Due from Other Organizations (Increase)/Decrease 1,601,586             (1,979,033)           
Accounts Receivable & Accrued Income (Increase)/Decrease (121,441)              (2,094)
Inventories and Prepaid Expenses - (Increase)/Decrease (91,808) (38,800)
Due to Other Organizations Increase/(Decrease) (61,212) 400,045 
Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities Increase/(Decrease) 986,998 (3,759,701)           
Deferred Revenue Increase/(Decrease) 1,623,064             (1,497,488)           
School Generated Funds Liability  Increase/(Decrease) - -
Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Operating Transactions 9,637,911             (3,784,247)           

 Capital Transactions

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (3,561,219)           (5,631,329)           
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Capital Transactions (3,561,219)           (5,631,329)           

 Investing Transactions

Portfolio Investments (Increase)/Decrease 4,500 2,500 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Investing Transactions 4,500 2,500 

 Financing Transactions
Debenture Debt Increase/(Decrease) (1,961,054)           7,143,453             
Other Borrowings Increase/(Decrease) (289,372)              (284,872)              

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Financing Transactions (2,250,426)           6,858,581             

 Cash and Bank / Overdraft (Increase)/Decrease 3,830,766             (2,554,495)           
 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at Beginning of Year (4,121,481)           (1,566,986)           

 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at End of Year (290,715)              (4,121,481)           



Garden Valley School Division
SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

at June 30, 2015

Furniture / Computer Assets 2015 2014
School Other Fixtures & Hardware & Land Under TOTALS TOTALS

School Non-School Buses Vehicles Equipment Software * Land Improvements Construction

 Tangible Capital Asset Cost
 Opening Cost, as previously reported 110,447,317   3,239,729       5,127,817       192,456          2,072,645       827,925          4,066,745       128,646          698,475          126,801,755   121,170,426   

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening Cost adjusted 110,447,317   3,239,729       5,127,817       192,456          2,072,645       827,925          4,066,745       128,646          698,475          126,801,755   121,170,426   

Add:
Additions during the year

Less:
Disposals and write downs

 Closing Cost 113,431,635   3,189,853       5,228,245       192,456          2,119,833       855,325          4,066,745       212,836          1,016,170       130,313,098   126,801,755   

 Accumulated Amortization
 Opening, as previously reported 31,519,521     977,684          2,265,617       116,264          1,515,336       472,426          6,432              36,873,280     33,676,590     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening adjusted 31,519,521     977,684          2,265,617       116,264          1,515,336       472,426          6,432              36,873,280     33,676,590     

Add:
Current period Amortization

Less:
Accumulated Amortization
on Disposals and Writedowns

 Closing Accumulated Amortization 34,428,920     1,010,511       2,719,430       150,215          1,681,598       575,114          23,506            40,589,294     36,873,280     

 Net Tangible Capital Asset 79,002,715     2,179,342       2,508,815       42,241            438,235          280,211          4,066,745       189,330          1,016,170       89,723,804     89,928,475     

 Proceeds from Disposal of Capital Assets - - - - - - - - 

* Includes network infrastructure.

2,984,318       

- 

2,909,399       

- 

- - 

47,188            27,400            5,631,329       

- 

3,196,690       

- 

33,951            

Buildings and Leasehold 
Improvements

- 

166,262          

- 

- 100,428          - - 

49,876            - 

49,876            - - - 

84,190            317,695          

- - 

17,074            

3,561,219       

49,876            

3,765,890       

49,876            

82,703            453,813          102,688          

- 



Garden Valley School Division 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 

1. Nature of Organization and Economic Dependence

The Garden Valley School Division (Division) is a public body that provides education services to
residents within its geographic location. The division is funded mainly by grants from the Province of
Manitoba (Province), and a special levy on the property assessment included in the Division’s
boundaries. The Division is exempt from income tax and is a registered charity under the Income Tax
Act.

The Division is economically dependent on the Province for the majority of its revenue and capital
financing requirements. Without this funding, the Division would not be able to continue its operations.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles established by PSAB of the Chartered Professional
Accountants of Canada.

 Reporting Entity and Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of the
operating fund, capital fund, and special purpose fund of the Division. The Division reporting entity
includes school generated funds controlled by the Division.

All inter-fund accounts and transactions are eliminated upon consolidation.

Trust Funds

The Division administers a trust fund. Trust funds and their related operations are not included in the
consolidated financial statements as they are not owned or controlled by the Division. A schedule of
trust funds is attached as part of the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Trust funds, under PSAB are properties assigned to a trustee (school division) under a trust agreement
or statute; the trustee merely administers the terms and conditions embodied in the agreement, and it
has no unilateral authority to change the conditions set out in the trust indenture.

Basis of Accounting

Revenues and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of accounting except when the accruals
cannot be determined with a reasonable degree of certainty or when their estimation is impracticable.
The accrual basis of accounting recognizes revenues as they are earned and measurable; expenses
are recognized as they are incurred and measurable as a result of the receipt of goods or services and
the creation of a legal obligation to pay. Expenses also include the amortization of tangible capital assets.

Fund Accounting

The fund method of accounting is employed by the Division to record financial transactions in separate
funds as defined by Financial Reporting and Accounting in Manitoba Education (FRAME) in accordance
with the purpose for which the funds have been created.

The Operating Fund is maintained to record all the day to day operating revenues and expenses. The
Capital Fund is used to account for the acquisition, amortization, disposal and financing of capital assets.
The Special Purpose Fund is used to account for school generated funds and charitable foundations
controlled by the Division.

School Generated Funds



Garden Valley School Division 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 

School generated funds are moneys raised by the school, or under the auspices of the school, through 
extra-curricular activities for the sole use of the school that the principal of each school, subject to the 
rules of the school board, may raise, hold, administer and expend for the purposes of the school.   

Only revenue and expenses of school generated funds controlled by the Division are included in the 
Consolidated Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Accumulated Surplus. To be deemed as 
controlled, a school must have the unilateral authority to make the decisions as to when, how and on 
what the funds are to be spent. 

Period end cash balances of all school generated funds are included in the Consolidated Statement of 
Financial Position. The uncontrolled portion of this amount is reflected in the School Generated Funds 
Liability account. Examples of uncontrolled school generated funds are parent council funds, other 
parent group funds, student council funds and travel club funds. Revenues and expenses of 
uncontrolled school generated funds are not included in the consolidated financial statements. 

Tangible Capital Assets 

Tangible capital assets are non-financial assets that are used by the Division to provide services to the 
public and have an economic life beyond one fiscal year. Tangible capital assets include land, buildings, 
buses, other vehicles, furniture and equipment, computers, capital leases, leasehold improvements, 
and assets under construction.   

To be classified as tangible capital assets, each asset other than land must individually meet the 
capitalization threshold for its class as prescribed by FRAME.   

Asset Description Capitalization Threshold ($) Estimated Useful Life 

Land improvements 25,000 10 years 
Buildings – bricks, mortar, steel 25,000 40 years 
Buildings – wood frame   25,000 25 years 
School buses 20,000 10 years 
Vehicles 10,000 5 years 
Equipment 10,000 5 years 
Network infrastructure 25,000 10 years 
Computer hardware, servers, peripherals 5,000 4 years 
Computer software 10,000 4 years 
Furniture and fixtures 5,000 10 years 
Leasehold improvements 25,000 Over term of lease 

Grouping of assets is not permitted except for computer work stations. 

All land acquired prior to June 30, 2006 has been valued by the Crown Lands and Property Agency. 

With the exception of land acquired prior to June 30, 2006, donated capital assets and capital leases, 
all tangible capital assets, are recorded at historical cost, which includes purchase price, installation 
costs and other costs incurred to put the asset into service.  

Buildings are recorded at historical cost when known. For buildings acquired prior to June 30, 2005 
where the actual cost was not known, the replacement value for insurance purposes as at June 30, 
2005 was regressed to the date of acquisition using a regression index based on Southam and 
CanaData construction cost indices.   

Capital leases are recorded at the present value of the minimum lease payments excluding executory 
costs (e.g. insurance, maintenance costs, etc.). The discount rate used to determine the present value 
of the lease payments is the lower of the Division’s rate for incremental borrowing or the interest rate 
implicit in the lease.       



Garden Valley School Division 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 

Donated tangible capital assets are recorded at fair market value at the date of donation. Deferred 
revenue is recorded in an equivalent amount, for all donated assets except land. The deferred revenue 
will be recognized as revenue over the useful life of the related asset, on the same basis that the asset 
is amortized.       

All tangible capital assets, except for land, capital leases, and assets under construction, are amortized 
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as prescribed by FRAME.  Land is not 
amortized.  Capital leases with lease terms that have a bargain purchase option or allow ownership to 
pass to the Division are amortized over the useful life of the asset class.  All other capital leases are 
amortized over the lesser of the lease term and the useful life of the asset class.   

One-half of the annual amortization is charged in the year of acquisition and in the year of disposal if 
not fully amortized.   

Assets under construction are not amortized until the date of substantial completion. Interest on funds 
used to finance school buildings under construction is capitalized for the periods preceding the date of 
substantial completion. 

Employee Future Benefits 

The Province of Manitoba pays the employer portion of the Teachers’ Retirement Allowances Fund 
(TRAF), the pension plan for all certified teachers of the Division. The Division does not contribute to 
TRAF, and no costs relating to this plan are included in the Division’s financial statements. 

However, the Division provides retirement and other future benefits to its administrative employees. 
These benefits include defined contribution pension, parental leave and early retirement window 
enhancements. The Division adopted the following policy with respect to accounting for these employee 
future benefits: 

Defined Contribution Pension Plan 

The Division pays the employer portion of a defined contribution plan handled by the Manitoba School 
Boards Association (MSBA) for administrative employees. Under this plan, specific fixed amounts are 
contributed by the Division each period for services rendered by the employees, matching employee 
contributions. No responsibility is assumed by the Division to make any further contribution. 

Defined Benefit/Self-Insured Employee Future Benefit Plans 

For those defined benefit/self-insured benefit obligations that are event driven such as non-vesting 
parental leave, the benefit costs are recognized and recorded only in the period when the event occurs. 
For early retirement window enhancements obligations which are also event driven, the benefit costs 
are recognized in the period when the commitment to pay the benefit is approved by the Board of 
Trustees. 

Non-vested Accumulated Sick Leave 

For non-vesting accumulating sick days, the benefit costs are recognized, if deemed material, based 
on a projection of expected future utilization of sick time, discounted using net present value techniques. 

Non-vested accumulated sick leave benefits are measured using net present value techniques on the 
expected future utilization of excess of sick benefits used over earned per year, to maximum 
entitlement.  The impact of the estimated non-vested sick leave benefit cost for 2014/15 is $165,858. 

Capital Reserve  



Garden Valley School Division 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 

Certain amounts, as approved by the Board of Trustees and the Public Schools Finance Board (PSFB), 
have been set aside in reserve accounts for future capital purposes. These Capital Reserve accounts 
are internally restricted funds that form part of the Accumulated Surplus presented in the Consolidated 
Statement of Financial Position. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual 
results could differ from management’s best estimates, as additional information becomes available in 
the future. 

Financial Instruments 

There are no significant terms and conditions related to financial instruments (cash, accounts 
receivable, investments, and bank indebtedness, accounts payable and long-term debt) that may affect 
the amount, timing and certainty of future cash flows. The Division is exposed to credit risk from the 
potential non-payment of accounts receivable. However, the majority of the receivables are from local, 
provincial and federal governments, and therefore, the credit risk is minimal. The carrying amounts of 
the financial instruments approximate their carrying values, unless otherwise noted.   

Adoption of New Accounting Policy 
Effective July 1, 2014, the Division has adopted the new Public Sector Accounting Board accounting 
standard – Liability for Contaminated Sites, Section PS3260.  The standard was applied on a retroactive 
basis to July 1, 2013 and did not result in any adjustments to financial liabilities, tangible capital assets 
or accumulated surplus of the Division. 

3. Portfolio Investments

The amount represents the share equity balance of the Division with Access Credit Union - $18,000 at
June 30 2015.

4. Bank Overdraft

The Division has an authorized line of credit with the Access Credit Union Ltd. of $10,600,000 by way
of overdrafts and is repayable on demand. The various overdrafts bear interest ranging at the credit
union’s prime rate minus 2.0% to 0.50% (0.70% to 2.20% respectively at June 30, 2015); interest is
paid monthly. Included in the overdraft are capital projects totalling approximately $3,600,000 which
will be submitted to PSFB for debenture funding. Overdrafts are secured by a demand promissory
note, line of credit agreement, borrowing by-law and banking documents.

5. Employee Future Benefits

The Division sponsors a defined contribution pension plan, run by the Manitoba School Boards
Association (MSBA). The defined contribution plan is provided to administrative employees based on
their age at the beginning of the year and rates of pay. Each age group under the MSBA pension plan
has a specific percentage for the employees to contribute. The Division contributions equal the
employee contributions to the plan. No pension liability is included in the financial statements.

The employee future benefit expense is a part of the Employee Benefits and Allowances expense
account. The total pension expense for the 2014/2015 year was $514,481 ($489,845 in 2013/14).



Garden Valley School Division 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 

6. Deferred Revenue

The deferral method of accounting is used for revenues received that, pursuant to legislation, regulation
or agreement, may only be used for specific purposes. These amounts are recognized as revenue in
the fiscal year the related expenses are incurred or services performed. The following is a breakdown
of the account balance:

Revenue 
Balance as at Additions recognized Balance as at 

June 30, 2014 in period in period June 30, 2015 
Education Property  
 Tax Credit (EPTC) $ 11,400 1,634,464 11,400 1,634,464 
Other  0 0 

$ 11,400 1,634,464 11,400 1,634,464 

7. Debenture Debt

The debenture debt of the Division is in the form of twenty-year debentures payable, principal and
interest, in twenty equal yearly instalments and maturing at various dates from 2016 to 2035. Payment
of principal and interest is funded entirely by grants from the Province of Manitoba. The debentures
carry interest rates that range from 3.50% to 10.00%. Debenture interest expense payable as at June
30, 2015, is accrued and recorded in Accrued Interest Payable, and a grant in an amount equal to the
interest accrued on provincially funded debentures is recorded in Due from the Provincial Government.
The total debenture principal and interest repayments in the next five years are:

2016 6,259,357 
2017 6,259,357 
2018  6,243,328 
2019   6,234,525 
2020    6,113,087 

$ 31,109,654 



Garden Valley School Division 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 

8. Other Borrowings

Other borrowings are debts other than overdrafts or debentures.
           2015 2014 

Access Credit Union, demand loan, prime less .50% (2.35% at June
30, 2015); repayable in monthly instalments of $17,560, including
principal and interest; secured by a demand promissory note,
financing by-law, banking documents, and a Registered General
Security Agreement for Administration Office $ 1,292,516 1,469,216  

Access Credit Union, demand loan, prime less .50% (2.35% at June 
30, 2015); repayable in monthly instalments of $5,000, including 
principal and interest; secured by a demand promissory note, 
financing by-law, banking documents, and a Registered General 
Security Agreement for Northlands Parkway Collegiate land. $ 382,237 397,649  

Access Credit Union, demand loan, prime less .50% (2.35% at June 
30, 2015); repayable in monthly instalments of $6,325, including 
principal and interest; secured by a demand promissory note, 
financing by-law, banking documents, and a Registered General 
Security Agreement for future school site land $ 346,831 447,888 

Access Credit Union, demand loan, prime less .50% (2.35% at June 
30, 2015); secured by a demand promissory note, financing by-law, 
banking documents, and a Registered General Security Agreement $ 3,798 0 

Total Other Borrowings $ 2,025,382 2,314,753 

Principal and interest repayment of total Other Borrowings in the next five years are: 

Principal Interest Total 

2015/16 304,741 41,879 346,620 
2016/17 311,977 34,643 346,620 
2017/18 318,910 27,710   346,620 
2018/19    325,997 20,623   346,620 
2019/20    333,209 13,411   346,620 

$  1,594,834 138,266 1,733,100 

9. Net Tangible Capital Assets

The Schedule of Tangible Capital Assets (TCA), page 23 of the audited financial statements, provides
a breakdown of cost, accumulated amortization and net book value by class. The amount of interest
capitalized in the period included in School Buildings was $17,474.



Garden Valley School Division 
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For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 

10. Accumulated Surplus

The consolidated accumulated surplus is comprised of the following:

           2015 2014 
Operating Fund 
Designated Surplus $    297,556 250,717 
Undesignated Surplus        1,426,811 823,103 

$    1,724,367 1,073,820 

Capital Fund 
Reserve Accounts $       212,907 891,230 
Equity in Tangible Capital Assets  18,294,862 16,306,254 

$18,507,769 17,197,484 

Special Purpose Fund 
School Generated Funds $     81,583 107,581 
Other Special Purpose Funds  - - 

$     81,583 107,581 

Total Accumulated Surplus $20,313,719 18,378,885 

Designated Surplus under the Operating Fund represents internally restricted amounts appropriated 
by the Board of Trustees or, in the case of school budget carryovers, by board policy. The details of 
the Designated Surplus as disclosed at page 5 of the audited financial statements are as follows: 

          2015 2014 

School budget surplus (deficit) carryovers by board policy $   297,556 250,717 
Applied to 2015/2016 Operating budget deficit - - 
Board approved appropriation by motion           - - 

Designated surplus $   297,556 250,717 

Reserve Accounts under the Capital Fund represents internally restricted reserves for specific purposes 
approved by the Board of Trustees and PSFB.  A Schedule of Capital Reserve Accounts is provided 
on page 24 of the audited financial statements. 

          2015 2014 

Bus reserves (deficit) $     209,932 10,359 
High School Renovation reserve - 877,896 
Maintenance Shop relocation reserve 2,975  2,975 
Other reserves   - - 

Capital Reserve $     212,907 891,230 

School Generated Funds and Other Special Purpose Funds are externally restricted moneys for school 
use.  



Garden Valley School Division 
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For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 

11. Municipal Government – Property Tax and related Due from Municipal Government

Education property tax or Special Levy is raised as the Division’s contribution to the cost of providing
public education for the students’ resident in the division. The Municipal Government-Property Tax
shown on the consolidated revenue and expense is raised over the two calendar (tax) years; 50% from
2014 tax year and 50% from 2015 tax year. Below are the related revenue and receivable amounts:

          2015 2014 

Revenue – Municipal Government – Property Tax $ 13,177,394 13,521,606 

Receivable – Due from Municipal – Property Tax $ 6,581,540 6,766,329 

12. Interest Received and Paid

The Division received interest during the year of $3,122,438 ($3,125,868 in 2014); interest paid during
the year was $3,179,558 ($3,178,115 in 2014).

Interest expense is included in Fiscal and is comprised of the following:

          2015 2014 
Operating Fund 
Fiscal-short term loan, interest and bank charges $     23,446 18,342 

Capital Fund 
Debenture interest 3,102,478 3,097,986 
Other interest        53,634 61,787 

$3,179,558 3,178,115 

The accrual portion of debenture debt interest expense of $1,313,723 at June 30, 2015 ($1,350,842 at 
June 30, 2014 included under the Capital Fund-Debenture debt interest is offset by an accrual of the 
debt servicing grant from the Province of Manitoba. 

13. Expenses by Object

Expenses in the consolidated statement of revenue, expenses and accumulated surplus are reported
by function as defined by FRAME. Below is the detail of expenses by object:

Actual Actual 
              2014 2014 

Salaries $  32,707,417 32,130,956 
Employees benefits and allowances 3,043,930 2,951,335 
Services 3,539,101 3,363,212 
Supplies, materials and minor equipment 3,050,040 4,139,542 
Interest 3,179,558 3,178,115 
Bad debt expense 4,036 - 
Payroll tax 705,229 697,405 
Transfers 444,337 394,715 
Amortization 3,765,890 3,196,690 
Other capital items - - 
School generated funds         134,560 122,684 

$  50,574,098 50,174,654 
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14. Commitments

Commitments of Operating Fund Surplus at year end are detailed in the Analysis of Consolidated
Accumulated Surplus.  Designated Operating Fund Accumulated Surplus is $297,556 at June 30, 2015
($250,717 at June 30, 2014). The details of the Designated Surplus as disclosed at note 10 and page
5 of the audited financial statements

Also during the fiscal year, the Division entered into a contract with Rohl Enterprises for the construction
of a buried fibre optic cable system connecting all locations in the Division.  The value of the contract
is $1,695,638 and the project is scheduled for completion by October 2015.  As of June 30, 2015
progress billings totalling $891,876 were paid.

15. Contingent Liabilities

As of June 30, 2015, construction deficiencies in a construction contract with Penn-Co Construction
Canada (2003) Ltd. remain outstanding with an estimated cost of $702,300.

Also, during the construction of Northlands Parkway Collegiate, the Division became aware of a
construction deficiency with respect to the delamination of the floor in several areas on the 2nd level of
the building. Discussions have been held with the project consultant, Prairie Architects, the contractor,
Pennco Construction Canada (2003) Ltd., and the Public Schools Finance Board regarding this issue.
Destructive testing of the floor structure is currently in process to determine the extent of the deficiency
and estimated costs to remediate, if necessary.  Responsibility for any additional costs incurred in
remediation remains undetermined.
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Hanover School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Financial Assets

Cash and Bank - - 
Due from  - Provincial Government 4,746,694 7,303,280 

 - Federal Government 49,196 199,865 
 - Municipal Government 13,225,073 12,109,968 
 - Other School Divisions 4,975 - 
 - First Nations - - 

Accounts Receivable 158,920 779,758 
Accrued Investment Income - - 

* Portfolio Investments 10 10 

18,184,868 20,392,881

 Liabilities

* Overdraft 6,213,440 14,440,894 
Accounts Payable 3,089,024 5,314,454 
Accrued Liabilities 3,898,180 354,369 

* Employee Future Benefits 429,458 482,073 
Accrued Interest Payable 1,964,674 1,866,130 
Due to  - Provincial Government - 22,522 

 - Federal Government - - 
 - Municipal Government - - 
 - Other School Divisions - - 
 - First Nations - - 

* Deferred Revenue 2,475,105 56,524 
* Debenture Debt 89,381,003 85,421,897 
* Other Borrowings 540,000 810,000 

School Generated Funds Liability 130,112 135,901 

108,120,996 108,904,764

 Net Debt (89,936,128) (88,511,883)

 Non-Financial Assets
* Net Tangible Capital Assets (TCA Schedule) 110,755,782               106,149,117               

Inventories 164,718 165,249 
Prepaid Expenses 432,002 415,391 

111,352,502 106,729,757

*  Accumulated Surplus 21,416,374 18,217,874

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at June 30



Hanover School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Revenue

Provincial Government 63,820,921 59,360,632 
Federal Government - -
Municipal Government - Property Tax 22,121,082 20,240,119 

- Other - -
Other School Divisions 122,038 149,600 
First Nations - -

Private Organizations and Individuals 445,501 350,999 
Other Sources 569,210 133,512 
School Generated Funds 1,846,950 1,963,075 
Other Special Purpose Funds - -

88,925,702 82,197,937

 Expenses

Regular Instruction 48,930,480 44,763,903 
Student Support Services 9,327,766 10,112,604 
Adult Learning Centres - -
Community Education and Services 175,024 164,509 
Divisional Administration 2,140,097 2,005,406 
Instructional and Other Support Services 2,074,076 2,134,031 
Transportation of Pupils 3,516,272 3,509,401 
Operations and Maintenance 8,352,265 7,699,731 

* Fiscal - Interest 4,223,346 3,203,443 
- Other 1,222,476 1,172,873 

Amortization 3,931,786 3,127,694 
Other Capital Items 2,885 482,162 
School Generated Funds 1,830,729 1,897,563 
Other Special Purpose Funds - -

85,727,202 80,273,320

Current Year Surplus (Deficit) before Non-vested Sick Leave 3,198,500 1,924,617
Less: Non-vested Sick Leave Expense (Recovery) 0 0
Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 3,198,500 1,924,617

 Opening Accumulated Surplus 18,217,874 16,293,257 
 Adjustments: Tangible Cap. Assets and Accum. Amort. - -

Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -
Non-vested sick leave - prior years - -

 Opening Accumulated Surplus, as adjusted 18,217,874 16,293,257

 Closing Accumulated Surplus 21,416,374 18,217,874

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements
* NOTE REQUIRED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF REVENUE, EXPENSES

 AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
For the Year Ended June 30



Hanover School Division

2015 2014

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 3,198,500 1,924,617             

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 3,931,786 3,127,694             
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (8,538,451) (26,761,811)          
(Gain) / Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (351,332) (28,372) 
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 351,332 28,372 

(4,606,665) (23,634,117)          

Inventories (Increase)/Decrease 531 (66,649) 

Prepaid Expenses (Increase)/Decrease (16,611) (169,012)               
(16,080) (235,661)               

(Increase)/Decrease in Net Debt (1,424,245) (21,945,161)          

Net Debt at Beginning of Year (88,511,883) (66,566,722)          

Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - - 

(88,511,883) (66,566,722)          

Net Debt at End of Year (89,936,128) (88,511,883)          

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015



Hanover School Division

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014

 Operating Transactions

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 3,198,500             1,924,617             
Non-Cash Items Included in Current Year Surplus/(Deficit):

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 3,931,786             3,127,694             
(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (351,332)              (28,372)
Employee Future Benefits Increase/(Decrease) (52,615) 23,205 

Due from Other Organizations (Increase)/Decrease 1,587,175             (3,837,212)           
Accounts Receivable & Accrued Income (Increase)/Decrease 620,838 (589,498)              
Inventories and Prepaid Expenses - (Increase)/Decrease (16,080) (235,661)              
Due to Other Organizations Increase/(Decrease) (22,522) 9,261 
Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities Increase/(Decrease) 1,416,925             (2,073,284)           
Deferred Revenue Increase/(Decrease) 2,418,581             (2,307,494)           
School Generated Funds Liability  Increase/(Decrease) (5,789) 1,942 
Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Operating Transactions 12,725,467           (3,984,802)           

 Capital Transactions

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (8,538,451)           (26,761,811)         
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 351,332 28,372 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Capital Transactions (8,187,119)           (26,733,439)         

 Investing Transactions

Portfolio Investments (Increase)/Decrease - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Investing Transactions - -

 Financing Transactions
Debenture Debt Increase/(Decrease) 3,959,106             22,618,288           
Other Borrowings Increase/(Decrease) (270,000)              (270,000)              

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Financing Transactions 3,689,106             22,348,288           

 Cash and Bank / Overdraft (Increase)/Decrease 8,227,454             (8,369,953)           
 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at Beginning of Year (14,440,894)         (6,070,941)           

 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at End of Year (6,213,440)           (14,440,894)         



Hanover School Division
SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

at June 30, 2015

Furniture / Computer Assets 2015 2014
School Other Fixtures & Hardware & Land Under TOTALS TOTALS

School Non-School Buses Vehicles Equipment Software * Land Improvements Construction

 Tangible Capital Asset Cost
 Opening Cost, as previously reported 91,464,904    4,870,877      8,146,354      290,960          1,981,197      557,871          3,455,716      - 40,435,344    151,203,223  124,773,521  

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening Cost adjusted 91,464,904    4,870,877      8,146,354      290,960          1,981,197      557,871          3,455,716      - 40,435,344    151,203,223  124,773,521  

Add:
Additions during the year

Less:
Disposals and write downs

 Closing Cost 134,776,422  4,870,877      8,534,039      355,009          2,572,493      2,735,687      3,559,619      - 1,949,157      159,353,303  151,203,223  

 Accumulated Amortization
 Opening, as previously reported 36,143,133    1,479,164      5,399,530      218,324          1,518,656      295,299          - 45,054,106    42,258,521    

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening adjusted 36,143,133    1,479,164      5,399,530      218,324          1,518,656      295,299          - 45,054,106    42,258,521    

Add:
Current period Amortization

Less:
Accumulated Amortization
on Disposals and Writedowns

 Closing Accumulated Amortization 39,043,611    1,581,843      5,572,744      252,708          1,658,176      488,439          - 48,597,521    45,054,106    

 Net Tangible Capital Asset 95,732,811    3,289,034      2,961,295      102,301          914,317          2,247,248      3,559,619      - 1,949,157      110,755,782  106,149,117  

 Proceeds from Disposal of Capital Assets - - 12,357            - - - 338,975          351,332          28,372            

* Includes network infrastructure.

43,311,518    

- 

2,900,478      

- 

- - 

591,296          2,177,816      26,761,811    

332,109          

3,127,694      

332,109          - 

34,384            

Buildings and Leasehold 
Improvements

- 

139,520          

- 

776,056          64,049            103,903          

- 388,371          

- 388,371          - - 

- (38,486,187)   

- - 

- 

8,538,451      

388,371          

3,931,786      

388,371          

102,679          561,585          193,140          

- 
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Interlake School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Financial Assets

Cash and Bank - - 
Due from  - Provincial Government 1,442,366 1,313,350 

 - Federal Government 42,132 54,672 
 - Municipal Government 6,288,674 7,871,345 
 - Other School Divisions 5,392 - 
 - First Nations - - 

Accounts Receivable 39,001 60,965 
Accrued Investment Income - - 

* Portfolio Investments 4,513 5,326 

7,822,078 9,305,658

 Liabilities

* Overdraft 2,234,500 6,298,518 
Accounts Payable 892,672 564,757 
Accrued Liabilities 815,150 479,037 

* Employee Future Benefits 1,754,301 1,562,677 
Accrued Interest Payable 326,923 226,597 
Due to  - Provincial Government - - 

 - Federal Government - - 
 - Municipal Government - - 
 - Other School Divisions - - 
 - First Nations - - 

* Deferred Revenue 1,701,891 99,934 
* Debenture Debt 17,735,499 11,678,956 
* Other Borrowings 1,800,000 - 

School Generated Funds Liability 88,094 168,659 

27,349,030 21,079,135

 Net Debt (19,526,952) (11,773,477)

 Non-Financial Assets
* Net Tangible Capital Assets (TCA Schedule) 22,897,584 15,498,558 

Inventories 87,869 65,551 
Prepaid Expenses 62,325 59,570 

23,047,778 15,623,679

*  Accumulated Surplus 3,520,826 3,850,202

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at June 30



Interlake School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Revenue

Provincial Government 24,376,090 24,233,195 
Federal Government 33,724 7,000 
Municipal Government - Property Tax 11,821,459 11,597,199 

- Other 7,500 17,000 
Other School Divisions 71,779 37,968 
First Nations - -

Private Organizations and Individuals 185,229 215,953 
Other Sources 166,617 139,203 
School Generated Funds 368,844 516,059 
Other Special Purpose Funds 1,317 1,340 

37,032,559 36,764,917

 Expenses

Regular Instruction 19,884,873 19,192,741 
Student Support Services 5,677,506 5,721,041 
Adult Learning Centres - -
Community Education and Services 258,159 267,268 
Divisional Administration 1,368,491 1,363,705 
Instructional and Other Support Services 1,563,904 1,589,256 
Transportation of Pupils 2,171,542 2,215,158 
Operations and Maintenance 3,588,124 4,029,441 

* Fiscal - Interest 683,017 593,995 
- Other 581,440 560,626 

Amortization 1,214,281 1,135,487 
Other Capital Items - 127,500 
School Generated Funds 362,297 486,066 
Other Special Purpose Funds 1,317 1,340 

37,354,951 37,283,624

Current Year Surplus (Deficit) before Non-vested Sick Leave (322,392) (518,707)
Less: Non-vested Sick Leave Expense (Recovery) 6,984 (30,837)
Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) (329,376) (487,870)

 Opening Accumulated Surplus 3,850,202 4,338,072 
 Adjustments: Tangible Cap. Assets and Accum. Amort. - -

Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -
Non-vested sick leave - prior years - -

 Opening Accumulated Surplus, as adjusted 3,850,202 4,338,072

 Closing Accumulated Surplus 3,520,826 3,850,202

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements
* NOTE REQUIRED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF REVENUE, EXPENSES

 AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
For the Year Ended June 30



Interlake School Division

2015 2014

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) (329,376) (487,870)               

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 1,214,281 1,135,487             
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (8,613,307) (3,528,388)            
(Gain) / Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - 492 
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - 1,155 

(7,399,026) (2,391,254)            

Inventories (Increase)/Decrease (22,318) 14,664 

Prepaid Expenses (Increase)/Decrease (2,755) (44) 
(25,073) 14,620 

(Increase)/Decrease in Net Debt (7,753,475) (2,864,504)            

Net Debt at Beginning of Year (11,773,477) (8,908,973)            

Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - - 

(11,773,477) (8,908,973)            

Net Debt at End of Year (19,526,952) (11,773,477)          

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015



Interlake School Division

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014

 Operating Transactions

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) (329,376)              (487,870)              
Non-Cash Items Included in Current Year Surplus/(Deficit):

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 1,214,281             1,135,487             
(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - 492 
Employee Future Benefits Increase/(Decrease) 191,624 7,393 

Due from Other Organizations (Increase)/Decrease 1,460,803             (2,148,662)           
Accounts Receivable & Accrued Income (Increase)/Decrease 21,964 3,575 
Inventories and Prepaid Expenses - (Increase)/Decrease (25,073) 14,620 
Due to Other Organizations Increase/(Decrease) - -
Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities Increase/(Decrease) 764,354 475,548 
Deferred Revenue Increase/(Decrease) 1,601,957             (1,619,565)           
School Generated Funds Liability  Increase/(Decrease) (80,565) (21,811)
Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Operating Transactions 4,819,969             (2,640,793)           

 Capital Transactions

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (8,613,307)           (3,528,388)           
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - 1,155 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Capital Transactions (8,613,307)           (3,527,233)           

 Investing Transactions

Portfolio Investments (Increase)/Decrease 813 785 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Investing Transactions 813 785 

 Financing Transactions
Debenture Debt Increase/(Decrease) 6,056,543             1,788,474             
Other Borrowings Increase/(Decrease) 1,800,000             -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Financing Transactions 7,856,543             1,788,474             

 Cash and Bank / Overdraft (Increase)/Decrease 4,064,018             (4,378,767)           
 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at Beginning of Year (6,298,518)           (1,919,751)           

 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at End of Year (2,234,500)           (6,298,518)           



Interlake School Division

SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
at June 30, 2015

Furniture / Computer Assets 2015 2014
School Other Fixtures & Hardware & Land Under TOTALS TOTALS

School Non-School Buses Vehicles Equipment Software * Land Improvements Construction

 Tangible Capital Asset Cost
 Opening Cost, as previously reported 23,325,371     1,214,424       5,053,910       269,643          480,443          - 170,631          - 3,291,205       33,805,627     30,346,043     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening Cost adjusted 23,325,371     1,214,424       5,053,910       269,643          480,443          - 170,631          - 3,291,205       33,805,627     30,346,043     

Add:
Additions during the year

Less:
Disposals and write downs

 Closing Cost 23,325,371     1,214,424       5,053,910       296,426          473,419          2,216,531       170,631          - 9,634,360       42,385,072     33,805,627     

 Accumulated Amortization
 Opening, as previously reported 13,661,895     581,272          3,481,201       217,190          365,511          - - 18,307,069     17,238,739     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening adjusted 13,661,895     581,272          3,481,201       217,190          365,511          - - 18,307,069     17,238,739     

Add:
Current period Amortization

Less:
Accumulated Amortization
on Disposals and Writedowns

 Closing Accumulated Amortization 14,328,974     625,315          3,810,713       238,164          373,495          110,827          - 19,487,488     18,307,069     

 Net Tangible Capital Asset 8,996,397       589,109          1,243,197       58,262            99,924            2,105,704       170,631          - 9,634,360       22,897,584     15,498,558     

 Proceeds from Disposal of Capital Assets - - - - - - - 1,155              

* Includes network infrastructure.

44,043            329,512          110,827          

- 

8,613,307       

33,862            

1,214,281       

33,862            

- 6,343,155       

- - 

- 

Buildings and Leasehold 
Improvements

- 

41,846            

- 

- - 26,783            - 

- - 

- - - 33,862            

- 

- 

667,079          

- 

- 33,862            

26,838            2,216,531       3,528,388       

68,804            

1,135,487       

67,157            - 

20,974            
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Kelsey School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Financial Assets

Cash and Bank - - 
Due from  - Provincial Government 1,119,568 1,075,233 

 - Federal Government 74,152 84,184 
 - Municipal Government 1,833,985 2,602,454 
 - Other School Divisions 10,849 10,317 
 - First Nations 204,380 230,825 

Accounts Receivable 48,294 73,382 
Accrued Investment Income - - 
Portfolio Investments - - 

3,291,228 4,076,395

 Liabilities

* Overdraft 340,237 2,526,817 
Accounts Payable 1,103,277 902,146 
Accrued Liabilities 1,051,546 820,704 

* Employee Future Benefits 102,861 - 
Accrued Interest Payable - - 
Due to  - Provincial Government - - 

 - Federal Government - - 
 - Municipal Government - - 
 - Other School Divisions - - 
 - First Nations - - 

* Deferred Revenue 257,312 12,138 
* Debenture Debt 18,657,941 15,987,664 

Other Borrowings - - 
School Generated Funds Liability 57,307 60,544 

21,570,481 20,310,013

 Net Debt (18,279,253) (16,233,618)

 Non-Financial Assets
* Net Tangible Capital Assets (TCA Schedule) 21,230,496 18,382,781 

Inventories - - 
Prepaid Expenses 16,187 22,138 

21,246,683 18,404,919

*  Accumulated Surplus 2,967,430 2,171,301

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at June 30



Kelsey School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Revenue

Provincial Government 17,988,074 17,622,148 
Federal Government 20,110 20,974 
Municipal Government - Property Tax 3,284,987 3,166,369 

- Other - -
Other School Divisions 10,849 10,317 
First Nations 70,800 1,568 

Private Organizations and Individuals 400 -
Other Sources 107,586 147,368 
School Generated Funds 386,819 431,426 
Other Special Purpose Funds - -

21,869,625 21,400,170

 Expenses

Regular Instruction 9,750,984 9,731,579 
Student Support Services 4,455,832 4,396,393 
Adult Learning Centres 551,670 594,324 
Community Education and Services 55,393 54,545 
Divisional Administration 790,204 747,395 
Instructional and Other Support Services 479,739 454,015 
Transportation of Pupils 596,104 581,452 
Operations and Maintenance 2,433,228 2,394,267 

* Fiscal - Interest 767,316 696,672 
- Other 330,359 328,035 

Amortization 349,137 332,370 
Other Capital Items - 41,013 
School Generated Funds 410,669 429,145 
Other Special Purpose Funds - -

20,970,635 20,781,205

Current Year Surplus (Deficit) before Non-vested Sick Leave 898,990 618,965
Less: Non-vested Sick Leave Expense (Recovery) 102,861 0
Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 796,129 618,965

 Opening Accumulated Surplus 2,171,301 1,552,336 
 Adjustments: Tangible Cap. Assets and Accum. Amort. - -

Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -
Non-vested sick leave - prior years - -

 Opening Accumulated Surplus, as adjusted 2,171,301 1,552,336

 Closing Accumulated Surplus 2,967,430 2,171,301

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements
* NOTE REQUIRED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF REVENUE, EXPENSES

 AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
For the Year Ended June 30



Kelsey School Division

2015 2014

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 796,129 618,965 

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 349,137 332,370 
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (3,196,852) (1,376,993)            
(Gain) / Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - - 
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - - 

(2,847,715) (1,044,623)            

Inventories (Increase)/Decrease - - 

Prepaid Expenses (Increase)/Decrease 5,951 (6,806) 
5,951 (6,806) 

(Increase)/Decrease in Net Debt (2,045,635) (432,464)               

Net Debt at Beginning of Year (16,233,618) (15,801,154)          

Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - - 

(16,233,618) (15,801,154)          

Net Debt at End of Year (18,279,253) (16,233,618)          

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015



Kelsey School Division

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014

 Operating Transactions

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 796,129 618,965 
Non-Cash Items Included in Current Year Surplus/(Deficit):

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 349,137 332,370 
(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - -
Employee Future Benefits Increase/(Decrease) 102,861 -

Due from Other Organizations (Increase)/Decrease 760,079 (885,926)              
Accounts Receivable & Accrued Income (Increase)/Decrease 25,088 (43,612)
Inventories and Prepaid Expenses - (Increase)/Decrease 5,951 (6,806)
Due to Other Organizations Increase/(Decrease) - -
Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities Increase/(Decrease) 431,973 22,178 
Deferred Revenue Increase/(Decrease) 245,174 (9,747)
School Generated Funds Liability  Increase/(Decrease) (3,237) 13,642 
Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Operating Transactions 2,713,155             41,064 

 Capital Transactions

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (3,196,852)           (1,376,993)           
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Capital Transactions (3,196,852)           (1,376,993)           

 Investing Transactions

Portfolio Investments (Increase)/Decrease - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Investing Transactions - -

 Financing Transactions
Debenture Debt Increase/(Decrease) 2,670,277             (306,198)              
Other Borrowings Increase/(Decrease) - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Financing Transactions 2,670,277             (306,198)              

 Cash and Bank / Overdraft (Increase)/Decrease 2,186,580             (1,642,127)           
 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at Beginning of Year (2,526,817)           (884,690)              

 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at End of Year (340,237)              (2,526,817)           



Kelsey School Division

SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
at June 30, 2015

Furniture / Computer Assets 2015 2014
School Other Fixtures & Hardware & Land Under TOTALS TOTALS

School Non-School Buses Vehicles Equipment Software * Land Improvements Construction

 Tangible Capital Asset Cost
 Opening Cost, as previously reported 16,823,946     303,458          946,813          104,393          496,323          146,490          196,213          - 13,908,282     32,925,918     31,548,925     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening Cost adjusted 16,823,946     303,458          946,813          104,393          496,323          146,490          196,213          - 13,908,282     32,925,918     31,548,925     

Add:
Additions during the year

Less:
Disposals and write downs

 Closing Cost 17,105,228     303,458          1,088,056       104,393          508,594          153,123          196,213          - 16,580,330     36,039,395     32,925,918     

 Accumulated Amortization
 Opening, as previously reported 12,933,775     303,458          768,914          89,971            325,560          121,459          - 14,543,137     14,210,767     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening adjusted 12,933,775     303,458          768,914          89,971            325,560          121,459          - 14,543,137     14,210,767     

Add:
Current period Amortization

Less:
Accumulated Amortization
on Disposals and Writedowns

 Closing Accumulated Amortization 13,151,554     303,458          755,237          94,091            375,557          129,002          - 14,808,899     14,543,137     

 Net Tangible Capital Asset 3,953,674       - 332,819          10,302            133,037          24,121            196,213          - 16,580,330     21,230,496     18,382,781     

 Proceeds from Disposal of Capital Assets - - - - - - - - 

* Includes network infrastructure.

- 69,698            7,543              

- 

3,196,852       

83,375            

349,137          

83,375            

- 2,672,048       

- - 

- 

Buildings and Leasehold 
Improvements

- 

49,997            

- 

- 224,618          - - 

- 83,375            

- 83,375            - - 

281,282          

- 

217,779          

- 

- - 

12,271            6,633              1,376,993       

- 

332,370          

- - 

4,120              



KELSEY SCHOOL DIVISION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2015

1. NATURE OF ORGANIZATION AND ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE

Kelsey School Division (Division) is a public body that provides education services to
residents within its geographic location.  The division is funded mainly by grants from the
Province of Manitoba (Province), and a special levy on the property assessment included
in the Division’s boundaries. The Division is exempt from income tax

The Division is economically dependent on the Province for the majority of its revenue and
capital financing requirements.  Without this funding, the Division would not be able to
continue its operations.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance
with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles established by PSAB of the
Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants.

a) Reporting Entity and Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses of the operating fund, capital fund, and special purpose fund of the
Division.  The Division reporting entity includes school generated funds controlled
by the Division.

All inter-fund accounts and transactions are eliminated upon consolidation.

b) Basis of Accounting

Revenues and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of accounting except
when the accruals cannot be determined with a reasonable degree of certainty or
when their estimation is impracticable.  The accrual basis of accounting recognizes
revenues as they are earned and measurable; expenses are recognized as they are
incurred and measurable as a result of the receipt of goods or services and the
creation of a legal obligation to pay.  Expenses also include the amortization of
tangible capital assets.

c) Fund Accounting

The fund method of accounting is employed by the Division to record financial
transactions in separate funds as defined by Financial Reporting and Accounting in
Manitoba Education (FRAME) in accordance with the purpose for which the funds
have been created.

The Operating Fund is maintained to record all the day to day operating revenues
and expenses.  The Capital Fund is used to account for the acquisition,
amortization, disposal and financing of capital assets.  The Special Purpose Fund
is used to account for school generated funds controlled by the Division.

d) School Generated Funds

School generated funds are moneys raised by the school, or under the auspices of
the school, through extra curricular activities for the sole use of the school that the
principal of each school, subject to the rules of the school board, may raise, hold,
administer and expend for the purposes of the school.

Only revenue and expenses of school generated funds controlled by the Division are
included in the Consolidated Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Accumulated
Surplus.   To be deemed as controlled, a school must have the unilateral authority
to make the decisions as to when, how and on what the funds are to be spent.

Period end cash balances of all school generated funds are included in the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.  The uncontrolled portion of this
amount is reflected in the School Generated Funds Liability account.  Examples of



KELSEY SCHOOL DIVISION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2015

uncontrolled school generated funds are parent council funds, other parent group
funds, student council funds and travel club funds.  Revenues and expenses of
uncontrolled school generated funds are not included in the consolidated financial
statements.

e) Tangible Capital Assets

Tangible capital assets are non-financial assets that are used by the Division to
provide services to the public and have an economic life beyond one fiscal year.
Tangible capital assets include land, buildings, buses, other vehicles, furniture and
equipment, computers, capital leases, leasehold improvements, and assets under
construction.

To be classified as tangible capital assets, each asset other than land must
individually meet the capitalization threshold for its class as prescribed by FRAME.

Capitalization
Asset Description Threshold Estimated Useful Life

($) (years)

Land improvements 25,000 10
Buildings - bricks, mortar and steel 25,000 40
Buildings - wood frame 25,000 25
School buses 20,000 10
Vehicles 10,000 5
Equipment 10,000 5
Network infrastructure 25,000 10
Computer Hardware, Servers & Peripherals 5,000 4
Computer Software 10,000 4
Furniture & Fixtures 5,000 10
Leasehold improvements 25,000 Over term of lease

Grouping of assets is not permitted except for computer work stations.

With the exception of land, donated capital assets and capital leases, all tangible
capital assets, are recorded at historical cost, which includes purchase price,
installation costs and other costs incurred to put the asset into service. 

Buildings are recorded at historical cost when known.  For buildings acquired prior
to June 30, 2005 where the actual cost was not known, the replacement value for
insurance purposes as at June 30, 2005 was regressed to the date of acquisition
using a regression index based on Southam and CanaData construction cost
indices.  

Capital leases are recorded at the present value of the minimum lease payments
excluding executory costs (e.g. insurance, maintenance costs, etc.).  The discount
rate used to determine the present value of the lease payments is the lower of the
Division’s rate for incremental borrowing or the interest rate implicit in the lease.   

Donated tangible capital assets are recorded at fair market value at the date of
donation.  Deferred revenue is recorded in an equivalent amount, for all donated
assets except land.  The deferred revenue will be recognized as revenue over the
useful life of the related asset, on the same basis that the asset is amortized.      

All land acquired prior to June 30, 2006 has been valued by the Crown Lands and
Property Agency.

All tangible capital assets, except for land, capital leases, and assets under
construction, are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives
as prescribed by FRAME.  Land is not amortized.  Capital leases with lease terms
that have a bargain purchase option or allow ownership to pass to the Division are
amortized over the useful life of the asset class.  All other capital leases are
amortized over the lesser of the lease term and the useful life of the asset class.  



KELSEY SCHOOL DIVISION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2015

One-half of the annual amortization is charged in the year of acquisition and in the
year of disposal if not fully amortized.  

Assets under construction are not amortized until the date of substantial completion. 
Interest on funds used to finance school buildings under construction is capitalized
for the periods preceding the date of substantial completion. 

f) Employee Future Benefits

The Province of Manitoba pays the employer portion of the Teachers’ Retirement
Allowances Fund (TRAF), the pension plan for all certified teachers of the Division.
The Division does not contribute to TRAF, and no costs relating to this plan are
included in the Division’s financial statements.

The Division adopted the following policy(ies) with respect to accounting for these
employee future benefits:

I) Defined contribution / insured benefit plans

Under these plans, specific fixed amounts are contributed by the
Division each period for services rendered by the employees. No
responsibility is assumed by the Division to make any further
contribution:

TRAF pension is determined by number of years of service and
salary.  Contributions are 6.8% of salary and 8.4% when you reach
your yearly maximum pensionable earnings amount.

The employee future benefits liability is the difference between the
contribution owing for the period and what has been paid; while the
employee future benefits expense is the Division’s fixed contribution
for the period.

For non-vesting accumulating sick days, the benefit costs are recognized, if deemed
material, based on a projection of expected future utilization of sick time discounted
using net present value techniques.

g) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.

h) Financial Instruments

There are no significant terms and conditions related to financial instruments (cash,
accounts receivable, investments, bank indebtedness, accounts payable and long-
term debt) that may affect the amount, timing and certainty of future cash flows.  The
Division is exposed to credit risk from the potential non-payment of accounts
receivable.  However, the majority of the receivables are from local, provincial and
federal governments, and therefore, the credit risk is minimal.  The carrying amounts
of the financial instruments approximate their carrying values, unless otherwise
noted.

3. OVERDRAFT

The Division has an authorized borrowing agreement with the Westoba Credit Union of
$3,000,000 by way of overdrafts and is repayable on demand at prime less .05%, interest
is paid monthly.  Overdrafts are secured by the assignment of all taxes levied or to be levied
by the School Division for the current year.

4. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS

Non-vested accumulated sick leave benefits are measured using net present value



KELSEY SCHOOL DIVISION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2015

techniques on the expected future utilization of excess sick benefits used over earned per
year, to a maximum entitlement.  The liability for employee future benefits for accumulated
non-vested sick leave recorded at June 30, 2015 is $102,861.  The calculated amount of
non-vested sick leave that was not considered material for inclusion in the financial
statement as at June 30, 2014 was $14,621.

5. DEFERRED REVENUE

The deferral method of accounting is used for revenues received that, pursuant to
legislation, regulation or agreement, may only be used for specific purposes. These
amounts are recognized as revenue in the fiscal year the related expenses are incurred or
services performed.  The following is a breakdown of the account balance:

Time Expired Transferred
Balance as at Additions Funding to Balance as at
June 30, 2014 in the period Lost Revenue June 30, 2015

Western Financial Group
     Insurance Solutions $ $      257,312  $ $ $       257,312 

Province of Manitoba          12,138              12,138  

  $         12,138    $      257,312    $      Nil           $           12,138    $         257,312  

6. SCHOOL GENERATED FUNDS LIABILITY

School Generated Funds Liability includes the non-controlled portion of school generated
funds consolidated in the cash and bank balances in the amount of $286,540 (2014 -
$313,627).

7. DEBENTURE DEBT

The debenture debt of the Division is in the form of twenty-year debentures payable,
principal and interest, in twenty equal yearly installments and maturing at various dates from
2014 to 2034.  Payment of principal and interest is funded entirely by grants from the
Province of Manitoba.  The debentures carry interest rates that range from 3.6% to 10%.
Debenture interest expense payable as at June 30, 2015 is accrued and recorded in
accrued interest payable and a grant in an amount equal to the interest accrued on
provincially funded debentures is recorded in due from provincial government.

The debenture principal and interest repayments in the next five years are:

Principal Interest Total
2016  $       850,303  $     776,818     $      1,627,121  
2017           890,609  746,721  1,637,330  
2018           905,006 707,171  1,612,177  
2019           930,608  667,691  1,598,299  
2020           962,997 627,284  1,590,281  

 $    4,539,523        $  3,525,685   $     8,065,208  

8. NET TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

The Schedule of Tangible Capital Assets (TCA), page 23 of the audited financial
statements, provides a breakdown of cost, accumulated amortization and net book value
by class.

Accumulated 2015 Net 2014 Net
Gross Amount Amortization Book Value Book Value
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Owned-tangible capital assets  $    36,039,395  $   14,808,899       $  21,230,496   $   18,382,781 

9. ACCUMULATED SURPLUS (DEFICIT)

The consolidated accumulated surplus is comprised of the following:

2015 2014
Operating Fund
     Designated Surplus $ -         $              -   
     Undesignated  Surplus 1,073,937             889,656

1,073,937             889,656     
Capital Fund
     Reserve Accounts -   -      
     Equity in Tangible Capital Assets 1,664,260   1,028,562     

1,664,260   1,028,562     
Special Purpose Fund
     School Generated Funds 229,233     253,083     
     Other Special Purpose Funds -   -      

229,233            253,083     
Total Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) $  2,967,430    $ 2,171,301     

10. MUNICIPAL GOVERNMENT - PROPERTY TAX AND RELATED DUE FROM MUNICIPAL
GOVERNMENT

Education property tax or Special Levy is raised as the Division’s contribution to the cost of
providing public education for the students resident in the division. The Municipal
Government-Property Tax shown on the consolidated revenue and expense is raised over
the two calendar (tax) years; 40% for 2014 and 60% for 2015.  Below are the related
revenue and receivable amounts:

2015     2014

Revenue-Municipal Government-Property Tax  $    3,284,987   $      3,166,369 

Receivable-Due from Municipal-Property Tax   $     1,833,985   $      2,602,454 

11. INTEREST RECEIVED AND PAID

The Division received interest during the year of $12,074 (previous year $8,940; interest
paid during the year was $767,316 (previous year $696,672).

Interest expense is included in Fiscal and is comprised of the following:

2015    2014       
Operating Fund
     Fiscal-short term loan, interest and bank charges  $         9,830    $          7,234 
Capital Fund
     Debenture debt
Interest 757,486   689,438 

     Other interest -   -     
 $     767,316   $      696,672 

The accrual portion of debenture debt interest expense of $397,844 (2014 - $321,000)
included under the capital fund - debenture debt interest is offset by an accrual of the debt
servicing grant from the Province of Manitoba.

Page 5 of  6
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12. EXPENSES BY OBJECT

Expenses in the consolidated statement of revenue, expenses and accumulated surplus are
reported by function as defined by FRAME.  Below is the detail of expenses by object:

Actual Budget Actual
2015 2015 2014

Salaries $ 15,273,952    $ 14,967,976   $ 15,146,531    
Employees benefits & allowances 1,373,485    1,456,681   1,385,582    
Services 1,462,426    1,679,720   1,413,581    
Supplies, materials & minor equipment 986,645    936,172   988,799    
Interest 767,316    30,000   696,672    
Bad debts

Payroll tax 330,359    333,000   328,035    
Amortization 349,137    332,370    
Other capital items 41,013    
School generated funds 410,669    429,145    
Transfers 16,646    17,500   19,477    

$ 20,970,635    $ 19,421,049  $ 20,781,205    

13. SIGNIFICANT EVENT

In October, 2014 a significant fire struck Mary Duncan School, a facility owned and operated
by the Division. Repairs to the facility are ongoing and the majority of the Division’s costs
will be covered by its insurance policy which has a $7,500 deductible.  At this time the
amount of the uninsured costs, if any, for which the Division will ultimately be responsible
is not determinable.  The Division has been able to make temporary arrangements to
substantially mitigate the operational impact of the loss of use of the facility.
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Lakeshore School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Financial Assets

Cash and Bank 615,877 - 
Due from  - Provincial Government 1,373,503 1,143,016 

 - Federal Government 24,489 26,269 
 - Municipal Government 2,000,130 2,272,175 
 - Other School Divisions 12,120 11,136 
 - First Nations 625,058 558,104 

Accounts Receivable 37,047 51,417 
Accrued Investment Income - - 
Portfolio Investments - - 

4,688,224 4,062,117

 Liabilities

3 Overdraft - 175,584 
Accounts Payable 494,684 455,435 
Accrued Liabilities 1,631,317 1,446,275 

4 Employee Future Benefits 189,552 132,603 
Accrued Interest Payable 261,633 280,087 
Due to  - Provincial Government - - 

 - Federal Government - - 
 - Municipal Government 11,998 13,485 
 - Other School Divisions - - 
 - First Nations - - 

5 Deferred Revenue 118,150 58,129 
6 Debenture Debt 11,014,991 11,758,634 

Other Borrowings - - 
School Generated Funds Liability - - 

13,722,325 14,320,232

 Net Debt (9,034,101) (10,258,115)

 Non-Financial Assets
7 Net Tangible Capital Assets (TCA Schedule) 13,577,291 14,140,884 

Inventories - - 
Prepaid Expenses 15,415 23,280 

13,592,706 14,164,164

8  Accumulated Surplus 4,558,605 3,906,049

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at June 30



Lakeshore School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Revenue

Provincial Government 13,497,724 13,321,561 
Federal Government - - 

9 Municipal Government - Property Tax 3,338,885 3,358,951 
- Other - - 

Other School Divisions 89,568 63,746 
First Nations 1,018,180 993,923 

Private Organizations and Individuals 215,669 176,674 
Other Sources 291,880 224,503 
School Generated Funds 366,132 361,095 
Other Special Purpose Funds 22,994 14,560 

18,841,032 18,515,013

 Expenses

Regular Instruction 8,621,011 8,547,464 
Student Support Services 2,639,498 2,779,292 
Adult Learning Centres 263,862 283,944 
Community Education and Services 277,672 271,801 
Divisional Administration 670,708 624,982 
Instructional and Other Support Services 495,936 457,074 
Transportation of Pupils 1,654,484 1,593,577 
Operations and Maintenance 1,417,946 1,465,326 

10 Fiscal - Interest 619,821 648,151 
- Other 251,655 252,930 

Amortization 890,348 902,168 
Other Capital Items - 48,734 
School Generated Funds 362,560 383,498 
Other Special Purpose Funds 22,975 9,991 

18,188,476 18,268,932

Current Year Surplus (Deficit) before Non-vested Sick Leave 652,556 246,081
Less: Non-vested Sick Leave Expense (Recovery) 0 0
Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 652,556 246,081

 Opening Accumulated Surplus 3,906,049 3,659,968 
 Adjustments: Tangible Cap. Assets and Accum. Amort. - - 

Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - - 
Non-vested sick leave - prior years - - 

 Opening Accumulated Surplus, as adjusted 3,906,049 3,659,968

 Closing Accumulated Surplus 4,558,605 3,906,049

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF REVENUE, EXPENSES

 AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
For the Year Ended June 30



Lakeshore School Division

2015 2014

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 652,556 246,081 

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 890,348 902,168 
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (326,755) (484,956)               
(Gain) / Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - - 
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - - 

563,593 417,212 

Inventories (Increase)/Decrease - - 

Prepaid Expenses (Increase)/Decrease 7,865 15,441 
7,865 15,441 

(Increase)/Decrease in Net Debt 1,224,014 678,734 

Net Debt at Beginning of Year (10,258,115) (10,936,849)          

Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - - 

(10,258,115) (10,936,849)          

Net Debt at End of Year (9,034,101) (10,258,115)          

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015



Lakeshore School Division

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014

 Operating Transactions

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 652,556 246,081 
Non-Cash Items Included in Current Year Surplus/(Deficit):

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 890,348 902,168 
(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - - 
Employee Future Benefits Increase/(Decrease) 56,949 60,708 

Due from Other Organizations (Increase)/Decrease (24,600) (431,000) 
Accounts Receivable & Accrued Income (Increase)/Decrease 14,370 22,798 
Inventories and Prepaid Expenses - (Increase)/Decrease 7,865 15,441 
Due to Other Organizations Increase/(Decrease) (1,487) (93) 
Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities Increase/(Decrease) 205,837 (659,406) 
Deferred Revenue Increase/(Decrease) 60,021 (89) 
School Generated Funds Liability  Increase/(Decrease) - - 
Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - - 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Operating Transactions 1,861,859             156,608 

 Capital Transactions

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (326,755) (484,956) 
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - - 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Capital Transactions (326,755) (484,956) 

 Investing Transactions

Portfolio Investments (Increase)/Decrease - - 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Investing Transactions - - 

 Financing Transactions
Debenture Debt Increase/(Decrease) (743,643) (250,539) 
Other Borrowings Increase/(Decrease) - - 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Financing Transactions (743,643) (250,539) 

 Cash and Bank / Overdraft (Increase)/Decrease 791,461 (578,887) 
 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at Beginning of Year (175,584) 403,303 

 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at End of Year 615,877 (175,584) 



Lakeshore School Division

SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
at June 30, 2015

Furniture / Computer Assets 2015 2014
School Other Fixtures & Hardware & Land Under TOTALS TOTALS

School Non-School Buses Vehicles Equipment Software * Land Improvements Construction

 Tangible Capital Asset Cost
 Opening Cost, as previously reported 23,363,123     498,069          3,242,399       25,738            1,175,027       - 50,115            - - 28,354,471     27,869,515     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening Cost adjusted 23,363,123     498,069          3,242,399       25,738            1,175,027       - 50,115            - - 28,354,471     27,869,515     

Add:
Additions during the year

Less:
Disposals and write downs

 Closing Cost 23,363,123     498,069          3,430,161       25,738            1,284,015       - 50,115            - 30,005            28,681,226     28,354,471     

 Accumulated Amortization
 Opening, as previously reported 10,786,635     489,014          2,285,716       25,738            626,484          - - 14,213,587     13,311,419     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening adjusted 10,786,635     489,014          2,285,716       25,738            626,484          - - 14,213,587     13,311,419     

Add:
Current period Amortization

Less:
Accumulated Amortization
on Disposals and Writedowns

 Closing Accumulated Amortization 11,317,933     490,407          2,484,113       25,738            785,744          - - 15,103,935     14,213,587     

 Net Tangible Capital Asset 12,045,190     7,662              946,048          - 498,271          - 50,115            - 30,005            13,577,291     14,140,884     

 Proceeds from Disposal of Capital Assets - - - - - - - - 

* Includes network infrastructure.

- 

- 

531,298          

- 

- - 

108,988          - 484,956          

- 

902,168          

- - 

- 

Buildings and Leasehold 
Improvements

- 

159,260          

- 

- 187,762          - - 

- - 

- - - - 

- 30,005            

- - 

- 

326,755          

- 

890,348          

- 

1,393              198,397          - 

- 
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Lord Selkirk School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Financial Assets

Cash and Bank - - 
Due from  - Provincial Government 2,996,334 6,395,249 

 - Federal Government 57,058 78,147 
 - Municipal Government 12,051,205 11,109,968 
 - Other School Divisions 30,672 39,925 
 - First Nations 304,414 450,513 

Accounts Receivable 123,406 175,939 
Accrued Investment Income - - 
Portfolio Investments - - 

15,563,089 18,249,741

 Liabilities

* Overdraft 2,509,233 6,899,904 
Accounts Payable 4,520,446 4,598,404 
Accrued Liabilities 4,057,126 3,135,447 

* Employee Future Benefits 245,713 290,294 
Accrued Interest Payable 591,167 546,748 
Due to  - Provincial Government 179,229 163,805 

 - Federal Government - - 
 - Municipal Government - - 
 - Other School Divisions - - 
 - First Nations - - 

* Deferred Revenue 935,354 439,532 
* Debenture Debt 27,620,448 24,519,423 

Other Borrowings - - 
School Generated Funds Liability 49,978 71,819 

40,708,694 40,665,376

 Net Debt (25,145,605) (22,415,635)

 Non-Financial Assets
* Net Tangible Capital Assets (TCA Schedule) 36,057,153 32,795,177 

Inventories 30,509 34,328 
Prepaid Expenses 52,817 72,680 

36,140,479 32,902,185

*  Accumulated Surplus 10,994,874 10,486,550

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at June 30



Lord Selkirk School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Revenue

Provincial Government 36,930,436 36,375,719 
Federal Government 19,997 -
Municipal Government - Property Tax 20,118,902 18,559,210 

- Other - -
Other School Divisions 191,400 191,700 
First Nations 493,831 440,411 

Private Organizations and Individuals 592,357 488,245 
Other Sources 278,772 307,212 
School Generated Funds 1,187,951 1,135,945 
Other Special Purpose Funds - -

59,813,646 57,498,442

 Expenses

Regular Instruction 31,437,840 30,441,284 
Student Support Services 9,010,382 9,077,563 
Adult Learning Centres 325,352 342,519 
Community Education and Services 506,447 373,178 
Divisional Administration 1,973,888 1,849,438 
Instructional and Other Support Services 1,476,843 1,436,340 
Transportation of Pupils 2,410,675 2,390,788 
Operations and Maintenance 6,335,805 5,629,201 

* Fiscal - Interest 1,344,437 1,174,540 
- Other 895,075 870,222 

Amortization 2,446,312 2,232,526 
Other Capital Items - 48,983 
School Generated Funds 1,186,847 1,154,521 
Other Special Purpose Funds - -

59,349,903 57,021,103

Current Year Surplus (Deficit) before Non-vested Sick Leave 463,743 477,339
Less: Non-vested Sick Leave Expense (Recovery) (44,581) 52,633
Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 508,324 424,706

 Opening Accumulated Surplus 10,486,550 10,061,844 
 Adjustments: Tangible Cap. Assets and Accum. Amort. - -

Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -
Non-vested sick leave - prior years - -

 Opening Accumulated Surplus, as adjusted 10,486,550 10,061,844

 Closing Accumulated Surplus 10,994,874 10,486,550

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements
* NOTE REQUIRED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF REVENUE, EXPENSES

 AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
For the Year Ended June 30



Lord Selkirk School Division

2015 2014

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 508,324 424,706 

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 2,446,312 2,232,526             
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (5,716,750) (8,004,584)            
(Gain) / Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (23,938) (26,200) 
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 32,400 26,200 

(3,261,976) (5,772,058)            

Inventories (Increase)/Decrease 3,819 (2,448) 

Prepaid Expenses (Increase)/Decrease 19,863 2,175 
23,682 (273) 

(Increase)/Decrease in Net Debt (2,729,970) (5,347,625)            

Net Debt at Beginning of Year (22,415,635) (17,068,010)          

Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - - 

(22,415,635) (17,068,010)          

Net Debt at End of Year (25,145,605) (22,415,635)          

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015



Lord Selkirk School Division

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014

 Operating Transactions

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 508,324 424,706 
Non-Cash Items Included in Current Year Surplus/(Deficit):

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 2,446,312             2,232,526             
(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (23,938) (26,200)
Employee Future Benefits Increase/(Decrease) (44,581) 52,633 

Due from Other Organizations (Increase)/Decrease 2,634,119             (4,534,275)           
Accounts Receivable & Accrued Income (Increase)/Decrease 52,533 (46,054)
Inventories and Prepaid Expenses - (Increase)/Decrease 23,682 (273)
Due to Other Organizations Increase/(Decrease) 15,424 3,695 
Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities Increase/(Decrease) 888,140 1,135,327             
Deferred Revenue Increase/(Decrease) 495,822 (704,657)              
School Generated Funds Liability  Increase/(Decrease) (21,841) (3,713)
Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Operating Transactions 6,973,996             (1,466,285)           

 Capital Transactions

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (5,716,750)           (8,004,584)           
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 32,400 26,200 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Capital Transactions (5,684,350)           (7,978,384)           

 Investing Transactions

Portfolio Investments (Increase)/Decrease - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Investing Transactions - -

 Financing Transactions
Debenture Debt Increase/(Decrease) 3,101,025             5,081,089             
Other Borrowings Increase/(Decrease) - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Financing Transactions 3,101,025             5,081,089             

 Cash and Bank / Overdraft (Increase)/Decrease 4,390,671             (4,363,580)           
 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at Beginning of Year (6,899,904)           (2,536,324)           

 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at End of Year (2,509,233)           (6,899,904)           



Lord Selkirk School Division

SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
at June 30, 2015

Furniture / Computer Assets 2015 2014
School Other Fixtures & Hardware & Land Under TOTALS TOTALS

School Non-School Buses Vehicles Equipment Software * Land Improvements Construction

 Tangible Capital Asset Cost
 Opening Cost, as previously reported 45,256,131     3,803,423       5,653,006       205,554          2,616,637       838,880          480,378          2,386,913       6,107,944       67,348,866     60,173,381     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening Cost adjusted 45,256,131     3,803,423       5,653,006       205,554          2,616,637       838,880          480,378          2,386,913       6,107,944       67,348,866     60,173,381     

Add:
Additions during the year

Less:
Disposals and write downs

 Closing Cost 53,310,957     5,703,320       5,763,201       223,501          2,715,376       1,343,237       480,378          2,562,630       389,116          72,491,716     67,348,866     

 Accumulated Amortization
 Opening, as previously reported 24,762,763     2,404,923       3,164,417       148,248          1,989,741       456,754          1,626,843       34,553,689     33,150,262     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening adjusted 24,762,763     2,404,923       3,164,417       148,248          1,989,741       456,754          1,626,843       34,553,689     33,150,262     

Add:
Current period Amortization

Less:
Accumulated Amortization
on Disposals and Writedowns

 Closing Accumulated Amortization 26,061,085     2,533,555       3,244,381       152,523          2,069,776       613,129          1,760,114       36,434,563     34,553,689     

 Net Tangible Capital Asset 27,249,872     3,169,765       2,518,820       70,978            645,600          730,108          480,378          802,516          389,116          36,057,153     32,795,177     

 Proceeds from Disposal of Capital Assets - - 31,157            1,243              - 32,400            26,200            

* Includes network infrastructure.

23
 

8,054,826       

- 

1,298,322       

- 

16,316            144,636          

243,375          504,357          8,004,584       

829,099          

2,232,526       

829,099          - 

20,591            

Buildings and Leasehold 
Improvements

- 

216,209          

- 

1,899,897       523,143          34,263            - 

- 412,948          

- 412,948          16,316            136,174          

175,717          (5,718,828)     

- - 

133,271          

5,716,750       

573,900          

2,446,312       

565,438          

128,632          492,912          156,375          

- 
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Louis Riel School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Financial Assets

Cash and Bank - - 
Due from  - Provincial Government 5,759,993 18,721,857 

 - Federal Government 335,550 324,394 
 - Municipal Government 32,807,088 30,721,482 
 - Other School Divisions 64,419 2,706 
 - First Nations 35,000 - 

Accounts Receivable 1,042,298 886,825 
Accrued Investment Income - - 
Portfolio Investments - - 

40,044,348 50,657,264

 Liabilities

* Overdraft 5,815,989 27,576,210 
Accounts Payable 13,179,913 11,513,735 
Accrued Liabilities 3,964,642 3,094,459 

* Employee Future Benefits 1,209,321 1,060,545 
Accrued Interest Payable 376,507 392,876 
Due to  - Provincial Government 10,430 26,123 

 - Federal Government 7,113 6,460 
 - Municipal Government - - 
 - Other School Divisions - - 
 - First Nations - - 

* Deferred Revenue 10,232,798 1,168,716 
* Debenture Debt 25,308,232 22,307,922 
* Other Borrowings 65,150 253,924 

School Generated Funds Liability 740,233 711,137 

60,910,328 68,112,107

 Net Debt (20,865,980) (17,454,843)

 Non-Financial Assets
* Net Tangible Capital Assets (TCA Schedule) 48,616,903 44,388,811 

Inventories 56,218 51,832 
Prepaid Expenses 773,647 617,679 

49,446,768 45,058,322

*  Accumulated Surplus 28,580,788 27,603,479

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at June 30



Louis Riel School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Revenue

Provincial Government 107,777,193  106,609,260  
Federal Government 245,179  178,434  
Municipal Government - Property Tax 54,822,614  51,270,517  

- Other -  -  
Other School Divisions 507,881  491,556  
First Nations 45,000  -  

Private Organizations and Individuals 3,657,523  3,001,405  
Other Sources 364,447  507,084  
School Generated Funds 2,304,168  2,358,068  
Other Special Purpose Funds -  -  

169,724,005 164,416,324

 Expenses

Regular Instruction 89,001,043  86,628,950  
Student Support Services 32,699,393  32,430,626  
Adult Learning Centres 1,250,607  -  
Community Education and Services 1,250,893  1,158,227  
Divisional Administration 5,723,036  5,026,042  
Instructional and Other Support Services 7,151,188  6,938,896  
Transportation of Pupils 3,855,472  3,332,892  
Operations and Maintenance 17,389,519  17,183,203  

* Fiscal - Interest 1,346,970  1,279,124  
- Other 2,672,960  2,618,708  

Amortization 3,814,447  3,762,044  
Other Capital Items -  -  
School Generated Funds 2,442,392  2,486,538  
Other Special Purpose Funds -  -  

168,597,920 162,845,250

Current Year Surplus (Deficit) before Non-vested Sick Leave 1,126,085 1,571,074
Less: Non-vested Sick Leave Expense (Recovery) 148,776 134,815
Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 977,309 1,436,259

 Opening Accumulated Surplus 27,603,479  26,167,220  
 Adjustments: Tangible Cap. Assets and Accum. Amort. -  -  

Other than Tangible Cap. Assets -  -  
Non-vested sick leave - prior years -  -  

 Opening Accumulated Surplus, as adjusted 27,603,479 26,167,220

 Closing Accumulated Surplus 28,580,788 27,603,479

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements
* NOTE REQUIRED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF REVENUE, EXPENSES

 AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
For the Year Ended June 30



Louis Riel School Division

2015 2014

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 977,309 1,436,259             

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 3,814,447 3,762,044             
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (8,045,090) (7,407,215)            
(Gain) / Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (15,247) - 
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 17,798 - 

(4,228,092) (3,645,171)            

Inventories (Increase)/Decrease (4,386) 355,970 

Prepaid Expenses (Increase)/Decrease (155,968) (63,669) 
(160,354) 292,301 

(Increase)/Decrease in Net Debt (3,411,137) (1,916,611)            

Net Debt at Beginning of Year (17,454,843) (15,538,232)          

Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - - 

(17,454,843) (15,538,232)          

Net Debt at End of Year (20,865,980) (17,454,843)          

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015



Louis Riel School Division

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014

 Operating Transactions

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 977,309 1,436,259             
Non-Cash Items Included in Current Year Surplus/(Deficit):

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 3,814,447             3,762,044             
(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (15,247) -
Employee Future Benefits Increase/(Decrease) 148,776 134,815 

Due from Other Organizations (Increase)/Decrease 10,768,389           (15,085,680)         
Accounts Receivable & Accrued Income (Increase)/Decrease (155,473)              (308,126)              
Inventories and Prepaid Expenses - (Increase)/Decrease (160,354)              292,301 
Due to Other Organizations Increase/(Decrease) (15,040) 24,917 
Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities Increase/(Decrease) 2,519,992             (793,700)              
Deferred Revenue Increase/(Decrease) 9,064,082             (8,117,513)           
School Generated Funds Liability  Increase/(Decrease) 29,096 (27,859)
Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Operating Transactions 26,975,977           (18,682,542)         

 Capital Transactions

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (8,045,090)           (7,407,215)           
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 17,798 -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Capital Transactions (8,027,292)           (7,407,215)           

 Investing Transactions

Portfolio Investments (Increase)/Decrease - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Investing Transactions - -

 Financing Transactions
Debenture Debt Increase/(Decrease) 3,000,310             1,939,198             
Other Borrowings Increase/(Decrease) (188,774)              (232,773)              

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Financing Transactions 2,811,536             1,706,425             

 Cash and Bank / Overdraft (Increase)/Decrease 21,760,221           (24,383,332)         
 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at Beginning of Year (27,576,210)         (3,192,878)           

 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at End of Year (5,815,989)           (27,576,210)         



Louis Riel School Division
SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

at June 30, 2015

Furniture / Computer Assets 2015 2014
School Other Fixtures & Hardware & Land Under TOTALS TOTALS

School Non-School Buses Vehicles Equipment Software * Land Improvements Construction

 Tangible Capital Asset Cost
 Opening Cost, as previously reported 103,468,717   3,342,617       2,701,223       247,322          3,423,774       5,937,108       5,099,286       309,405          5,404,849       129,934,301   122,527,086   

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening Cost adjusted 103,468,717   3,342,617       2,701,223       247,322          3,423,774       5,937,108       5,099,286       309,405          5,404,849       129,934,301   122,527,086   

Add:
Additions during the year

Less:
Disposals and write downs

 Closing Cost 111,984,324   3,342,617       3,063,810       293,291          3,665,678       6,377,149       5,099,286       309,405          3,818,319       137,953,879   129,934,301   

 Accumulated Amortization
 Opening, as previously reported 75,995,963     2,822,458       1,375,831       223,111          2,423,057       2,503,954       201,116          85,545,490     81,783,446     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening adjusted 75,995,963     2,822,458       1,375,831       223,111          2,423,057       2,503,954       201,116          85,545,490     81,783,446     

Add:
Current period Amortization

Less:
Accumulated Amortization
on Disposals and Writedowns

 Closing Accumulated Amortization 78,336,599     2,902,482       1,609,397       224,072          2,694,142       3,338,227       232,057          89,336,976     85,545,490     

 Net Tangible Capital Asset 33,647,725     440,135          1,454,413       69,219            971,536          3,038,922       5,099,286       77,348            3,818,319       48,616,903     44,388,811     

 Proceeds from Disposal of Capital Assets - - - 17,798            - - 17,798            - 

* Includes network infrastructure.

8,515,607       

- 

2,340,636       

- 

25,512            - 

241,904          440,041          7,407,215       

- 

3,762,044       

- - 

23,922            

Buildings and Leasehold 
Improvements

- 

271,085          

- 

- 362,587          71,481            

- - 

- - 22,961            - 

(1,586,530)      

- - 

30,941            

8,045,090       

25,512            

3,814,447       

22,961            

80,024            233,566          834,273          

- 





























Original Document Signed Original Document Signed  



Original Document Signed  



Manitoba Institute of Trades and Technology

Notes 2015 2014

 Financial Assets

Cash and Bank 2,842,823 1,332,719 
Due from  - Provincial Government 419,044 439,349 

 - Federal Government 1,078,895 1,169,623 
 - Municipal Government - - 
 - Other School Divisions 158,310 71,614 
 - First Nations - - 

Accounts Receivable 979,016 774,419 
Accrued Investment Income - - 

* Portfolio Investments 4,151,199 4,069,000 

9,629,287 7,856,724

 Liabilities

Overdraft - - 
Accounts Payable 1,083,335 1,614,367 
Accrued Liabilities 894,090 365,651 

* Employee Future Benefits 471,007 692,492 
Accrued Interest Payable 33,221 36,843 
Due to  - Provincial Government 3,602 176,413 

 - Federal Government - 4,737 
 - Municipal Government - - 
 - Other School Divisions - - 
 - First Nations - - 

* Deferred Revenue 4,958,632 3,004,592 
* Debenture Debt 3,968,517 4,212,595 
* Other Borrowings 136,850 17,481 

School Generated Funds Liability - - 

11,549,254 10,125,171

 Net Debt (1,919,967) (2,268,447)

 Non-Financial Assets
* Net Tangible Capital Assets (TCA Schedule) 10,757,252 9,431,509 

Inventories - - 
Prepaid Expenses 266,189 253,967 

11,023,441 9,685,476

*  Accumulated Surplus 9,103,474 7,417,029

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at June 30



Manitoba Institute of Trades and Technology

Notes 2015 2014

 Revenue

Provincial Government 9,092,950 8,795,783 
Federal Government 5,021,559 3,788,765 
Municipal Government - Property Tax - -

- Other - -
Other School Divisions 1,454,603 1,440,831 
First Nations - -

Private Organizations and Individuals 9,642,791 7,151,129 
Other Sources 189,015 171,738 
School Generated Funds - -
Other Special Purpose Funds 59,200 8,801 

25,460,118 21,357,047

 Expenses

Regular Instruction 5,182,885 4,643,142 
Student Support Services 532,308 592,997 
Adult Learning Centres 3,205,730 3,265,102 
Community Education and Services 7,648,807 7,041,952 
Divisional Administration 3,176,678 2,233,534 
Instructional and Other Support Services 250,937 263,538 
Transportation of Pupils - -
Operations and Maintenance 2,448,477 1,920,797 

* Fiscal - Interest 299,229 276,243 
- Other 179,106 125,345 

Amortization 812,789 613,774 
Other Capital Items - -
School Generated Funds - -
Other Special Purpose Funds 10,676 7,620 

23,747,622 20,984,044

Current Year Surplus (Deficit) before Non-vested Sick Leave 1,712,496 373,003
Less: Non-vested Sick Leave Expense (Recovery) 26,051 0
Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 1,686,445 373,003

 Opening Accumulated Surplus 7,417,029 7,044,026 
 Adjustments: Tangible Cap. Assets and Accum. Amort. - -

Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -
Non-vested sick leave - prior years - -

 Opening Accumulated Surplus, as adjusted 7,417,029 7,044,026

 Closing Accumulated Surplus 9,103,474 7,417,029

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements
* NOTE REQUIRED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF REVENUE, EXPENSES

 AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
For the Year Ended June 30



Manitoba Institute of Trades and Technology

2015 2014

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 1,686,445 373,003 

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 812,789 613,774 
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (2,138,532) (1,108,521)            
(Gain) / Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - - 
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - - 

(1,325,743) (494,747)               

Inventories (Increase)/Decrease - - 

Prepaid Expenses (Increase)/Decrease (12,222) (18,696) 
(12,222) (18,696) 

(Increase)/Decrease in Net Debt 348,480 (140,440)               

Net Debt at Beginning of Year (2,268,447) (2,128,007)            

Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - - 

(2,268,447) (2,128,007)            

Net Debt at End of Year (1,919,967) (2,268,447)            

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015



Manitoba Institute of Trades and Technology

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014

 Operating Transactions

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 1,686,445             373,003 
Non-Cash Items Included in Current Year Surplus/(Deficit):

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 812,789 613,774 
(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - -
Employee Future Benefits Increase/(Decrease) (221,485)              55,167 

Due from Other Organizations (Increase)/Decrease 24,337 85,373 
Accounts Receivable & Accrued Income (Increase)/Decrease (204,597)              (172,810)              
Inventories and Prepaid Expenses - (Increase)/Decrease (12,222) (18,696)
Due to Other Organizations Increase/(Decrease) (177,548)              172,231 
Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities Increase/(Decrease) (6,215) 1,221,624             
Deferred Revenue Increase/(Decrease) 1,954,040             1,516,461             
School Generated Funds Liability  Increase/(Decrease) - -
Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Operating Transactions 3,855,544             3,846,127             

 Capital Transactions

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (2,138,532)           (1,108,521)           
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Capital Transactions (2,138,532)           (1,108,521)           

 Investing Transactions

Portfolio Investments (Increase)/Decrease (82,199) (1,081,542)           

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Investing Transactions (82,199) (1,081,542)           

 Financing Transactions
Debenture Debt Increase/(Decrease) (244,078)              (232,343)              
Other Borrowings Increase/(Decrease) 119,369 (28,275)

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Financing Transactions (124,709)              (260,618)              

 Cash and Bank / Overdraft (Increase)/Decrease 1,510,104             1,395,446             
 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at Beginning of Year 1,332,719             (62,727)

 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at End of Year 2,842,823             1,332,719             



Manitoba Institute of Trades and Technology

SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
at June 30, 2015

Furniture / Computer Assets 2015 2014
School Other Fixtures & Hardware & Land Under TOTALS TOTALS

School Non-School Buses Vehicles Equipment Software * Land Improvements Construction

 Tangible Capital Asset Cost
 Opening Cost, as previously reported 13,018,194     - - 16,356            441,715          1,322,611       899,310          - 713,559          16,411,745     15,303,224     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening Cost adjusted 13,018,194     - - 16,356            441,715          1,322,611       899,310          - 713,559          16,411,745     15,303,224     

Add:
Additions during the year

Less:
Disposals and write downs

 Closing Cost 13,870,305     - - 16,356            1,548,006       1,401,296       899,310          - 815,004          18,550,277     16,411,745     

 Accumulated Amortization
 Opening, as previously reported 6,341,460       - - 13,630            370,486          254,660          - 6,980,236       6,366,462       

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening adjusted 6,341,460       - - 13,630            370,486          254,660          - 6,980,236       6,366,462       

Add:
Current period Amortization

Less:
Accumulated Amortization
on Disposals and Writedowns

 Closing Accumulated Amortization 6,799,418       - - 16,356            466,534          510,717          - 7,793,025       6,980,236       

 Net Tangible Capital Asset 7,070,887       - - - 1,081,472       890,579          899,310          - 815,004          10,757,252     9,431,509       

 Proceeds from Disposal of Capital Assets - - - - - - - - 

* Includes network infrastructure.

852,111          

- 

457,958          

- 

- - 

1,106,291       78,685            1,108,521       

- 

613,774          

- - 

2,726              

Buildings and Leasehold 
Improvements

- 

96,048            

- 

- - - - 

- - 

- - - - 

- 101,445          

- - 

- 

2,138,532       

- 

812,789          

- 

- - 256,057          

- 
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Mountain View School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Financial Assets

Cash and Bank - - 
Due from  - Provincial Government 1,364,363 3,348,178 

 - Federal Government 59,150 59,887 
 - Municipal Government 6,331,655 6,115,006 
 - Other School Divisions 109,008 157,769 
 - First Nations 40,696 161,969 

Accounts Receivable 150,018 127,498 
Accrued Investment Income - - 

4 Portfolio Investments 39,567 39,549 

8,094,457 10,009,856

 Liabilities

5 Overdraft 3,580,643 7,867,010 
Accounts Payable 2,502,718 1,722,467 
Accrued Liabilities 2,108,104 1,776,094 

6 Employee Future Benefits 448,370 412,480 
Accrued Interest Payable 359,203 383,677 
Due to  - Provincial Government - - 

 - Federal Government - - 
 - Municipal Government - - 
 - Other School Divisions - - 
 - First Nations - - 

7 Deferred Revenue 139,059 89,479 
9 Debenture Debt 16,799,903 16,936,553 

10 Other Borrowings 3,957,472 1,869,988 
School Generated Funds Liability 30,165 5,778 

29,925,637 31,063,526

 Net Debt (21,831,180) (21,053,670)

 Non-Financial Assets
11 Net Tangible Capital Assets (TCA Schedule) 24,518,752 23,124,476 

Inventories 415,314 541,672 
Prepaid Expenses 1,789,947 2,123,349 

26,724,013 25,789,497

12  Accumulated Surplus 4,892,833 4,735,827

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at June 30



Mountain View School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Revenue

Provincial Government 28,769,998  28,314,479  
Federal Government 20,245  497,222  
Municipal Government - Property Tax 10,431,053  9,963,001  

- Other -  -  
Other School Divisions 433,820  503,197  
First Nations 867,615  275,314  

Private Organizations and Individuals 678,061  652,453  
Other Sources 269,311  124,463  
School Generated Funds 912,566  783,018  
Other Special Purpose Funds -  -  

42,382,669 41,113,147

 Expenses

Regular Instruction 21,957,752  21,135,228  
Student Support Services 5,313,020  5,386,101  
Adult Learning Centres -  -  
Community Education and Services 102,146  95,495  
Divisional Administration 1,362,464  1,199,383  
Instructional and Other Support Services 1,198,921  1,247,756  
Transportation of Pupils 3,258,166  3,095,633  
Operations and Maintenance 4,971,667  4,720,240  

14 Fiscal - Interest 979,184  954,039  
- Other 592,834  584,230  

Amortization 1,613,551  1,406,248  
Other Capital Items -  -  
School Generated Funds 847,367  782,066  
Other Special Purpose Funds -  -  

42,197,072 40,606,419

Current Year Surplus (Deficit) before Non-vested Sick Leave 185,597 506,728
Less: Non-vested Sick Leave Expense (Recovery) 28,591 (31,357)
Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 157,006 538,085

 Opening Accumulated Surplus 4,735,827  4,197,742  
 Adjustments: Tangible Cap. Assets and Accum. Amort. -  -  

Other than Tangible Cap. Assets -  -  
Non-vested sick leave - prior years -  -  

 Opening Accumulated Surplus, as adjusted 4,735,827 4,197,742

 Closing Accumulated Surplus 4,892,833 4,735,827

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF REVENUE, EXPENSES

 AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
For the Year Ended June 30



Mountain View School Division

2015 2014

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 157,006 538,085 

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 1,613,551 1,406,248             
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (3,018,774) (3,588,150)            
(Gain) / Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (22,558) (36,461) 
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 33,505 40,366 

(1,394,276) (2,177,997)            

Inventories (Increase)/Decrease 126,358 49,882 

Prepaid Expenses (Increase)/Decrease 333,402 168,050 
459,760 217,932 

(Increase)/Decrease in Net Debt (777,510) (1,421,980)            

Net Debt at Beginning of Year (21,053,670) (19,631,690)          

Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - - 

(21,053,670) (19,631,690)          

Net Debt at End of Year (21,831,180) (21,053,670)          

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015



Mountain View School Division

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014

 Operating Transactions

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 157,006 538,085 
Non-Cash Items Included in Current Year Surplus/(Deficit):

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 1,613,551             1,406,248             
(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (22,558) (36,461)
Employee Future Benefits Increase/(Decrease) 35,890 (14,023)

Due from Other Organizations (Increase)/Decrease 1,937,937             (2,263,173)           
Accounts Receivable & Accrued Income (Increase)/Decrease (22,520) (11,276)
Inventories and Prepaid Expenses - (Increase)/Decrease 459,760 217,932 
Due to Other Organizations Increase/(Decrease) - -
Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities Increase/(Decrease) 1,087,787             470,964 
Deferred Revenue Increase/(Decrease) 49,580 (739,270)              
School Generated Funds Liability  Increase/(Decrease) 24,387 (7,935)
Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Operating Transactions 5,320,820             (438,909)              

 Capital Transactions

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (3,018,774)           (3,588,150)           
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 33,505 40,366 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Capital Transactions (2,985,269)           (3,547,784)           

 Investing Transactions

Portfolio Investments (Increase)/Decrease (18) 669 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Investing Transactions (18) 669 

 Financing Transactions
Debenture Debt Increase/(Decrease) (136,650)              1,200,688             
Other Borrowings Increase/(Decrease) 2,087,484             (220,008)              

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Financing Transactions 1,950,834             980,680 

 Cash and Bank / Overdraft (Increase)/Decrease 4,286,367             (3,005,344)           
 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at Beginning of Year (7,867,010)           (4,861,666)           

 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at End of Year (3,580,643)           (7,867,010)           



Mountain View School Division
SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

at June 30, 2015

Furniture / Computer Assets 2015 2014
School Other Fixtures & Hardware & Land Under TOTALS TOTALS

School Non-School Buses Vehicles Equipment Software * Land Improvements Construction

 Tangible Capital Asset Cost
 Opening Cost, as previously reported 41,483,757     2,626,963       5,564,269       543,651          2,332,382       347,103          570,392          276,659          4,313,572       58,058,748     54,975,402     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening Cost adjusted 41,483,757     2,626,963       5,564,269       543,651          2,332,382       347,103          570,392          276,659          4,313,572       58,058,748     54,975,402     

Add:
Additions during the year

Less:
Disposals and write downs

 Closing Cost 44,630,608     4,900,466       5,483,139       555,162          2,434,620       347,103          570,392          276,659          1,314,476       60,512,625     58,058,748     

 Accumulated Amortization
 Opening, as previously reported 27,185,764     1,079,946       3,719,134       373,368          2,242,600       255,869          77,591            34,934,272     34,028,923     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening adjusted 27,185,764     1,079,946       3,719,134       373,368          2,242,600       255,869          77,591            34,934,272     34,028,923     

Add:
Current period Amortization

Less:
Accumulated Amortization
on Disposals and Writedowns

 Closing Accumulated Amortization 28,093,209     1,286,097       3,583,689       379,904          2,266,281       281,936          102,757          35,993,873     34,934,272     

 Net Tangible Capital Asset 16,537,399     3,614,369       1,899,450       175,258          168,339          65,167            570,392          173,902          1,314,476       24,518,752     23,124,476     

 Proceeds from Disposal of Capital Assets - - 6,400              27,105            - - 33,505            40,366            

* Includes network infrastructure.

206,151          367,950          26,067            

- 

3,018,774       

564,897          

1,613,551       

553,950          

- (2,999,096)      

- - 

25,166            

Buildings and Leasehold 
Improvements

- 

23,681            

- 

2,273,503       422,265          73,013            - 

- 503,395          

- 503,395          50,555            - 

3,146,851       

- 

907,445          

- 

61,502            - 

102,238          - 3,588,150       

504,804          

1,406,248       

500,899          - 

57,091            



MOUNTAIN VIEW SCHOOL DIVISION 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2015 

1. Nature of Organization and Economic Dependence

The School Division (Division) is a public body that provides education services to 

residents within its geographic location.  The division is funded mainly by grants from 

the Province of Manitoba (Province), and a special levy on the property assessment 

included in the Division’s boundaries. The Division is exempt from income tax and is a 

registered charity under the Income Tax Act. 

The Division is economically dependent on the Province for the majority of its revenue 

and capital financing requirements.  Without this funding, the Division would not be able 

to continue its operations. 

2. Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance 

with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles established by PSAB of the 

Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (CICA).   

a) Reporting Entity and Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenues and 

expenses of the operating fund, capital fund, and special purpose fund of the Division.  

The Division reporting entity includes school generated funds. 

All inter-fund accounts and transactions are eliminated upon consolidation. 

b) Trust funds

The Division administers various trust funds.  Trust funds and their related operations 

are not included in the consolidated financial statements as they are not owned or 

controlled by the Division.  A schedule of trust funds is attached as part of the notes 

to the consolidated financial statements.  

Trust funds, under PSAB are properties assigned to a trustee (school division) under a 

trust agreement or statute; the trustee merely administers the terms and conditions 

embodied in the agreement, and it has no unilateral authority to change the conditions 

set out in the trust indenture.     



c) Basis of Accounting

Revenues and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of accounting except when 

the accruals cannot be determined with a reasonable degree of certainty or when their 

estimation is impracticable.  The accrual basis of accounting recognizes revenues as 

they are earned and measurable; expenses are recognized as they are incurred and 

measurable as a result of the receipt of goods or services and the creation of a legal 

obligation to pay.  Expenses also include the amortization of tangible capital assets. 

d) Fund Accounting

The fund method of accounting is employed by the Division to record financial 

transactions in separate funds as defined by Financial Reporting and Accounting in 

Manitoba Education (FRAME) in accordance with the purpose for which the funds 

have been created.   

The Operating Fund is maintained to record all the day to day operating revenues and 

expenses.  The Capital Fund is used to account for the acquisition, amortization, 

disposal and financing of capital assets.  The Special Purpose Fund is used to account 

for school generated funds and charitable foundations controlled by the Division. 

e) School Generated Funds

School generated funds are moneys raised by the school, or under the auspices of the 

school, through extra curricular activities for the sole use of the school that the 

principal of each school, subject to the rules of the school board, may raise, hold, 

administer and expend for the purposes of the school.   

Only revenue and expenses of school generated funds controlled by the Division are 

included in the Consolidated Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Accumulated 

Surplus.   To be deemed as controlled, a school must have the unilateral authority to 

make the decisions as to when, how and on what the funds are to be spent. 

Period end cash balances of all school generated funds are included in the 

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.  The uncontrolled portion of this 

amount is reflected in the School Generated Funds Liability account.  Examples of 

uncontrolled school generated funds are parent council funds, other parent group 

funds, student council funds and travel club funds.  Revenues and expenses of 

uncontrolled school generated funds are not included in the consolidated financial 

statements.  



f) Tangible Capital Assets

Tangible capital assets are non-financial assets that are used by the Division to 

provide services to the public and have an economic life beyond one fiscal year.  

Tangible capital assets include land, buildings, buses, other vehicles, furniture and 

equipment, computers, capital leases, leasehold improvements, and assets under 

construction.   

To be classified as tangible capital assets, each asset other than land must individually 

meet the capitalization threshold for its class as prescribed by FRAME.   

Asset Description Capitalization 
Threshold 

Estimated 
Useful Life 

Land N/A N/A 

Land Improvements 25,000 10 years 

Buildings - bricks, mortar and 
steel 

$25,000 40 years 

Buildings - wood frame $25,000 25 years 

School buses $20,000 10 years 

Vehicles $10,000 5 years 

Equipment $10,000 5 years 

Network Infrastructure $25,000 10 years 

Computer Hardware, Servers & 
Peripherals  

$5,000 4 years 

Computer Software  $10,000 4 years 

 Furniture & Fixtures $5,000 10 years 

Leasehold Improvements $25,000 Over term of 
lease 

Grouping of assets is not permitted except for computer work stations. 

With the exception of land, donated capital assets and capital leases, all tangible 

capital assets, are recorded at historical cost, which includes purchase price, 

installation costs and other costs incurred to put the asset into service.  

Buildings are recorded at historical cost when known.  For buildings acquired prior to 

June 30, 2005 where the actual cost was not known, the replacement value for 

insurance purposes as at June 30, 2005 was regressed to the date of acquisition using 

a regression index based on Southam and CanaData construction cost indices.   



Capital leases are recorded at the present value of the minimum lease payments 

excluding executory costs (e.g. insurance, maintenance costs, etc.).  The discount rate 

used to determine the present value of the lease payments is the lower of the 

Division’s rate for incremental borrowing or the interest rate implicit in the lease.      

Donated tangible capital assets are recorded at fair market value at the date of 

donation.  Deferred revenue is recorded in an equivalent amount, for all donated 

assets except land.  The deferred revenue will be recognized as revenue over the 

useful life of the related asset, on the same basis that the asset is amortized.      

All land acquired prior to June 30, 2006 has been valued by the Crown Lands and 

Property Agency. 

All tangible capital assets, except for land, capital leases, and assets under 

construction, are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as 

prescribed by FRAME.  Land is not amortized.  Capital leases with lease terms that 

have a bargain purchase option or allow ownership to pass to the Division are 

amortized over the useful life of the asset class.  All other capital leases are amortized 

over the lesser of the lease term and the useful life of the asset class.   

One-half of the annual amortization is charged in the year of acquisition and in the 

year of disposal if not fully amortized.   

Assets under construction are not amortized until the date of substantial completion.  

Interest on funds used to finance school buildings under construction is capitalized for 

the periods preceding the date of substantial completion.  

g) Employee Future Benefits

The Province of Manitoba pays the employer portion of the Teachers’ Retirement 

Allowances Fund (TRAF), the pension plan for all certified teachers of the Division.  

The Division does not contribute to TRAF, and no costs relating to this plan are 

included in the Division’s financial statements.  

The Division provides retirement benefits to its non-teaching employees.  The 

Division adopted the following policy with respect to accounting for these employee 

future benefits: 

(i) Defined contribution/ insured benefit plans 

Under these plans, specific fixed amounts are contributed by the Division each 

period for services rendered by the employees.  

For non-vesting accumulating sick days, the benefit costs are recognized, if deemed 

material, based on a projection of expected future utilization of sick time, discounted 

using net present value techniques. 



h) Capital Reserve

Certain amounts, as approved by the Board of Trustees and the Public Schools 

Finance Board (PSFB), have been set aside in reserve accounts for future capital 

purposes.  These Capital Reserve accounts are internally restricted funds that form 

part of the Accumulated Surplus presented in the Consolidated Statement of Financial 

Position.   

i) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 

accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 

affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent 

assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts 

of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.   

j) Financial instruments

There are no significant terms and conditions related to financial instruments (cash, 

accounts receivable, investments, bank indebtedness, accounts payable and long-term 

debt) that may affect the amount, timing and certainty of future cash flows.  The 

Division is exposed to credit risk from the potential non-payment of accounts 

receivable.  However, the majority of the receivables are from local, provincial and 

federal governments, and therefore, the credit risk is minimal.  The carrying amounts 

of the financial instruments approximate their carrying values, unless otherwise 

noted.   

3. Conversion to PSAB

Commencing with the 2006/07 fiscal year, the Board has adopted generally accepted 

accounting principles established by PSAB. 

The following changes have been implemented to comply with the PSAB standard: 

(i) Tangible capital assets were restated and amortized over their useful lives to 

reflect net book value. Amortization of tangible capital assets and gain or loss 

on disposal of capital assets are recorded in the Statement of Revenue, 

Expenses and Accumulated Surplus. 

(ii) The Operating Fund, Capital Fund and Special Purpose Fund are consolidated 

in the financial statements.  The Special Purpose Fund was created to include 

school generated funds and charitable foundations controlled by the Division.  

(iii)The Employee Future Benefits Liability was established to account for the 

Division’s commitment to pay vested future benefits to its employees.  



(iv)Accrued Interest Payable was established to account for accrual of interest on 

Debenture Debt and Other Borrowings from the last payment date.  An equal 

amount is set up as due from the Province to offset the accrued interest 

payable on debenture.  

4. Other Investments

Other investments consist mainly of long-term guaranteed investment certificates and 

credit union surplus shares. 

5. Overdraft

The Division has an authorized line of credit with the Royal Bank of Canada in the 

amount of $12,500,000 by way of overdrafts and is repayable on demand.  Interest is paid 

monthly at prime less .75%. 

6. Employee Future Benefits

Employee future benefits are benefits earned by employees in the current period, but will 

not be paid out until future periods.  The employee future benefit is the annual vacation 

earned by the twelve month non-teaching employees during the fiscal year.  Typically 

this earned vacation entitlement is taken in the subsequent fiscal year.   

Non-vested accumulated sick leave benefits are measured using net present value 

techniques on the expected future utilization of excess of sick benefits used over earned 

per year, to maximum entitlement.  The impact of the estimated non-vested sick leave 

benefit cost for 2014-2015 is an increase of the liability in the amount of $28,591. 



The Division sponsors a defined contribution and defined benefits plan.   The defined 

contribution plan is provided to non-teaching staff through MAST Pension Plan.  Eligible 

employees contributed a percentage of their regular salary or wage.  The percentage 

varies according to the age of the employee.  The Division contributions equal the 

employee contributions to the plan.  No pension liability is included in the financial 

statements other than late payment interest owing for the period.   

Long term disability benefits are covered by a defined contribution/ insured plan.  The 

costs of salary compensation paid to employees on long-term disability leave are fully 

insured and are not included in the financial statements. 

Supplemental unemployment benefits are defined benefits that are recognized and 

recorded only in the period when the events occur (e.g. maternity top up).   

7. Deferred Revenue

The deferral method of accounting is used for revenues received that, pursuant to 

legislation, regulation or agreement, may only be used for specific purposes. These 

amounts are recognized as revenue in the fiscal year the related expenses are incurred or 

services performed.  The following is a breakdown of the account balance: 

Revenue 

Balance as at Additions recognized Balance as at 

June 30, 2014 in the period in the period June 30, 2015 

Property Tax Credit  -  30,790  -  30,790 

International Education Revenue  20,070  12,270  20,070  12,270 

Playground donations  69,409  36,249  9,659  95,999 

 $  89,479  $  79,309  $  29,729  $  139,059 



8. School Generated Funds Liability

School Generated Funds Liability includes the non-controlled portion of school generated 

funds consolidated in the cash and bank balances in the amount of $30,165. 

2015 

Parent council funds  $  - 

Other parent group funds  - 

Students council funds  30,165 

Travel club funds  - 

$ 30,165 

As a transition measure in the implementation of the new accounting policies, school 

generated funds revenue and expenses reported in the Consolidated Statement of 

Revenue, Expenses and Accumulated Surplus as at June 30, 2015 covers a period of 

twelve months from April 1, 2014 to March 31, 2015.  

9. Debenture Debt

The debenture debt of the Division is in the form of twenty-year debentures payable, 

principal and interest, in twenty equal yearly installments and maturing at various dates 

from 2016 to 2035.  Payment of principal and interest is funded entirely by grants from 

the Province of Manitoba, except for the debenture debt on self-funded capital projects.  

The debentures carry interest rates that range from 3.375% to 10.00%.     The debenture 

principal and interest repayments in the next five years are: 



10. Other Borrowings

Other borrowings are debts other than overdrafts or debentures: 

On May 8, 2012 Mountain View School Division entered into a loan agreement for 

$2,200,000 with the Royal Bank of Canada to finance the broadband internet project.  

The funds were advanced December 17, 2012.  The term of the loan is 120 equal 

principal payments of $18,334 plus interest at a rate of prime minus 0.75%. 

On December 4, 2014 Mountain View School Division entered into a loan agreement for 

$2,400,000 with the Royal Bank of Canada to finance the telecom and fire alarm projects.  

The term of the loan is 144 fixed payments of $19,587 with an interest rate of prime 

minus 0.75%. 

2014 2015

Connectivity Loan 1,869,988$    1,649,980$     

Telecom/Fire alarm 2,307,492$     

1,869,988$    3,957,472$     

Future payments

Principal

2016 411,764$   

2017 415,537$   

2018 419,384$   

2019 423,306$   

2020 427,306$   

Until Maturity 1,860,175$   

3,957,472$   



11. Net Tangible Capital Assets

The Schedule of Tangible Capital Assets (TCA), page 23 of the audited financial 

statements, provides a breakdown of cost, accumulated amortization and net book value 

by class.  The amount of interest capitalized in the period included in Assets under 

Construction was $0 (previous year $0).   

Accumulated 2015 Net 

Gross Amount Amortization Book Value 

Owned-tangible capital assets  $  60,512,625  $  35,993,873  $  24,518,752 

Capital lease  -  - 

 $  60,512,625  $  35,993,873  $  24,518,752 

12. Accumulated Surplus

The consolidated accumulated surplus is comprised of the following: 

2015 

Operating Fund 

     Designated Surplus  - 

     Undesignated  Surplus  1,488,299 

     Non-vested sick leave  (220,095) 

 1,268,204 

Capital Fund 

     Reserve Accounts  288,840 

     Equity in Tangible Capital Assets  2,897,751 

 3,186,591 

Special Purpose Fund 

     School Generated Funds  438,038 

     Other Special Purpose Funds  - 

 438,038 

Total Accumulated Surplus  $  4,892,833 

Designated Surplus under the Operating Fund represents internally restricted amounts 

appropriated by the board or, in the case of school budget carryovers, by board policy.  

Reserve Accounts under the Capital Fund represents internally restricted reserves for 

specific purposes approved by the Board of Trustees and PSFB.  A Schedule of Capital 

Reserve Accounts is provided on page 24 of the audited financial statements. 

2015 

Bus reserves $  67,470 

Other reserves  221,370 

     Capital Reserve  $    288,840 

School Generated Funds and Other Special Purpose Funds are externally restricted 

moneys for school and restricted for school use.  



13. Municipal Government – Property Tax and related Due from Municipal

Government 

Education property tax or Special Levy is raised as the Division’s contribution to the cost 

of providing public education for the students resident in the division. The Municipal 

Government-Property Tax shown on the consolidated revenue and expense statement is 

raised over the two calendar (tax) years; 40% from 2014 tax year and 60% from 2015 tax 

year.  Below are the related revenue and receivable amounts:  

14. Interest Received and Paid

The Division received interest during the year of $1,123 (previous year $692); interest 

paid during the year was $979,184 (previous year $954,039).   

Interest expense is included in Fiscal and is comprised of the following: 

2015 

Operating Fund 

     Fiscal-short term loan, interest and bank charges  $   117,788 

     Interest on long-term debt  32,165 

Capital Fund 

     Debenture debt interest 

 Other interest 

 798,595 

 30,636 

 $  979,184 



15. Expenses by object

Expenses in the consolidated statement of revenue, expenses and accumulated surplus are 

reported by function as defined by FRAME.  Below is the detail of expenses by object:   

Actual Budget Actual 

2015 2015 2014 

Salaries  $  28,024,672  $  27,889,065  $  27,284,945 

Employees benefits & allowances  2,716,597  2,853,323  2,608,102 

Services  3,887,452  3,670,682  3,641,888 

Supplies, materials & minor 

equipment  3,532,514  3,802,073  3,339,517 

Interest  979,184  120,000  954,039 

Bad debts  -  -  - 

Payroll tax and transfers  595,735  591,105  589,614 

Amortization  1,613,551  -  1,406,248 

Other capital items  -  -  - 

School generated funds  847,367  -  782,066 

Other special purpose funds  -  -  - 

 $  42,197,072  $  38,926,248  $  40,606,419 

16. Contractual Obligations

High Speed Connectivity Agreement 

The Division has entered into a long term agreement with Manitoba Telephone System 

Inc. to provide high speed internet and wide area network connectivity for all community 

schools.  The term of the agreement is ten years commencing July 1, 2014 with a one-

time cost of $2,298,275.  The agreement provides for fiber optic connectivity to the 

administration office, Barker School, DRCSS, Ethelbert School, Gilbert Plains 

Elementary and Collegiate, Goose Lake High, Grandview School, Roblin Elementary 

School, Winnipegosis Elementary and Collegiate. All remaining sites will receive high 

speed service through copper cable access. 

17. Contingent Liabilities

There have been no legal actions initiated against the Division. 

18. Adoption of New Accounting Policy

Effective July 1, 2014, the division has adopted the new Public Sector Accounting Board 

accounting standard - Liability for Contaminated Sites, Section PS3260.  The standard 

was applied on a retroactive basis to July 1, 2013 and did not result in any adjustments to 

financial liabilities, tangible capital assets or accumulated surplus of the school division. 
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Mystery Lake School District

Notes 2015 2014

 Financial Assets

Cash and Bank 4,512,409 2,916,954 
Due from  - Provincial Government 2,164,990 2,223,030 

 - Federal Government 52,409 75,505 
 - Municipal Government 4,575,193 4,572,455 
 - Other School Divisions - - 
 - First Nations 20,108 70,058 

Accounts Receivable 67,229 22,008 
Accrued Investment Income 13,342 25,370 

4 Portfolio Investments 2,050,451 4,025,000 

13,456,131 13,930,380

 Liabilities

Overdraft - - 
Accounts Payable 382,791 202,656 
Accrued Liabilities 6,294,412 6,133,963 

5 Employee Future Benefits 2,539,461 2,564,661 
Accrued Interest Payable 82,523 93,134 
Due to  - Provincial Government 2,735 2,310 

 - Federal Government 192 298 
 - Municipal Government - - 
 - Other School Divisions - - 
 - First Nations - - 

6 Deferred Revenue 425,428 494,756 
8 Debenture Debt 7,168,193 7,228,453 

Other Borrowings - - 
7 School Generated Funds Liability 182,139 212,231 

17,077,874 16,932,462

 Net Debt (3,621,743) (3,002,082)

 Non-Financial Assets
9 Net Tangible Capital Assets (TCA Schedule) 13,995,589 13,412,792 

Inventories 90,828 97,155 
Prepaid Expenses 59,312 44,550 

14,145,729 13,554,497

11  Accumulated Surplus 10,523,986 10,552,415

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at June 30



Mystery Lake School District

Notes 2015 2014

 Revenue

Provincial Government 31,490,545 31,489,125 
Federal Government 8,067 28,207 
Municipal Government - Property Tax 5,919,632 5,920,975 

- Other 1,709,154 1,704,258 
Other School Divisions 184,785 197,925 
First Nations 383,575 260,490 

Private Organizations and Individuals 214,563 394,031 
Other Sources 280,705 233,036 
School Generated Funds 341,889 281,197 
Other Special Purpose Funds - -

40,532,915 40,509,244

 Expenses

Regular Instruction 21,695,312 21,308,703 
Student Support Services 8,014,466 7,091,777 
Adult Learning Centres - -
Community Education and Services 45,416 29,100 
Divisional Administration 1,882,636 1,599,385 
Instructional and Other Support Services 1,720,044 1,822,217 
Transportation of Pupils 243,044 287,301 
Operations and Maintenance 4,794,510 4,017,882 

* Fiscal - Interest 297,859 402,428 
- Other 652,299 637,682 

Amortization 850,560 821,266 
Other Capital Items - -
School Generated Funds 339,209 276,953 
Other Special Purpose Funds - -

40,535,355 38,294,694

Current Year Surplus (Deficit) before Non-vested Sick Leave (2,440) 2,214,550
Less: Non-vested Sick Leave Expense (Recovery) 25,989 (24,418)
Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) (28,429) 2,238,968

 Opening Accumulated Surplus 10,552,415 8,313,447 
 Adjustments: Tangible Cap. Assets and Accum. Amort. - -

Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -
Non-vested sick leave - prior years - -

 Opening Accumulated Surplus, as adjusted 10,552,415 8,313,447

 Closing Accumulated Surplus 10,523,986 10,552,415

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements
* NOTE REQUIRED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF REVENUE, EXPENSES

 AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
For the Year Ended June 30



Mystery Lake School District

2015 2014

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) (28,429) 2,238,968             

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 850,560 821,266 
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (1,433,357) (1,344,574)            
(Gain) / Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (19,000) - 
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 19,000 - 

(582,797) (523,308)               

Inventories (Increase)/Decrease 6,327 19,467 

Prepaid Expenses (Increase)/Decrease (14,762) 5,189 
(8,435) 24,656 

(Increase)/Decrease in Net Debt (619,661) 1,740,316             

Net Debt at Beginning of Year (3,002,082) (4,742,398)            

Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - - 

(3,002,082) (4,742,398)            

Net Debt at End of Year (3,621,743) (3,002,082)            

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015



Mystery Lake School District

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014

 Operating Transactions

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) (28,429) 2,238,968             
Non-Cash Items Included in Current Year Surplus/(Deficit):

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 850,560 821,266 
(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (19,000) -
Employee Future Benefits Increase/(Decrease) (25,200) 238,632 

Due from Other Organizations (Increase)/Decrease 128,348 (1,116,010)           
Accounts Receivable & Accrued Income (Increase)/Decrease (33,193) 102,290 
Inventories and Prepaid Expenses - (Increase)/Decrease (8,435) 24,656 
Due to Other Organizations Increase/(Decrease) 319 2,246 
Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities Increase/(Decrease) 329,973 (1,676,986)           
Deferred Revenue Increase/(Decrease) (69,328) (692,173)              
School Generated Funds Liability  Increase/(Decrease) (30,092) (8,003)
Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Operating Transactions 1,095,523             (65,114)

 Capital Transactions

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (1,433,357)           (1,344,574)           
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 19,000 -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Capital Transactions (1,414,357)           (1,344,574)           

 Investing Transactions

Portfolio Investments (Increase)/Decrease 1,974,549             (2,025,000)           

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Investing Transactions 1,974,549             (2,025,000)           

 Financing Transactions
Debenture Debt Increase/(Decrease) (60,260) (24,671)
Other Borrowings Increase/(Decrease) - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Financing Transactions (60,260) (24,671)

 Cash and Bank / Overdraft (Increase)/Decrease 1,595,455             (3,459,359)           
 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at Beginning of Year 2,916,954             6,376,313             

 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at End of Year 4,512,409             2,916,954             



Mystery Lake School District

SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
at June 30, 2015

Furniture / Computer Assets 2015 2014
School Other Fixtures & Hardware & Land Under TOTALS TOTALS

School Non-School Buses Vehicles Equipment Software * Land Improvements Construction

 Tangible Capital Asset Cost
 Opening Cost, as previously reported 30,097,171     2,819,596       - 274,513          1,395,627       548,040          2,914,272       129,753          312,413          38,491,385     37,146,811     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening Cost adjusted 30,097,171     2,819,596       - 274,513          1,395,627       548,040          2,914,272       129,753          312,413          38,491,385     37,146,811     

Add:
Additions during the year

Less:
Disposals and write downs

 Closing Cost 31,010,578     3,114,568       - 274,513          1,505,550       580,838          2,914,272       227,891          243,347          39,871,557     38,491,385     

 Accumulated Amortization
 Opening, as previously reported 21,715,175     1,673,233       - 256,918          1,082,722       334,994          15,551            25,078,593     24,257,327     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening adjusted 21,715,175     1,673,233       - 256,918          1,082,722       334,994          15,551            25,078,593     24,257,327     

Add:
Current period Amortization

Less:
Accumulated Amortization
on Disposals and Writedowns

 Closing Accumulated Amortization 22,307,645     1,738,651       - 265,447          1,131,750       399,041          33,434            25,875,968     25,078,593     

 Net Tangible Capital Asset 8,702,933       1,375,917       - 9,066              373,800          181,797          2,914,272       194,457          243,347          13,995,589     13,412,792     

 Proceeds from Disposal of Capital Assets - - - - 19,000            - 19,000            - 

* Includes network infrastructure.

913,407          

- 

592,470          

- 

- 53,185            

163,108          32,798            1,344,574       

- 

821,266          

- - 

8,529              

Buildings and Leasehold 
Improvements

- 

102,213          

- 

294,972          - - - 

- - 

- - - 53,185            

98,138            (69,066)          

- 

17,883            

1,433,357       

53,185            

850,560          

53,185            

65,418            - 64,047            

- 
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Park West School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Financial Assets

Cash and Bank - - 
Due from  - Provincial Government 1,872,987 1,833,094 

 - Federal Government 117,575 117,683 
 - Municipal Government 3,747,736 3,342,664 
 - Other School Divisions - - 
 - First Nations 325,596 2,015,856 

Accounts Receivable 34,960 93,122 
Accrued Investment Income - - 
Portfolio Investments - - 

6,098,854 7,402,419

 Liabilities

4 Overdraft 4,139,888 5,762,923 
Accounts Payable 1,085,280 1,014,950 
Accrued Liabilities - - 
Employee Future Benefits - - 
Accrued Interest Payable 172,653 139,825 
Due to  - Provincial Government - - 

 - Federal Government - - 
 - Municipal Government - - 
 - Other School Divisions - - 
 - First Nations - - 

5 Deferred Revenue 38,410 - 
6 Debenture Debt 9,334,879 7,198,259 

Other Borrowings - - 
School Generated Funds Liability - - 

14,771,110 14,115,957

 Net Debt (8,672,256) (6,713,538)

 Non-Financial Assets
7 Net Tangible Capital Assets (TCA Schedule) 11,281,367 9,069,103 

Inventories 130,231 138,244 
Prepaid Expenses 37,122 243,966 

11,448,720 9,451,313

8  Accumulated Surplus 2,776,464 2,737,775

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at June 30



Park West School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Revenue

Provincial Government 14,851,426 14,674,642 
Federal Government - 21 
Municipal Government - Property Tax 6,758,534 6,054,154 

- Other - -
Other School Divisions 47,478 21,900 
First Nations 7,201,080 6,868,735 

Private Organizations and Individuals 45,000 21,000 
Other Sources 77,741 (11,445)
School Generated Funds 1,082,240 1,156,294 
Other Special Purpose Funds - -

30,063,499 28,785,301

 Expenses

Regular Instruction 16,139,911 15,786,286 
Student Support Services 3,506,016 3,395,937 
Adult Learning Centres 166,675 160,292 
Community Education and Services 98,752 116,719 
Divisional Administration 1,139,909 1,024,960 
Instructional and Other Support Services 731,242 678,573 
Transportation of Pupils 2,130,028 2,072,684 
Operations and Maintenance 3,251,160 3,436,435 

10 Fiscal - Interest 482,618 424,979 
- Other 416,562 406,548 

Amortization 875,916 792,950 
Other Capital Items - -
School Generated Funds 1,088,163 1,163,202 
Other Special Purpose Funds - -

30,026,952 29,459,565

Current Year Surplus (Deficit) before Non-vested Sick Leave 36,547 (674,264)
Less: Non-vested Sick Leave Expense (Recovery) (2,142) 48,831
Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 38,689 (723,095)

 Opening Accumulated Surplus 2,737,775 3,460,870 
 Adjustments: Tangible Cap. Assets and Accum. Amort. - -

Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -
Non-vested sick leave - prior years - -

 Opening Accumulated Surplus, as adjusted 2,737,775 3,460,870

 Closing Accumulated Surplus 2,776,464 2,737,775

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF REVENUE, EXPENSES

 AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
For the Year Ended June 30



Park West School Division

2015 2014

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 38,689 (723,095)               

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 875,916 792,950 
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (3,088,180) (1,361,104)            
(Gain) / Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - 114,145 
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - 4,597 

(2,212,264) (449,412)               

Inventories (Increase)/Decrease 8,013 6,115 

Prepaid Expenses (Increase)/Decrease 206,844 (162,685)               
214,857 (156,570)               

(Increase)/Decrease in Net Debt (1,958,718) (1,329,077)            

Net Debt at Beginning of Year (6,713,538) (5,384,461)            

Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - - 

(6,713,538) (5,384,461)            

Net Debt at End of Year (8,672,256) (6,713,538)            

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015



Park West School Division

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014

 Operating Transactions

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 38,689 (723,095)              
Non-Cash Items Included in Current Year Surplus/(Deficit):

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 875,916 792,950 
(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - 114,145 
Employee Future Benefits Increase/(Decrease) - -

Due from Other Organizations (Increase)/Decrease 1,245,403             (2,145,244)           
Accounts Receivable & Accrued Income (Increase)/Decrease 58,162 (15,077)
Inventories and Prepaid Expenses - (Increase)/Decrease 214,857 (156,570)              
Due to Other Organizations Increase/(Decrease) - -
Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities Increase/(Decrease) 103,158 240,320 
Deferred Revenue Increase/(Decrease) 38,410 (447,304)              
School Generated Funds Liability  Increase/(Decrease) - -
Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Operating Transactions 2,574,595             (2,339,875)           

 Capital Transactions

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (3,088,180)           (1,361,104)           
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - 4,597 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Capital Transactions (3,088,180)           (1,356,507)           

 Investing Transactions

Portfolio Investments (Increase)/Decrease - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Investing Transactions - -

 Financing Transactions
Debenture Debt Increase/(Decrease) 2,136,620             639,816 
Other Borrowings Increase/(Decrease) - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Financing Transactions 2,136,620             639,816 

 Cash and Bank / Overdraft (Increase)/Decrease 1,623,035             (3,056,566)           
 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at Beginning of Year (5,762,923)           (2,706,357)           

 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at End of Year (4,139,888)           (5,762,923)           



Park West School Division

SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
at June 30, 2015

Furniture / Computer Assets 2015 2014
School Other Fixtures & Hardware & Land Under TOTALS TOTALS

School Non-School Buses Vehicles Equipment Software * Land Improvements Construction

 Tangible Capital Asset Cost
 Opening Cost, as previously reported 23,021,449     172,594          2,876,983       121,041          412,405          189,411          372,988          - 118,509          27,285,380     26,550,170     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening Cost adjusted 23,021,449     172,594          2,876,983       121,041          412,405          189,411          372,988          - 118,509          27,285,380     26,550,170     

Add:
Additions during the year

Less:
Disposals and write downs

 Closing Cost 25,770,697     172,594          3,050,537       130,905          495,014          189,411          372,988          - 191,414          30,373,560     27,285,380     

 Accumulated Amortization
 Opening, as previously reported 15,740,706     63,767            2,048,879       94,212            161,638          107,075          - 18,216,277     17,930,479     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening adjusted 15,740,706     63,767            2,048,879       94,212            161,638          107,075          - 18,216,277     17,930,479     

Add:
Current period Amortization

Less:
Accumulated Amortization
on Disposals and Writedowns

 Closing Accumulated Amortization 16,318,935     70,669            2,214,277       105,308          238,907          144,097          - 19,092,193     18,216,277     

 Net Tangible Capital Asset 9,451,762       101,925          836,260          25,597            256,107          45,314            372,988          - 191,414          11,281,367     9,069,103       

 Proceeds from Disposal of Capital Assets - - - - - - - 4,597              

* Includes network infrastructure.

2,749,248       

- 

578,229          

- 

- - 

82,609            - 1,361,104       

625,894          

792,950          

507,152          - 

11,096            

Buildings and Leasehold 
Improvements

- 

77,269            

- 

- 173,554          9,864              - 

- - 

- - - 

- 72,905            

- - 

- 

3,088,180       

- 

875,916          

- 

6,902              165,398          37,022            

- 
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Pembina Trails School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Financial Assets

Cash and Bank 3,273,777 - 
Due from  - Provincial Government 5,480,809 17,605,875 

 - Federal Government 264,428 561,504 
11  - Municipal Government 36,985,764 35,586,781 

 - Other School Divisions 24,166 5,610 
 - First Nations - - 

Accounts Receivable 485,168 369,752 
Accrued Investment Income - - 
Portfolio Investments - - 

46,514,112 54,129,522

 Liabilities

Overdraft - 17,179,049 
Accounts Payable 5,344,505 4,889,276 
Accrued Liabilities 944,682 734,370 

4 Employee Future Benefits 1,963,801 1,922,607 
Accrued Interest Payable 872,913 762,645 
Due to  - Provincial Government 488,748 517,847 

 - Federal Government 6,897,222 6,649,909 
 - Municipal Government 157,713 98,740 
 - Other School Divisions 72,203 50,882 
 - First Nations - - 

5 Deferred Revenue 10,437,025 2,138,870 
6 Debenture Debt 44,728,218 33,501,790 
7 Other Borrowings 16,055,859 17,980,740 
8 School Generated Funds Liability 971,757 864,367 

88,934,646 87,291,092

 Net Debt (42,420,534) (33,161,570)

 Non-Financial Assets
9 Net Tangible Capital Assets (TCA Schedule) 70,099,296 61,186,542 

Inventories - - 
Prepaid Expenses 429,881 492,913 

70,529,177 61,679,455

10  Accumulated Surplus 28,108,643 28,517,885

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at June 30



Pembina Trails School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Revenue

Provincial Government 87,041,688 85,622,489 
Federal Government 74,588 73,941 

11 Municipal Government - Property Tax 62,317,128 59,483,258 
- Other 1,142 -

Other School Divisions 710,374 697,450 
First Nations 14,000 36,092 

Private Organizations and Individuals 3,212,971 2,811,907 
Other Sources 898,249 740,518 
School Generated Funds 1,087,149 1,350,237 
Other Special Purpose Funds - -

155,357,289 150,815,892

 Expenses

Regular Instruction 84,351,794 79,667,882 
Student Support Services 29,208,632 29,174,256 
Adult Learning Centres - -
Community Education and Services 1,256,434 1,047,738 
Divisional Administration 4,599,908 4,463,566 
Instructional and Other Support Services 5,747,220 5,936,749 
Transportation of Pupils 2,750,768 2,554,424 
Operations and Maintenance 17,452,849 17,455,996 

12 Fiscal - Interest 1,766,467 1,557,126 
- Other 2,426,116 2,362,847 

Amortization 3,588,869 3,312,082 
Other Capital Items 1,477,696 -
School Generated Funds 1,081,151 1,373,828 
Other Special Purpose Funds - -

155,707,904 148,906,494

Current Year Surplus (Deficit) before Non-vested Sick Leave (350,615) 1,909,398
Less: Non-vested Sick Leave Expense (Recovery) 58,627 6,481
Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) (409,242) 1,902,917

 Opening Accumulated Surplus 28,517,885 26,614,968 
 Adjustments: Tangible Cap. Assets and Accum. Amort. - - 

Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -
Non-vested sick leave - prior years - -

 Opening Accumulated Surplus, as adjusted 28,517,885 26,614,968

 Closing Accumulated Surplus 28,108,643 28,517,885

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF REVENUE, EXPENSES

 AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
For the Year Ended June 30



Pembina Trails School Division

2015 2014

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) (409,242) 1,902,917             

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 3,588,869 3,312,082             
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (12,509,282) (17,302,601)          
(Gain) / Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 7,659 - 
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - - 

(8,912,754) (13,990,519)          

Inventories (Increase)/Decrease - - 

Prepaid Expenses (Increase)/Decrease 63,032 (48,021) 
63,032 (48,021) 

(Increase)/Decrease in Net Debt (9,258,964) (12,135,623)          

Net Debt at Beginning of Year (33,161,570) (21,025,947)          

Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - - 

(33,161,570) (21,025,947)          

Net Debt at End of Year (42,420,534) (33,161,570)          

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015



Pembina Trails School Division

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014

 Operating Transactions

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) (409,242)              1,902,917             
Non-Cash Items Included in Current Year Surplus/(Deficit):

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 3,588,869             3,312,082             
(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 7,659 -
Employee Future Benefits Increase/(Decrease) 41,194 42,505 

Due from Other Organizations (Increase)/Decrease 11,004,603           (15,358,260)         
Accounts Receivable & Accrued Income (Increase)/Decrease (115,416)              (81,487)
Inventories and Prepaid Expenses - (Increase)/Decrease 63,032 (48,021)
Due to Other Organizations Increase/(Decrease) 298,508 75,310 
Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities Increase/(Decrease) 775,809 (2,422)
Deferred Revenue Increase/(Decrease) 8,298,155             (7,745,562)           
School Generated Funds Liability  Increase/(Decrease) 107,390 48,606 
Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Operating Transactions 23,660,561           (17,854,332)         

 Capital Transactions

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (12,509,282)         (17,302,601)         
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Capital Transactions (12,509,282)         (17,302,601)         

 Investing Transactions

Portfolio Investments (Increase)/Decrease - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Investing Transactions - -

 Financing Transactions
Debenture Debt Increase/(Decrease) 11,226,428           8,238,798             
Other Borrowings Increase/(Decrease) (1,924,881)           3,995,497             

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Financing Transactions 9,301,547             12,234,295           

 Cash and Bank / Overdraft (Increase)/Decrease 20,452,826           (22,922,638)         
 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at Beginning of Year (17,179,049)         5,743,589             

 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at End of Year 3,273,777             (17,179,049)         



Pembina Trails School Division

SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
at June 30, 2015

Furniture / Computer Assets 2015 2014
School Other Fixtures & Hardware & Land Under TOTALS TOTALS

School Non-School Buses Vehicles Equipment Software * Land Improvements Construction

 Tangible Capital Asset Cost
 Opening Cost, as previously reported 92,904,403     5,703,850       4,537,163       674,180          5,848,247       1,684,186       10,490,178     2,000,068       4,742,986       128,585,261   111,344,624   

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening Cost adjusted 92,904,403     5,703,850       4,537,163       674,180          5,848,247       1,684,186       10,490,178     2,000,068       4,742,986       128,585,261   111,344,624   

Add:
Additions during the year

Less:
Disposals and write downs

 Closing Cost 100,852,167   5,703,850       4,767,633       743,496          7,216,252       1,644,204       10,593,111     2,261,407       7,050,656       140,832,776   128,585,261   

 Accumulated Amortization
 Opening, as previously reported 53,992,352     3,268,018       2,987,583       605,249          4,408,860       1,530,281       606,376          67,398,719     64,148,601     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening adjusted 53,992,352     3,268,018       2,987,583       605,249          4,408,860       1,530,281       606,376          67,398,719     64,148,601     

Add:
Current period Amortization

Less:
Accumulated Amortization
on Disposals and Writedowns

 Closing Accumulated Amortization 56,062,162     3,401,329       3,231,950       648,352          5,037,507       1,540,448       811,732          70,733,480     67,398,719     

 Net Tangible Capital Asset 44,790,005     2,302,521       1,535,683       95,144            2,178,745       103,756          10,593,111     1,449,675       7,050,656       70,099,296     61,186,542     

 Proceeds from Disposal of Capital Assets - - - - - - - - 

* Includes network infrastructure.

133,311          378,411          99,083            

88,916            

12,509,282     

261,767          

3,588,869       

254,108          

261,339          2,307,670       

- - 

205,356          

Buildings and Leasehold 
Improvements

- 

659,795          

88,916            

- 370,603          69,316            102,933          

- 140,133          

- 134,044          - 31,148            

7,947,764       

- 

2,069,810       

- 

- 32,718            

1,400,723       48,934            17,302,601     

61,964            

3,312,082       

61,964            - 

43,103            
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Pine Creek School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Financial Assets

Cash and Bank 31,107 - 
Due from  - Provincial Government 351,874 819,852 

 - Federal Government 34,479 53,314 
 - Municipal Government 2,084,607 2,149,806 
 - Other School Divisions - - 
 - First Nations - 28,025 

Accounts Receivable 82,951 55,270 
Accrued Investment Income - - 
Portfolio Investments - - 

2,585,018 3,106,267

 Liabilities

Overdraft - 746,570 
Accounts Payable 59,305 26,157 
Accrued Liabilities 1,546,095 1,208,841 

4 Employee Future Benefits 28,670 23,415 
Accrued Interest Payable 60,140 64,900 
Due to  - Provincial Government 5,275 - 

 - Federal Government - - 
 - Municipal Government - - 
 - Other School Divisions 15,994 - 
 - First Nations - - 

5 Deferred Revenue 576,520 72,707 
6 Debenture Debt 3,081,305 3,295,572 

Other Borrowings - - 
School Generated Funds Liability - - 

5,373,304 5,438,162

 Net Debt (2,788,286) (2,331,895)

 Non-Financial Assets
7 Net Tangible Capital Assets (TCA Schedule) 4,805,622 4,910,752 

Inventories 35,042 - 
Prepaid Expenses 44,178 67,142 

4,884,842 4,977,894

8  Accumulated Surplus 2,096,556 2,645,999

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at June 30



Pine Creek School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Revenue

Provincial Government 9,529,134 9,453,140 
Federal Government - -
Municipal Government - Property Tax 4,239,202 4,356,368 

- Other - -
Other School Divisions 33,900 28,600 
First Nations - -

Private Organizations and Individuals - -
Other Sources 43,783 65,166 
School Generated Funds 297,093 295,196 
Other Special Purpose Funds - -

14,143,112 14,198,470

 Expenses

Regular Instruction 8,230,345 8,057,283 
Student Support Services 1,459,579 1,423,252 
Adult Learning Centres - -
Community Education and Services 13,615 12,341 
Divisional Administration 513,694 550,456 
Instructional and Other Support Services 519,208 505,507 
Transportation of Pupils 1,149,044 1,188,734 
Operations and Maintenance 1,532,131 1,563,749 

10 Fiscal - Interest 180,190 172,732 
- Other 213,843 178,142 

Amortization 560,897 547,507 
Other Capital Items - -
School Generated Funds 314,754 342,882 
Other Special Purpose Funds - -

14,687,300 14,542,585

Current Year Surplus (Deficit) before Non-vested Sick Leave (544,188) (344,115)
Less: Non-vested Sick Leave Expense (Recovery) 5,255 5,410
Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) (549,443) (349,525)

 Opening Accumulated Surplus 2,645,999 2,995,524 
 Adjustments: Tangible Cap. Assets and Accum. Amort. - -

Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -
Non-vested sick leave - prior years - -

 Opening Accumulated Surplus, as adjusted 2,645,999 2,995,524

 Closing Accumulated Surplus 2,096,556 2,645,999

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF REVENUE, EXPENSES

 AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
For the Year Ended June 30



Pine Creek School Division

2015 2014

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) (549,443) (349,525)               

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 560,897 547,507 
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (455,767) (521,017)               
(Gain) / Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (5,000) (5,310) 
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 5,000 5,310 

105,130 26,490 

Inventories (Increase)/Decrease (35,042) - 

Prepaid Expenses (Increase)/Decrease 22,964 209,893 
(12,078) 209,893 

(Increase)/Decrease in Net Debt (456,391) (113,142)               

Net Debt at Beginning of Year (2,331,895) (2,218,753)            

Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - - 

(2,331,895) (2,218,753)            

Net Debt at End of Year (2,788,286) (2,331,895)            

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015



Pine Creek School Division

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014

 Operating Transactions

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) (549,443)              (349,525)              
Non-Cash Items Included in Current Year Surplus/(Deficit):

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 560,897 547,507 
(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (5,000) (5,310)
Employee Future Benefits Increase/(Decrease) 5,255 5,410 

Due from Other Organizations (Increase)/Decrease 580,037 (438,336)              
Accounts Receivable & Accrued Income (Increase)/Decrease (27,681) (41,464)
Inventories and Prepaid Expenses - (Increase)/Decrease (12,078) 209,893 
Due to Other Organizations Increase/(Decrease) 21,269 -
Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities Increase/(Decrease) 365,642 6,796 
Deferred Revenue Increase/(Decrease) 503,813 (428,746)              
School Generated Funds Liability  Increase/(Decrease) - -
Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Operating Transactions 1,442,711             (493,775)              

 Capital Transactions

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (455,767)              (521,017)              
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 5,000 5,310 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Capital Transactions (450,767)              (515,707)              

 Investing Transactions

Portfolio Investments (Increase)/Decrease - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Investing Transactions - -

 Financing Transactions
Debenture Debt Increase/(Decrease) (214,267)              432,945 
Other Borrowings Increase/(Decrease) - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Financing Transactions (214,267)              432,945 

 Cash and Bank / Overdraft (Increase)/Decrease 777,677 (576,537)              
 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at Beginning of Year (746,570)              (170,033)              

 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at End of Year 31,107 (746,570)              



Pine Creek School Division

SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
at June 30, 2015

Furniture / Computer Assets 2015 2014
School Other Fixtures & Hardware & Land Under TOTALS TOTALS

School Non-School Buses Vehicles Equipment Software * Land Improvements Construction

 Tangible Capital Asset Cost
 Opening Cost, as previously reported 11,729,101     477,552          2,849,916       189,840          241,358          85,209            75,334            - - 15,648,310     15,309,972     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening Cost adjusted 11,729,101     477,552          2,849,916       189,840          241,358          85,209            75,334            - - 15,648,310     15,309,972     

Add:
Additions during the year

Less:
Disposals and write downs

 Closing Cost 12,089,044     477,552          2,790,308       189,840          337,182          85,209            75,334            - - 16,044,469     15,648,310     

 Accumulated Amortization
 Opening, as previously reported 8,279,501       298,767          1,869,068       133,102          80,348            76,772            - 10,737,558     10,372,730     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening adjusted 8,279,501       298,767          1,869,068       133,102          80,348            76,772            - 10,737,558     10,372,730     

Add:
Current period Amortization

Less:
Accumulated Amortization
on Disposals and Writedowns

 Closing Accumulated Amortization 8,596,134       313,551          1,980,045       154,806          109,101          85,210            - 11,238,847     10,737,558     

 Net Tangible Capital Asset 3,492,910       164,001          810,263          35,034            228,081          (1) 75,334            - - 4,805,622       4,910,752       

 Proceeds from Disposal of Capital Assets - - 5,000              - - - 5,000              5,310              

* Includes network infrastructure.

359,943          

- 

316,633          

- 

- - 

95,824            - 521,017          

182,679          

547,507          

182,679          - 

21,704            

Buildings and Leasehold 
Improvements

- 

28,753            

- 

- - - - 

- 59,608            

- 59,608            - - 

- - 

- - 

- 

455,767          

59,608            

560,897          

59,608            

14,784            170,585          8,438              

- 



PINE CREEK SCHOOL DIVISION 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
JUNE 30, 2015 

1. Nature of Organization and Economic Dependence

The Pine Creek School Division (Division) is a public body that provides education 
services to residents within its geographic location.  The Division is funded mainly by 
grants from the Province of Manitoba (Province), and a special levy on the property 
assessment included in the Division’s boundaries. The Division is exempt from income 
tax and is a registered charity under the Income Tax Act. 

The Division is economically dependent on the Province for the majority of its revenue 
and capital financing requirements.  Without this funding, the Division would not be able 
to continue its operations. 

2. Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance 
with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles established by PSAB of the 
Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (CICA).   

a) Reporting Entity and Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenues and 
expenses of the operating fund, capital fund, and special purpose fund of the Pine 
Creek School Division.  The Division reporting entity includes school generated 
funds. 

All inter-fund accounts and transactions are eliminated upon consolidation.  

b) Trust funds

The Division administers various trust funds.  Trust funds and their related operations 
are not included in the consolidated financial statements as they are not owned or 
controlled by the Division.  A schedule of trust funds is attached as part of the notes 
to the consolidated financial statements.  

Trust funds, under PSAB are properties assigned to a trustee (school division) under a 
trust agreement or statute; the trustee merely administers the terms and conditions 
embodied in the agreement, and it has no unilateral authority to change the conditions 
set out in the trust indenture.     

c) Basis of Accounting

Revenues and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of accounting except when 
the accruals cannot be determined with a reasonable degree of certainty or when their 



estimation is impracticable.  The accrual basis of accounting recognizes revenues as 
they are earned and measurable; expenses are recognized as they are incurred and 
measurable as a result of the receipt of goods or services and the creation of a legal 
obligation to pay.  Expenses also include the amortization of tangible capital assets. 

d) Fund Accounting

The fund method of accounting is employed by the Division to record financial 
transactions in separate funds as defined by Financial Reporting and Accounting in 
Manitoba Education (FRAME) in accordance with the purpose for which the funds 
have been created.   

The Operating Fund is maintained to record all the day to day operating revenues and 
expenses.  The Capital Fund is used to account for the acquisition, amortization, 
disposal and financing of capital assets.  The Special Purpose Fund is used to account 
for school generated funds and charitable foundations controlled by the Division. 

e) School Generated Funds

School generated funds are moneys raised by the school, or under the auspices of the 
school, through extra-curricular activities for the sole use of the school that the 
principal of each school, subject to the rules of the school board, may raise, hold, 
administer and expend for the purposes of the school.   

Only revenue and expenses of school generated funds controlled by the Division are 
included in the Consolidated Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Accumulated 
Surplus.   To be deemed as controlled, a school must have the unilateral authority to 
make the decisions as to when, how and on what the funds are to be spent. 

Period end cash balances of all school generated funds are included in the 
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.  The uncontrolled portion of this 
amount is reflected in the School Generated Funds Liability account.  Examples of 
uncontrolled school generated funds are parent council funds, other parent group 
funds, student council funds and travel club funds.  Revenues and expenses of 
uncontrolled school generated funds are not included in the consolidated financial 
statements.  

f) Tangible Capital Assets

Tangible capital assets are non-financial assets that are used by the Division to 
provide services to the public and have an economic life beyond one fiscal year.  
Tangible capital assets include land, buildings, buses, other vehicles, furniture and 
equipment, computers, capital leases, leasehold improvements, and assets under 
construction.   



To be classified as tangible capital assets, each asset other than land must individually 
meet the capitalization threshold for its class as prescribed by FRAME.   

Grouping of assets is not permitted except for computer work stations. 

With the exception of land, donated capital assets and capital leases, all tangible 
capital assets, are recorded at historical cost, which includes purchase price, 
installation costs and other costs incurred to put the asset into service.  

Buildings are recorded at historical cost when known.  For buildings acquired prior to 
June 30, 2005 where the actual cost was not known, the replacement value for 
insurance purposes as at June 30, 2005 was regressed to the date of acquisition using 
a regression index based on Southam and CanaData construction cost indices.   

Capital leases are recorded at the present value of the minimum lease payments 
excluding executory costs (e.g. insurance, maintenance costs, etc.).  The discount rate 
used to determine the present value of the lease payments is the lower of the 
Division’s rate for incremental borrowing or the interest rate implicit in the lease.       

Donated tangible capital assets are recorded at fair market value at the date of 
donation.  Deferred revenue is recorded in an equivalent amount, for all donated 
assets except land.  The deferred revenue will be recognized as revenue over the 
useful life of the related asset, on the same basis that the asset is amortized.       

All land acquired prior to June 30, 2006 has been valued by the Crown Lands and 
Property Agency. 

All tangible capital assets, except for land, capital leases, and assets under 
construction, are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as 
prescribed by FRAME.  Land is not amortized.  Capital leases with lease terms that 



have a bargain purchase option or allow ownership to pass to the Division are 
amortized over the useful life of the asset class.  All other capital leases are amortized 
over the lesser of the lease term and the useful life of the asset class.   

One-half of the annual amortization is charged in the year of acquisition and in the 
year of disposal if not fully amortized.   

Assets under construction are not amortized until the date of substantial completion.  
Interest on funds used to finance school buildings under construction is capitalized for 
the periods preceding the date of substantial completion.  

g) Employee Future Benefits

The Province of Manitoba pays the employer portion of the Teachers’ Retirement 
Allowances Fund (TRAF), the pension plan for all certified teachers of the Division.  
The Division does not contribute to TRAF, and no costs relating to this plan are 
included in the Division’s financial statements.  

However, the Division provides other future benefits to its employees.  These benefits 
include supplemental employment benefits and sick leave.  These benefits are event 
driven and the costs are recognized when the event becomes known.  Effective in the 
2011/2012 fiscal year, expected future payment on non-vested accumulated sick leave 
benefits for employees based on estimated sick days that will be used over earned per 
year has been set up as a future benefit. 

h) Capital Reserve

Certain amounts, as approved by the Board of Trustees and the Public Schools 
Finance Board (PSFB), have been set aside in reserve accounts for future capital 
purposes.  These Capital Reserve accounts are internally restricted funds that form 
part of the Accumulated Surplus presented in the Consolidated Statement of Financial 
Position.   

i) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts 
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.   

j) Financial instruments

There are no significant terms and conditions related to financial instruments (cash, 
accounts receivable, investments, bank indebtedness, accounts payable and long-term 
debt) that may affect the amount, timing and certainty of future cash flows.  The 



Division is exposed to credit risk from the potential non-payment of accounts 
receivable.  However, the majority of the receivables are from local, provincial and 
federal governments, and therefore, the credit risk is minimal.  The carrying amounts 
of the financial instruments approximate their carrying values, unless otherwise 
noted.   

k) Liability for Contaminated Sites

The Division has adopted PS3260 Liability for Contaminated Sites effective March 
31, 2015. No sites have been identified and no liability has been established in Pine 
Creek School Division. 

3. Overdraft

The Division has an authorized line of credit with Austin Credit Union of $4,000,000 by 
way of overdrafts and is repayable on demand at prime less .25%; interest is paid 
monthly.  Overdrafts are secured by borrowing by-law. 

4. Employee Future Benefits

Employee Future Benefits are benefits earned by employees in the current period, but 
will not be paid out until future periods and include vacation accrual, supplemental 
employment and sick leave benefits.  As well, expected future payment on non-vested 
accumulated sick leave benefits for employees based on estimated sick days that will be 
used over earned per year has been set up as a future benefit. 

5. Deferred Revenue

The deferral method of accounting is used for revenues received that, pursuant to 
legislation, regulation or agreement, may only be used for specific purposes. These 
amounts are recognized as revenue in the fiscal year the related expenses are incurred or 
services performed.  The following is a breakdown of the account balance: 

Revenue
Balance as at Additions  recognized Balance as at 
June 30, 2014 in the period in the period June 30, 2015 

Manitoba Textbook Bureau  $   0  $  31,725  $  31,725  $   0 
Education Property Tax Credit $   0  $947,969  $465,229  $482,740 
International Tuition $   0  $   0 $   0  $   0 
Donated Capital Assets $  67,107 $   36,185 $   12,802 $  90,490 
Other special purpose funds  $    5,600  $     1,290 $    3,600  $    5,600 

$  72,707  $1,017,169 $513,356  $576,520 

6. Debenture Debt



The debenture debt of the Division is in the form of twenty-year debentures payable, 
principal and interest, in twenty equal yearly installments and maturing at various dates 
from 2016 to 2034.  Payment of principal and interest is funded entirely by grants from 
the Province of Manitoba, except for the debenture debt on self-funded capital projects.  
The debentures carry interest rates that range from 3.750% to 7.75%.   

Debenture interest expense payable as at June 30, 2015, is accrued and recorded in 
Accrued Interest Payable, and a grant in an amount equal to the interest accrued on 
provincially funded debentures is recorded in Due from the Provincial Government.   The 
debenture principal and interest repayments in the next five years are: 

Principal  Interest   Total 

2016 $228,482 $159,141 $387,623
2017 $241,704 $146,291 $387,995
2018 $249,630 $132,658 $382,288
2019 $248,283 $118,674 $366,957
2020 $258,854 $104,828 $363,682

$1,226,953 $661,592     $1,888,545 

7. Net Tangible Capital Assets

The Schedule of Tangible Capital Assets (TCA), page 23 of the audited financial 
statements, provides a breakdown of cost, accumulated amortization and net book value 
by class.  The amount of interest capitalized in the period included in Assets under 
Construction was $0 (previous year $0).   

Accumulated 2015 Net
Gross Amount Amortization Book Value

Owned-tangible capital assets  $16,044,469 $11,238,847 $4,805,622 

8. Accumulated Surplus

The consolidated accumulated surplus is comprised of the following: 

  2015 
Operating Fund
  Designated Surplus $    26,390 
  Undesignated Surplus $  351,710 
  Non Vested Sick Leave to date  ($    28,670) 

$   349,430

Capital Fund
  Reserve Accounts  $   420,224 
  Equity in Tangible Capital Assets $1,281,149 

$1,701,373

Special Purpose Fund
  School Generated Funds  $     45,753 
  Other Special Purpose Funds $    0  

$     45,753
Total Accumulated Surplus $ 2,096,556



Designated Surplus under the Operating Fund represents internally restricted amounts 
appropriated by the board or, in the case of school budget carryovers, by board policy.  
See page 5 of the audited financial statements for a breakdown of the Designated Surplus. 

 2015 
Board approved appropriation by motion $   0 
School budget carryovers by board policy $   26,390 

  Designated surplus $   26,390 

Reserve Accounts under the Capital Fund represents internally restricted reserves for 
specific purposes approved by the Board of Trustees and PSFB.  A Schedule of Capital 
Reserve Accounts is provided on page 24 of the audited financial statements. 

   2015
Bus reserves $120,224
Other reserves $300,000

  Capital Reserve  $420,224 

9. Municipal Government – Property Tax and related Due from Municipal
Government 

Education property tax or Special Levy is raised as the Division’s contribution to the cost 
of providing public education for the students resident in the division. The Municipal 
Government-Property Tax shown on the consolidated revenue and expense statement is 
raised over the two calendar (tax) years; 50% from 2014 tax year and 50% from 2015 tax 
year.  Below are the related revenue and receivable amounts:  

 2015  2014 
Revenue–Municipal Government-Property Tax  $4,239,202 $4,356,368 

Receivable-Due from Municipal-Property Tax $2,084,607 $2,149,806 

10. Interest Received and Paid

The Division received interest during the year of $4,213 (previous year $3,623); interest 
paid during the year was $180,190 (previous year $172,733).   

Interest expense is included in Fiscal and is comprised of the following: 

  2015 

Operating Fund
  Fiscal-short term loan, interest and bank charges  $   9,234 
Capital fund
  Debenture debt interest $170,956
  Other interest $   0 

$180,190



The accrual portion of debenture debt interest expense of $60,140 included under the 
Capital Fund-Debenture debt interest, is offset by an accrual of the debt servicing grant 
from the Province of Manitoba. 

11. Expenses by object

Expenses in the consolidated statement of revenue, expenses and accumulated surplus are 
reported by function as defined by FRAME.  Below is the detail of expenses by object:   

Actual Budget Actual
2015 2015 2014

Salaries  $  9,984,185 $  9,849,832 $  9,869,499 
Employees benefits & allowances $     740,368 $     773,720 $     697,698 
Services  $  1,351,476 $  1,512,564 $  1,325,072 
Supplies, materials & minor equipment $  1,297,000 $  1,044,158 $  1,373,950 
Interest  $     180,190 $   4,000 $     172,732 
Bad debts  $    0 $    0 $    0 
Payroll tax – and transfers  $     258,430 $     240,831 $     213,245 
Amortization $     560,897 $    0 $     547,507 
Other capital items  $    0 $    0 $    0 
School generated funds $     314,754 $    0 $     342,882 
Other special purpose funds  $    0 $    0 $    0 

$14,687,300 $13,425,105 $14,542,585
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Portage La Prairie School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Financial Assets

Cash and Bank - - 
Due from  - Provincial Government 1,301,598 2,422,416 

 - Federal Government 141,821 126,217 
 - Municipal Government 6,313,068 6,101,051 
 - Other School Divisions - - 
 - First Nations 297,217 477,671 

Accounts Receivable 56,725 58,179 
Accrued Investment Income - - 
Portfolio Investments - - 

8,110,429 9,185,534

 Liabilities

4 Overdraft 749,661 3,003,936 
Accounts Payable 129,895 606,678 
Accrued Liabilities 3,699,099 3,582,037 

5 Employee Future Benefits - - 
Accrued Interest Payable 208,817 127,483 
Due to  - Provincial Government - - 

 - Federal Government 448,754 416,069 
 - Municipal Government - - 
 - Other School Divisions - - 
 - First Nations - - 

6 Deferred Revenue 1,117,108 24,733 
7 Debenture Debt 8,862,701 9,513,933 

Other Borrowings - - 
8 School Generated Funds Liability 199,181 170,958 

15,415,216 17,445,827

 Net Debt (7,304,787) (8,260,293)

 Non-Financial Assets
9 Net Tangible Capital Assets (TCA Schedule) 13,079,159 13,790,551 

Inventories 19,668 28,448 
Prepaid Expenses 52,784 15,265 

13,151,611 13,834,264

10  Accumulated Surplus 5,846,824 5,573,971

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at June 30



Portage La Prairie School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Revenue

Provincial Government 23,775,130 23,116,891 
Federal Government 6,000 -

11 Municipal Government - Property Tax 11,938,114 11,545,200 
- Other - -

Other School Divisions 176,859 180,593 
First Nations 1,242,468 1,024,133 

Private Organizations and Individuals 22,000 23,500 
Other Sources 384,794 141,251 
School Generated Funds 1,744,397 1,513,599 
Other Special Purpose Funds - -

39,289,762 37,545,167

13  Expenses

Regular Instruction 20,656,116 19,606,410 
Student Support Services 6,662,268 6,380,842 
Adult Learning Centres - -
Community Education and Services 64,784 48,936 
Divisional Administration 1,174,315 1,087,814 
Instructional and Other Support Services 1,198,575 1,192,545 
Transportation of Pupils 1,079,280 1,125,430 
Operations and Maintenance 3,928,881 3,702,014 

12 Fiscal - Interest 511,619 555,645 
- Other 610,224 575,819 

Amortization 1,341,615 1,305,709 
Other Capital Items - -
School Generated Funds 1,789,232 1,473,708 
Other Special Purpose Funds - -

39,016,909 37,054,872

Current Year Surplus (Deficit) before Non-vested Sick Leave 272,853 490,295
Less: Non-vested Sick Leave Expense (Recovery) 0 0
Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 272,853 490,295

 Opening Accumulated Surplus 5,573,971 5,083,676 
 Adjustments: Tangible Cap. Assets and Accum. Amort. - -

Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -
Non-vested sick leave - prior years - -

 Opening Accumulated Surplus, as adjusted 5,573,971 5,083,676

 Closing Accumulated Surplus 5,846,824 5,573,971

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF REVENUE, EXPENSES

 AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
For the Year Ended June 30



Portage La Prairie School Division

2015 2014

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 272,853 490,295 

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 1,341,615 1,305,709             
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (630,223) (265,300)               
(Gain) / Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - - 
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - - 

711,392 1,040,409             

Inventories (Increase)/Decrease 8,780 (2,267) 

Prepaid Expenses (Increase)/Decrease (37,519) 18,263 
(28,739) 15,996 

(Increase)/Decrease in Net Debt 955,506 1,546,700             

Net Debt at Beginning of Year (8,260,293) (9,806,993)            

Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - - 

(8,260,293) (9,806,993)            

Net Debt at End of Year (7,304,787) (8,260,293)            

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015



Portage La Prairie School Division

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014

 Operating Transactions

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 272,853 490,295 
Non-Cash Items Included in Current Year Surplus/(Deficit):

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 1,341,615             1,305,709             
(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - -
Employee Future Benefits Increase/(Decrease) - -

Due from Other Organizations (Increase)/Decrease 1,073,651             (2,097,930)           
Accounts Receivable & Accrued Income (Increase)/Decrease 1,454 23,689 
Inventories and Prepaid Expenses - (Increase)/Decrease (28,739) 15,996 
Due to Other Organizations Increase/(Decrease) 32,685 7,209 
Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities Increase/(Decrease) (278,387)              454,254 
Deferred Revenue Increase/(Decrease) 1,092,375             (1,469,156)           
School Generated Funds Liability  Increase/(Decrease) 28,223 26,703 
Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Operating Transactions 3,535,730             (1,243,231)           

 Capital Transactions

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (630,223)              (265,300)              
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Capital Transactions (630,223)              (265,300)              

 Investing Transactions

Portfolio Investments (Increase)/Decrease - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Investing Transactions - -

 Financing Transactions
Debenture Debt Increase/(Decrease) (651,232)              (83,810)
Other Borrowings Increase/(Decrease) - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Financing Transactions (651,232)              (83,810)

 Cash and Bank / Overdraft (Increase)/Decrease 2,254,275             (1,592,341)           
 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at Beginning of Year (3,003,936)           (1,411,595)           

 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at End of Year (749,661)              (3,003,936)           



Portage La Prairie School Division

SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
at June 30, 2015

Furniture / Computer Assets 2015 2014
School Other Fixtures & Hardware & Land Under TOTALS TOTALS

School Non-School Buses Vehicles Equipment Software * Land Improvements Construction

 Tangible Capital Asset Cost
 Opening Cost, as previously reported 33,717,073     338,037          1,948,690       58,503            736,402          873,408          270,186          - 49,073            37,991,372     37,726,072     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening Cost adjusted 33,717,073     338,037          1,948,690       58,503            736,402          873,408          270,186          - 49,073            37,991,372     37,726,072     

Add:
Additions during the year

Less:
Disposals and write downs

 Closing Cost 33,760,913     338,037          1,989,728       58,503            792,177          873,408          270,186          419,821          50,159            38,552,932     37,991,372     

 Accumulated Amortization
 Opening, as previously reported 21,601,853     338,037          1,556,946       41,692            517,337          144,956          - 24,200,821     22,895,112     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening adjusted 21,601,853     338,037          1,556,946       41,692            517,337          144,956          - 24,200,821     22,895,112     

Add:
Current period Amortization

Less:
Accumulated Amortization
on Disposals and Writedowns

 Closing Accumulated Amortization 22,668,689     338,037          1,559,518       47,426            597,519          241,593          20,991            25,473,773     24,200,821     

 Net Tangible Capital Asset 11,092,224     - 430,210          11,077            194,658          631,815          270,186          398,830          50,159            13,079,159     13,790,551     

 Proceeds from Disposal of Capital Assets - - - - - - - - 

* Includes network infrastructure.

43,840            

- 

1,066,836       

- 

- - 

55,775            - 265,300          

- 

1,305,709       

- - 

5,734              

Buildings and Leasehold 
Improvements

- 

80,182            

- 

- 109,701          - - 

- 68,663            

- 68,663            - - 

419,821          1,086              

- - 

20,991            

630,223          

68,663            

1,341,615       

68,663            

- 71,235            96,637            

- 
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Prairie Rose School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Financial Assets

Cash and Bank - - 
Due from  - Provincial Government 1,122,266 2,474,593 

 - Federal Government 58,874 37,165 
 - Municipal Government 5,815,333 5,360,784 
 - Other School Divisions - - 
 - First Nations - - 

Accounts Receivable 158,481 174,651 
Accrued Investment Income - - 
Portfolio Investments - - 

7,154,954 8,047,193

 Liabilities

3 Overdraft 3,964,988 5,834,775 
Accounts Payable 846,003 1,028,235 
Accrued Liabilities 663,825 244,843 

4 Employee Future Benefits 162,907 137,732 
Accrued Interest Payable - - 
Due to  - Provincial Government 211,163 139,655 

 - Federal Government - - 
 - Municipal Government - - 
 - Other School Divisions - - 
 - First Nations - - 

5 Deferred Revenue 213,470 13,520 
6 Debenture Debt 6,552,489 6,315,779 
7 Other Borrowings 446,899 487,010 

School Generated Funds Liability 28,846 25,676 

13,090,590 14,227,225

 Net Debt (5,935,636) (6,180,032)

 Non-Financial Assets
8 Net Tangible Capital Assets (TCA Schedule) 11,641,854 11,461,865 

Inventories - - 
Prepaid Expenses 11,657 14,440 

11,653,511 11,476,305

9  Accumulated Surplus 5,717,875 5,296,273

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at June 30



Prairie Rose School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Revenue

Provincial Government 18,016,348 17,826,007 
Federal Government - -
Municipal Government - Property Tax 10,072,728 9,255,092 

- Other - -
Other School Divisions 72,075 73,950 
First Nations - -

Private Organizations and Individuals 16,118 14,689 
Other Sources 162,684 417,210 
School Generated Funds 510,082 510,398 
Other Special Purpose Funds 128,833 56,621 

28,978,868 28,153,967

 Expenses

Regular Instruction 16,191,949 14,972,573 
Student Support Services 3,376,516 3,721,514 
Adult Learning Centres 254,233 258,719 
Community Education and Services 35,028 30,305 
Divisional Administration 1,069,718 1,004,800 
Instructional and Other Support Services 537,265 717,443 
Transportation of Pupils 2,046,271 2,073,494 
Operations and Maintenance 2,655,831 3,029,419 

11 Fiscal - Interest 389,160 419,343 
- Other 433,927 417,590 

Amortization 995,656 986,004 
Other Capital Items - -
School Generated Funds 506,432 505,812 
Other Special Purpose Funds 40,105 236,239 

28,532,091 28,373,255

Current Year Surplus (Deficit) before Non-vested Sick Leave 446,777 (219,288)
Less: Non-vested Sick Leave Expense (Recovery) 25,175 (2,571)
Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 421,602 (216,717)

 Opening Accumulated Surplus 5,296,273 5,512,990 
 Adjustments: Tangible Cap. Assets and Accum. Amort. - -

Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -
Non-vested sick leave - prior years - -

 Opening Accumulated Surplus, as adjusted 5,296,273 5,512,990

 Closing Accumulated Surplus 5,717,875 5,296,273

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF REVENUE, EXPENSES

 AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
For the Year Ended June 30



Prairie Rose School Division

2015 2014

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 421,602 (216,717)               

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 995,656 986,004 
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (1,175,645) (938,261)               
(Gain) / Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (3,696) - 
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 3,696 - 

(179,989) 47,743 

Inventories (Increase)/Decrease - - 

Prepaid Expenses (Increase)/Decrease 2,783 2,036 
2,783 2,036 

(Increase)/Decrease in Net Debt 244,396 (166,938)               

Net Debt at Beginning of Year (6,180,032) (6,013,094)            

Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - - 

(6,180,032) (6,013,094)            

Net Debt at End of Year (5,935,636) (6,180,032)            

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015



Prairie Rose School Division

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014

 Operating Transactions

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 421,602 (216,717)              
Non-Cash Items Included in Current Year Surplus/(Deficit):

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 995,656 986,004 
(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (3,696) -
Employee Future Benefits Increase/(Decrease) 25,175 (2,570)

Due from Other Organizations (Increase)/Decrease 876,069 (1,644,429)           
Accounts Receivable & Accrued Income (Increase)/Decrease 16,170 (64,568)
Inventories and Prepaid Expenses - (Increase)/Decrease 2,783 2,036 
Due to Other Organizations Increase/(Decrease) 71,508 (4,554)
Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities Increase/(Decrease) 236,750 (77,144)
Deferred Revenue Increase/(Decrease) 199,950 (789,837)              
School Generated Funds Liability  Increase/(Decrease) 3,170 (1,563)
Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Operating Transactions 2,845,137             (1,813,342)           

 Capital Transactions

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (1,175,645)           (938,261)              
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 3,696 -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Capital Transactions (1,171,949)           (938,261)              

 Investing Transactions

Portfolio Investments (Increase)/Decrease - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Investing Transactions - -

 Financing Transactions
Debenture Debt Increase/(Decrease) 236,710 (539,864)              
Other Borrowings Increase/(Decrease) (40,111) (38,895)

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Financing Transactions 196,599 (578,759)              

 Cash and Bank / Overdraft (Increase)/Decrease 1,869,787             (3,330,362)           
 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at Beginning of Year (5,834,775)           (2,504,413)           

 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at End of Year (3,964,988)           (5,834,775)           



Prairie Rose School Division

SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
at June 30, 2015

Furniture / Computer Assets 2015 2014
School Other Fixtures & Hardware & Land Under TOTALS TOTALS

School Non-School Buses Vehicles Equipment Software * Land Improvements Construction

 Tangible Capital Asset Cost
 Opening Cost, as previously reported 21,893,162     796,363          4,074,449       124,743          144,894          1,537,137       106,884          151,993          378,047          29,207,672     28,269,411     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening Cost adjusted 21,893,162     796,363          4,074,449       124,743          144,894          1,537,137       106,884          151,993          378,047          29,207,672     28,269,411     

Add:
Additions during the year

Less:
Disposals and write downs

 Closing Cost 21,905,084     801,964          4,131,516       124,743          256,319          1,537,137       106,884          151,993          1,106,355       30,121,995     29,207,672     

 Accumulated Amortization
 Opening, as previously reported 13,664,113     282,313          2,962,218       78,317            51,348            667,979          39,519            17,745,807     16,759,803     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening adjusted 13,664,113     282,313          2,962,218       78,317            51,348            667,979          39,519            17,745,807     16,759,803     

Add:
Current period Amortization

Less:
Accumulated Amortization
on Disposals and Writedowns

 Closing Accumulated Amortization 14,194,420     301,607          2,943,441       88,634            71,136            835,304          45,599            18,480,141     17,745,807     

 Net Tangible Capital Asset 7,710,664       500,357          1,188,075       36,109            185,183          701,833          106,884          106,394          1,106,355       11,641,854     11,461,865     

 Proceeds from Disposal of Capital Assets - - 3,696              - - - 3,696              - 

* Includes network infrastructure.

11,922            

- 

530,307          

- 

- - 

111,425          - 938,261          

- 

986,004          

- - 

10,317            

Buildings and Leasehold 
Improvements

- 

19,788            

- 

5,601              318,389          - - 

- 261,322          

- 261,322          - - 

- 728,308          

- - 

6,080              

1,175,645       

261,322          

995,656          

261,322          

19,294            242,545          167,325          

- 
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Prairie Spirit School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Financial Assets

Cash and Bank - - 
Due from  - Provincial Government 1,020,131 2,014,407 

 - Federal Government 107,410 88,449 
 - Municipal Government 5,693,758 5,378,936 
 - Other School Divisions 52,414 11,493 
 - First Nations 42,540 62,342 

Accounts Receivable 60,689 57,753 
Accrued Investment Income - - 
Portfolio Investments - - 

6,976,942 7,613,380

 Liabilities

3 Overdraft 851,823 2,462,680 
Accounts Payable 2,662,794 1,881,862 
Accrued Liabilities 512,418 220,623 

4 Employee Future Benefits 551,853 458,255 
Accrued Interest Payable 148,471 164,397 
Due to  - Provincial Government - - 

 - Federal Government - - 
 - Municipal Government - - 
 - Other School Divisions - - 
 - First Nations - - 

5 Deferred Revenue 1,500 1,706 
6 Debenture Debt 6,333,276 6,862,799 
7 Other Borrowings 1,566,667 1,300,000 

School Generated Funds Liability 57,287 70,414 

12,686,089 13,422,736

 Net Debt (5,709,147) (5,809,356)

 Non-Financial Assets
9 Net Tangible Capital Assets (TCA Schedule) 13,609,740 12,796,148 

Inventories - - 
Prepaid Expenses 57,288 48,696 

13,667,028 12,844,844

10  Accumulated Surplus 7,957,881 7,035,488

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at June 30



Prairie Spirit School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Revenue

Provincial Government 18,645,930 18,403,279 
Federal Government 20,050 5,792 
Municipal Government - Property Tax 10,012,405 9,460,110 

- Other - -
Other School Divisions 22,100 19,500 
First Nations 268,171 298,336 

Private Organizations and Individuals 57,029 51,978 
Other Sources 114,973 253,837 
School Generated Funds 601,040 645,912 
Other Special Purpose Funds - -

29,741,698 29,138,744

 Expenses

Regular Instruction 15,346,681 14,856,466 
Student Support Services 3,360,312 3,437,364 
Adult Learning Centres - -
Community Education and Services 34,918 31,800 
Divisional Administration 923,091 847,153 
Instructional and Other Support Services 777,231 704,517 
Transportation of Pupils 2,386,941 2,543,941 
Operations and Maintenance 3,188,067 3,442,232 

12 Fiscal - Interest 427,531 435,476 
- Other 402,939 405,981 

Amortization 1,370,728 1,372,285 
Other Capital Items 15,059 -
School Generated Funds 582,364 661,575 
Other Special Purpose Funds - -

28,815,862 28,738,790

Current Year Surplus (Deficit) before Non-vested Sick Leave 925,836 399,954
Less: Non-vested Sick Leave Expense (Recovery) 3,443 18,507
Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 922,393 381,447

 Opening Accumulated Surplus 7,035,488 6,654,041 
 Adjustments: Tangible Cap. Assets and Accum. Amort. - -

Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -
Non-vested sick leave - prior years - -

 Opening Accumulated Surplus, as adjusted 7,035,488 6,654,041

 Closing Accumulated Surplus 7,957,881 7,035,488

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF REVENUE, EXPENSES

 AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
For the Year Ended June 30



Prairie Spirit School Division

2015 2014

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 922,393 381,447 

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 1,370,728 1,372,285             
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (2,184,903) (1,799,326)            
(Gain) / Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (12,667) (16,476) 
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 13,250 36,502 

(813,592) (407,015)               

Inventories (Increase)/Decrease - - 

Prepaid Expenses (Increase)/Decrease (8,592) 5,951 
(8,592) 5,951 

(Increase)/Decrease in Net Debt 100,209 (19,617) 

Net Debt at Beginning of Year (5,809,356) (5,789,739)            

Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - - 

(5,809,356) (5,789,739)            

Net Debt at End of Year (5,709,147) (5,809,356)            

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015



Prairie Spirit School Division

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014

 Operating Transactions

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 922,393 381,447 
Non-Cash Items Included in Current Year Surplus/(Deficit):

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 1,370,728             1,372,285             
(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (12,667) (16,476)
Employee Future Benefits Increase/(Decrease) 93,598 (172,280)              

Due from Other Organizations (Increase)/Decrease 639,374 (1,428,593)           
Accounts Receivable & Accrued Income (Increase)/Decrease (2,936) (2,835)
Inventories and Prepaid Expenses - (Increase)/Decrease (8,592) 5,951 
Due to Other Organizations Increase/(Decrease) - -
Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities Increase/(Decrease) 1,056,801             (669,548)              
Deferred Revenue Increase/(Decrease) (206) (127,676)              
School Generated Funds Liability  Increase/(Decrease) (13,127) 4,321 
Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Operating Transactions 4,045,366             (653,404)              

 Capital Transactions

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (2,184,903)           (1,799,326)           
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 13,250 36,502 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Capital Transactions (2,171,653)           (1,762,824)           

 Investing Transactions

Portfolio Investments (Increase)/Decrease - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Investing Transactions - -

 Financing Transactions
Debenture Debt Increase/(Decrease) (529,523)              330,830 
Other Borrowings Increase/(Decrease) 266,667 (300,000)              

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Financing Transactions (262,856)              30,830 

 Cash and Bank / Overdraft (Increase)/Decrease 1,610,857             (2,385,398)           
 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at Beginning of Year (2,462,680)           (77,282)

 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at End of Year (851,823)              (2,462,680)           



Prairie Spirit School Division

SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
at June 30, 2015

Furniture / Computer Assets 2015 2014
School Other Fixtures & Hardware & Land Under TOTALS TOTALS

School Non-School Buses Vehicles Equipment Software * Land Improvements Construction

 Tangible Capital Asset Cost
 Opening Cost, as previously reported 25,176,835     668,144          6,022,162       189,384          764,836          4,182,254       56,674            - 259,420          37,319,709     36,911,138     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening Cost adjusted 25,176,835     668,144          6,022,162       189,384          764,836          4,182,254       56,674            - 259,420          37,319,709     36,911,138     

Add:
Additions during the year

Less:
Disposals and write downs

 Closing Cost 25,387,457     2,437,090       6,260,646       245,962          782,934          4,182,254       56,091            - 5,876              39,358,310     37,319,709     

 Accumulated Amortization
 Opening, as previously reported 17,376,284     572,672          4,300,120       117,462          363,498          1,793,525       - 24,523,561     24,522,005     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening adjusted 17,376,284     572,672          4,300,120       117,462          363,498          1,793,525       - 24,523,561     24,522,005     

Add:
Current period Amortization

Less:
Accumulated Amortization
on Disposals and Writedowns

 Closing Accumulated Amortization 17,957,501     609,083          4,481,394       141,563          428,139          2,130,890       - 25,748,570     24,523,561     

 Net Tangible Capital Asset 7,429,956       1,828,007       1,779,252       104,399          354,795          2,051,364       56,091            - 5,876              13,609,740     12,796,148     

 Proceeds from Disposal of Capital Assets - - 7,850              900 - - 4,500              13,250            36,502            

* Includes network infrastructure.

36,411            326,993          337,365          

- 

2,184,903       

146,302          

1,370,728       

145,719          

- (253,544)        

- - 

- 

Buildings and Leasehold 
Improvements

583 

64,641            
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1,768,946       384,203          56,578            - 
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- 145,719          - - 

210,622          

- 

581,217          

- 

- - 

18,098            - 1,799,326       

1,390,755       

1,372,285       

1,370,729       - 
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Red River Valley School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Financial Assets

Cash and Bank - - 
Due from  - Provincial Government 1,744,672 3,326,895 

 - Federal Government 78,562 97,654 
 - Municipal Government 6,051,291 5,697,237 
 - Other School Divisions 188,060 147,997 
 - First Nations - - 

Accounts Receivable 51,603 68,688 
Accrued Investment Income - - 
Portfolio Investments - - 

8,114,188 9,338,471

 Liabilities

* Overdraft 4,840,026 6,195,173 
Accounts Payable 1,028,584 421,170 
Accrued Liabilities 242,325 253,595 

* Employee Future Benefits 157,886 146,690 
Accrued Interest Payable 218,687 244,669 
Due to  - Provincial Government 14,818 12,407 

 - Federal Government 12,464 8,554 
 - Municipal Government 18,294 14,205 
 - Other School Divisions 319,493 287,378 
 - First Nations - - 

* Deferred Revenue 1,204,200 1,137,066 
* Debenture Debt 11,727,040 12,738,683 

Other Borrowings - 9,782 
School Generated Funds Liability 21,114 15,248 

19,804,931 21,484,620

 Net Debt (11,690,743) (12,146,149)

 Non-Financial Assets
* Net Tangible Capital Assets (TCA Schedule) 18,570,538 18,935,018 

Inventories 133,414 127,948 
Prepaid Expenses 77,461 85,402 

18,781,413 19,148,368

*  Accumulated Surplus 7,090,670 7,002,219

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at June 30



Red River Valley School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Revenue

Provincial Government 17,712,568 17,360,228 
Federal Government 21,182 11,261 
Municipal Government - Property Tax 10,113,494 9,503,985 

- Other - -
Other School Divisions 865,959 672,837 
First Nations - -

Private Organizations and Individuals 180,696 194,171 
Other Sources 118,712 120,277 
School Generated Funds 630,946 581,663 
Other Special Purpose Funds - -

29,643,557 28,444,422

 Expenses

Regular Instruction 15,474,035 14,743,931 
Student Support Services 4,012,025 3,646,225 
Adult Learning Centres - -
Community Education and Services 48,608 36,807 
Divisional Administration 1,041,383 967,767 
Instructional and Other Support Services 738,348 569,966 
Transportation of Pupils 2,471,277 2,455,591 
Operations and Maintenance 2,702,147 2,762,930 

* Fiscal - Interest 676,493 669,126 
- Other 420,067 393,867 

Amortization 1,321,150 1,179,521 
Other Capital Items - 54,402 
School Generated Funds 638,376 570,075 
Other Special Purpose Funds - -

29,543,909 28,050,208

Current Year Surplus (Deficit) before Non-vested Sick Leave 99,648 394,214
Less: Non-vested Sick Leave Expense (Recovery) 11,197 34,924
Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 88,451 359,290

 Opening Accumulated Surplus 7,002,219 6,642,929 
 Adjustments: Tangible Cap. Assets and Accum. Amort. - -

Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -
Non-vested sick leave - prior years - -

 Opening Accumulated Surplus, as adjusted 7,002,219 6,642,929

 Closing Accumulated Surplus 7,090,670 7,002,219

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements
* NOTE REQUIRED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF REVENUE, EXPENSES

 AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
For the Year Ended June 30



Red River Valley School Division

2015 2014

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 88,451 359,290 

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 1,321,150 1,179,521             
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (948,768) (3,226,082)            
(Gain) / Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (15,363) (18,865) 
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 7,461 59,732 

364,480 (2,005,694)            

Inventories (Increase)/Decrease (5,466) 1,161 

Prepaid Expenses (Increase)/Decrease 7,941 5,838 
2,475 6,999 

(Increase)/Decrease in Net Debt 455,406 (1,639,405)            

Net Debt at Beginning of Year (12,146,149) (10,506,744)          

Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - - 

(12,146,149) (10,506,744)          

Net Debt at End of Year (11,690,743) (12,146,149)          

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015



Red River Valley School Division

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014

 Operating Transactions

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 88,451 359,290 
Non-Cash Items Included in Current Year Surplus/(Deficit):

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 1,321,150             1,179,521             
(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (15,363) (18,865)
Employee Future Benefits Increase/(Decrease) 11,196 34,924 

Due from Other Organizations (Increase)/Decrease 1,207,198             (2,155,345)           
Accounts Receivable & Accrued Income (Increase)/Decrease 17,085 (24,845)
Inventories and Prepaid Expenses - (Increase)/Decrease 2,475 6,999 
Due to Other Organizations Increase/(Decrease) 42,525 38,286 
Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities Increase/(Decrease) 570,162 (1,020,783)           
Deferred Revenue Increase/(Decrease) 67,134 20,660 
School Generated Funds Liability  Increase/(Decrease) 5,866 (24,390)
Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Operating Transactions 3,317,879             (1,604,548)           

 Capital Transactions

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (948,768)              (3,226,082)           
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 7,461 59,732 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Capital Transactions (941,307)              (3,166,350)           

 Investing Transactions

Portfolio Investments (Increase)/Decrease - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Investing Transactions - -

 Financing Transactions
Debenture Debt Increase/(Decrease) (1,011,643)           2,050,975             
Other Borrowings Increase/(Decrease) (9,782) (35,317)

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Financing Transactions (1,021,425)           2,015,658             

 Cash and Bank / Overdraft (Increase)/Decrease 1,355,147             (2,755,240)           
 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at Beginning of Year (6,195,173)           (3,439,933)           

 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at End of Year (4,840,026)           (6,195,173)           



Red River Valley School Division

SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
at June 30, 2015

Furniture / Computer Assets 2015 2014
School Other Fixtures & Hardware & Land Under TOTALS TOTALS

School Non-School Buses Vehicles Equipment Software * Land Improvements Construction

 Tangible Capital Asset Cost
 Opening Cost, as previously reported 26,266,166     1,236,802       4,754,758       227,129          1,325,613       409,711          563,070          138,563          2,199,654       37,121,466     34,120,035     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening Cost adjusted 26,266,166     1,236,802       4,754,758       227,129          1,325,613       409,711          563,070          138,563          2,199,654       37,121,466     34,120,035     

Add:
Additions during the year

Less:
Disposals and write downs

 Closing Cost 28,081,937     1,236,802       4,872,375       218,862          1,322,852       409,711          563,070          138,563          967,454          37,811,626     37,121,466     

 Accumulated Amortization
 Opening, as previously reported 13,540,986     645,201          2,833,126       184,498          678,687          271,307          32,643            18,186,448     17,190,711     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening adjusted 13,540,986     645,201          2,833,126       184,498          678,687          271,307          32,643            18,186,448     17,190,711     

Add:
Current period Amortization

Less:
Accumulated Amortization
on Disposals and Writedowns

 Closing Accumulated Amortization 14,235,266     678,881          2,983,784       178,068          775,852          342,738          46,499            19,241,088     18,186,448     

 Net Tangible Capital Asset 13,846,671     557,921          1,888,591       40,794            547,000          66,973            563,070          92,064            967,454          18,570,538     18,935,018     

 Proceeds from Disposal of Capital Assets - - 6,710              751 - - 7,461              59,732            

* Includes network infrastructure.

33,680            331,756          71,431            
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- 
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- 
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22,515            54,995            

52,234            - 3,226,082       

224,651          

1,179,521       

183,784          - 
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River East Transcona School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Financial Assets

Cash and Bank 5,577,786 - 
Due from  - Provincial Government 4,378,025 18,555,838 

 - Federal Government 371,202 363,290 
 - Municipal Government 30,953,635 30,284,017 
 - Other School Divisions 3,547 2,253 
 - First Nations 7,000 21,400 

Accounts Receivable 121,752 163,541 
Accrued Investment Income - - 
Portfolio Investments - - 

41,412,947 49,390,339

 Liabilities

Overdraft - 14,565,472 
Accounts Payable 1,701,431 1,806,204 
Accrued Liabilities 17,921,123 14,974,686 

3 Employee Future Benefits 1,354,283 1,328,921 
Accrued Interest Payable 908,084 948,861 
Due to  - Provincial Government 8,047 6,083 

 - Federal Government 15,783 22,978 
 - Municipal Government - - 
 - Other School Divisions - - 
 - First Nations - - 

4 Deferred Revenue 10,215,142 1,551,636 
6 Debenture Debt 36,714,647 35,983,405 
7 Other Borrowings 3,293,842 3,639,779 

School Generated Funds Liability 1,487,013 1,310,037 

73,619,395 76,138,062

 Net Debt (32,206,448) (26,747,723)

 Non-Financial Assets
2 Net Tangible Capital Assets (TCA Schedule) 65,005,179 62,675,299 

Inventories - - 
Prepaid Expenses 326,477 421,248 

65,331,656 63,096,547

9  Accumulated Surplus 33,125,208 36,348,824

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at June 30



River East Transcona School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Revenue

Provincial Government 126,102,045               125,334,416               
Federal Government 466,671 400,235 
Municipal Government - Property Tax 51,698,881 50,478,832 

- Other - -
Other School Divisions 849,432 954,504 
First Nations 112,000 64,377 

Private Organizations and Individuals 2,005,561 2,079,360 
Other Sources 455,307 476,380 
School Generated Funds 761,885 696,629 
Other Special Purpose Funds - -

182,451,782 180,484,733

 Expenses

Regular Instruction 99,935,656 96,663,840 
Student Support Services 33,121,988 32,357,156 
Adult Learning Centres 980,149 980,623 
Community Education and Services 1,455,300 1,386,702 
Divisional Administration 5,207,313 5,076,950 
Instructional and Other Support Services 7,313,026 7,055,147 
Transportation of Pupils 3,990,614 3,773,808 
Operations and Maintenance 20,325,067 21,689,487 

11 Fiscal - Interest 2,077,405 2,179,846 
- Other 2,973,546 2,902,994 

Amortization 6,100,925 6,302,933 
Other Capital Items 1,229,776 469,618 
School Generated Funds 768,450 753,462 
Other Special Purpose Funds - -

185,479,215 181,592,566

Current Year Surplus (Deficit) before Non-vested Sick Leave (3,027,433) (1,107,833)
Less: Non-vested Sick Leave Expense (Recovery) 196,183 128,458
Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) (3,223,616) (1,236,291)

 Opening Accumulated Surplus 36,348,824 37,585,115 
 Adjustments: Tangible Cap. Assets and Accum. Amort. - -

Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -
Non-vested sick leave - prior years - -

 Opening Accumulated Surplus, as adjusted 36,348,824 37,585,115

 Closing Accumulated Surplus 33,125,208 36,348,824

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF REVENUE, EXPENSES

 AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
For the Year Ended June 30



River East Transcona School Division

2015 2014

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) (3,223,616) (1,236,291)            

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 6,100,925 6,302,933             
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (8,430,805) (4,680,461)            
(Gain) / Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (5,662) (2,713) 
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 5,662 2,713 

(2,329,880) 1,622,472             

Inventories (Increase)/Decrease - - 

Prepaid Expenses (Increase)/Decrease 94,771 38,422 
94,771 38,422 

(Increase)/Decrease in Net Debt (5,458,725) 424,603 

Net Debt at Beginning of Year (26,747,723) (27,172,326)          

Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - - 

(26,747,723) (27,172,326)          

Net Debt at End of Year (32,206,448) (26,747,723)          

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015



River East Transcona School Division

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014

 Operating Transactions

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) (3,223,616)           (1,236,291)           
Non-Cash Items Included in Current Year Surplus/(Deficit):

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 6,100,925             6,302,933             
(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (5,662) (2,713)
Employee Future Benefits Increase/(Decrease) 25,362 306,692 

Due from Other Organizations (Increase)/Decrease 13,513,389           (16,073,486)         
Accounts Receivable & Accrued Income (Increase)/Decrease 41,789 (72,288)
Inventories and Prepaid Expenses - (Increase)/Decrease 94,771 38,422 
Due to Other Organizations Increase/(Decrease) (5,231) 194 
Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities Increase/(Decrease) 2,800,887             1,072,837             
Deferred Revenue Increase/(Decrease) 8,663,506             (8,452,193)           
School Generated Funds Liability  Increase/(Decrease) 176,976 (7,404)
Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Operating Transactions 28,183,096           (18,123,297)         

 Capital Transactions

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (8,430,805)           (4,680,461)           
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 5,662 2,713 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Capital Transactions (8,425,143)           (4,677,748)           

 Investing Transactions

Portfolio Investments (Increase)/Decrease - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Investing Transactions - -

 Financing Transactions
Debenture Debt Increase/(Decrease) 731,242 (821,165)              
Other Borrowings Increase/(Decrease) (345,937)              (903,157)              

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Financing Transactions 385,305 (1,724,322)           

 Cash and Bank / Overdraft (Increase)/Decrease 20,143,258           (24,525,367)         
 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at Beginning of Year (14,565,472)         9,959,895             

 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at End of Year 5,577,786             (14,565,472)         



River East Transcona School Division

SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
at June 30, 2015

Furniture / Computer Assets 2015 2014
School Other Fixtures & Hardware & Land Under TOTALS TOTALS

School Non-School Buses Vehicles Equipment Software * Land Improvements Construction

 Tangible Capital Asset Cost
 Opening Cost, as previously reported 116,577,954   6,537,137       6,593,505       399,734          3,582,285       13,856,372     1,878,287       2,802,823       2,967,543       155,195,640   153,146,577   

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening Cost adjusted 116,577,954   6,537,137       6,593,505       399,734          3,582,285       13,856,372     1,878,287       2,802,823       2,967,543       155,195,640   153,146,577   

Add:
Additions during the year

Less:
Disposals and write downs

 Closing Cost 118,088,256   6,537,137       6,966,297       400,457          3,506,762       14,418,232     1,878,287       3,016,292       7,855,156       162,666,876   155,195,640   

 Accumulated Amortization
 Opening, as previously reported 73,584,707     3,429,887       4,270,720       276,290          2,405,914       6,810,204       1,742,619       92,520,341     88,848,806     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening adjusted 73,584,707     3,429,887       4,270,720       276,290          2,405,914       6,810,204       1,742,619       92,520,341     88,848,806     

Add:
Current period Amortization

Less:
Accumulated Amortization
on Disposals and Writedowns

 Closing Accumulated Amortization 76,353,186     3,648,980       4,614,927       293,229          2,440,814       8,276,986       2,033,575       97,661,697     92,520,341     

 Net Tangible Capital Asset 41,735,070     2,888,157       2,351,370       107,228          1,065,948       6,141,246       1,878,287       982,717          7,855,156       65,005,179     62,675,299     

 Proceeds from Disposal of Capital Assets - - 1,967              3,695              - - 5,662              2,713              

* Includes network infrastructure.

1,510,302       

- 

2,768,479       

- 

28,978            335,669          

260,146          1,022,757       4,680,461       

2,631,398       

6,302,933       

2,631,398       - 

45,917            

Buildings and Leasehold 
Improvements

- 

370,569          

460,897          

- 506,817          29,701            

- 134,025          

- 134,025          28,978            335,669          

213,469          4,887,613       

- - 

290,956          

8,430,805       

959,569          

6,100,925       

959,569          

219,093          478,232          1,927,679       

460,897          
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Rolling River School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Financial Assets

Cash and Bank - - 
Due from  - Provincial Government 1,051,910 2,024,458 

 - Federal Government 64,082 79,098 
9  - Municipal Government 4,360,260 4,402,970 

 - Other School Divisions - - 
 - First Nations 376,565 358,755 

Accounts Receivable 125,856 91,804 
Accrued Investment Income - - 
Portfolio Investments - - 

5,978,673 6,957,085

 Liabilities

3 Overdraft 2,776,385 3,391,802 
Accounts Payable 391,415 841,114 
Accrued Liabilities 315,476 257,027 

4 Employee Future Benefits 112,328 62,021 
Accrued Interest Payable 123,100 146,679 
Due to  - Provincial Government 8,250 1,777 

 - Federal Government - - 
 - Municipal Government - - 
 - Other School Divisions - - 
 - First Nations - - 

Deferred Revenue - - 
6 Debenture Debt 6,215,085 6,406,100 

Other Borrowings - - 
School Generated Funds Liability - - 

9,942,039 11,106,520

 Net Debt (3,963,366) (4,149,435)

 Non-Financial Assets
7 Net Tangible Capital Assets (TCA Schedule) 10,560,527 10,254,415 

Inventories - - 
Prepaid Expenses 923,299 695,816 

11,483,826 10,950,231

8  Accumulated Surplus 7,520,460 6,800,796

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at June 30



Rolling River School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Revenue

Provincial Government 14,948,182  14,651,470  
Federal Government 78,583  29,315  
Municipal Government - Property Tax 7,573,002  7,649,650  

- Other -  -  
Other School Divisions 93,038  72,605  
First Nations 1,278,713  1,172,444  

Private Organizations and Individuals 32,007  39,415  
Other Sources 110,022  149,389  
School Generated Funds 588,037  594,268  
Other Special Purpose Funds -  -  

24,701,584 24,358,556

 Expenses

Regular Instruction 13,086,582  12,780,991  
Student Support Services 2,761,106  2,762,483  
Adult Learning Centres 117,092  115,224  
Community Education and Services 35,539  31,932  
Divisional Administration 923,112  894,874  
Instructional and Other Support Services 753,335  715,010  
Transportation of Pupils 1,509,700  1,530,328  
Operations and Maintenance 2,467,493  2,414,851  

10 Fiscal - Interest 369,742  369,884  
- Other 352,869  370,587  

Amortization 969,573  847,011  
Other Capital Items -  24,760  
School Generated Funds 585,470  567,527  
Other Special Purpose Funds -  -  

23,931,613 23,425,462

Current Year Surplus (Deficit) before Non-vested Sick Leave 769,971 933,094
Less: Non-vested Sick Leave Expense (Recovery) 50,307 7,757
Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 719,664 925,337

 Opening Accumulated Surplus 6,800,796  5,875,459  
 Adjustments: Tangible Cap. Assets and Accum. Amort. -  -  

Other than Tangible Cap. Assets -  -  
Non-vested sick leave - prior years -  -  

 Opening Accumulated Surplus, as adjusted 6,800,796 5,875,459

 Closing Accumulated Surplus 7,520,460 6,800,796

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF REVENUE, EXPENSES

 AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
For the Year Ended June 30



Rolling River School Division

2015 2014

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 719,664 925,337 

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 969,573 847,011 
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (1,275,685) (2,243,056)            
(Gain) / Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - - 
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - - 

(306,112) (1,396,045)            

Inventories (Increase)/Decrease - - 

Prepaid Expenses (Increase)/Decrease (227,483) 213,769 
(227,483) 213,769 

(Increase)/Decrease in Net Debt 186,069 (256,939)               

Net Debt at Beginning of Year (4,149,435) (3,892,496)            

Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - - 

(4,149,435) (3,892,496)            

Net Debt at End of Year (3,963,366) (4,149,435)            

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015



Rolling River School Division

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014

 Operating Transactions

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 719,664 925,337 
Non-Cash Items Included in Current Year Surplus/(Deficit):

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 969,573 847,011 
(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - - 
Employee Future Benefits Increase/(Decrease) 50,307 7,757 

Due from Other Organizations (Increase)/Decrease 1,012,464             (1,569,893)           
Accounts Receivable & Accrued Income (Increase)/Decrease (34,052) 62,133 
Inventories and Prepaid Expenses - (Increase)/Decrease (227,483) 213,769 
Due to Other Organizations Increase/(Decrease) 6,473 (412) 
Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities Increase/(Decrease) (414,829) (1,409,171)           
Deferred Revenue Increase/(Decrease) - (289,906) 
School Generated Funds Liability  Increase/(Decrease) - - 
Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - - 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Operating Transactions 2,082,117             (1,213,375)           

 Capital Transactions

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (1,275,685)           (2,243,056)           
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - - 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Capital Transactions (1,275,685)           (2,243,056)           

 Investing Transactions

Portfolio Investments (Increase)/Decrease - - 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Investing Transactions - - 

 Financing Transactions
Debenture Debt Increase/(Decrease) (191,015) (18,781) 
Other Borrowings Increase/(Decrease) - - 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Financing Transactions (191,015) (18,781) 

 Cash and Bank / Overdraft (Increase)/Decrease 615,417 (3,475,212)           
 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at Beginning of Year (3,391,802)           83,410 

 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at End of Year (2,776,385)           (3,391,802)           



Rolling River School Division
SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

at June 30, 2015

Furniture / Computer Assets 2015 2014
School Other Fixtures & Hardware & Land Under TOTALS TOTALS

School Non-School Buses Vehicles Equipment Software * Land Improvements Construction

 Tangible Capital Asset Cost
 Opening Cost, as previously reported 20,024,177     1,022,730       3,556,949       430,683          274,986          77,373            153,468          - 480,197          26,020,563     23,777,507     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening Cost adjusted 20,024,177     1,022,730       3,556,949       430,683          274,986          77,373            153,468          - 480,197          26,020,563     23,777,507     

Add:
Additions during the year

Less:
Disposals and write downs

 Closing Cost 20,707,971     1,022,730       3,858,173       471,843          627,786          407,676          153,468          - 46,601            27,296,248     26,020,563     

 Accumulated Amortization
 Opening, as previously reported 12,862,432     98,460            2,230,875       338,615          194,786          40,980            - 15,766,148     14,919,137     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening adjusted 12,862,432     98,460            2,230,875       338,615          194,786          40,980            - 15,766,148     14,919,137     

Add:
Current period Amortization

Less:
Accumulated Amortization
on Disposals and Writedowns

 Closing Accumulated Amortization 13,408,249     124,028          2,475,227       370,099          256,508          101,610          - 16,735,721     15,766,148     

 Net Tangible Capital Asset 7,299,722       898,702          1,382,946       101,744          371,278          306,066          153,468          - 46,601            10,560,527     10,254,415     

 Proceeds from Disposal of Capital Assets - - - - - - - - 

* Includes network infrastructure.

683,794          

- 

545,817          

- 

- - 

352,800          330,303          2,243,056       

- 

847,011          

- - 

31,484            

Buildings and Leasehold 
Improvements

- 

61,722            

- 

- 301,224          41,160            - 

- - 

- - - - 

- (433,596)         

- 

- 

1,275,685       

- 

969,573          

- 

25,568            244,352          60,630            

- 
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Seine River School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Financial Assets

Cash and Bank - - 
Due from  - Provincial Government 1,171,338 3,717,444 

 - Federal Government 139,514 139,527 
 - Municipal Government 8,399,761 7,529,651 
 - Other School Divisions 281 - 
 - First Nations - - 

Accounts Receivable 54,859 85,465 
Accrued Investment Income - - 
Portfolio Investments - - 

9,765,753 11,472,087

 Liabilities

4 Overdraft 3,067,392 6,588,006 
Accounts Payable 1,481,581 1,837,599 
Accrued Liabilities 625,606 398,389 

5 Employee Future Benefits 182,334 208,826 
Accrued Interest Payable 570,118 589,310 
Due to  - Provincial Government 149,570 142,106 

 - Federal Government 1,858,697 2,068,828 
 - Municipal Government 69,575 69,816 
 - Other School Divisions - - 
 - First Nations - - 

6 Deferred Revenue 1,463,080 4,398 
7 Debenture Debt 27,524,152 27,907,861 

Other Borrowings - - 
School Generated Funds Liability 45,977 28,801 

37,038,082 39,843,940

 Net Debt (27,272,329) (28,371,853)

 Non-Financial Assets
9 Net Tangible Capital Assets (TCA Schedule) 37,072,051 36,373,724 

Inventories - - 
Prepaid Expenses 43,868 712,906 

37,115,919 37,086,630

10  Accumulated Surplus 9,843,590 8,714,777

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at June 30



Seine River School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Revenue

Provincial Government 37,044,569 35,613,332 
Federal Government 20,711 4,861 

11 Municipal Government - Property Tax 12,510,069 10,990,895 
- Other - -

Other School Divisions 263,994 288,980 
First Nations 41,964 55,640 

Private Organizations and Individuals 45,098 43,450 
Other Sources 138,523 77,705 
School Generated Funds 780,634 1,035,646 
Other Special Purpose Funds - -

50,845,562 48,110,509

13  Expenses

Regular Instruction 26,027,136 23,939,690 
Student Support Services 7,572,025 7,711,600 
Adult Learning Centres 296,541 293,136 
Community Education and Services 197,053 179,371 
Divisional Administration 1,622,228 1,411,835 
Instructional and Other Support Services 1,531,610 1,416,595 
Transportation of Pupils 3,002,112 2,967,277 
Operations and Maintenance 4,618,770 4,359,874 

12 Fiscal - Interest 1,377,545 1,415,268 
- Other 737,279 705,614 

Amortization 2,020,019 1,906,023 
Other Capital Items - -

8 School Generated Funds 740,923 1,035,045 
Other Special Purpose Funds - -

49,743,241 47,341,328

Current Year Surplus (Deficit) before Non-vested Sick Leave 1,102,321 769,181
5 Less: Non-vested Sick Leave Expense (Recovery) (26,492) 76,850

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 1,128,813 692,331

 Opening Accumulated Surplus 8,714,777 8,022,446 
 Adjustments: Tangible Cap. Assets and Accum. Amort. - -

Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -
Non-vested sick leave - prior years - -

 Opening Accumulated Surplus, as adjusted 8,714,777 8,022,446

10  Closing Accumulated Surplus 9,843,590 8,714,777

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF REVENUE, EXPENSES

 AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
For the Year Ended June 30



Seine River School Division

2015 2014

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 1,128,813 692,331 

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 2,020,019 1,906,023             
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (2,730,617) (2,465,893)            
(Gain) / Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 7,771 (8,400) 
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 4,500 8,400 

(698,327) (559,870)               

Inventories (Increase)/Decrease - - 

Prepaid Expenses (Increase)/Decrease 669,038 (590,395)               
669,038 (590,395)               

(Increase)/Decrease in Net Debt 1,099,524 (457,934)               

Net Debt at Beginning of Year (28,371,853) (27,913,919)          

Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - - 

(28,371,853) (27,913,919)          

Net Debt at End of Year (27,272,329) (28,371,853)          

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015



Seine River School Division

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014

 Operating Transactions

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 1,128,813             692,331 
Non-Cash Items Included in Current Year Surplus/(Deficit):

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 2,020,019             1,906,023             
(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 7,771 (8,400)
Employee Future Benefits Increase/(Decrease) (26,492) 76,850 

Due from Other Organizations (Increase)/Decrease 1,675,728             (2,991,899)           
Accounts Receivable & Accrued Income (Increase)/Decrease 30,606 (14,474)
Inventories and Prepaid Expenses - (Increase)/Decrease 669,038 (590,395)              
Due to Other Organizations Increase/(Decrease) (202,908)              130,248 
Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities Increase/(Decrease) (147,993)              580,244 
Deferred Revenue Increase/(Decrease) 1,458,682             (1,786,332)           
School Generated Funds Liability  Increase/(Decrease) 17,176 13,242 
Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Operating Transactions 6,630,440             (1,992,562)           

 Capital Transactions

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (2,730,617)           (2,465,893)           
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 4,500 8,400 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Capital Transactions (2,726,117)           (2,457,493)           

 Investing Transactions

Portfolio Investments (Increase)/Decrease - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Investing Transactions - -

 Financing Transactions
Debenture Debt Increase/(Decrease) (383,709)              (459,477)              
Other Borrowings Increase/(Decrease) - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Financing Transactions (383,709)              (459,477)              

 Cash and Bank / Overdraft (Increase)/Decrease 3,520,614             (4,909,532)           
 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at Beginning of Year (6,588,006)           (1,678,474)           

 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at End of Year (3,067,392)           (6,588,006)           



Seine River School Division

SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
at June 30, 2015

Furniture / Computer Assets 2015 2014
School Other Fixtures & Hardware & Land Under TOTALS TOTALS

School Non-School Buses Vehicles Equipment Software * Land Improvements Construction

 Tangible Capital Asset Cost
 Opening Cost, as previously reported 50,867,705     3,062,701       5,822,240       163,792          817,076          450,051          451,886          40,533            510,297          62,186,281     59,995,630     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening Cost adjusted 50,867,705     3,062,701       5,822,240       163,792          817,076          450,051          451,886          40,533            510,297          62,186,281     59,995,630     

Add:
Additions during the year

Less:
Disposals and write downs

 Closing Cost 52,396,540     3,062,701       6,241,652       168,424          817,076          1,466,859       451,886          148,707          138,510          64,892,355     62,186,281     

 Accumulated Amortization
 Opening, as previously reported 20,268,181     905,734          3,530,528       122,028          598,852          385,207          2,027              25,812,557     24,181,776     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening adjusted 20,268,181     905,734          3,530,528       122,028          598,852          385,207          2,027              25,812,557     24,181,776     

Add:
Current period Amortization

Less:
Accumulated Amortization
on Disposals and Writedowns

 Closing Accumulated Amortization 21,637,114     1,002,245       3,914,509       120,910          653,952          480,085          11,489            27,820,304     25,812,557     

 Net Tangible Capital Asset 30,759,426     2,060,456       2,327,143       47,514            163,124          986,774          451,886          137,218          138,510          37,072,051     36,373,724     

 Proceeds from Disposal of Capital Assets - - - 4,500              - - 4,500              8,400              

* Includes network infrastructure.

1,528,835       

- 

1,368,933       

- 

24,543            - 

- 1,016,808       2,465,893       

275,242          

1,906,023       

275,242          - 

11,154            

Buildings and Leasehold 
Improvements

- 

55,100            

- 

- 419,412          29,175            - 

- - 

- 12,272            - 

108,174          (371,787)        

- 

9,462              

2,730,617       

24,543            

2,020,019       

12,272            

96,511            383,981          94,878            

- 
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Seven Oaks School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Financial Assets

Cash and Bank - - 
Due from  - Provincial Government 6,186,735 13,372,562 

 - Federal Government 425,585 502,822 
 - Municipal Government 20,078,619 18,692,622 
 - Other School Divisions 5,401 394 
 - First Nations 482,400 434,300 

Accounts Receivable 485,823 630,478 
Accrued Investment Income - - 
Portfolio Investments 461,250 - 

28,125,813 33,633,178

 Liabilities

3 Overdraft 16,710,637 21,998,755 
Accounts Payable 4,776,321 7,065,029 
Accrued Liabilities 1,669,944 1,185,075 

4 Employee Future Benefits 480,708 422,895 
Accrued Interest Payable 1,299,112 1,137,286 
Due to  - Provincial Government 402,880 384,534 

 - Federal Government 4,593,069 265,068 
 - Municipal Government 86,963 96,334 
 - Other School Divisions 13,497 68,842 
 - First Nations - - 

6 Deferred Revenue 5,101,184 138,040 
8 Debenture Debt 68,000,158 57,301,488 
9 Other Borrowings 9,105,939 9,603,813 

School Generated Funds Liability 412,927 461,699 

112,653,339 100,128,858

 Net Debt (84,527,526) (66,495,680)

 Non-Financial Assets
10 Net Tangible Capital Assets (TCA Schedule) 126,827,968 108,538,206 

Inventories 766 - 
Prepaid Expenses 270,640 182,169 

127,099,374 108,720,375

  Accumulated Surplus 42,571,848 42,224,695

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at June 30



Seven Oaks School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Revenue

Provincial Government 94,690,804  90,960,045  
Federal Government 837,583  628,944  
Municipal Government - Property Tax 33,516,763  31,216,201  

- Other 494  -  
Other School Divisions 1,080,548  1,108,396  
First Nations 648,800  525,200  

Private Organizations and Individuals 1,121,809  1,095,425  
Other Sources 187,097  357,720  
School Generated Funds 70,791  118,196  
Other Special Purpose Funds -  -  

132,154,689 126,010,127

 Expenses

Regular Instruction 72,904,555  69,063,996  
Student Support Services 22,188,756  20,726,279  
Adult Learning Centres 748,478  820,718  
Community Education and Services 1,776,701  1,443,237  
Divisional Administration 3,615,834  3,249,964  
Instructional and Other Support Services 4,602,622  4,595,347  
Transportation of Pupils 3,791,253  3,560,924  
Operations and Maintenance 11,551,194  10,869,061  

13 Fiscal - Interest 3,526,129  2,885,199  
- Other 2,005,481  1,922,514  

Amortization 4,721,537  3,964,266  
Other Capital Items 284,680  51,054  
School Generated Funds 32,503  115,649  
Other Special Purpose Funds -  -  

131,749,723 123,268,208

Current Year Surplus (Deficit) before Non-vested Sick Leave 404,966 2,741,919
Less: Non-vested Sick Leave Expense (Recovery) 57,813 (126,676)
Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 347,153 2,868,595

 Opening Accumulated Surplus 42,224,695  39,356,100  
 Adjustments: Tangible Cap. Assets and Accum. Amort. -  -  

Other than Tangible Cap. Assets -  -  
Non-vested sick leave - prior years -  -  

 Opening Accumulated Surplus, as adjusted 42,224,695 39,356,100

 Closing Accumulated Surplus 42,571,848 42,224,695

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF REVENUE, EXPENSES

 AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
For the Year Ended June 30



Seven Oaks School Division

2015 2014

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 347,153 2,868,595             

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 4,721,537 3,964,266             
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (23,011,299) (25,833,303)          
(Gain) / Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (6,000) (176,296)               
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 6,000 15,339 

(18,289,762) (22,029,994)          

Inventories (Increase)/Decrease (766) - 

Prepaid Expenses (Increase)/Decrease (88,471) 85,366 
(89,237) 85,366 

(Increase)/Decrease in Net Debt (18,031,846) (19,076,033)          

Net Debt at Beginning of Year (66,495,680) (47,419,647)          

Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - - 

(66,495,680) (47,419,647)          

Net Debt at End of Year (84,527,526) (66,495,680)          

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015



Seven Oaks School Division

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014

 Operating Transactions

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 347,153 2,868,595             
Non-Cash Items Included in Current Year Surplus/(Deficit):

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 4,721,537             3,964,266             
(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (6,000) (176,296) 
Employee Future Benefits Increase/(Decrease) 57,813 (126,676) 

Due from Other Organizations (Increase)/Decrease 5,823,960             (8,434,536)           
Accounts Receivable & Accrued Income (Increase)/Decrease 144,655 (469,208) 
Inventories and Prepaid Expenses - (Increase)/Decrease (89,237) 85,366 
Due to Other Organizations Increase/(Decrease) 4,281,631             (25,621) 
Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities Increase/(Decrease) (1,642,013)           617,409 
Deferred Revenue Increase/(Decrease) 4,963,144             (4,898,417)           
School Generated Funds Liability  Increase/(Decrease) (48,772) 4,398 
Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - - 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Operating Transactions 18,553,871           (6,590,720)           

 Capital Transactions

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (23,011,299)         (25,833,303)         
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 6,000 15,339 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Capital Transactions (23,005,299)         (25,817,964)         

 Investing Transactions

Portfolio Investments (Increase)/Decrease (461,250) - 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Investing Transactions (461,250) - 

 Financing Transactions
Debenture Debt Increase/(Decrease) 10,698,670           15,003,303           
Other Borrowings Increase/(Decrease) (497,874) 1,471,817             

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Financing Transactions 10,200,796           16,475,120           

 Cash and Bank / Overdraft (Increase)/Decrease 5,288,118             (15,933,564)         
 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at Beginning of Year (21,998,755)         (6,065,191)           

 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at End of Year (16,710,637)         (21,998,755)         



Seven Oaks School Division
SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

at June 30, 2015

Furniture / Computer Assets 2015 2014
School Other Fixtures & Hardware & Land Under TOTALS TOTALS

School Non-School Buses Vehicles Equipment Software * Land Improvements Construction

 Tangible Capital Asset Cost
 Opening Cost, as previously reported 106,428,909   2,177,320       4,635,394       398,086          1,608,040       3,456,232       13,065,220     886,397          25,694,383     158,349,981   132,912,085   

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening Cost adjusted 106,428,909   2,177,320       4,635,394       398,086          1,608,040       3,456,232       13,065,220     886,397          25,694,383     158,349,981   132,912,085   

Add:
Additions during the year

Less:
Disposals and write downs

 Closing Cost 145,331,121   2,177,320       4,647,345       415,622          1,887,370       3,596,592       16,116,305     917,635          5,774,127       180,863,437   158,349,981   

 Accumulated Amortization
 Opening, as previously reported 42,996,859     1,610,931       2,830,788       270,196          1,162,174       804,476          136,351          49,811,775     46,403,873     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening adjusted 42,996,859     1,610,931       2,830,788       270,196          1,162,174       804,476          136,351          49,811,775     46,403,873     

Add:
Current period Amortization

Less:
Accumulated Amortization
on Disposals and Writedowns

 Closing Accumulated Amortization 46,560,355     1,659,418       2,727,529       323,659          1,321,799       1,216,156       226,553          54,035,469     49,811,775     

 Net Tangible Capital Asset 98,770,766     517,902          1,919,816       91,963            565,571          2,380,436       16,116,305     691,082          5,774,127       126,827,968   108,538,206   

 Proceeds from Disposal of Capital Assets - - 6,000              - - - 6,000              15,339            

* Includes network infrastructure.

38,902,212     

- 

3,563,496       

- 

- - 

279,330          173,304          26,489,743     

1,051,847       

3,964,266       

556,364          - 

53,463            

Buildings and Leasehold 
Improvements

- 

159,625          

32,944            

- 476,850          17,536            3,051,085       

- 464,899          

- 464,899          - - 

31,238            (19,920,256)    

- - 

90,202            

23,011,299     

497,843          

4,721,537       

497,843          

48,487            361,640          444,624          

32,944            
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Southwest Horizon School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Financial Assets

Cash and Bank - - 
Due from  - Provincial Government 1,661,558 1,815,467 

 - Federal Government 141,817 162,269 
 - Municipal Government 4,869,760 4,796,089 
 - Other School Divisions - - 
 - First Nations - - 

Accounts Receivable 66,297 81,583 
Accrued Investment Income - - 
Portfolio Investments - - 

6,739,432 6,855,408

 Liabilities

4 Overdraft 3,666,234 5,128,795 
Accounts Payable 774,930 902,598 
Accrued Liabilities 574,479 259,721 
Employee Future Benefits - - 
Accrued Interest Payable 336,774 354,552 
Due to  - Provincial Government - - 

 - Federal Government - - 
 - Municipal Government - - 
 - Other School Divisions - - 
 - First Nations - - 

5 Deferred Revenue 136,005 9,696 
6 Debenture Debt 15,413,420 15,233,405 
7 Other Borrowings 1,257,082 1,419,270 

School Generated Funds Liability - - 

22,158,924 23,308,037

 Net Debt (15,419,492) (16,452,629)

 Non-Financial Assets
8 Net Tangible Capital Assets (TCA Schedule) 18,955,125 18,865,874 

Inventories 162,240 156,008 
Prepaid Expenses 848,549 1,194,305 

19,965,914 20,216,187

9  Accumulated Surplus 4,546,422 3,763,558

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at June 30



Southwest Horizon School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Revenue

Provincial Government 13,958,845 13,939,134 
Federal Government - -
Municipal Government - Property Tax 9,022,933 8,885,809 

- Other - 10,912 
Other School Divisions 105,370 101,650 
First Nations - -

Private Organizations and Individuals - 560 
Other Sources 85,051 87,867 
School Generated Funds 513,579 468,886 
Other Special Purpose Funds - -

23,685,778 23,494,818

 Expenses

Regular Instruction 11,758,289 11,368,865 
Student Support Services 2,606,863 2,620,034 
Adult Learning Centres - -
Community Education and Services 148,637 59,767 
Divisional Administration 831,823 827,273 
Instructional and Other Support Services 539,039 696,584 
Transportation of Pupils 1,935,216 1,998,065 
Operations and Maintenance 2,103,424 2,407,510 

11 Fiscal - Interest 884,779 931,450 
- Other 314,385 315,991 

Amortization 1,317,030 1,229,402 
Other Capital Items - -
School Generated Funds 476,928 472,452 
Other Special Purpose Funds - -

22,916,413 22,927,393

Current Year Surplus (Deficit) before Non-vested Sick Leave 769,365 567,425
Less: Non-vested Sick Leave Expense (Recovery) (13,499) (3,258)
Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 782,864 570,683

 Opening Accumulated Surplus 3,763,558 3,243,443 
 Adjustments: Tangible Cap. Assets and Accum. Amort. - -

Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -
Non-vested sick leave - prior years - (50,568)

 Opening Accumulated Surplus, as adjusted 3,763,558 3,192,875

 Closing Accumulated Surplus 4,546,422 3,763,558

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF REVENUE, EXPENSES

 AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
For the Year Ended June 30



Southwest Horizon School Division

2015 2014

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 782,864 570,683 

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 1,317,030 1,229,402             
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (1,406,281) (1,367,902)            
(Gain) / Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - (5,000) 
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - 5,000 

(89,251) (138,500)               

Inventories (Increase)/Decrease (6,232) (29,792) 

Prepaid Expenses (Increase)/Decrease 345,756 (87,692) 
339,524 (117,484)               

(Increase)/Decrease in Net Debt 1,033,137 314,699 

Net Debt at Beginning of Year (16,452,629) (16,716,760)          

Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - (50,568) 

(16,452,629) (16,767,328)          

Net Debt at End of Year (15,419,492) (16,452,629)          

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015



Southwest Horizon School Division

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014

 Operating Transactions

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 782,864 570,683 
Non-Cash Items Included in Current Year Surplus/(Deficit):

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 1,317,030             1,229,402             
(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - (5,000)
Employee Future Benefits Increase/(Decrease) - -

Due from Other Organizations (Increase)/Decrease 100,690 (739,276)              
Accounts Receivable & Accrued Income (Increase)/Decrease 15,286 258,145 
Inventories and Prepaid Expenses - (Increase)/Decrease 339,524 (117,484)              
Due to Other Organizations Increase/(Decrease) - -
Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities Increase/(Decrease) 169,312 31,676 
Deferred Revenue Increase/(Decrease) 126,309 (392,575)              
School Generated Funds Liability  Increase/(Decrease) - -
Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - (50,568)

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Operating Transactions 2,851,015             785,003 

 Capital Transactions

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (1,406,281)           (1,367,902)           
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - 5,000 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Capital Transactions (1,406,281)           (1,362,902)           

 Investing Transactions

Portfolio Investments (Increase)/Decrease - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Investing Transactions - -

 Financing Transactions
Debenture Debt Increase/(Decrease) 180,015 (427,993)              
Other Borrowings Increase/(Decrease) (162,188)              319,306 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Financing Transactions 17,827 (108,687)              

 Cash and Bank / Overdraft (Increase)/Decrease 1,462,561             (686,586)              
 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at Beginning of Year (5,128,795)           (4,442,209)           

 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at End of Year (3,666,234)           (5,128,795)           



Southwest Horizon School Division

SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
at June 30, 2015

Furniture / Computer Assets 2015 2014
School Other Fixtures & Hardware & Land Under TOTALS TOTALS

School Non-School Buses Vehicles Equipment Software * Land Improvements Construction

 Tangible Capital Asset Cost
 Opening Cost, as previously reported 28,398,427     1,246,273       4,257,926       172,929          1,224,130       148,935          308,940          - 407,166          36,164,726     34,829,324     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening Cost adjusted 28,398,427     1,246,273       4,257,926       172,929          1,224,130       148,935          308,940          - 407,166          36,164,726     34,829,324     

Add:
Additions during the year

Less:
Disposals and write downs

 Closing Cost 28,631,785     2,265,057       4,443,307       172,929          1,233,692       198,274          308,940          - 317,023          37,571,007     36,164,726     

 Accumulated Amortization
 Opening, as previously reported 12,714,270     708,764          2,995,218       110,821          687,046          82,733            - 17,298,852     16,101,950     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening adjusted 12,714,270     708,764          2,995,218       110,821          687,046          82,733            - 17,298,852     16,101,950     

Add:
Current period Amortization

Less:
Accumulated Amortization
on Disposals and Writedowns

 Closing Accumulated Amortization 13,525,765     751,151          3,258,029       130,927          840,197          109,813          - 18,615,882     17,298,852     

 Net Tangible Capital Asset 15,106,020     1,513,906       1,185,278       42,002            393,495          88,461            308,940          - 317,023          18,955,125     18,865,874     

 Proceeds from Disposal of Capital Assets - - - - - - - 5,000              

* Includes network infrastructure.

42,387            262,811          27,080            

- 

1,406,281       

- 

1,317,030       

- 

- (90,143)          

- - 

- 

Buildings and Leasehold 
Improvements

- 

153,151          

- 

1,018,784       185,381          - - 

- - 

- - - - 

233,358          

- 

811,495          

- 

- - 

9,562              49,339            1,367,902       

32,500            

1,229,402       

32,500            - 

20,106            
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St. James - Assiniboia School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Financial Assets

Cash and Bank 4,847,057 - 
Due from  - Provincial Government 3,211,543 10,199,062 

 - Federal Government 91,482 114,393 
 - Municipal Government 20,822,302 20,137,090 
 - Other School Divisions - - 
 - First Nations 36,770 27,847 

Accounts Receivable 85,520 76,785 
Accrued Investment Income - - 
Portfolio Investments - - 

29,094,674 30,555,177

 Liabilities

Overdraft - 6,815,702 
Accounts Payable 7,248,114 7,759,228 
Accrued Liabilities 4,694,642 5,110,549 

* Employee Future Benefits 1,808,689 1,911,238 
Accrued Interest Payable 305,409 252,471 
Due to  - Provincial Government - - 

 - Federal Government - - 
 - Municipal Government - - 
 - Other School Divisions - - 
 - First Nations - - 

* Deferred Revenue 6,943,121 911,759 
* Debenture Debt 20,212,918 16,273,454 

Other Borrowings - - 
School Generated Funds Liability 157,795 189,925 

41,370,688 39,224,326

 Net Debt (12,276,014) (8,669,149)

 Non-Financial Assets
* Net Tangible Capital Assets (TCA Schedule) 47,476,879 43,207,074 

Inventories - - 
Prepaid Expenses 359,589 445,944 

47,836,468 43,653,018

*  Accumulated Surplus 35,560,454 34,983,869

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at June 30



St. James - Assiniboia School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Revenue

Provincial Government 59,960,073  59,088,346  
Federal Government -  -  
Municipal Government - Property Tax 38,285,489  37,045,033  

- Other -  -  
Other School Divisions 722,612  755,777  
First Nations 200,087  147,984  

Private Organizations and Individuals 2,573,850  2,412,949  
Other Sources 983,270  891,610  
School Generated Funds 815,775  778,572  
Other Special Purpose Funds -  -  

103,541,156 101,120,271

 Expenses

Regular Instruction 55,706,675  54,648,215  
Student Support Services 20,264,480  19,841,412  
Adult Learning Centres -  -  
Community Education and Services 1,074,065  1,100,013  
Divisional Administration 3,769,210  3,260,459  
Instructional and Other Support Services 3,558,897  3,396,556  
Transportation of Pupils 1,991,278  1,861,222  
Operations and Maintenance 10,195,050  9,885,730  

* Fiscal - Interest 940,750  836,451  
- Other 1,633,300  1,600,638  

Amortization 3,131,621  3,033,237  
Other Capital Items -  84,467  
School Generated Funds 762,135  719,086  
Other Special Purpose Funds -  -  

103,027,461 100,267,486

Current Year Surplus (Deficit) before Non-vested Sick Leave 513,695 852,785
Less: Non-vested Sick Leave Expense (Recovery) (62,890) 172,657
Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 576,585 680,128

 Opening Accumulated Surplus 34,983,869  34,303,741  
 Adjustments: Tangible Cap. Assets and Accum. Amort. -  -  

Other than Tangible Cap. Assets -  -  
Non-vested sick leave - prior years -  -  

 Opening Accumulated Surplus, as adjusted 34,983,869 34,303,741

 Closing Accumulated Surplus 35,560,454 34,983,869

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements
* NOTE REQUIRED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF REVENUE, EXPENSES

 AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
For the Year Ended June 30



St. James - Assiniboia School Division

2015 2014

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 576,585 680,128 

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 3,131,621 3,033,237             
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (7,403,374) (5,714,816)            
(Gain) / Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (2,444) 4,109 
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 4,392 10,691 

(4,269,805) (2,666,779)            

Inventories (Increase)/Decrease - - 

Prepaid Expenses (Increase)/Decrease 86,355 (18,415) 
86,355 (18,415) 

(Increase)/Decrease in Net Debt (3,606,865) (2,005,066)            

Net Debt at Beginning of Year (8,669,149) (6,664,083)            

Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - - 

(8,669,149) (6,664,083)            

Net Debt at End of Year (12,276,014) (8,669,149)            

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015



St. James - Assiniboia School Division

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014

 Operating Transactions

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 576,585 680,128 
Non-Cash Items Included in Current Year Surplus/(Deficit):

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 3,131,621             3,033,237             
(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (2,444) 4,109 
Employee Future Benefits Increase/(Decrease) (102,549)              185,314 

Due from Other Organizations (Increase)/Decrease 6,316,295             (8,281,713)           
Accounts Receivable & Accrued Income (Increase)/Decrease (8,735) 301,202 
Inventories and Prepaid Expenses - (Increase)/Decrease 86,355 (18,415)
Due to Other Organizations Increase/(Decrease) - -
Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities Increase/(Decrease) (874,083)              3,100,304             
Deferred Revenue Increase/(Decrease) 6,031,362             (5,814,689)           
School Generated Funds Liability  Increase/(Decrease) (32,130) 5,713 
Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Operating Transactions 15,122,277           (6,804,810)           

 Capital Transactions

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (7,403,374)           (5,714,816)           
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 4,392 10,691 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Capital Transactions (7,398,982)           (5,704,125)           

 Investing Transactions

Portfolio Investments (Increase)/Decrease - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Investing Transactions - -

 Financing Transactions
Debenture Debt Increase/(Decrease) 3,939,464             2,012,050             
Other Borrowings Increase/(Decrease) - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Financing Transactions 3,939,464             2,012,050             

 Cash and Bank / Overdraft (Increase)/Decrease 11,662,759           (10,496,885)         
 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at Beginning of Year (6,815,702)           3,681,183             

 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at End of Year 4,847,057             (6,815,702)           



St. James - Assiniboia School Division
SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

at June 30, 2015

Furniture / Computer Assets 2015 2014
School Other Fixtures & Hardware & Land Under TOTALS TOTALS

School Non-School Buses Vehicles Equipment Software * Land Improvements Construction

 Tangible Capital Asset Cost
 Opening Cost, as previously reported 64,601,199     4,155,695       838,588          680,816          3,681,389       3,764,768       7,025,776       4,813,685       3,547,593       93,109,509     87,817,421     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening Cost adjusted 64,601,199     4,155,695       838,588          680,816          3,681,389       3,764,768       7,025,776       4,813,685       3,547,593       93,109,509     87,817,421     

Add:
Additions during the year

Less:
Disposals and write downs

 Closing Cost 71,098,726     4,324,198       838,588          721,711          3,852,607       3,784,780       7,025,776       5,812,794       2,943,918       100,403,098   93,109,509     

 Accumulated Amortization
 Opening, as previously reported 39,249,072     2,783,364       489,508          589,168          2,968,087       1,647,631       2,175,605       49,902,435     47,277,126     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening adjusted 39,249,072     2,783,364       489,508          589,168          2,968,087       1,647,631       2,175,605       49,902,435     47,277,126     

Add:
Current period Amortization

Less:
Accumulated Amortization
on Disposals and Writedowns

 Closing Accumulated Amortization 40,944,148     2,868,265       548,762          598,079          3,178,455       2,096,728       2,691,782       52,926,219     49,902,435     

 Net Tangible Capital Asset 30,154,578     1,455,933       289,826          123,632          674,152          1,688,052       7,025,776       3,121,012       2,943,918       47,476,879     43,207,074     

 Proceeds from Disposal of Capital Assets - - - 2,192              2,200              - 4,392              10,691            

* Includes network infrastructure.

6,497,527       

- 

1,695,076       

- 

28,832            80,953            

252,171          20,012            5,714,816       

422,728          

3,033,237       

407,928          - 

37,743            

Buildings and Leasehold 
Improvements

- 

289,373          

- 

168,503          - 69,727            - 

- - 

- - 28,832            79,005            

999,109          (603,675)         

- - 

516,177          

7,403,374       

109,785          

3,131,621       

107,837          

84,901            59,254            449,097          

- 
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Sunrise School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Financial Assets

Cash and Bank - - 
Due from  - Provincial Government 5,577,930 6,686,005 

 - Federal Government 210,046 299,348 
 - Municipal Government 13,216,090 12,423,278 
 - Other School Divisions 187,366 29,120 
 - First Nations 414,177 193,245 

Accounts Receivable 1,116,160 112,349 
Accrued Investment Income - - 
Portfolio Investments - - 

20,721,769 19,743,345

 Liabilities

* Overdraft 14,661,091 16,052,469 
Accounts Payable 1,265,870 988,984 
Accrued Liabilities 1,379,875 278,731 

* Employee Future Benefits 627,371 690,175 
Accrued Interest Payable 339,365 366,628 
Due to  - Provincial Government 4,359 4,259 

 - Federal Government 1,292 1,079 
 - Municipal Government - - 
 - Other School Divisions - 34,710 
 - First Nations - - 

* Deferred Revenue 965,762 51,644 
* Debenture Debt 20,002,632 20,502,141 
* Other Borrowings 3,523,937 - 

School Generated Funds Liability 60,159 48,219 

42,831,713 39,019,039

 Net Debt (22,109,944) (19,275,694)

 Non-Financial Assets
* Net Tangible Capital Assets (TCA Schedule) 36,251,604 33,459,246 

Inventories 377,300 310,617 
Prepaid Expenses 128,416 101,526 

36,757,320 33,871,389

*  Accumulated Surplus 14,647,376 14,595,695

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at June 30



Sunrise School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Revenue

Provincial Government 40,609,756 40,020,559 
Federal Government - 20,604 
Municipal Government - Property Tax 23,058,492 21,660,677 

- Other - -
Other School Divisions 196,978 165,223 
First Nations 300,876 350,089 

Private Organizations and Individuals 37,741 108,300 
Other Sources 207,450 216,143 
School Generated Funds 1,052,683 1,119,340 
Other Special Purpose Funds 15,121 26,757 

65,479,097 63,687,692

 Expenses

Regular Instruction 32,290,570 31,118,494 
Student Support Services 11,187,743 11,384,055 
Adult Learning Centres 969,452 943,773 
Community Education and Services 294,284 315,645 
Divisional Administration 2,006,143 2,055,982 
Instructional and Other Support Services 1,314,759 1,516,410 
Transportation of Pupils 4,852,730 4,765,787 
Operations and Maintenance 6,532,240 6,200,602 

* Fiscal - Interest 1,219,841 1,211,677 
- Other 936,436 926,180 

Amortization 2,824,211 2,530,538 
Other Capital Items 3,171 25,107 
School Generated Funds 971,553 898,478 
Other Special Purpose Funds 18,724 -

65,421,857 63,892,728

Current Year Surplus (Deficit) before Non-vested Sick Leave 57,240 (205,036)
Less: Non-vested Sick Leave Expense (Recovery) 5,559 (55,676)
Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 51,681 (149,360)

 Opening Accumulated Surplus 14,595,695 14,745,055 
 Adjustments: Tangible Cap. Assets and Accum. Amort. - -

Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -
Non-vested sick leave - prior years - -

 Opening Accumulated Surplus, as adjusted 14,595,695 14,745,055

 Closing Accumulated Surplus 14,647,376 14,595,695

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements
* NOTE REQUIRED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF REVENUE, EXPENSES

 AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
For the Year Ended June 30



Sunrise School Division

2015 2014

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 51,681 (149,360)               

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 2,824,211 2,530,538             
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (5,633,290) (5,762,484)            
(Gain) / Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (19,188) - 
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 35,909 - 

(2,792,358) (3,231,946)            

Inventories (Increase)/Decrease (66,683) (20,779) 

Prepaid Expenses (Increase)/Decrease (26,890) 28,785 
(93,573) 8,006 

(Increase)/Decrease in Net Debt (2,834,250) (3,373,300)            

Net Debt at Beginning of Year (19,275,694) (15,902,394)          

Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - - 

(19,275,694) (15,902,394)          

Net Debt at End of Year (22,109,944) (19,275,694)          

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015



Sunrise School Division

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014

 Operating Transactions

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 51,681 (149,360)              
Non-Cash Items Included in Current Year Surplus/(Deficit):

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 2,824,211             2,530,538             
(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (19,188) -
Employee Future Benefits Increase/(Decrease) (62,804) (172,647)              

Due from Other Organizations (Increase)/Decrease 25,387 (1,943,580)           
Accounts Receivable & Accrued Income (Increase)/Decrease (1,003,811)           92,730 
Inventories and Prepaid Expenses - (Increase)/Decrease (93,573) 8,006 
Due to Other Organizations Increase/(Decrease) (34,397) 33,970 
Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities Increase/(Decrease) 1,350,767             (949,283)              
Deferred Revenue Increase/(Decrease) 914,118 (948,853)              
School Generated Funds Liability  Increase/(Decrease) 11,940 (6,302)
Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Operating Transactions 3,964,331             (1,504,781)           

 Capital Transactions

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (5,633,290)           (5,762,484)           
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 35,909 -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Capital Transactions (5,597,381)           (5,762,484)           

 Investing Transactions

Portfolio Investments (Increase)/Decrease - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Investing Transactions - -

 Financing Transactions
Debenture Debt Increase/(Decrease) (499,509)              933,240 
Other Borrowings Increase/(Decrease) 3,523,937             -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Financing Transactions 3,024,428             933,240 

 Cash and Bank / Overdraft (Increase)/Decrease 1,391,378             (6,334,025)           
 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at Beginning of Year (16,052,469)         (9,718,444)           

 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at End of Year (14,661,091)         (16,052,469)         



Sunrise School Division
SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

at June 30, 2015

Furniture / Computer Assets 2015 2014
School Other Fixtures & Hardware & Land Under TOTALS TOTALS

School Non-School Buses Vehicles Equipment Software * Land Improvements Construction

 Tangible Capital Asset Cost
 Opening Cost, as previously reported 51,807,130    2,100,766      10,078,710    207,962          2,197,696      3,384,669      236,182          364,822          2,492,127      72,870,064    67,107,580    

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening Cost adjusted 51,807,130    2,100,766      10,078,710    207,962          2,197,696      3,384,669      236,182          364,822          2,492,127      72,870,064    67,107,580    

Add:
Additions during the year

Less:
Disposals and write downs

 Closing Cost 52,299,771    8,105,323      10,624,491    152,226          2,266,310      4,059,152      236,182          364,822          339,341          78,447,618    72,870,064    

 Accumulated Amortization
 Opening, as previously reported 28,767,905    1,607,771      6,227,659      180,093          734,887          1,748,723      143,780          39,410,818    36,880,280    

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening adjusted 28,767,905    1,607,771      6,227,659      180,093          734,887          1,748,723      143,780          39,410,818    36,880,280    

Add:
Current period Amortization

Less:
Accumulated Amortization
on Disposals and Writedowns

 Closing Accumulated Amortization 29,966,870    1,721,545      6,957,502      152,226          1,052,676      2,164,933      180,262          42,196,014    39,410,818    

 Net Tangible Capital Asset 22,332,901    6,383,778      3,666,989      - 1,213,634      1,894,219      236,182          184,560          339,341          36,251,604    33,459,246    

 Proceeds from Disposal of Capital Assets - - - 35,909            - - 35,909            - 

* Includes network infrastructure.

113,774          729,843          416,210          

- 

5,633,290      

55,736            

2,824,211      

39,015            

- (2,152,786)     

- 

36,482            

Buildings and Leasehold 
Improvements

- 

317,789          

- 

6,004,557      545,781          - - 

- 

- - 39,015            - 

492,641          

- 

1,198,965      

- 

55,736            - 

68,614            674,483          5,762,484      

- 

2,530,538      

- - 

11,148            
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Swan Valley School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Financial Assets

Cash and Bank 802,254 443,234 
Due from  - Provincial Government 1,935,964 2,001,615 

 - Federal Government 33,278 54,122 
 - Municipal Government 2,858,789 2,760,928 
 - Other School Divisions 7,734 8,308 
 - First Nations 73,471 137,813 

Accounts Receivable 288,876 68,405 
Accrued Investment Income - - 
Portfolio Investments - - 

6,000,366 5,474,425

 Liabilities

Overdraft - - 
Accounts Payable 349,251 312,331 
Accrued Liabilities 2,249,853 1,892,617 

5 Employee Future Benefits 107,076 117,108 
Accrued Interest Payable 320,222 292,790 
Due to  - Provincial Government 871 1,573 

 - Federal Government 480 7,295 
 - Municipal Government 75,243 46,296 
 - Other School Divisions - - 
 - First Nations - - 

6 Deferred Revenue 257,691 268,331 
8 Debenture Debt 12,479,961 11,294,042 

Other Borrowings - - 
School Generated Funds Liability 1,945 1,896 

15,842,593 14,234,279

 Net Debt (9,842,227) (8,759,854)

 Non-Financial Assets
9 Net Tangible Capital Assets (TCA Schedule) 15,475,798 13,781,561 

Inventories 19,294 23,267 
Prepaid Expenses 66,222 79,817 

15,561,314 13,884,645

10  Accumulated Surplus 5,719,087 5,124,791

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at June 30



Swan Valley School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Revenue

Provincial Government 16,254,778 16,022,656 
Federal Government - -
Municipal Government - Property Tax 5,203,201 5,016,812 

- Other - -
Other School Divisions 36,696 36,790 
First Nations 267,925 358,259 

Private Organizations and Individuals 244,585 217,320 
Other Sources 156,223 181,149 
School Generated Funds 480,187 640,700 
Other Special Purpose Funds 18,736 14,786 

22,662,331 22,488,472

 Expenses

Regular Instruction 11,213,960 11,363,328 
Student Support Services 2,995,001 3,110,584 
Adult Learning Centres - -
Community Education and Services 222,133 205,577 
Divisional Administration 849,567 800,727 
Instructional and Other Support Services 423,344 528,911 
Transportation of Pupils 1,555,308 1,597,820 
Operations and Maintenance 2,326,593 2,228,444 

12 Fiscal - Interest 557,250 469,989 
- Other 314,847 312,932 

Amortization 1,087,201 1,002,442 
Other Capital Items 42,914 104,197 
School Generated Funds 477,843 620,137 
Other Special Purpose Funds 18,736 14,786 

22,084,697 22,359,874

Current Year Surplus (Deficit) before Non-vested Sick Leave 577,634 128,598
Less: Non-vested Sick Leave Expense (Recovery) (16,662) (22,938)
Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 594,296 151,536

 Opening Accumulated Surplus 5,124,791 4,973,255 
 Adjustments: Tangible Cap. Assets and Accum. Amort. - -

Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -
Non-vested sick leave - prior years - -

 Opening Accumulated Surplus, as adjusted 5,124,791 4,973,255

 Closing Accumulated Surplus 5,719,087 5,124,791

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF REVENUE, EXPENSES

 AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
For the Year Ended June 30



Swan Valley School Division

2015 2014

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 594,296 151,536 

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 1,087,201 1,002,442             
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (2,781,438) (4,056,842)            
(Gain) / Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (7,203) (6,000) 
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 7,203 6,000 

(1,694,237) (3,054,400)            

Inventories (Increase)/Decrease 3,973 (3,419) 

Prepaid Expenses (Increase)/Decrease 13,595 10,865 
17,568 7,446 

(Increase)/Decrease in Net Debt (1,082,373) (2,895,418)            

Net Debt at Beginning of Year (8,759,854) (5,864,436)            

Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - - 

(8,759,854) (5,864,436)            

Net Debt at End of Year (9,842,227) (8,759,854)            

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015



Swan Valley School Division

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014

 Operating Transactions

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 594,296 151,536 
Non-Cash Items Included in Current Year Surplus/(Deficit):

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 1,087,201             1,002,442             
(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (7,203) (6,000)
Employee Future Benefits Increase/(Decrease) (10,032) (106,772)              

Due from Other Organizations (Increase)/Decrease 53,550 (636,167)              
Accounts Receivable & Accrued Income (Increase)/Decrease (220,471)              (32,988)
Inventories and Prepaid Expenses - (Increase)/Decrease 17,568 7,446 
Due to Other Organizations Increase/(Decrease) 21,430 18,978 
Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities Increase/(Decrease) 421,588 (442,405)              
Deferred Revenue Increase/(Decrease) (10,640) (679,609)              
School Generated Funds Liability  Increase/(Decrease) 49 (512)
Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Operating Transactions 1,947,336             (724,051)              

 Capital Transactions

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (2,781,438)           (4,056,842)           
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 7,203 6,000 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Capital Transactions (2,774,235)           (4,050,842)           

 Investing Transactions

Portfolio Investments (Increase)/Decrease - 447 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Investing Transactions - 447 

 Financing Transactions
Debenture Debt Increase/(Decrease) 1,185,919             3,935,460             
Other Borrowings Increase/(Decrease) - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Financing Transactions 1,185,919             3,935,460             

 Cash and Bank / Overdraft (Increase)/Decrease 359,020 (838,986)              
 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at Beginning of Year 443,234 1,282,220             

 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at End of Year 802,254 443,234 



Swan Valley School Division

SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
at June 30, 2015

Furniture / Computer Assets 2015 2014
School Other Fixtures & Hardware & Land Under TOTALS TOTALS

School Non-School Buses Vehicles Equipment Software * Land Improvements Construction

 Tangible Capital Asset Cost
 Opening Cost, as previously reported 17,474,822     539,624          3,302,938       360,877          1,731,374       1,256,781       280,490          288,426          4,715,049       29,950,381     26,032,915     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening Cost adjusted 17,474,822     539,624          3,302,938       360,877          1,731,374       1,256,781       280,490          288,426          4,715,049       29,950,381     26,032,915     

Add:
Additions during the year

Less:
Disposals and write downs

 Closing Cost 17,474,822     589,777          3,580,028       324,731          1,735,014       1,140,984       280,490          525,105          6,699,577       32,350,528     29,950,381     

 Accumulated Amortization
 Opening, as previously reported 11,391,726     458,980          1,998,148       267,437          1,129,765       850,657          72,107            16,168,820     15,305,754     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening adjusted 11,391,726     458,980          1,998,148       267,437          1,129,765       850,657          72,107            16,168,820     15,305,754     

Add:
Current period Amortization

Less:
Accumulated Amortization
on Disposals and Writedowns

 Closing Accumulated Amortization 11,808,018     467,122          2,247,618       260,261          1,169,185       809,742          112,784          16,874,730     16,168,820     

 Net Tangible Capital Asset 5,666,804       122,655          1,332,410       64,470            565,829          331,242          280,490          412,321          6,699,577       15,475,798     13,781,561     

 Proceeds from Disposal of Capital Assets - - - 5,000              2,203              - 7,203              6,000              

* Includes network infrastructure.

8,142              249,470          133,187          

174,102          

2,781,438       

381,291          

1,087,201       

381,291          

236,679          1,984,528       

- - 

40,677            

Buildings and Leasehold 
Improvements

- 

210,463          

174,102          

50,153            277,090          - - 

- - 

- - 36,146            171,043          

- 

- 

416,292          

- 

36,146            171,043          

174,683          58,305            4,056,842       

139,376          

1,002,442       

139,376          - 

28,970            
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Turtle Mountain School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Financial Assets

Cash and Bank - - 
Due from  - Provincial Government 635,227 943,282 

 - Federal Government 41,429 70,551 
 - Municipal Government 2,876,232 2,667,489 
 - Other School Divisions - - 
 - First Nations - - 

Accounts Receivable 39,576 57,591 
Accrued Investment Income - - 
Portfolio Investments - - 

3,592,464 3,738,913

 Liabilities

(4) Overdraft 1,847,751 2,216,521 
Accounts Payable 1,340,653 1,342,591 
Accrued Liabilities 111,322 96,981 

(5) Employee Future Benefits 133,566 133,793 
Accrued Interest Payable 49,466 55,660 
Due to  - Provincial Government - - 

 - Federal Government - - 
 - Municipal Government 30,943 31,792 
 - Other School Divisions - - 
 - First Nations - - 

(6) Deferred Revenue 225,681 - 
(7) Debenture Debt 3,489,102 3,296,746 

Other Borrowings - - 
(8) School Generated Funds Liability 107,522 102,841 

7,336,006 7,276,925

 Net Debt (3,743,542) (3,538,012)

 Non-Financial Assets
(9) Net Tangible Capital Assets (TCA Schedule) 4,651,922 4,572,875 

Inventories 68,001 68,816 
(15) Prepaid Expenses 763,236 819,371 

5,483,159 5,461,062

(12)  Accumulated Surplus 1,739,617 1,923,050

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at June 30



Turtle Mountain School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Revenue

Provincial Government 8,339,241  8,249,526  
Federal Government 156  177  
Municipal Government - Property Tax 4,899,999  4,531,827  

- Other -  -  
Other School Divisions 24,700  37,700  
First Nations -  -  

Private Organizations and Individuals 11,914  5,306  
Other Sources 32,448  48,469  
School Generated Funds 266,073  366,797  
Other Special Purpose Funds -  -  

13,574,531 13,239,802

 Expenses

Regular Instruction 7,148,963  6,676,748  
Student Support Services 2,132,024  2,055,924  
Adult Learning Centres 201,830  208,707  
Community Education and Services 13,261  15,447  
Divisional Administration 552,080  563,267  
Instructional and Other Support Services 452,017  477,993  
Transportation of Pupils 1,094,330  1,126,614  
Operations and Maintenance 986,872  1,009,309  

(13) Fiscal - Interest 231,499  219,937  
- Other 202,760  199,772  

Amortization 439,218  416,976  
Other Capital Items 4,627  61,177  
School Generated Funds 300,855  362,785  
Other Special Purpose Funds -  -  

13,760,336 13,394,656

Current Year Surplus (Deficit) before Non-vested Sick Leave (185,805) (154,854)
Less: Non-vested Sick Leave Expense (Recovery) (2,372) 21,688
Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) (183,433) (176,542)

 Opening Accumulated Surplus 1,923,050  2,099,592  
 Adjustments: Tangible Cap. Assets and Accum. Amort. -  -  

Other than Tangible Cap. Assets -  -  
Non-vested sick leave - prior years -  -  

 Opening Accumulated Surplus, as adjusted 1,923,050 2,099,592

 Closing Accumulated Surplus 1,739,617 1,923,050

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF REVENUE, EXPENSES

 AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
For the Year Ended June 30



Turtle Mountain School Division

2015 2014

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) (183,433) (176,542)               

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 439,218 416,976 
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (579,464) (813,160)               
(Gain) / Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (8,354) (16,023) 
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 69,553 21,969 

(79,047) (390,238)               

Inventories (Increase)/Decrease 815 (3,452) 

Prepaid Expenses (Increase)/Decrease 56,135 (603,240)               
56,950 (606,692)               

(Increase)/Decrease in Net Debt (205,530) (1,173,472)            

Net Debt at Beginning of Year (3,538,012) (2,364,540)            

Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - - 

(3,538,012) (2,364,540)            

Net Debt at End of Year (3,743,542) (3,538,012)            

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015



Turtle Mountain School Division

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014

 Operating Transactions

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) (183,433)              (176,542)              
Non-Cash Items Included in Current Year Surplus/(Deficit):

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 439,218 416,976 
(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (8,354) (16,023)
Employee Future Benefits Increase/(Decrease) (227) 24,392 

Due from Other Organizations (Increase)/Decrease 128,434 (757,342)              
Accounts Receivable & Accrued Income (Increase)/Decrease 18,015 30,961 
Inventories and Prepaid Expenses - (Increase)/Decrease 56,950 (606,692)              
Due to Other Organizations Increase/(Decrease) (849) (4,094)
Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities Increase/(Decrease) 6,209 177,475 
Deferred Revenue Increase/(Decrease) 225,681 (374,692)              
School Generated Funds Liability  Increase/(Decrease) 4,681 (10,522)
Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Operating Transactions 686,325 (1,296,103)           

 Capital Transactions

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (579,464)              (813,160)              
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 69,553 21,969 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Capital Transactions (509,911)              (791,191)              

 Investing Transactions

Portfolio Investments (Increase)/Decrease - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Investing Transactions - -

 Financing Transactions
Debenture Debt Increase/(Decrease) 192,356 (80,987)
Other Borrowings Increase/(Decrease) - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Financing Transactions 192,356 (80,987)

 Cash and Bank / Overdraft (Increase)/Decrease 368,770 (2,168,281)           
 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at Beginning of Year (2,216,521)           (48,240)

 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at End of Year (1,847,751)           (2,216,521)           



Turtle Mountain School Division
SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

at June 30, 2015

Furniture / Computer Assets 2015 2014
School Other Fixtures & Hardware & Land Under TOTALS TOTALS

School Non-School Buses Vehicles Equipment Software * Land Improvements Construction

 Tangible Capital Asset Cost
 Opening Cost, as previously reported 8,614,457       580,476          2,385,614       83,749            176,662          53,724            45,451            320,207          13 12,260,353     11,557,922     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening Cost adjusted 8,614,457       580,476          2,385,614       83,749            176,662          53,724            45,451            320,207          13 12,260,353     11,557,922     

Add:
Additions during the year

Less:
Disposals and write downs

 Closing Cost 8,928,258       580,476          2,337,901       83,749            195,282          65,780            45,451            320,207          60,786            12,617,890     12,260,353     

 Accumulated Amortization
 Opening, as previously reported 5,182,938       428,270          1,590,342       16,479            117,133          32,109            320,207          7,687,478       7,375,285       

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening adjusted 5,182,938       428,270          1,590,342       16,479            117,133          32,109            320,207          7,687,478       7,375,285       

Add:
Current period Amortization

Less:
Accumulated Amortization
on Disposals and Writedowns

 Closing Accumulated Amortization 5,410,125       437,495          1,587,246       33,229            140,724          36,942            320,207          7,965,968       7,687,478       

 Net Tangible Capital Asset 3,518,133       142,981          750,655          50,520            54,558            28,838            45,451            - 60,786            4,651,922       4,572,875       

 Proceeds from Disposal of Capital Assets - - 69,553            - - - 69,553            21,969            

* Includes network infrastructure.

9,225              157,632          4,833              

- 

579,464          

221,927          

439,218          

160,728          

- 60,773            

- - 

- 

Buildings and Leasehold 
Improvements

- 

23,591            

- 

- 174,214          - - 

- 221,927          

- 160,728          - - 

313,801          

- 

227,187          

- 

- - 

18,620            12,056            813,160          

110,729          

416,976          

104,783          - 

16,750            
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Turtle River School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Financial Assets

Cash and Bank 752,686 639,002 
Due from  - Provincial Government 442,350 758,533 

 - Federal Government 112,364 103,093 
 - Municipal Government 1,172,405 1,115,596 
 - Other School Divisions - - 
 - First Nations - - 

Accounts Receivable 9,942 1,464 
Accrued Investment Income - - 
Portfolio Investments - - 

2,489,747 2,617,688

 Liabilities

Overdraft - - 
Accounts Payable 297,103 310,917 
Accrued Liabilities 760,673 693,839 

3 Employee Future Benefits 18,480 46,702 
Accrued Interest Payable 88,888 80,559 
Due to  - Provincial Government - 140 

 - Federal Government - - 
 - Municipal Government - 32 
 - Other School Divisions 120,503 91,740 
 - First Nations - - 

6 Deferred Revenue 62,201 - 
8 Debenture Debt 3,799,297 2,871,417 

Other Borrowings - - 
School Generated Funds Liability - - 

5,147,145 4,095,346

 Net Debt (2,657,398) (1,477,658)

 Non-Financial Assets
3 Net Tangible Capital Assets (TCA Schedule) 5,863,772 4,535,959 

Inventories 101,315 114,993 
Prepaid Expenses 45,151 48,343 

6,010,238 4,699,295

9  Accumulated Surplus 3,352,840 3,221,637

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at June 30



Turtle River School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Revenue

Provincial Government 9,103,922  8,940,104  
Federal Government -  -  
Municipal Government - Property Tax 2,352,238  2,247,441  

- Other -  -  
Other School Divisions 24,050  20,800  
First Nations -  -  

Private Organizations and Individuals 12,369  32,037  
Other Sources 11,038  9,852  
School Generated Funds 287,118  342,511  
Other Special Purpose Funds -  -  

11,790,735 11,592,745

 Expenses

Regular Instruction 6,087,647  5,901,880  
Student Support Services 1,700,707  1,637,737  
Adult Learning Centres -  -  
Community Education and Services 10,038  10,868  
Divisional Administration 383,613  356,342  
Instructional and Other Support Services 260,360  258,044  
Transportation of Pupils 1,068,819  1,091,864  
Operations and Maintenance 1,076,537  1,055,279  

11 Fiscal - Interest 169,526  145,218  
- Other 162,161  156,592  

Amortization 482,377  482,228  
Other Capital Items -  -  
School Generated Funds 285,969  361,559  
Other Special Purpose Funds -  -  

11,687,754 11,457,611

Current Year Surplus (Deficit) before Non-vested Sick Leave 102,981 135,134
Less: Non-vested Sick Leave Expense (Recovery) (28,222) 6,156
Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 131,203 128,978

 Opening Accumulated Surplus 3,221,637  3,092,659  
 Adjustments: Tangible Cap. Assets and Accum. Amort. -  -  

Other than Tangible Cap. Assets -  -  
Non-vested sick leave - prior years -  -  

 Opening Accumulated Surplus, as adjusted 3,221,637 3,092,659

 Closing Accumulated Surplus 3,352,840 3,221,637

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF REVENUE, EXPENSES

 AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
For the Year Ended June 30



Turtle River School Division

2015 2014

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 131,203 128,978 

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 482,377 482,228 
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (1,810,190) (1,395,065)            
(Gain) / Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (4,168) - 
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 4,168 - 

(1,327,813) (912,837)               

Inventories (Increase)/Decrease 13,678 325 

Prepaid Expenses (Increase)/Decrease 3,192 13,627 
16,870 13,952 

(Increase)/Decrease in Net Debt (1,179,740) (769,907)               

Net Debt at Beginning of Year (1,477,658) (707,751)               

Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - - 

(1,477,658) (707,751)               

Net Debt at End of Year (2,657,398) (1,477,658)            

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015



Turtle River School Division

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014

 Operating Transactions

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 131,203 128,978 
Non-Cash Items Included in Current Year Surplus/(Deficit):

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 482,377 482,228 
(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (4,168) - 
Employee Future Benefits Increase/(Decrease) (28,222) 6,156 

Due from Other Organizations (Increase)/Decrease 250,103 (489,245) 
Accounts Receivable & Accrued Income (Increase)/Decrease (8,478) 18,130 
Inventories and Prepaid Expenses - (Increase)/Decrease 16,870 13,952 
Due to Other Organizations Increase/(Decrease) 28,591 91,740 
Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities Increase/(Decrease) 61,349 (11,530) 
Deferred Revenue Increase/(Decrease) 62,201 (202,856) 
School Generated Funds Liability  Increase/(Decrease) - - 
Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - - 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Operating Transactions 991,826 37,553 

 Capital Transactions

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (1,810,190)           (1,395,065)           
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 4,168 - 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Capital Transactions (1,806,022)           (1,395,065)           

 Investing Transactions

Portfolio Investments (Increase)/Decrease - - 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Investing Transactions - - 

 Financing Transactions
Debenture Debt Increase/(Decrease) 927,880 520,699 
Other Borrowings Increase/(Decrease) - - 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Financing Transactions 927,880 520,699 

 Cash and Bank / Overdraft (Increase)/Decrease 113,684 (836,813) 
 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at Beginning of Year 639,002 1,475,815             

 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at End of Year 752,686 639,002 



Turtle River School Division
SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

at June 30, 2015

Furniture / Computer Assets 2015 2014
School Other Fixtures & Hardware & Land Under TOTALS TOTALS

School Non-School Buses Vehicles Equipment Software * Land Improvements Construction

 Tangible Capital Asset Cost
 Opening Cost, as previously reported 9,392,599       411,192          2,824,997       145,144          192,574          164,508          36,325            - 925,862          14,093,201     12,698,136     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening Cost adjusted 9,392,599       411,192          2,824,997       145,144          192,574          164,508          36,325            - 925,862          14,093,201     12,698,136     

Add:
Additions during the year

Less:
Disposals and write downs

 Closing Cost 9,392,599       411,192          3,005,644       126,984          173,125          196,651          36,325            - 2,451,027       15,793,547     14,093,201     

 Accumulated Amortization
 Opening, as previously reported 6,819,355       411,192          1,928,110       120,556          128,001          150,028          - 9,557,242       9,075,014       

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening adjusted 6,819,355       411,192          1,928,110       120,556          128,001          150,028          - 9,557,242       9,075,014       

Add:
Current period Amortization

Less:
Accumulated Amortization
on Disposals and Writedowns

 Closing Accumulated Amortization 7,076,516       411,192          2,098,494       112,231          119,268          112,074          - 9,929,775       9,557,242       

 Net Tangible Capital Asset 2,316,083       - 907,150          14,753            53,857            84,577            36,325            - 2,451,027       5,863,772       4,535,959       

 Proceeds from Disposal of Capital Assets - - - 4,168              - - 4,168              - 

* Includes network infrastructure.

- 

- 

257,161          

18,160            31,384            

11,935            92,443            1,395,065       

- 

482,228          

- - 

9,835              

Buildings and Leasehold 
Improvements

- 

22,651            

60,300            

- 180,647          - - 

- - 

- - 18,160            31,384            

- 1,525,165       

- - 

- 

1,810,190       

109,844          

482,377          

109,844          

- 170,384          22,346            

60,300            
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Western School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Financial Assets

Cash and Bank - - 
Due from  - Provincial Government 456,647 1,489,303 

 - Federal Government 72,578 156,613 
 - Municipal Government 3,387,822 3,326,672 
 - Other School Divisions 118,885 108,119 
 - First Nations - - 

Accounts Receivable 36,624 22,559 
Accrued Investment Income - - 
Portfolio Investments - - 

4,072,556 5,103,266

 Liabilities

3 Overdraft 3,419,779 5,019,756 
Accounts Payable 356,427 353,447 
Accrued Liabilities 551,181 451,309 

4 Employee Future Benefits 74,059 92,694 
Accrued Interest Payable 122,984 88,256 
Due to  - Provincial Government 64,756 64,704 

 - Federal Government 279,012 864,632 
 - Municipal Government - - 
 - Other School Divisions 342,180 335,784 
 - First Nations - - 

5 Deferred Revenue 920,272 102,584 
6 Debenture Debt 6,665,968 5,894,687 
7 Other Borrowings 316,026 377,062 
8 School Generated Funds Liability 72,790 90,354 

13,185,434 13,735,269

 Net Debt (9,112,878) (8,632,003)

 Non-Financial Assets
9 Net Tangible Capital Assets (TCA Schedule) 14,178,649 13,392,890 

Inventories - - 
Prepaid Expenses 79,748 81,708 

14,258,397 13,474,598

10  Accumulated Surplus 5,145,519 4,842,595

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at June 30



Western School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Revenue

Provincial Government 13,193,760 12,560,438 
Federal Government 17,944 10,062 

11 Municipal Government - Property Tax 5,592,607 5,552,488 
- Other 6,400 -

Other School Divisions 66,950 62,400 
First Nations - -

Private Organizations and Individuals 244,973 304,114 
Other Sources 31,857 28,328 
School Generated Funds 150,590 114,246 
Other Special Purpose Funds - -

19,305,081 18,632,076

 Expenses

Regular Instruction 10,624,255 10,308,199 
Student Support Services 2,574,440 2,576,865 
Adult Learning Centres 368,503 361,890 
Community Education and Services 51,706 39,425 
Divisional Administration 715,850 644,832 
Instructional and Other Support Services 549,146 454,647 
Transportation of Pupils 758,430 715,405 
Operations and Maintenance 1,752,155 1,722,978 

12 Fiscal - Interest 413,024 349,016 
- Other 283,151 280,022 

Amortization 777,737 728,905 
Other Capital Items - -
School Generated Funds 152,395 103,624 
Other Special Purpose Funds - -

19,020,792 18,285,808

Current Year Surplus (Deficit) before Non-vested Sick Leave 284,289 346,268
Less: Non-vested Sick Leave Expense (Recovery) (18,635) 17,450
Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 302,924 328,818

 Opening Accumulated Surplus 4,842,595 4,513,777 
 Adjustments: Tangible Cap. Assets and Accum. Amort. - - 

Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -
Non-vested sick leave - prior years - -

 Opening Accumulated Surplus, as adjusted 4,842,595 4,513,777

 Closing Accumulated Surplus 5,145,519 4,842,595

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF REVENUE, EXPENSES

 AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
For the Year Ended June 30



Western School Division

2015 2014

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 302,924 328,818 

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 777,737 728,905 
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (1,563,496) (3,025,969)            
(Gain) / Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (8,707) (200) 
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 8,707 200 

(785,759) (2,297,064)            

Inventories (Increase)/Decrease - - 

Prepaid Expenses (Increase)/Decrease 1,960 10,287 
1,960 10,287 

(Increase)/Decrease in Net Debt (480,875) (1,957,959)            

Net Debt at Beginning of Year (8,632,003) (6,674,044)            

Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - - 

(8,632,003) (6,674,044)            

Net Debt at End of Year (9,112,878) (8,632,003)            

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015



Western School Division

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014

 Operating Transactions

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 302,924 328,818 
Non-Cash Items Included in Current Year Surplus/(Deficit):

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 777,737 728,905 
(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (8,707) (200)
Employee Future Benefits Increase/(Decrease) (18,635) 17,450 

Due from Other Organizations (Increase)/Decrease 1,044,775             (1,475,484)           
Accounts Receivable & Accrued Income (Increase)/Decrease (14,065) (7,209)
Inventories and Prepaid Expenses - (Increase)/Decrease 1,960 10,287 
Due to Other Organizations Increase/(Decrease) (579,172)              1,022,700             
Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities Increase/(Decrease) 137,580 20,894 
Deferred Revenue Increase/(Decrease) 817,688 (752,570)              
School Generated Funds Liability  Increase/(Decrease) (17,564) (11,691)
Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Operating Transactions 2,444,521             (118,100)              

 Capital Transactions

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (1,563,496)           (3,025,969)           
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 8,707 200 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Capital Transactions (1,554,789)           (3,025,769)           

 Investing Transactions

Portfolio Investments (Increase)/Decrease - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Investing Transactions - -

 Financing Transactions
Debenture Debt Increase/(Decrease) 771,281 1,384,385             
Other Borrowings Increase/(Decrease) (61,036) (59,325)

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Financing Transactions 710,245 1,325,060             

 Cash and Bank / Overdraft (Increase)/Decrease 1,599,977             (1,818,809)           
 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at Beginning of Year (5,019,756)           (3,200,947)           

 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at End of Year (3,419,779)           (5,019,756)           



Western School Division

SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
at June 30, 2015

Furniture / Computer Assets 2015 2014
School Other Fixtures & Hardware & Land Under TOTALS TOTALS

School Non-School Buses Vehicles Equipment Software * Land Improvements Construction

 Tangible Capital Asset Cost
 Opening Cost, as previously reported 17,841,511     1,276,112       1,808,497       96,112            439,045          281,238          629,054          124,180          2,011,584       24,507,333     21,539,200     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening Cost adjusted 17,841,511     1,276,112       1,808,497       96,112            439,045          281,238          629,054          124,180          2,011,584       24,507,333     21,539,200     

Add:
Additions during the year

Less:
Disposals and write downs

 Closing Cost 20,072,968     1,276,112       1,808,497       115,175          538,428          385,974          1,632,484       124,180          44,506            25,998,324     24,507,333     

 Accumulated Amortization
 Opening, as previously reported 8,878,865       370,844          1,231,075       82,711            240,285          248,005          62,658            11,114,443     10,443,374     

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening adjusted 8,878,865       370,844          1,231,075       82,711            240,285          248,005          62,658            11,114,443     10,443,374     

Add:
Current period Amortization

Less:
Accumulated Amortization
on Disposals and Writedowns

 Closing Accumulated Amortization 9,404,849       418,429          1,332,206       66,909            248,536          273,670          75,076            11,819,675     11,114,443     

 Net Tangible Capital Asset 10,668,119     857,683          476,291          48,266            289,892          112,304          1,632,484       49,104            44,506            14,178,649     13,392,890     

 Proceeds from Disposal of Capital Assets - - - 707 8,000              - 8,707              200 

* Includes network infrastructure.

2,231,457       

- 

525,984          

- 

28,992            43,513            

142,896          104,736          3,025,969       

57,836            

728,905          

57,836            - 

13,190            

Buildings and Leasehold 
Improvements

- 

51,764            

- 

- - 48,055            1,003,430       

- - 

- - 28,992            43,513            

- (1,967,078)     

- - 

12,418            

1,563,496       

72,505            

777,737          

72,505            

47,585            101,131          25,665            

- 



WESTERN SCHOOL DIVISION 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2015 

1. Nature of Organization and Economic Dependence

The School Division (Division) is a public body that provides education services to 
residents within its geographic location.  The division is funded mainly by grants from 
the Province of Manitoba (Province), and a special levy on the property assessment 
included in the Division’s boundaries. The Division is exempt from income tax and is a 
registered charity under the Income Tax Act. 

The Division is economically dependent on the Province for the majority of its revenue 
and capital financing requirements.  Without this funding, the Division would not be able 
to continue its operations. 

2. Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance 
with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles established by PSAB of the 
Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada.   

a) Reporting Entity and Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenues and 
expenses of the operating fund, capital fund, and special purpose fund of the Division. 
The Division reporting entity includes school generated funds controlled by the 
Division. 

All inter-fund accounts and transactions are eliminated upon consolidation. 

b) Basis of Accounting

Revenues and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of accounting except when 
the accruals cannot be determined with a reasonable degree of certainty or when their 
estimation is impracticable.  The accrual basis of accounting recognizes revenues as 
they are earned and measurable; expenses are recognized as they are incurred and 
measurable as a result of the receipt of goods or services and the creation of a legal 
obligation to pay.  Expenses also include the amortization of tangible capital assets. 

c) Fund Accounting

The fund method of accounting is employed by the Division to record financial 
transactions in separate funds as defined by Financial Reporting and Accounting in 
Manitoba Education (FRAME) in accordance with the purpose for which the funds 
have been created.   

The Operating Fund is maintained to record all the day to day operating revenues and 
expenses.  The Capital Fund is used to account for the acquisition, amortization, 
disposal and financing of capital assets.  The Special Purpose Fund is used to account 
for school generated funds controlled by the Division. 

d) School Generated Funds

School generated funds are moneys raised by the school, or under the auspices of the 
school, through extra curricular activities for the sole use of the school that the 
principal of each school, subject to the rules of the school board, may raise, hold, 
administer and expend for the purposes of the school.   



Only revenue and expenses of school generated funds controlled by the Division are 
included in the Consolidated Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Accumulated 
Surplus.   To be deemed as controlled, a school must have the unilateral authority to 
make the decisions as to when, how and on what the funds are to be spent. 

Period end cash balances of all school generated funds are included in the 
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.  The uncontrolled portion of this 
amount is reflected in the School Generated Funds Liability account.  Examples of 
uncontrolled school generated funds are parent council funds, other parent group 
funds, student council funds and travel club funds.  Revenues and expenses of 
uncontrolled school generated funds are not included in the consolidated financial 
statements.  

e) Tangible Capital Assets

Tangible capital assets are non-financial assets that are used by the Division to 
provide services to the public and have an economic life beyond one fiscal year.  
Tangible capital assets include land, buildings, buses, other vehicles, furniture and 
equipment, computers, capital leases, leasehold improvements, and assets under 
construction.   

To be classified as tangible capital assets, each asset other than land must individually 
meet the capitalization threshold for its class as prescribed by FRAME.   

 Asset Description Capitalization Estimate Useful Life 
 Threshold 

 ($)  (years) 
Land Improvements 25,000 10 
Buildings – bricks, mortar and steel 25,000 40 
Buildings – wood frame 25,000 25 
School buses 20,000 10 
Vehicles 10,000  5 
Equipment 10,000  5 
Network infrastructure 25,000 10 
Computer hardware, servers & peripherals  5,000  4 
Computer software 10,000  4 
Furniture & fixtures  5,000 10 
Leasehold improvements 25,000  Over term of lease 

Grouping of assets is not permitted except for computer work stations. 

With the exception of land, donated capital assets and capital leases, all tangible 
capital assets, are recorded at historical cost, which includes purchase price, 
installation costs and other costs incurred to put the asset into service.  

Buildings are recorded at historical cost when known.  For buildings acquired prior to 
June 30, 2005 where the actual cost was not known, the replacement value for 
insurance purposes as at June 30, 2005 was regressed to the date of acquisition using 
a regression index based on Southam and CanaData construction cost indices.   

Donated tangible capital assets are recorded at fair market value at the date of 
donation.  Deferred revenue is recorded in an equivalent amount, for all donated 
assets except land.  The deferred revenue will be recognized as revenue over the 
useful life of the related asset, on the same basis that the asset is amortized.      

All land acquired prior to June 30, 2006 has been valued by the Crown Lands and 
Property Agency. 

All tangible capital assets, except for land, capital leases, and assets under 
construction, are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as 
prescribed by FRAME.  Land is not amortized.    

One-half of the annual amortization is charged in the year of acquisition and in the 
year of disposal if not fully amortized.   



Assets under construction are not amortized until the date of substantial completion.  
Interest on funds used to finance school buildings under construction is capitalized for 
the periods preceding the date of substantial completion.  

f) Employee Future Benefits

The Province of Manitoba pays the employer portion of the Teachers’ Retirement 
Allowances Fund (TRAF), the pension plan for all certified teachers of the Division. 
The Division does not contribute to TRAF, and no costs relating to this plan are 
included in the Division’s financial statements. 

However, the Division provides retirement and other future benefits to its non-
teaching employees. These benefits include defined contribution pension, and sick 
leave. The Division adopted the following policy with respect to accounting for these 
employee future benefits: 

Defined Contribution Pension Plan 

The Division pays the employer portion of a defined contribution plan administered 
by Sun Life Financial for non-teaching employees. Under this plan, mandatory 
amounts based on employee earnings are calculated and forwarded to the pension 
administrator. The Division matches these contributions equally. No responsibility is 
assumed by the Division to make any further contribution. 

Non-vested Accumulated Sick Leave 

For non-vesting accumulating sick days, the benefit costs are recognized, based on a 
projection of expected future utilization of sick time, discounted using net present 
value techniques. 

g) Capital Reserve

Certain amounts, as approved by the Board of Trustees and the Public Schools 
Finance Board (PSFB), have been set aside in reserve accounts for future capital 
purposes.  These Capital Reserve accounts are internally restricted funds that form 
part of the Accumulated Surplus presented in the Consolidated Statement of Financial 
Position.   

h) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting 
period.  These estimates are subject to measurement uncertainty and the effect on the 
financial statements of changes in such estimates in future periods could be 
significant. 

i) Financial instruments

There are no significant terms and conditions related to financial instruments (cash, 
accounts receivable, investments, bank indebtedness, accounts payable and long-term 
debt) that may affect the amount, timing and certainty of future cash flows.  The 
Division is exposed to credit risk from the potential non-payment of accounts 
receivable.  However, the majority of the receivables are from local, provincial and 
federal governments, and therefore, the credit risk is minimal.  The carrying amounts 
of the financial instruments approximate their fair values, unless otherwise noted.   



j) Adoption of New Accounting Policy

Effective July 1, 2014, the Division has adopted the new Public Sector Accounting 
Board accounting standard – Liability for Contaminated Sites, Section PS3260.  The 
standard was applied on a prospectively basis and did not result in any adjustments to 
financial liabilities, tangible capital assets or accumulated surplus of the Division. 

3. Bank Overdraft

The Division has an authorized line of credit with Access Credit Union Limited of 
$7,250,000 by way of overdrafts and is repayable on demand at prime less 0.5%.   

4. Employee Future Benefits

The Division sponsors a defined contribution pension plan, administered by Sun Life 
Financial. Non-teaching employees enrolled in the plan contribute 5.75% of gross 
earnings. The Division contributions equal the employee contributions to the plan. No 
pension liability is included in the financial statements.  The employee future benefit 
expense is part of the Employee Benefits and Allowances expense account.  

Non-vested accumulated sick leave benefits are measured using net present value 
techniques on the expected future utilization of excess of sick benefits used over earned 
per year, to maximum entitlement.  The impact of the estimated non-vested sick leave 
benefit cost for 2014-15 is $74,059 (2013-14 $92,694). 

5. Deferred Revenue

The deferral method of accounting is used for revenues received that, pursuant to 
legislation, regulation or agreement, may only be used for specific purposes. These 
amounts are recognized as revenue in the fiscal year the related expenses are incurred or 
services performed.  The following is a breakdown of the account balance: 

Revenue 
Balance as at Additions recognized Balance as at 
June 30, 2014 in the period in the period June 30, 2015 

Manitoba Textbook Bureau $         45,500 $       48,308   $        40,446 $  53,362 
Education & Property Tax Credit  -  2,773,015  1,967,514  805,501 
Other  57,084  198,400  194,075  61,409 

 $  102,584 $  3,019,724 $  2,202,035 $  920,272 

6. Debenture Debt

The debenture debt of the Division is in the form of twenty-year debentures payable, 
principal and interest, in twenty equal yearly installments and maturing at various dates 
from 2016 to 2035.  Payment of principal and interest is funded entirely by grants from 
the Province of Manitoba, except for the debenture debt on self-funded capital projects.  
The debentures carry interest rates that range from 3% to 9.875%.  Debenture interest 
expense payable as at June 30, 2015, is accrued and recorded in Accrued Interest 
Payable, and a grant in an amount equal to the interest accrued on provincially funded 
debentures is recorded in Due from the Provincial Government.   The debenture principal 
and interest repayments in the next five years are: 

Principal Interest Total 
2016 547,995 330,121 878,116 
2017 385,130 296,572 681,702 
2018 403,302 278,260 681,562 
2019 422,358 259,201 681,559 
2020  430,674 242,222 672,896 

 $2,168,971  $1,287,249  $3,456,220 



7. Other Borrowings

Other borrowings are debts other than overdrafts or debentures.  This includes a loan to 
purchase property.  

2015 2014 
Division Office Loan  $316,026  $377,062 

The Division Office Loan has prime less 0.5% interest per annum, due in 2020 and a 
monthly payment of $5,797 principal and interest. This loan is secured by way of a 
demand promissory note. 

Principal and interest repayment of total Other Borrowings in the next five years are: 

Principal Interest Total 
2016 $  62,373  $ 7,189 $  69,562 
2017  63,950  5,612  69,562 
2018  65,567  3,995  69,562 
2019  67,226  2,336  69,562 
2020  56,910  650  57,560 

$316,026 $ 19,782 $335,808 

8. School Generated Funds Liability

School Generated Funds Liability includes the non-controlled portion of school generated 
funds consolidated in the cash and bank balances in the amount of $92,210.  

9. Net Tangible Capital Assets

The Schedule of Tangible Capital Assets (TCA), page 23 of the audited financial 
statements, provides a breakdown of cost, accumulated amortization and net book value 
by class.     

 Accumulated 2015 Net 
Gross Amount  Amortization Book Value 

Owned-tangible capital assets $  25,998,324  $  11,819,675 $  14,178,649 



10. Accumulated Surplus

The consolidated accumulated surplus is comprised of the following: 

 2015  2014 
Operating Fund 
 Designated Surplus   $  -  $  - 
 Non-vested Sick Leave  (74,059)  (92,694) 
 Undesignated Surplus  579,768  762,681 

 505,709  669,987 
Capital Fund 
 Reserve Accounts  507,835  337,835 
 Equity in Tangible Capital Assets  4,112,555  3,813,548 

 4,620,390  4,151,383 

Special Purpose Fund 
 School Generated Funds  19,420  21,225 
 Other Special Purpose Funds  -  - 

 19,420  21,225 
$5,145,519  $4,842,595 

Reserve Accounts under the Capital Fund represents internally restricted reserves for 
specific purposes approved by the Board of Trustees and PSFB.  A Schedule of Capital 
Reserve Accounts is provided on page 24 of the audited financial statements. 

    2015       2014 
New school reserves $  250,000     $  200,000 
Bus reserves   257,835  137,835 

$  507,835     $  337,835 

School Generated Funds and Other Special Purpose Funds are externally restricted 
moneys for school use.  

11. Municipal Government – Property Tax and related Due from Municipal

Government 

Education property tax or Special Levy is raised as the Division’s contribution to the cost 
of providing public education for the students resident in the division. The Municipal 
Government-Property Tax shown on the consolidated revenue and expense is raised over 
the two calendar (tax) years; 40% from 2014 tax year and 60% from 2015 tax year.  
Below are the related revenue and receivable amounts:  

 2015  2014 
Revenue-Municipal Government-Property Tax $     5,592,607     $     5,552,488 

Receivable-Due from Municipal-Property Tax $     3,387,822     $     3,326,672 

12. Interest Received and Paid

The Division received interest during the year of $936 (2014 - $1,138); interest paid 
during the year was $413,024 (2014 - $349,016).   

Interest expense is included in Fiscal and is comprised of the following: 

2015  2014 
Operating Fund 

   Fiscal-short term loan, interest and bank charges $  30,618     $  27,162 

Capital Fund 

 Debenture debt interest  346,487  275,059 

 Other interest   35,919  46,795 
$  413,024     $  349,016 



The accrual portion of debenture debt interest expense of $122,984 included under the 
Capital Fund-Debenture debt interest is offset by an accrual of the debt servicing grant 
from the Province of Manitoba. 

13. Expenses by object

Expenses in the consolidated statement of revenue, expenses and accumulated surplus are 
reported by function as defined by FRAME.  Below is the detail of expenses by object:   

Actual Budget Actual 
 2015  2015  2014 

Salaries $13,401,658 $13,544,557 $13,084,517 
Employees benefits & allowances  988,436  1,011,251  994,770 

Services  1,577,736  1,637,815  1,490,198 
Supplies, materials & minor equipment  1,180,610  1,049,687  1,005,221 

Interest  30,618  23,000  349,016 

Payroll Tax  283,151  291,208  280,022 

Amortization  777,737  -  728,905 
Other capital items  -  -  - 
School generated funds       152,395  -  103,624 

Transfers  246,045  149,700  762,671 
$18,638,386 $17,707,218 $18,798,944 

14. Contractual Obligations

The Division has entered into a lease agreement for its Adult Learning Centre premises 
with monthly payments expiring October 2018. 

The minimum annual lease payments for the next three years are as follows: 

2016 $62,305 
2017 $62,942 
2018 $21,051 

An agreement was entered into to construct a modular classroom. The modular classroom 
will be built and installed at a cost of $321,843.  The cost of this project will be recovered 
by a debenture from The Public Schools Finance Board.  

An agreement was entered into to replace the roof at Ecole Morden Middle School. The 
roof will be replaced at a cost of $400,493. The cost of this project will be recovered by a 
debenture from the The Public Schools Finance Board. 
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Winnipeg School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Financial Assets

Cash and Bank - - 
Due from  - Provincial Government 14,071,155 31,328,233 

 - Federal Government 1,394,191 1,308,058 
 - Municipal Government 80,743,083 78,497,928 
 - Other School Divisions 18,112 166,412 
 - First Nations 1,237,614 1,308,927 

Accounts Receivable 1,715,776 1,567,579 
Accrued Investment Income 185 1,868 
Portfolio Investments 5,070,096 6,003,570 

104,250,212 120,182,575

 Liabilities

(3) Overdraft 16,002,624 41,639,948 
Accounts Payable 12,878,382 11,761,435 
Accrued Liabilities 46,110,696 41,284,712 

(4) Employee Future Benefits 6,162,732 6,212,971 
Accrued Interest Payable 2,114,346 2,069,306 
Due to  - Provincial Government 1,221,556 1,206,130 

 - Federal Government 6,022,248 5,780,914 
 - Municipal Government - - 
 - Other School Divisions 935,854 976,321 
 - First Nations - - 

(5) Deferred Revenue 13,698,374 1,232,982 
(7) Debenture Debt 103,572,283               95,484,739 

Other Borrowings - - 
School Generated Funds Liability 2,514,032 2,417,738 

211,233,127 210,067,196

 Net Debt (106,982,915) (89,884,621)

 Non-Financial Assets
(8) Net Tangible Capital Assets (TCA Schedule) 177,241,225               159,004,616               

Inventories 1,113,142 962,347 
Prepaid Expenses 5,185,686 4,219,462 

183,540,053 164,186,425

*  Accumulated Surplus 76,557,138 74,301,804

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at June 30



Winnipeg School Division

Notes 2015 2014

 Revenue

Provincial Government 246,872,541               241,162,688               
Federal Government 3,419,531 3,144,293 
Municipal Government - Property Tax 128,422,982               124,878,897               

- Other 209,998 114,688 
Other School Divisions 2,411,197 2,366,879 
First Nations 2,620,775 2,665,674 

Private Organizations and Individuals 781,419 732,727 
Other Sources 974,015 3,741,166 
School Generated Funds 785,896 879,656 
Other Special Purpose Funds 276,823 1,009,663 

386,775,177 380,696,331

 Expenses

Regular Instruction 199,326,799               190,635,103               
Student Support Services 86,007,451 84,324,644 
Adult Learning Centres 750,365 750,992 
Community Education and Services 8,592,275 8,397,802 
Divisional Administration 8,970,660 9,136,984 
Instructional and Other Support Services 10,019,705 9,908,916 
Transportation of Pupils 6,103,084 4,896,320 
Operations and Maintenance 43,807,802 44,092,685 

(12) Fiscal - Interest 5,176,128 4,903,182 
- Other 6,265,882 6,027,840 

Amortization 8,400,261 7,825,138 
Other Capital Items 33,573 316,232 
School Generated Funds 821,660 1,017,404 
Other Special Purpose Funds 261,643 219,768 

384,537,288 372,453,010

Current Year Surplus (Deficit) before Non-vested Sick Leave 2,237,889 8,243,321
Less: Non-vested Sick Leave Expense (Recovery) (17,445) 67,296
Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 2,255,334 8,176,025

 Opening Accumulated Surplus 74,301,804 66,125,779 
 Adjustments: Tangible Cap. Assets and Accum. Amort. - - 

Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - - 
Non-vested sick leave - prior years - - 

 Opening Accumulated Surplus, as adjusted 74,301,804 66,125,779

 Closing Accumulated Surplus 76,557,138 74,301,804

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF REVENUE, EXPENSES

 AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
For the Year Ended June 30



Winnipeg School Division

2015 2014

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 2,255,334 8,176,025             

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 8,400,261 7,825,138             
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (26,636,870) (23,206,682)          
(Gain) / Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - (2,791,220)            
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - 2,694,827             

(18,236,609) (15,477,937)          

Inventories (Increase)/Decrease (150,795) 80,460 

Prepaid Expenses (Increase)/Decrease (966,224) 519,689 
(1,117,019) 600,149 

(Increase)/Decrease in Net Debt (17,098,294) (6,701,763)            

Net Debt at Beginning of Year (89,884,621) (83,182,858)          

Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - - 

(89,884,621) (83,182,858)          

Net Debt at End of Year (106,982,915)              (89,884,621)          

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015



Winnipeg School Division

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014

 Operating Transactions

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 2,255,334             8,176,025             
Non-Cash Items Included in Current Year Surplus/(Deficit):

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 8,400,261             7,825,138             
(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - (2,791,220)           
Employee Future Benefits Increase/(Decrease) (50,239) 208,115 

Due from Other Organizations (Increase)/Decrease 15,145,403           (21,328,706)         
Accounts Receivable & Accrued Income (Increase)/Decrease (146,514) 623,876 
Inventories and Prepaid Expenses - (Increase)/Decrease (1,117,019)           600,149 
Due to Other Organizations Increase/(Decrease) 216,293 387,823 
Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities Increase/(Decrease) 5,987,971             3,509,908             
Deferred Revenue Increase/(Decrease) 12,465,392           (11,932,236)         
School Generated Funds Liability  Increase/(Decrease) 96,294 (31,169) 
Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - - 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Operating Transactions 43,253,176           (14,752,297)         

 Capital Transactions

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (26,636,870)         (23,206,682)         
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - 2,694,827             

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Capital Transactions (26,636,870)         (20,511,855)         

 Investing Transactions

Portfolio Investments (Increase)/Decrease 933,474 (3,163,097)           

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Investing Transactions 933,474 (3,163,097)           

 Financing Transactions
Debenture Debt Increase/(Decrease) 8,087,544             11,339,317           
Other Borrowings Increase/(Decrease) - - 

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Financing Transactions 8,087,544             11,339,317           

 Cash and Bank / Overdraft (Increase)/Decrease 25,637,324           (27,087,932)         
 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at Beginning of Year (41,639,948)         (14,552,016)         

 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at End of Year (16,002,624)         (41,639,948)         



Winnipeg School Division

SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
at June 30, 2015

Furniture / Computer Assets 2015 2014
School Other Fixtures & Hardware & Land Under TOTALS TOTALS

School Non-School Buses Vehicles Equipment Software * Land Improvements Construction

 Tangible Capital Asset Cost
 Opening Cost, as previously reported 231,369,099   8,388,489       7,811,374       1,004,277       7,202,214       4,381,978       25,095,112     1,485,546       12,872,819     299,610,908   276,313,936   

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening Cost adjusted 231,369,099   8,388,489       7,811,374       1,004,277       7,202,214       4,381,978       25,095,112     1,485,546       12,872,819     299,610,908   276,313,936   

Add:
Additions during the year

Less:
Disposals and write downs

 Closing Cost 244,556,308   8,797,370       9,360,851       1,086,359       7,878,887       5,233,950       25,138,940     1,674,128       21,788,963     325,515,756   299,610,908   

 Accumulated Amortization
 Opening, as previously reported 122,388,304   3,446,588       5,281,470       726,917          5,569,773       2,410,468       782,772          140,606,292   132,787,257   

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening adjusted 122,388,304   3,446,588       5,281,470       726,917          5,569,773       2,410,468       782,772          140,606,292   132,787,257   

Add:
Current period Amortization

Less:
Accumulated Amortization
on Disposals and Writedowns

 Closing Accumulated Amortization 128,783,438   3,649,304       5,170,986       830,597          6,059,615       2,839,835       940,756          148,274,531   140,606,292   

 Net Tangible Capital Asset 115,772,870   5,148,066       4,189,865       255,762          1,819,272       2,394,115       25,138,940     733,372          21,788,963     177,241,225   159,004,616   

 Proceeds from Disposal of Capital Assets - - - - - - - 2,694,827       

* Includes network infrastructure.

202,716          621,538          429,367          

- 

26,636,870     

732,022          

8,400,261       

732,022          

188,582          8,916,144       

- - 

157,984          

Buildings and Leasehold 
Improvements

- 

489,842          

- 

408,881          2,281,499       82,082            43,828            

- 732,022          

- 732,022          - - 

13,187,209     

- 

6,395,134       

- 

- - 

676,673          851,972          23,327,482     

30,510            

7,825,138       

6,103              - 

103,680          
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Whiteshell School District

Notes 2015 2014

 Financial Assets

Cash and Bank 844,393 286,343 
Due from  - Provincial Government 105,105 373,997 

 - Federal Government 33,931 34,975 
 - Municipal Government 11,224 7,614 
 - Other School Divisions - - 
 - First Nations - - 

Accounts Receivable 40,373 43,475 
Accrued Investment Income - - 
Portfolio Investments - - 

1,035,026 746,404

 Liabilities

3 Overdraft - - 
Accounts Payable 7,837 38,726 
Accrued Liabilities 408,490 324,812 
Employee Future Benefits - - 
Accrued Interest Payable 1,863 3,144 
Due to  - Provincial Government - - 

 - Federal Government - - 
 - Municipal Government - - 
 - Other School Divisions - - 
 - First Nations - - 

5 Deferred Revenue 169,951 - 
Debenture Debt - - 

4 Other Borrowings 42,661 87,953 
School Generated Funds Liability - - 

630,802 454,635

 Net Debt 404,224 291,769

 Non-Financial Assets
6 Net Tangible Capital Assets (TCA Schedule) 1,156,559 1,244,714 

Inventories - - 
Prepaid Expenses 6,495 6,108 

1,163,054 1,250,822

7  Accumulated Surplus 1,567,278 1,542,591

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at June 30



Whiteshell School District

Notes 2015 2014

 Revenue

Provincial Government 1,469,559 1,428,457 
Federal Government - -

8 Municipal Government - Property Tax 1,843,385 1,808,214 
- Other - -

Other School Divisions 34,450 29,900 
First Nations - -

Private Organizations and Individuals - -
Other Sources 24,779 51,541 
School Generated Funds 77,281 67,625 
Other Special Purpose Funds - -

3,449,454 3,385,737

 Expenses

Regular Instruction 1,837,105 1,822,643 
Student Support Services 530,769 459,624 
Adult Learning Centres - -
Community Education and Services 65,710 13,000 
Divisional Administration 174,231 283,193 
Instructional and Other Support Services 66,385 56,583 
Transportation of Pupils 46,218 38,923 
Operations and Maintenance 491,751 460,793 

9 Fiscal - Interest 1,863 16,574 
- Other 36,058 44,929 

Amortization 88,155 99,509 
Other Capital Items - -
School Generated Funds 86,522 78,160 
Other Special Purpose Funds - -

3,424,767 3,373,931

Current Year Surplus (Deficit) before Non-vested Sick Leave 24,687 11,806
Less: Non-vested Sick Leave Expense (Recovery) 0 0
Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 24,687 11,806

 Opening Accumulated Surplus 1,542,591 1,530,785 
 Adjustments: Tangible Cap. Assets and Accum. Amort. - - 

Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -
Non-vested sick leave - prior years - -

 Opening Accumulated Surplus, as adjusted 1,542,591 1,530,785

 Closing Accumulated Surplus 1,567,278 1,542,591

 See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF REVENUE, EXPENSES

 AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
For the Year Ended June 30



Whiteshell School District

2015 2014

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 24,687 11,806 

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 88,155 99,509 
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets - (40,081) 
(Gain) / Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - - 
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - - 

88,155 59,428 

Inventories (Increase)/Decrease - - 

Prepaid Expenses (Increase)/Decrease (387) (4,225) 
(387) (4,225) 

(Increase)/Decrease in Net Debt 112,455 67,009 

Net Debt at Beginning of Year 291,769 224,760 

Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - - 

291,769 224,760 

Net Debt at End of Year 404,224 291,769 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015



Whiteshell School District

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014

 Operating Transactions

Net Current Year Surplus (Deficit) 24,687 11,806 
Non-Cash Items Included in Current Year Surplus/(Deficit):

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 88,155 99,509 
(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - -
Employee Future Benefits Increase/(Decrease) - -

Due from Other Organizations (Increase)/Decrease 266,326 (198,422)              
Accounts Receivable & Accrued Income (Increase)/Decrease 3,102 (43,475)
Inventories and Prepaid Expenses - (Increase)/Decrease (387) (4,225)
Due to Other Organizations Increase/(Decrease) - -
Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities Increase/(Decrease) 51,508 62,037 
Deferred Revenue Increase/(Decrease) 169,951 (169,523)              
School Generated Funds Liability  Increase/(Decrease) - -
Adjustments Other than Tangible Cap. Assets - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Operating Transactions 603,342 (242,293)              

 Capital Transactions

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets - (40,081)
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Capital Transactions - (40,081)

 Investing Transactions

Portfolio Investments (Increase)/Decrease - -

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Investing Transactions - -

 Financing Transactions
Debenture Debt Increase/(Decrease) - -
Other Borrowings Increase/(Decrease) (45,292) (37,048)

Cash Provided by (Applied to) Financing Transactions (45,292) (37,048)

 Cash and Bank / Overdraft (Increase)/Decrease 558,050 (319,422)              
 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at Beginning of Year 286,343 605,765 

 Cash and Bank (Overdraft) at End of Year 844,393 286,343 



Whiteshell School District

SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
at June 30, 2015

Furniture / Computer Assets 2015 2014
School Other Fixtures & Hardware & Land Under TOTALS TOTALS

School Non-School Buses Vehicles Equipment Software * Land Improvements Construction

 Tangible Capital Asset Cost
 Opening Cost, as previously reported 3,486,135       - - - - 83,007            15,400            - - 3,584,542       3,544,461       

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening Cost adjusted 3,486,135       - - - - 83,007            15,400            - - 3,584,542       3,544,461       

Add:
Additions during the year

Less:
Disposals and write downs

 Closing Cost 3,486,135       - - - - 83,007            15,400            - - 3,584,542       3,584,542       

 Accumulated Amortization
 Opening, as previously reported 2,256,821       - - - - 83,007            - 2,339,828       2,240,319       

Adjustments - - - - - - - - - 
 Opening adjusted 2,256,821       - - - - 83,007            - 2,339,828       2,240,319       

Add:
Current period Amortization

Less:
Accumulated Amortization
on Disposals and Writedowns

 Closing Accumulated Amortization 2,344,976       - - - - 83,007            - 2,427,983       2,339,828       

 Net Tangible Capital Asset 1,141,159       - - - - - 15,400            - - 1,156,559       1,244,714       

 Proceeds from Disposal of Capital Assets - - - - - - - - 

* Includes network infrastructure.

- - - 

- 

- 

- 

88,155            

- 

- - 

- - 

- 

Buildings and Leasehold 
Improvements

- 

- 

- 

- - - - 

- - 

- - - - 

- 

- 

88,155            

- 

- - 

- - 40,081            

- 

99,509            

- - 

- 



School District of Whiteshell 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement 

For the year ended June 30, 2015 

1. Nature of Organization and Economic Dependence

The School District of Whiteshell (the “District”) is a public body that provides education services to residents within
its geographic location.  The district is funded mainly by grants from the Province of Manitoba (the “Province”), and a
special levy on the property assessment included in the District’s boundaries. The District is exempt from income tax.

The District is economically dependent on the Province for the majority of its revenue and capital financing
requirements.  Without this funding, the District would not be able to continue its operations.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles established by Public Sector Accounting Board (“PSAB”) of Chartered Professional
Accountants of Canada (“CPA Canada”).

a) Reporting Entity and Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of the operating
fund, capital fund, and special purpose fund of the District.

All inter-fund accounts and transactions are eliminated upon consolidation.

Trust Funds

The District administers various trust funds. Trust funds and their related operations are not included in the
consolidated financial statements as they are not owned or controlled by the District. A schedule of trust funds
is attached as part of the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Trust funds, under PSAB are properties assigned to a trustee (school district) under a trust agreement or
statute. The trustee merely administers the terms and conditions embodied in the agreement, and it has no
unilateral authority to change the conditions set our in the trust indenture.

b) Basis of Accounting

Revenues and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of accounting except when the accruals cannot be
determined with a reasonable degree of certainty or when their estimation is impracticable.  The accrual basis
of accounting recognizes revenues as they are earned and measurable; expenses are recognized as they are
incurred and measurable as a result of the receipt of goods or services and the creation of a legal obligation to
pay.  Expenses also include the amortization of tangible capital assets.

c) Fund Accounting

The fund method of accounting is employed by the District to record financial transactions in separate funds as
defined by Financial Reporting and Accounting in Manitoba Education (“FRAME”) in accordance with the
purpose for which the funds have been created.

The Operating Fund is maintained to record all the day to day operating revenues and expenses.  The Capital
Fund is used to account for the acquisition, amortization, disposal and financing of capital assets.  The Special
Purpose Fund is used to account for school generated funds and charitable foundations controlled by the
District.

d) School Generated Funds

School generated funds are moneys raised by the school, or under the auspices of the school, through extra
curricular activities for the sole use of the school that the principal of each school, subject to the rules of the
school board, may raise, hold, administer and expend for the purposes of the school.

Only revenue and expenses of school generated funds controlled by the District are included in the
Consolidated Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Accumulated Surplus.  To be deemed as controlled, a
school must have the unilateral authority to make the decisions as to when, how and on what the funds are to
be spent.

Period end cash balances of all school generated funds are included in the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position.  The uncontrolled portion of this amount is reflected in the School Generated Funds Liability
account.  Examples of uncontrolled school generated funds are student council funds, yearbook funds,
graduation funds and specified sports and cultural funds.  Revenues and expenses of uncontrolled school
generated funds are not included in the consolidated financial statements.



School District of Whiteshell 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement 

For the year ended June 30, 2015 

2. Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

e) Tangible Capital Assets

Tangible capital assets are non-financial assets that are used by the District to provide services to the public
and have an economic life beyond one fiscal year.  Tangible capital assets include land, buildings, buses, other
vehicles, furniture and equipment and assets under construction.

To be classified as tangible capital assets, each asset other than land must individually meet the capitalization
threshold for its class as prescribed by FRAME.

     Capitalization 
      Asset Description         Threshold     Estimated Useful Life 

 ($)      (years) 

Land Improvements 25,000 10 
Buildings - bricks, mortar and steel 25,000 40 
Buildings - wood frame 25,000 25 
School buses 20,000 10 
Vehicles 10,000 5 
Equipment 5,000   5 
Network Infrastructure 25,000 10 
Computer Hardware, Servers & Peripherals 5,000   4 
Computer Software 10,000   4 
Furniture and Fixtures 5,000 10 
Leasehold Improvements 25,000 Over term of lease 

Grouping of assets is not permitted except for computer work stations. 

With the exception of land and buildings acquired before June 30, 1995, all tangible capital assets, are 
recorded at historical cost, which includes purchase price, installation costs and other costs incurred to put the 
asset into service.  

All land acquired prior to June 30, 1995 has been valued using information provided by the Crown Lands and 
Property Agency and adjusted by the District where further information was available. 

Buildings are recorded at historical cost when known.  For buildings acquired prior to June 30, 2005 where the 
actual cost was not known, the replacement value for insurance purposes as at June 30, 2005 was regressed 
to the date of acquisition using a regression index based on Southam and CanaData construction cost indices.  

All tangible capital assets, except for land and assets under construction, are amortized on a straight-line basis 
over their estimated useful lives as prescribed by FRAME.  Land is not amortized.   

One-half of the annual amortization is charged in the year of acquisition and in the year of disposal if not fully 
amortized.   

Assets under construction are not amortized until the date of substantial completion.  Interest on funds used to 
finance school buildings under construction is capitalized for the periods preceding the date of substantial 
completion. 

f) Capital Reserve

Certain amounts, as approved by the Board of Trustees and the Public Schools Finance Board (“PSFB”), have
been set aside in reserve accounts for future capital purposes.  These Capital Reserve accounts are internally
restricted funds that form part of the Accumulated Surplus presented in the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position.

g) Employee Future Benefits

The Province of Manitoba pays the employer portion of the Teachers’ Retirement Allowances Fund (TRAF), the
pension plan for all certified teachers of the District.  The District does not contribute to TRAF, and no costs
relating to this plan are included in the District’s financial statements.

However, the District provides other future benefits to its employees. These benefits include supplemental
employment benefits and sick leave. These benefits are event driven and the costs are recognized when the
event becomes known.



School District of Whiteshell 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement 

For the year ended June 30, 2015 

2. Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

h) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.

Accounts receivable are stated after evaluation as to their collectability, and an appropriate allowance for
doubtful accounts is provided where considered necessary. Amortization of tangible capital assets is based on
their estimated useful lives. Non-vested sick leave benefits are measured based on management’s best
estimate of projected future utilization of sick time in a given year over sick time earned in that year.

These estimates and assumptions are reviewed periodically and, as adjustments become necessary, they are
report in earnings in the period in which they become known.

i) Financial instruments

Fair values:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value and their subsequent measurement
is dependent on their classification as described below.  Their classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial instruments were acquired or issued, their characteristics and the Institution’s designation of such
instruments.

Classification:

Cash Held-for-trading 
Accounts receivable Loans and receivables 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities Other financial liabilities 
Accrued interest payable Other financial liabilities 
Other borrowings Other financial liabilities 

Held for trading:

Held-for-trading financial assets are typically acquired for resale prior to maturity or are designated as
held-for-trading. They are measured at fair value at the balance sheet date. Fair value fluctuations including
interest earned, interest accrued, gains and losses realized on disposal and unrealized gains and losses are
included in investment income.

Loans and receivables:

Financial assets designated as loans and receivables are recorded at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. Given the short-term nature of accounts receivable, their carrying value approximates fair value.

Other financial liabilities:

Other liabilities are recorded at amortized cost using the effective interest method and include all financial
liabilities. Given the short-term nature of accounts payable, accrued liabilities and accrued interest payable,
their carrying value approximates fair value. The carrying value of the other borrowings also approximates its
fair value as there have been no significant changes to the underlying credit risk of the District.

Interest, currency and credit risk:

It is management's opinion that the District is not exposed to significant currency, credit or interest rate risk from
financial instruments. The District is exposed to some credit risk from the potential non-payment of accounts
receivable, however as the majority of the receivables are from local, provincial and federal governments, credit
risk is minimal.



School District of Whiteshell 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement 

For the year ended June 30, 2015 

2. Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

j) Liability for contaminated sites

A liability for remediation of a contaminated site is recognized at the best estimate of the amount required to
remediate the contaminated site when contamination exceeding an environmental standard exists, the District is
either directly responsible or accepts responsibility, it is expected that future economic benefits will be given up,
and a reasonable estimate of the amount is determinable.  The best estimate of the liability includes all costs
directly attributable to remediation activity and is reduced by expected net recoveries based on information
available at June 30, 2015.

At each financial reporting date, the District reviews the carrying amount of the liability.  Any revisions required
to the amount previously recognized is accounted for in the period revisions are made.  The District continues to
recognize the liability until it is settled or otherwise extinguished.  Disbursements made to settle the liability are
deducted from the reported liability when they are made.

Effective July 1, 2014, the District adopted the recommendation relating to PS3260, Liability for Contaminated
Sites, as set out in the Canadian public sector accounting standards.  Pursuant to the recommendations, the
change was applied prospectively, and no prior periods have been restated.  Previously, no accounting policy
existed to account for a liability for a contaminated site.  Under the new recommendations, the District is
required to recognize a liability for contaminated sites when economic benefits will be given up.  There was no
effect on the District’s consolidated financial statements as a result of adopting the above-noted change in
accounting policy, as the District has no contaminated sites.

3. Overdraft

The District has an authorized line of credit with the Sunova Credit Union of $250,000 by way of overdrafts and is
repayable on demand at prime plus 0.50%: interest is paid monthly. $250,000 remains available on this line of credit.
Overdrafts are secured by temporary borrowing by-laws.

4. Other Borrowings

Other borrowings consist of a demand loan repayable in annual instalments on September 1 of each year of $45,292
including interest at 4.29% per annum.  Long-term debt is secured by a borrowing by-law.  Repayments over the next
year are estimated to be as follows:

Principal Interest Total 

2016 42,661 2,631 45,292 

5. Deferred Revenue

The deferral method of accounting is used for revenues received that, pursuant to legislation, regulation or
agreement, may only be used for specific purposes.  These amounts are recognized as revenue in the fiscal year the
related expenses are incurred or services performed.  The following is a breakdown of the account balance:

Balance as at 
June 30, 2014 

Additions 
in period 

Revenue 
recognized 

in period 
Balance as at 

June 30, 2015 
Education Property Tax 
Credit (EPTC) $                   -  $      169,951         $      - $   169,951  

6. Net Tangible Capital Assets

The Schedule of Tangible Capital Assets (TCA), page 23 of the audited financial statements, provides a breakdown
of cost, accumulated amortization and net book value by class.

Accumulated 2015 Net 2014 Net 
Gross Amount Amortization Book Value Book Value 

Owned-tangible capital assets $ 3,584,542     $    2,427,983   $ 1,156,559 $ 1,244,714 



School District of Whiteshell 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement 

For the year ended June 30, 2015 

7. Accumulated Surplus

The consolidated accumulated surplus is comprised of the following:

2015 2014 
Operating Fund 

Undesignated Surplus $ 310,509 $ 367,715 

Capital Fund 
Reserve Accounts 150,000  - 
Equity in Tangible Capital Assets 1,112,465       1,154,047 

1,262,465       1,154,047 

Special Purpose Fund 
School Generated Funds 11,588 20,829 

Total Accumulated Surplus $ 1,584,562 $ 1,542,591 

School Generated Funds are externally restricted moneys for school use, scholarship awards and donations for 
school projects. 

8. Municipal Government - Property Tax and related Due from Municipal Government

Education property tax or Special Levy is raised as the District’s contribution to the cost of providing public education
for the students resident in the district. The Municipal Government-Property Tax shown on the consolidated revenue
and expense is raised over the two calendar (tax) years; 56% from 2014 tax year and 44% from 2015 tax year.
Below is the related revenue amount:

2015 2014 

Revenue-Municipal Government-Property Tax $ 1,843,385 $ 1,808,214 

Receivable-Municipal Government-Property Tax $ - $ 214,405 

9. Interest Received and Paid

The District received interest during the year of $3,800 (2014 - $3,973); interest paid during the year was $1,863
(2014 - $16,574).

Interest expense is included in Fiscal and is comprised of the following:

2015     2014 
Operating Fund 

Fiscal-short term loan, interest and 
bank charges $ - $ 9,654 

Capital Fund 
Debenture debt interest - - 
Other Interest 1,863 6,920 

$ 1,863 $ 16,574 

10. Expenses by Object

Expenses in the consolidated statement of revenue, expenses and accumulated surplus are reported by function as
defined by FRAME.  Below is the detail of expenses by object:

Actual Budget Actual 
2015 2015 2014 

Salaries $ 2,190,128 $ 2,375,993 $ 2,299,101 
Employees benefits and 
 allowances 219,490 186,714 149,691 
Services 534,300 550,147 567,179 
Supplies, materials and 
 minor equipment 178,745 199,941 113,288 
Interest 1,863 20,357 16,574 
Payroll tax 36,058 45,316 50,429 
Amortization 88,155 - 99,509 
School generated funds 86,522 - 78,160 

$ 3,335,261 $    3,374,968  $ 3,373,931 



School District of Whiteshell 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement 

For the year ended June 30, 2015 

11. Employee Future Benefits

The District provides retirement and other future benefits to its administrative and support staff as a defined
contribution plan, run by MSBA.  The defined contribution plan is provided to support staff employees based on their
age at the beginning of the year and rates of pay.  Each age group under the MSBA pension plan has a specific
percentage for the employees to contribute.  The District contributions equal the employee contributions to the plan.
No pension liability is included in the financial statements.

The employee future benefit expense is a part of the Employee Benefits and Allowances expense account.  It
includes the District’s contribution of $26,925 in 2015 (2014 - $28,130).

12. Non Financial Information

The 2015 student enrolments (FRAME) and transportation statistics, full time equivalent personnel, and senior staff
allocations are unaudited and have been presented for information purposes only.

13. Capital Management

Operating and special purpose funds
The District’s objective when managing capital is to ensure that its expenditures closely match their revenues.
Capital consists of the two fund balances in the amount of $322,097 (2014 - $388,544).

Capital fund
The capital fund is managed with the long term objective of acquiring and maintaining the capital assets acquired to
facilitate the District’s operations.  Capital consists of the various fund balances in the amount of $1,262,465 (2014 -
$1,154,047).

The District is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.  There have been no changes in the District's
approach to capital management during the year.

14. Commitments

The District has entered into a lease agreement for office equipment, subject to quarterly payments of $1,610,
expiring August 2018.
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THE PUBLIC SCHOOLS FINANCE BOARD

Statement of Financial Position  

As at June 30, 2015

Financial Assets

Cash $ 802              $ 2,523           

Funds on deposit with the Province of Manitoba (Note 6) 392              -                   

Due from:

   Municipal corporations - Education Support Levy 103,668       99,417         

   Other 359              261              

105,221       102,201       

Liabilities

Accrued interest $ 388              $ 361              

Other payables 486              1,209           

Due to: 

   Support payable to school divisions (Note 7) 3,570           2,991           

2014
 (in thousands of dollars)

2015

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

   Province of Manitoba 11,013         8,824           
Notes payable -  Province of Manitoba  (Note 8) 86,799         84,164         

102,256       97,549         

Net Financial Assets $ 2,965           $ 4,652           

Non - Financial Assets

Modular Units Inventory (Note 9) $ 4,336 $ 6,319

Accumulated Surplus $ 7,301           $ 10,971         

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.



THE PUBLIC SCHOOLS FINANCE BOARD

for the year ended June 30, 2015

Revenue  

  Province of Manitoba - Funding of Schools Program $ 984,935       $ 985,927       $ 1,009,524    

  Municipal corporations - Education Support Levy 169,928       169,925       159,978       

1,154,863    1,155,852    1,169,502    

Expenses

  Operational support program (Note 10) 1,028,468    1,021,877    1,005,110    

  Capital support program (Note 11) 133,493       134,604       159,168       

  Administrative and other expenses (Note 12) 3,475           3,041           2,976           

1,165,436    1,159,522    1,167,254    

Current Year Surplus / (Deficit) (10,573)      (3,670)          2,248         

(in thousands of dollars)

Statement of Operations and Accumulated 
Surplus

Budget Actual Actual

2015 2015 2014

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

Current Year Surplus / (Deficit) (10,573)      (3,670)          2,248         

Accumulated Surplus, Beginning of Year 10,971         10,971         8,723           

Accumulated Surplus, End of Year $ 398              $ 7,301           $ 10,971         

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.



THE PUBLIC SCHOOLS FINANCE BOARD

Statement of Change in Net Financial Assets
for the year ended June 30, 2015

Current Year Surplus (Deficit) $ (10,573)        $ (3,670)          $ 2,248           

Allocation of Modular Units Inventory (Note 9) 0 1,983           (6,319)          

Increase (Decrease) in Net Financial Assets (10,573)        (1,687)          (4,071)          

Net Financial Assets, beginning of year 4,652 4,652           8,723           

Net Financial Assets, end of year $ (5,921)          $ 2,965           $ 4,652           

(in thousands of dollars)

2015 2014
Budget
2015

ActualActual

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.



THE PUBLIC SCHOOLS FINANCE BOARD

Statement of Cash Flow
for the year ended June 30, 2015

Operating Activities
Current Year Surplus (Deficit) $ (3,670)          $ 2,248           

Changes in Non Cash Items:
Due from:
    Municipal Corporations - Education Support Levy (4,251)          (8,574)          
    Other (98)               1,681           
Accrued Interest 27                15                
Other Payables (723)             643              
Due to:
    Support payable to school divisions 579              68                
    Province of Manitoba 2,189           3,870           

(5,947)          (49)               
 

Financing Activities
   Notes payable - Province of Manitoba 2,635           7,890           

2015 2014
(in thousands of dollars)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

Non Financial Assets
   Increase (decrease) in Modular Units Inventory 1,983           (6,319)          

Increase (decrease) in Cash and Funds on Deposit with the Province (1,329)          1,522           

Cash and Funds on Deposit with the Province, Beginning of year 2,523           1,001           

Cash and Funds on Deposit with the Province, End of year $ 1,194           $ 2,523           

Consists of:
Cash $ 802 $ 2,523
Funds on Deposit with Province of Manitoba 392 0

$ 1,194 $ 2,523
Supplemental Cash Flow Information:

Interest Paid $ 641 $ 759

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.



THE PUBLIC SCHOOLS FINANCE BOARD

Notes to the Financial Statements
As at June 30, 2015

1. Nature of the Board's operations

2. Significant accounting policies

(a) Basis of Accounting:

(b) Revenue:

The Public Schools Finance Board (Board) was established by the Public Schools Finance Board Act in
April, 1967.

The Board is responsible for receiving all monies paid for the financing (operating and capital) of public
schooling in Manitoba. It is responsible for the determination and distribution of all capital grants to
Manitoba school divisions under the capital support program. It is also responsible for the distribution of
all operating grants to Manitoba school divisions under the operating support program in amounts as
determined by the Minister of Education. These monies are credited to and paid out from the Education
Support Fund.

The Public Schools Act and its Regulations govern the Education Support Fund.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian Public Sector 
Accounting Standards as recommended by the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) of the 
Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada.

( )

All revenues are recognized on a gross basis. 

(c) Expenses:

(d) Modular Units Inventory:

(e) Liabilities:

Liabilities are recognized at cost in the financial statements when there is an appropriate basis of 
measurement and a reasonable estimate can be made of the amount involved.  

The Province of Manitoba Funding of School Program revenue is recognized as revenue with the 
fiscal year appropriated amounts, converted to a school year basis.

The Education Support Levy is assessed against municipal corporations on a calendar year basis. 
The Board applied 40% of the prior year levy to the July to December period and 60% of the 
current year levy to the January to June period. 

Expenses are recognized at a gross amount on an accrual basis.

Modular Units Inventory is valued at the lower of average cost and net realizable value. Inventory 
is recognized upon completion of Modular Unit construction and is reduced when the unit is 
transferred to the school.



THE PUBLIC SCHOOLS FINANCE BOARD

Notes to the Financial Statements
As at June 30, 2015

2. Con't

(f) Financial Instruments:

3. Measurement uncertainty

4. Financial Instruments Risk Management

a. Credit risk  

The Board's financial instruments consist of cash, funds on deposit with the Province of 
Manitoba, accounts receivable, accrued interest, accounts payable, support payable to 
school divisions and notes payable.  These are recorded at cost or amortized cost.

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from these 
estimates.

The Board has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: credit; 
interest rate, and liquidity risk. The Board has no foreign currency denominated assets.  There 
have been no significant changes from the previous year to risk or policies, procedures and 
methods used to measure risk.

b. Liquidity risk

The Board manages risk by maintaining adequate cash balances and by review from the 
Board to ensure that adequate funding will be received to meet its obligations.

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument fails to discharge an obligation 
and causes a financial loss to another party.  Financial Instruments which potentially 
subject the Board to credit risk include cash, funds on deposit, and accounts receivable.

Cash and funds on deposit are not subject to significant credit risk.  Cash is held with a 
large reputable financial institution and funds on deposit are held by the Province of 
Manitoba.

Accounts receivable are not exposed to significant credit risk. The majority of accounts 
cover education support levies collected from towns and municipalities within the Province 
of Manitoba. These are typically paid in full. No allowance for doubtful accounts is required. 
The balance of accounts receivable are from school divisions. 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Board will not be able to meet its financial obligations as 
they become due.



THE PUBLIC SCHOOLS FINANCE BOARD

Notes to the Financial Statements
As at June 30, 2015

5. Pension benefits

6.

7. Support payable to school divisions

Some employees of the Public Schools Finance Board are eligible for membership in the 
provincially operated Civil Service Superannuation Plan (the Plan).  The pension liability for 
these employees is included on the financial statements of the Province of Manitoba.  
Accordingly, no provision is reflected in the financial statements relating to the effects of 
participating in the Plan by the Public Schools Finance Board.

The employer portion of contributions in the amount of $111,426 was added to the plan during 
the year by the Public Schools Finance Board and is included in Note 12: Administration and 
other expenses.

Funds on Deposit with the Province of Manitoba

The funds on deposit with the Province of Manitoba are recorded at cost, which approximates 
fair market value.

This amount represents the present obligations of operational support funding owing to school 
divisions as a result of revisions in the calculations of certain Funding of Schools Program 
grants and other non-operational grants occurring prior to the end of the year.

8. Notes payable

9. Modular Units Inventory
 

Notes payable to the Province of Manitoba are due on demand. The interest payable on the 
notes is the Royal Bank prime rate less 75 basis points.

The Province administers the construction of modular classrooms and allocates these 
classrooms to school divisions on an as needed basis. Costs include 27 completed Modular 
units.



THE PUBLIC SCHOOLS FINANCE BOARD

Notes to the Financial Statements
As at June 30, 2015

10. Operational support program

Instructional Support $ 318,506 $ 319,409
Sparsity Support 10,976 11,022
Curricular Materials 9,924 9,958
Information Technology 9,925 9,958
Library Services 15,218 15,269
Student Services Grant 62,262 62,148
Additional Instructional Support for Small Schools 822 811
Counselling and Guidance 13,729 13,609
Professional Development 6,784 6,806
Occupancy 84,901 85,257
Physical Education 3,758 3,854
Transportation 42,893 42,793
Board and Room 436 434
Special Needs 87 226 90 094

20142015
 (in thousands of dollars)

Actual Actual

Special Needs 87,226 90,094
Senior Years Technology Education 9,056 9,285
English as an Additional Language 10,984 10,747
Aboriginal Academic Achievement 8,658 8,735
Heritage Language 197 216
French Language Programs / Instruction 7,027 6,900
Small Schools 3,043 3,033
Enrolment Change Support 5,509 4,100
Northern Allowance 5,120 5,169
Early Childhood Development Initiative 2,469 2,470
Early Literacy Intervention 7,805 7,558
Early Numeracy 1,843 1,619
Experiential Learning 508 512
Education for Sustainable Development 481 480
Equalization Support 260,310 237,546
Formula Guarantee 28,025 32,624
Vocational Equipment Replacement 2,505 2,200
Skills Strategy Equipment Enhancement Fund 991 473
Adjustment of previous years' support to school 
divisions from estimated to actual (14)                 21              

$ 1,021,877 $ 1,005,110



THE PUBLIC SCHOOLS FINANCE BOARD

Notes to the Financial Statements
As at June 30, 2015

11. Capital support program

Capital grants:
Major school construction $ 128,235       $ 152,865     

Minor capital projects  369              303            

School buildings "D" support 6,000           6,000         
Total capital support program $ 134,604       $ 159,168     

12. Administrative and other expenses

Board administration:
Staff salaries and benefits $ 1,762 $ 1,660  

Service agreement 209 184

Professional services 51 54

Meetings and travel 32 37

Desktop management 103 100

Actual Actual

 (in thousands of dollars)

2015 2014

2015 2014

 (in thousands of dollars)

Actual Actual

p g

Rent 151 140

Printing, stationery, postage and supplies 29 19

Telephone and fax 18 19

Professional development 16 22

Computers, software and minor equipment 16 9

Total board administration expenses 2,387 2,244
Interest charges on notes payable to the Province of Manitoba 654 732

$ 3,041 $ 2,976
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Board of Governors of Red River College 

 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Red River College, which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at June 30, 2015, the statements of operations, changes in net 
assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 

 

 
 

 
KPMG LLP, is a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG 
network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. 
KPMG Canada provides services to KPMG LLP 



 

 

 

 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
Red River College as at June 30, 2015, and its results of operations and its cash flows for the year 
then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. 

 

 

Chartered Professional Accountants 

 

October 28, 2015 

Winnipeg, Canada 

 
 

 



RED RIVER COLLEGE 
Statement of Financial Position 
(In thousands of dollars) 

June 30, 2015, with comparative information for 2014 

2015 2014

Assets 
Current assets: 

Cash and short-term investments - trust and 
endowment (note 3) $ 879 $ 1,012 

Cash and short-term investments (note 3) 10,114 6,973 
Accounts receivable (note 4) 5,164 6,031 
Inventories (note 5) 899 924 
Prepaid expenses (note 6) 3,108 2,112 

20,164 17,052

Long term investments - trust and endowment (note 7)  24,978 23,914 
Due from Province of Manitoba (note 8) 9,253  9,253 
Capital assets (note 9) 116,726 121,443 

$ 171,121 $ 171,662 

Liabilities, Deferred Contributions and Net Assets 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 11) $ 20,874 $ 21,725 
Current portion of obligations under capital leases (note 13) 870 1,060 
Deferred revenue  9,982 10,635 

31,726 33,420 

Future employee benefits (note 12) 16,790 15,842 
Obligations under capital leases (note 13) 918 961 
Deferred contributions (note 14) 9,176 8,817 
Deferred capital campaign contributions (note 15) 5,969 6,038 
Deferred contributions related to capital assets (note 16) 77,426 80,624 

Net assets: 
Invested in capital and intangible assets (note 17) 31,543 32,760 
Restricted for endowments (note 18) 19,878 18,786 
Internally restricted (note 18) 6,107 6,394 

Unrestricted net assets (28,412) (31,980)
29,116 25,960 

Commitments (note 21) 

$ 171,121 $ 171,662 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

Approved by the Board of Governors: 

Original Document Signed  Original Document Signed  



RED RIVER COLLEGE 
Statement of Operations 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Year ended June 30, 2015, with comparative information for 2014 

Budget 2015 2014 

Revenue: 
Academic training fees $ 40,553  $ 44,784 $ 42,064 
Provincial grants and reimbursements 99,039 100,058 98,252 
International education 5,192 6,426 4,676 
Continuing education 10,438 9,566 9,236 
Sundry and other revenue 17,243 17,025 16,864 
Amortization of deferred contributions  6,264 7,916 8,155 
(Loss) gain on disposal of capital assets  –   (21) 12

178,729 185,754 179,259 

Expenses: 
Instruction 102,428 110,156 105,721
Library 2,535 2,634 2,422
Administration and general 37,730 32,814 32,320 
Physical plant 19,078 18,917 19,364 
Student services 6,549 8,636 7,895 
Amortization of capital and intangible assets 8,953 9,128 10,324 
Future employee benefits 2,336 1,405 3,417 

179,609 183,690 181,463 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over 
expenses (note 18) $ (880) $ 2,064 $ (2,204) 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 



RED RIVER COLLEGE 
Statement of Changes in Net Assets 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Year ended June 30, 2015, with comparative information for 2014 

Invested in
capital and Restricted for Internally 2015 2014 

intangible assets endowments restricted Unrestricted Total Total 

Balance, beginning of year $ 32,760 $ 18,786 $  6,394 $ (31,980) $ 25,960 $ 26,569 

Endowment gifts –   1,279 –   –   1,279  1,550 

Amounts unrestricted from 
endowments –   (187) –   –   (187) –   

Amounts restricted for 
endowments –   –   –   –   –   45 

Transfer to (from) internally 
restricted  –   –   (287) 287 –   –   

Excess (deficiency) of revenue 
over expenses (2,887) –   –   4,951 2,064 (2,204) 

Investment in capital assets 1,670 –   –   (1,670) –   –   

Balance, end of year $ 31,543 $ 19,878 $ 6,107 $  (28,412) $ 29,116 $ 25,960 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 



RED RIVER COLLEGE 
Statement of Cash Flows 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Year ended June 30, 2015, with comparative information for 2014 

2015 2014

Cash provided by (used in): 

Operating activities: 
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses $ 2,064 $ (2,204) 
Items not involving cash: 

Amortization of intangible assets 2 2 
Amortization of capital assets 9,126 10,322 
Amortization of deferred capital contributions (6,263) (6,895) 
Other deferred contributions recognized as revenue (1,443) (2,322) 
Loss (gain) on disposal of capital assets 21 (12) 
Changes in fair value of investments 156 (2,331) 

Changes in non-cash operating working capital balances  
(note 19) (660) 5,339 

3,003 1,899 

Investing activities: 
Purchase of capital assets (1,972) (6,386) 
Long-term investment for trust and endowment (6,156) (4,853) 
Proceeds on disposal of capital assets 13 33 
Proceeds on disposal of long-term investments for 

trust and endowment 4,935 3,717 
(3,180) (7,489) 

Financing activities: 
Endowment gifts received 1,093 1,550 
Contributions received for capital purposes 1,371 4,785 
Capital campaign contributions 250 532 
Repayment of obligations under capital leases (1,332) (1,704) 
Other deferred contributions received 1,803 1,025 

3,185 6,188 

Increase in cash and short-term investments 3,008 598 

Cash and short-term investments, beginning of year 7,985 7,387 

Cash and short-term investments, end of year $ 10,993 $ 7,985 

Comprised of: 
Cash and short-term investments - trust and endowment $ 879 $ 1,012 
Cash and short-term investments 10,114 6,973 

$ 10,993 $ 7,985 

The following have been excluded from the investing and financing activities on the statement of cash 
flows: 

The portion of the purchase price of assets under capital lease satisfied by the assumption of debt in 
the amount of $1,097 (2014 - $641). 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 



RED RIVER COLLEGE 
Notes to Financial Statements 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Year ended June 30, 2015 

1. General:

Red River College (the College) was established as a board-governed institution on April 1, 
1993, and was governed by the College Act of Manitoba until June 30, 2015 when it now is 
governed by its own Act, The Red River College Act.  The College is a registered charity under 
the Income Tax Act. 

2. Significant accounting policies:

The financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian 
public sector accounting standards including PS4200 standards for government not-for-profit 
organizations. 

(a) Inventories: 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.  

(b) Capital assets: 

Purchased capital assets are recorded at cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at their 
fair value at the time of the donation. Library holdings are accounted for using the base 
stock method. Under this method, the value of the base stock is capitalized, but 
subsequent purchases are not capitalized because it has been determined that annual 
additions are approximately equal to reductions. Capital assets are amortized on a straight-
line basis using an annual rate of: 

Asset Rate

Buildings 2.5%
Major renovations 5% 
Equipment and furniture 10 - 20% 
Computer equipment and software 20 - 33% 
Vehicles 20%
Aircraft 5%
Leasehold improvements Over the term of the lease 
Parking lot improvements 5% 
Capital renovations 20% 
Leased computers and equipment Over the term of the lease 

Construction in progress is transferred to the appropriate capital asset category and 
amortization begins when the capital project is completed and the asset is placed in 
service. 



RED RIVER COLLEGE 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Year ended June 30, 2015 

2. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(c) Donations: 

Donations are recorded when received. Donations of materials and equipment are 
recorded at fair value.  

(d) Revenue recognition: 

The College follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions, which include 
donations and government grants. Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue 
when received. Contributions externally restricted for purposes other than endowment are 
deferred and recognized as revenue in the year in which the related expenses are incurred. 
Endowment contributions are recognized as direct increases in net assets in the period in 
which they are received. 

The unearned portion of tuition fees and contractual training revenue received, but not 
earned until next fiscal year is recorded as deferred revenue. Investment income includes 
interest income and realized investment gains and losses. Long-term investments are 
classified as held-for-trading and are recorded at fair value. Unrealized gains and losses, 
representing the change between the fair value and the cost of the investments at the 
beginning and the end of the year, are recorded in deferred contributions or net assets 
restricted for endowments depending on the restrictions of the long-term investment. Fair 
value of investments is determined based on quoted market prices. 

Restricted investment income is recognized as revenue in the year in which the related 
expenses are recognized.  

(e) Intangible asset: 

The intangible asset is recorded at cost and is amortized on a straight-line basis using an 
annual rate of 10 percent. 

(f) Accrued retirement severance pay: 

As a result of eligible employees of the College participating in the Manitoba Government 
Employees Master Agreement, the College has an obligation to pay severance to 
participating employees. The accrued retirement severance pay is actuarially determined, 
with any actuarial gain or loss being immediately recognized in the period in which it arises.   



RED RIVER COLLEGE 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Year ended June 30, 2015 

2. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(g) Accumulated non-vested sick leave benefits: 

The accumulated non-vested sick leave benefits is calculated annually utilizing an internally 
developed valuation method which takes into account the usage of sick days used in 
excess of the annual sick days earned, and average employee compensation per day. 

(h) Deferred contributions: 

Debt owing to the Province of Manitoba (“the Province”) is reflected as deferred 
contributions related to capital assets in the statement of financial position. The related 
revenue earned from the Education and Advanced Learning (EAL) to offset the principal 
repayment and the related interest expense are both excluded from the statement of 
operations. 

(i) Education and training benefits: 

The College receives government grants for specified projects with industry partners. The 
College receives education and training benefits from these projects. The College records 
both the revenue and the expenditures relating to these projects in the year incurred. 

(j) Financial instruments: 

Derivative instruments and equity instruments that are quoted in an active market are 
reported at fair value. All other financial instruments are subsequently recorded at cost or 
amortized cost unless management has elected to carry the instruments at fair value. 
Management has elected not to record any such financial instruments at fair value.   

Transaction costs incurred on the acquisition of financial instruments measured 
subsequently at fair value are expensed as incurred. All other financial instruments are 
adjusted by transaction costs incurred on acquisition and financing costs, which are 
amortized using the effective interest method. 

Financial assets are assessed for impairment on an annual basis at the end of the fiscal 
year if there are indicators of impairment. If there is an indicator of impairment, the College 
determines if there is a significant adverse change in the expected amount or timing of 
future cash flows from the financial asset. If there is a significant adverse change in the 
expected cash flows, the carrying value of the financial asset is reduced to the highest of 
the present value of the expected cash flows, the amount that could be realized from selling 
the financial asset or the amount the division expects to realize by exercising its right to any 
collateral. If events and circumstances reverse in a future period, an impairment loss will be 
reversed to the extent of the improvement, not exceeding the initial impairment charge. 



RED RIVER COLLEGE 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Year ended June 30, 2015 

2. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(k) Foreign currency translation:

Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies have been translated into Canadian 
dollars at year end exchange rates with any gain or loss included in income in the year. 
Revenues and expenses have been translated at the exchange rate in effect at the 
transaction date. 

(l) Use of estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Significant items subject to such 
estimates and assumptions include the carrying amount of capital assets and employee 
future benefits.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

(m) Adoption of new accounting policy: 

Effective July 1, 2014, the College has adopted the new Public Sector Accounting Board 
accounting standard - Liability for Contaminated Sites, Section PS3260.  The standard did 
not result in any adjustments to liabilities, capital assets or net assets of the College. 

3. Short-term investments:

Short-term investment activity is transacted with the Department of Finance of the Province in 
short-term deposits. Interest rates on short-term investments range between 0.60 percent and 
0.61 percent. Short-term investments mature between August 2015 and September 2015. 

The carrying value of the short-term investments at the beginning and end of the year 
approximated fair value due to the short-term maturity of these deposits. 

4. Accounts receivable:

2015 2014 

Trust and endowment receivables $ – $ 343 
Other accounts receivable  5,164 5,688 

$ 5,164 $ 6,031 



RED RIVER COLLEGE 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Year ended June 30, 2015 

5. Inventories:

Inventories consist primarily of books purchased for resale. During the year ended June 30, 
2015, inventories totaling $4,373 were expensed (2014 - $4,231). 

6. Prepaid expenses:

2015 2014 

Prepaid property taxes $ 1,115 $ 939 
Other prepaid expenses 1,993 1,173 

$ 3,108 $ 2,112 

7. Long-term investments:

2015 2014 
Fair  Fair  

value  Cost  value  Cost 

Cash and fixed term instruments $ 8,754 $ 7,701 $ 8,571 $ 7,500 
Equity investments  14,326 13,054 13,341 10,787 
Debentures 1,898 1,898 2,002 2,002 

$ 24,978 $ 22,653 $ 23,914 $ 20,289 

Fair value as represented above was derived from the quoted market value of investments.  

The fixed term investments and debentures mature between fiscal 2015 and 2041 and bear 
interest at rates between 2.45 percent and 6.125 percent.   

8. Due from Province of Manitoba:

The balance due from the Province is non-interest bearing, unsecured and has no fixed terms 
of repayment. This balance arose when the retirement severance and vacation pay liabilities 
were transferred from the Province to the College in 1996. The College is responsible for 
funding liabilities for vacation pay and severance pay benefits accumulated after the transfer 
through its operating grants from the Province of Manitoba. As a result, the change in the 
retirement severance liability, including the interest accretion, is reflected in the funding for 
retirement severance expense. The portion of the receivable related to the vacation pay is paid 
annually through the operating grants. 



RED RIVER COLLEGE 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Year ended June 30, 2015 

9. Capital assets:

2015 2014
 Accumulated Net book Net book

Cost amortization value value

Equipment and furniture $ 52,309 $ 43,273 $ 9,036 $ 11,152 
Computer equipment and  

software 20,042 18,426 1,616 1,588 
Major renovations 5,424 3,504 1,920 2,204
Buildings 113,857 19,308 94,549 97,336
Vehicles  450 371 79 64 
Aircraft 3,453 1,131 2,322 1,188
Leasehold improvements  5,113 4,327 786 950 
Construction in progress 10 –    10 –    
Assets under capital leases 18,134 15,951 2,183 2,423 
Library holdings 1,223 –    1,223 1,223 
Parking lot improvements  2,429 990 1,439 1,324 
Capital renovations 5,696 4,133 1,563 1,991

$ 228,140 $ 111,414 $ 116,726 $ 121,443 

The assets under capital leases are amortized on a straight-line basis over the expected useful 
life of the assets. The amount of amortization charged to expense is $1,348 (2014 - $1,832). 

The increase in net book value of capital assets is due to the following: 

2015 2014 

Balance, beginning of year $ 121,443 $ 124,770 
Purchase of capital assets: 

Funded by deferred capital contributions 1,371 4,776 
Funded by deferred capital campaign contributions 250 532 
Funded by deferred capital revenue  

(construction in progress) –   (84)
Internally funded 1,670 2,741 
Financed through capital lease, net of obligation paid (235) (1,062) 

Donations of capital assets 1,374 80 
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets  (21) 12 
Amortization of capital assets  (9,126) (10,322) 

Balance, end of year $ 116,726 $ 121,443 



RED RIVER COLLEGE 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Year ended June 30, 2015 

10. Operating line of credit:

The College has a $5,000 operating line of credit with the Province, bearing interest at prime. 
At June 30, 2015, there had been no withdrawals on this operating line. 

11. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities:

2015 2014 

Trade payables $ 2,972 $ 4,393 
Accrued salaries and benefits 2,397 2,307 
Accrued vacation pay 15,505 15,025 

$ 20,874 $ 21,725 

12. Future employee benefits:

2015 2014 

Accrued retirement severance pay $ 15,889 $  14,906 
Accumulated non-vested sick leave benefits  901 936 

$ 16,790 $ 15,842 



RED RIVER COLLEGE 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Year ended June 30, 2015 

12. Future employee benefits (continued):

The accrued retirement severance pay is actuarially determined every three years. The most 
recent actuarial report was prepared on March 31, 2015. Information about the College’s 
accrued retirement severance pay is as follows: 

2015 2014

Balance, beginning of year $ 14,906 $ 12,580 
Current benefit cost 1,036 1,004 
Interest 965 883
Actuarial loss 194 1,443 
Benefits paid (1,212) (1,004) 

Balance, end of year $ 15,889 $ 14,906 

Significant actuarial assumptions used in the severance obligations at June 30, 2015 and 
June 30, 2014, are as follows: 

2015 2014 

Interest rate on obligations 6.00% 6.50% 
Employer current service cost as a percentage 

of salary 0.97% 0.98% 

The College provides accumulating sick leave benefits to certain employee groups. These 
benefits accumulate with employee service and benefit amounts are determined with reference 
to employees’ final earnings at the time they are paid out.  The significant assumptions adopted 
in measuring the College’s accumulated non-vested sick leave benefits include a discount rate 
of 5 percent (2014 - 6 percent) and a rate of salary increase of 3.75 percent (2014 - 3.75 
percent). 



RED RIVER COLLEGE 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Year ended June 30, 2015 

13. Obligations under capital leases:

The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments under capital leases with 
payments due between August 2015 and December 2018 together with the balances of the 
obligations under capital leases: 

2016  $ 933
2017 597
2018 229
2019 134
Total minimum lease payments 1,893 

Less amount representing interest (ranging from 2.76% to 10.36%) (105) 
Balance of obligations 1,788 

Current portion 870 

$ 918 

Interest expense on the lease obligations amounted to $94 (2014 - $130). 

14. Deferred contributions:

Deferred contributions represent contributions received from the Province and other 
contributions that pertain to expenditures of the following year and donations for various 
scholarships, bursaries and other specific purposes to be paid out in future years. 

2015 2014 

Deferred provincial contributions: 
Balance, beginning of year $ 2,332 $ 5,828 
Amount recognized as revenue during the year  (350) (1,062) 
Amount transferred to deferred  

contributions related to capital assets  –   (2,556) 
Amount received related to the following year 1,214 122 
Balance, end of year   3,196 2,332 

Deferred other contributions: 
Balance, beginning of year  6,485 4,329 
Amount recognized as revenue during the year (1,092) (1,260) 
Amount restricted for endowment –   (44) 
Amount received related to following year 587 3,460 
Balance, end of year   5,980 6,485 

$ 9,176 $ 8,817 



RED RIVER COLLEGE 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Year ended June 30, 2015 

15. Deferred capital campaign contributions:

Deferred capital campaign contributions represent donations received for capital fundraising 
campaigns. The donations are being amortized on the same basis as the capital assets to 
which they relate. The changes in the deferred capital campaign contributions balance are as 
follows: 

2015 2014 

Balance, beginning of year $ 6,038 $ 5,815 
Less amortization of deferred capital 

campaign contributions during the year (319) (309) 
Add donations received during the year 250 532 

Balance, end of year $ 5,969 $ 6,038 

16. Deferred contributions related to capital assets:

Deferred contributions related to capital assets represent the unamortized amount of grants, 
donations and other revenue received for the purchase of capital assets.  

The amortization of capital contributions is recorded as revenue in the statement of operations. 
The changes in the deferred contributions related to capital assets are as follows: 

2015 2014 

Balance, beginning of year $ 80,624 $ 82,438 
Less amortization of deferred contributions (5,943) (6,586)
Add: 

Contributions received for capital purposes 1,371 2,136 
Transferred from deferred provincial contributions  –   2,556
Capital asset donations 1,374 80 

Balance, end of year $ 77,426 $ 80,624 

Unamortized capital contributions of $77,426 (2014 - $80,624) include contributions received 
from the Province for the purchase of capital assets. The College has executed promissory 
notes for these contributions. The promissory notes are payable to the Department of Finance 
of the Province and the payment of these liabilities is guaranteed and funded by the EAL.  



RED RIVER COLLEGE 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Year ended June 30, 2015 

16. Deferred contributions related to capital assets (continued):

No revenue or expense is recorded in accordance with their extinguishment, except for the 
amortization of the deferred contributions. The balances of the promissory notes are as follows: 

2015 2014 

Princess Street campus: 
Phase 1 - 6.3% interest, maturing July 31, 2042, repayable 

in monthly instalments which in the current year ranged 
from $76 - $82 including principal and interest $ 9,551 $ 9,903 

Phase 2 - 6.3% interest, maturing July 31, 2043, repayable 
in monthly instalments which in the current year ranged 
from $131 - $142 including principal and interest 16,679 17,272 

Phase 3 - 6.3% interest, maturing March 31, 2044, 
repayable in monthly instalments which in the current 
year ranged from $54 - $59 including principal and 
interest 6,989 7,232

Heavy Equipment Transportation Centre of Excellence: 
5.5% interest, maturing January 31, 2048, repayable in 

monthly instalments of $60 including principal and 
interest 10,964 11,081

Paterson GlobalFoods Institute: 
4% interest, maturing April 30, 2053, repayable in monthly 

instalments ranging from $72 - $78 in the current year 
including principal and interest  13,715 14,077 

$ 57,898 $ 59,565 

17. Investment in capital and intangible assets:

The investment in capital and intangible assets consists of the following: 

2015 2014 

Capital assets, net book value $ 116,726 $ 121,443 

Less: 
Amounts financed by deferred capital 

campaign contributions  (5,969) (6,038) 
Deferred capital contributions (77,426) (80,624) 
Amounts financed by capital lease (1,788) (2,021) 

$ 31,543 $ 32,760 



RED RIVER COLLEGE 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Year ended June 30, 2015 

17. Investment in capital and intangible assets (continued):

The change in investment in capital and intangible assets is calculated as follows: 

2015 2014 

Purchase of capital assets internally financed $ 1,670 $ 2,741 
Amortization of: 

Capital and intangible assets (9,128) (10,322) 
Deferred capital contributions 5,943 6,585 
Deferred capital campaign contributions 319 309 

Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets (21) 12 

Decrease in investment in capital and intangible assets $ (1,217) $ (675) 

18. Restrictions on net assets:

Net assets restricted for endowment purposes are subject to externally imposed restrictions 
stipulating that the resources be maintained permanently. Investment income on these 
resources is externally restricted to provide various scholarships, bursaries and other 
expenditures. 

Internally restricted net assets consist of the following: 

2015 2014 

Princess Street campus structural reserve $ 799 $ 799 
Notre Dame campus structural reserve 600 600 
Project reserves 3,658 3,945 
Campus renovation reserve  1,000 1,000 
Risk Management reserve  50  50 

$ 6,107 $ 6,394 

Under College internal best practice guidelines, net proceeds earned from designated contract 
training activities are restricted and eligible for expenditure under certain conditions, in the 
years following contract completion. 

The College budgeted for a 2015 operating deficit of $880, which management planned on 
funding through a transfer from internally restricted net assets - project reserves related to 
closed projects. As the College ended up with an operating surplus, this transfer was not 
required in the current year.   



RED RIVER COLLEGE 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Year ended June 30, 2015 

19. Changes in non-cash working capital balances:

2015 2014 

Accounts receivable $ 867 $ (596) 
Inventories 25 (140)
Prepaid expenses (996) 14 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 97 4,040 
Deferred revenue (653) 2,021 

Changes in non-cash working capital $ (660) $ 5,339 

20. Pension costs and obligations:

The College, together with other related and unrelated parties, is part of a defined benefit 
pension plan (Civil Service Superannuation Plan) that satisfies the definition of a multi-
employer plan. The costs of the benefit plan are not allocated to the individual entities within the 
group. As a result, individual entities within the group are not able to identify their share of the 
underlying assets and liabilities. Therefore, the plan is accounted for as a defined contribution 
plan in accordance with the requirements of the Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards, 
Section PS 3250. 

The expense related to the pension plan was $7,305 (2014 - $6,462). These contributions 
represent the total pension obligations of the College. The College is not required under 
present legislation to make contributions with respect to any actuarial deficiencies of the plan. 

21. Commitments:

The College leases classroom and office space in Winnipeg, Portage la Prairie, Steinbach, 
Neepawa, and Winkler, Manitoba. The College has also contracted for services, as well as 
leased certain computer and other equipment. Minimum annual operating lease and contractual 
commitment payments for accommodation, services, construction costs and equipment, in 
aggregate, for each of the next five years, is approximately as follows: 

2016  $ 2,961
2017 1,526
2018 567
2019 383
2020 367

$ 5,804 



RED RIVER COLLEGE 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Year ended June 30, 2015 

22. Related parties:

(a) Red River College Students’ Association Inc.: 

The Red River College Students’ Association (the Students’ Association) is an income tax 
exempt organization significantly influenced by the College. The Students’ Association is 
responsible for providing services such as health and dental benefits, study and lounging 
areas, and a voice on the College’s Board of Governors for students of the College. The 
Students’ Association and the Students’ Association Building Fund (SABF) are 
incorporated under the Corporations Act of Manitoba and operate on a not-for-profit basis. 
SABF is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Students’ Association.  

(b) Canadian Animal Blood Bank Inc.: 

The Canadian Animal Blood Bank Inc. (the Blood Bank) is a significantly influenced 
investee owned 50 percent by the College and 50 percent by the Manitoba Veterinary 
Medical Association. The Blood Bank is dedicated to improving veterinary care by providing 
blood products for animals that require transfusion therapy. The Blood Bank is incorporated 
under the Corporations Act of Manitoba and operates on a not-for-profit basis and is 
exempt from income taxes. As at May 31, 2015, net resources of the Blood Bank amount to 
$190. 

The net assets and results of operations of the Blood Bank are not included in the financial 
statements of the College. 

23. Financial risks:

(a) Liquidity risk: 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the College will be unable to fulfill its obligations on a timely 
basis or at a reasonable cost. The College manages its liquidity risk by monitoring its 
operating requirements. The College prepares budget and cash forecasts to ensure it has 
sufficient funds to fulfill its obligations.  



RED RIVER COLLEGE 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Year ended June 30, 2015 

23. Financial risks (continued):

(b) Credit risk: 

Credit risk is the risk to the College’s earnings arising from the risk that a counter party to a 
transaction is unable to satisfy its obligations to the College. Credit risk is mitigated by the 
fact that the College’s accounts receivable are comprised of a large number of 
comparatively small individual balances. Reviews are made of the credit worthiness of 
accounts and reserves established as required. 

(c) Interest rate and foreign exchange risk: 

Interest rates, maturities and security affect the interest rate risk of certain of the College’s 
financial assets and liabilities. The College is subject to foreign exchange risk because a 
portion of its financial instruments are denominated in foreign currencies. 

The financial risk is the risk to the College’s earnings that arises from fluctuations in interest 
rates and foreign exchange rates and the degree of volatility of these rates. The College 
does not use derivative instruments to reduce its exposure to interest rate and foreign 
exchange risk. 

There has been no change to the above noted risk exposures from 2014. 

24. Capital disclosure:

The College’s objectives in managing capital are: 

 minimizing the cost of capital

 preserving the ability to continue as a going concern

 maintaining flexibility to ensure the ongoing ability to execute the Strategic Plan.

Management considers the current and long-term portions of debt, unrestricted net assets and 
internally restricted net assets are capital. The College has various policies in place to manage 
capital, including a policy requiring Board approval on major capital expenditures, securing debt 
and capital budget approval. The College also uses its net assets to support the Strategic Plan, 
special initiatives, trust and endowment activities and campus expansion and redevelopment. 
The College receives Province of Manitoba funding to support major capital projects. The 
College also maintains deferred contribution accounts and endowments for externally restricted 
funding. These funds are managed with the objectives of spending the funds in accordance 
with various terms stipulated in the funding arrangements. For the year ended June 30, 2015, 
the College has met its externally imposed capital requirements. 



RED RIVER COLLEGE 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Year ended June 30, 2015 

25. Comparative information:

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the financial statement 
presentation adopted in the current year. 
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